
 
 

Agenda 06.03.2024 
Page 1 

 

  
 
 
 
Watch Live via YouTube at:  

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA 
Pursuant to Ordinance #08-17, Any citizen of the County may sign to 
speak in person at the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 
Regular Meeting start time) on the Public Comments Sign in Sheet on 
the Podium to address Council on matters pertaining to County 
Services and Operations. Presentations will be limited to three (3) 
minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes.  
Written Public Comments may also be submitted by 1PM on the date 
of the Council Meeting by emailing your comment to: 
comments@jaspercountysc.gov.  
 
To participate in a Public Hearing for a specific agenda item, you may 
either email written public comments to 
comments@jaspercountysc.gov by 1:00PM on Monday, June 3, 2024; 
or you can speak in person at the Council Meeting by signing in on the 
Public Hearing Sign In Sheet located outside the Council Chambers 
Doors prior to the start of the meeting. Public Hearing Comments shall 
be limited to 3 minutes per person. 
 

Instructions may also be found at the Jasper County website 
www.jaspercountysc.gov  
         
FOR MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE CALL (843) 717-3696 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA
mailto:comments@jaspercountysc.gov
http://www.jaspercountysc.gov/


 
 

Agenda 06.03.2024 
Page 2 

 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg.  
     358 3rd Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

    Monday, June 3, 2024 

4:00PM 
Budget Workshop: 
 
FIT – Families in Transition – Jennifer Coleman 
Jasper Soil and Water Conservation District – Lyn Boyles 
Jasper County Election Commission – Jeanine Bostick  
      
Regular Council Meeting and Executive Session will begin at the conclusion of the Budget Workshop 

 
1.     Call to Order of Council Meeting by Chairman Sauls 
 

Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act.  
*In compliance with the Freedom of Information Act, notice of meetings and agendas were posted      
and furnished to all news media and persons requesting notification* 
 

2.         Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   
(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 

 
   (2)  Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed     

                 purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to    
                 pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client  
                 privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary  

   situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim –Tax Map # 063-26-14-001  
    and # 063-26-14-002; Banking Matters; Nickel Plate MCIP; Exit 3; Emergency Services: Crowley 

& Wechsler Agreement; Project Telfair   
                  

   (5)  Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision  
   of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in 
    the area served by a public body – Prospect Update  
 

ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE 
DISCUSSION SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND 
COUNCIL MAY RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION 
AGENDA ITEMS. 
 



 
 

Agenda 06.03.2024 
Page 3 

 

PLEASE BE ADVISED THERE MAY BE VOTES BASED ON ITEMS FROM THE EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
3:  Return to Open Session at 6:30PM 
 

o 3.1 Action coming out of Executive Session 
 
4.  Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation:  
 
5.  Approval of the Consent Agenda Items: 
 
6.  Approval of the Regular Agenda:  
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7. Proclamation for South Carolina Center for Father’s and Families proclaiming June the Joy of 
Fatherhood Month in Jasper County.   
 
8.  Presentation by the Gullah & Latino Advisory Council. 
 

______________________________________________________________________________________  
RESOLUTIONS 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
9.  Mr. Fulghum - Consideration of Resolution #R-2024-18 To Adopt The Jasper County Equal Employment 
Opportunity Plan. 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________  

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
10. Kim Burgess – Consideration of the 3rd reading and Public Hearing of Ordinance #O-2024-12 
Authorising the Execution and Delivery of Certain Instruments Relating to the Acquisition, Construction, 
Renovation, Equipping, Use, and Leasing of Certain County Facilities; Approving the Issuance of St. Peters 
Parish/Jasper County Public Facilities Corporation Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds and Bond 
Anticipation Notes; Consenting to the Form of Trust Agreements Between St. Peters Parish/Jasper 
County Public Facilities Corporation and the Corporate Trustee; The Lease Of Certain Personal Property, 
Real Property And The Buildings And Other Site Improvements Located Thereon, by Jasper County, South 
Carolina to St. Peters Parish/Jasper County Public Facilities Corporation, Including Authorising the 
Execution and Delivery of a Base Lease Agreement, Between Jasper County and St. Peters Parish/Jasper 
County Public Facilities Corporation; Authorising the Execution and Delivery of a Public Facilities 
Purchase and Occupancy Agreement Between Jasper County and St. Peters Parish/Jasper County Public 
Facilities Corporation; Authorising the Execution and Delivery of a Lease Agreement Between Jasper 
County and St. Peters Parish/Jasper County Public Facilities Corporation; and Other Matters Relating 
Thereto. (1st reading 04.01.2024; 2nd reading  05.06.2024) 



 
 

Agenda 06.03.2024 
Page 4 

 

11. David Tedder – Consideration of the 2nd reading and Public Hearing of Ordinance  
#O-2024-14 authorizing the sale of a right of way easement over approximately 0.34 acres, 14,878 
sq. ft., being a portion of TMS 042-00-05-040 adjacent to the Interstate Highway I-95, to the South 
Carolina Department of Transportation in order to facilitate the widening, in exchange for the 
amount of $20,900.00 in just compensation, and to authorize the Jasper County Administrator to 
execute such right of way easement and other documents as may be necessary and appropriate to 
effect the transfer to the South Carolina Department of Transportation, or its assigns, and matters 
related thereto. (1st reading 04.01.2024) (I95 widening project).   
 
12. Lisa Wagner – Consideration of the 2nd reading and Public Hearing and Consideration of Ordinance  
#O-2024-15 to amend: (i) Ordinance Number O-2022-16 to adopt updated standards for the Planned 
Development District encompassing a 38.84 acre parcel located on U.S. Highway 278 (the “Property”); and 
(ii) Ordinance O-2022-14 to amend the development agreement (the “Development Agreement”) between 
Jasper County (the “County”) and Conduit Street Partners, LLC (“CSP” or the “Developer”) that governs 
CSP’s development of the Property into a 275-unit single-family residential community (the “Project”); in 
both cases to allow for the possibility that the Project may include not only “for rent” residential dwellings, 
but also “for sale” residential dwellings; and matters related thereto. (1streading 05.06.2024) 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  
13. Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in person at 
the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:30PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes. 

 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
14. Administrator’s Report   
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  
 
15. Kimberly Burgess - Consideration of the 3rd reading of Ordinance #O-2024-13 To Provide For The Levy 
Of Tax For Public Purposes In Jasper County For The Fiscal Year Beginning July 1st, 2024 And Ending June 
30th 2025 And To Make Appropriations For Said Purposes; To Adopt And Approve The Jasper County 
Capital And Operations Budget For Fiscal Year 2024-2025, To Adopt And Approve The Jasper County School 
District Capital And Operations Budget For Fiscal Year 2024–2025; To Provide For The Levy Of Taxation For 
Fiscal Year 2024–2025; To Limit The Disbursements By The County Treasurer To Those Appropriated By 
Law; To Provide That Expenditures Not Exceed Appropriations; To Authorize Tax Anticipation Notes; To 
Make Authorization Of Certain Transfers; To Provide For Additional Appropriations And Borrowing; To 
Codify Jasper County Rates And Fees; To Provide For Lapsing Funds And Continuing Appropriations For 
Subsequent Years; To Require Certain Agencies And Departments To File Accountings; To Require The 
Treasurer To Sign General Fund Checks; To Provide Special Rules For Travel And Training Disbursements; 



 
 

Agenda 06.03.2024 
Page 5 

 

To Provide For Travel Reimbursements; To Provide Compliance With Act No. 317 Of 1990; To Provide 
Certain Benefits To Council Members; To Provide For County Commission And Committee Stipends; To 
Provide For Jury Mileage; To Adopt Property Values; And To Provide For Effective Date Of This Ordinance 
(1st reading 05.06.2024; 2nd reading and Public Hearing 05.20.2024) 
 
16. Kimberly Burgess – Bid Acceptance Recommendation for a Container and Compactor Bid for the 
purchase of four (4) containers and one compactor for use at the solid waste collection centers and to 
authorize the County Administrator or his designee to execute all documents necessary to complete the 
purchase. 
 
17. Danny Lucas – Consideration of the 2024 CDBG Ranking Summary 
 
18.  Kimberly Burgess – Bid Acceptance Recommendation for Debris Removal at the Coosawhatchie 
Community Center site 

 
19. Kimberly Burgess – Proposal Acceptance Recommendation for Financial and Compliance Auditing 
Services  
 
20. Andrew Fulghum - Acceptance of Body Armor Assistance Grant No. 1BA24008 award from the SC 
Department of Public Safety.  
 
21. Kimberly Burgess - Acceptance and authorization of M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc. Capital Planning 
Services Extension 

 
22. Approval of the Minutes 04.01.2024 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
23. Council Members Comments: 

 
24. Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda  
Item II. *Council may act on any item appearing on the agenda including items discussed in executive 
session. 
 
25. Adjournment: 
In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the 
meeting was posted on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place and on the county website 
at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  A copy of the agenda was given to the local news media and posted 
at the meeting location twenty-four hours prior to the meeting.  
 

Special Accommodations Available Upon Request to Individuals with Disabilities  
 (843) 717-3696 



FIT – Families in Transition – 

Jennifer Coleman 



























































Jasper Soil and Water Conservation District–  

Lyn Boyles 









Jasper County Election Commission – 

Jeanine Bostick 



1 
 

2024 – 2025 Board of Elections Proposed Budget Explanations 

 

1.   2008 - Cost of Living Adjustment:    +$10,400.00 

 

 

2024 - 2025 Proposed Budget Amount:    $536,250.00 

2023- 2024 Adopted Budget Amount:    $473,750.00 

Increase Of:               +$ 62,500.00      
 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE:  Revenue from City of Hardeeville and Town of Ridgeland Elections $4,400 each. 

Motioned to approve by Ms. Carrie Fair, seconded by Mrs. Hilda Stevenson-Stewart. Motion carried 

unanimously. March 14, 2024, at the monthly board meeting. 

 



2 
 

 

2024 - 2025 JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF ELECTION & VOTERS REGISTRATION PROPOSED BUDGET REQUEST   

ACCOUNT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 2023 - 2024 ADOPTED BUDGET 2024-2025 PROPOSED BUDGET  

2000 SALARIES & WAGES $127,250.00 $132,250.00 (3% Cost of Living for Admin Asst; Deputy Director & Director’s Salary) 

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES $60,000.00 $ 60,000.00 (Poll Workers) 

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT $9,400.00 $10,400.00  

2020 OVERTIME $0.00 $0.00 

2030 FICA—EMPLOYER CONTRIB. $9,700.00 $9,700.00 FINANCE DEPARTMENT COMPUTES FIGURES 

2036 S.C. RERETIREMENT-EMPLOYER $23,400.00 $23,400.00 FINANCE DEPARTMENT COMPUTES FIGURES 

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE $26,500.00 $26,500.00 FINANCE DEPARTMENT COMPUTES FIGURES 

2050 TORT INSURANCE $18,000.00 $18,000.00 FINANCE DEPARTMENT COMPUTES FIGURES 

2060 WORKER’S COMPENSATION $2,600 $ 2,600.00 FINANCE DEPARTMENT COMPUTES FIGURES 

2100 TELEPHONE $4,000.00 $ 4,000.00 FINANCE DEPARTMENT COMPUTES FIGURES 

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES $4,400.00 $ 4,400.00 FINANCE DEPARTMENT COMPUTES FIGURES 

2300 GAS, OIL & GREASE $1,400.00 $1,400 PER FINANCE DEPARTMENT COMPUTES FIGURES 

2307 NEW VEHICLES $0.00 $55,000.00 Purchase Vehicle to Transport Voting Equipment, ie., 
Voter Registration Drives and Poll Workers Training  

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE $0.00 $1,500.00 FINANCE DEPARTMENT COMPUTES FIGURES 

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE $1,400.00 $1,400.00 FINANCE DEPARTMENT COMPUTES FIGURES 

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS $80,000.00 
$80,000.00- Copiers and Printers; ES& S Voting Equipment; Preventive 
Maintenance; Hardware & Software Contract.  

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT $10,000.00 $10,000.00 (Additional Voting Equipment for New Precinct 
Margaritaville) 

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING $30,000.00 $30,000.00 - SCARE Conference - SCARE Conference Fees; Dues; 
Mandatory Certification and Continued Education Trainings; District 
Meetings and Workshops; Hotel Accommodations; Mileage & Meal 
Expenses 

2825 UTILITIES $5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 FINANCE DEPARTMENT COMPUTES FIGURES 

2850 
 
 

ELECTION EXPENSES $35,000.00 $35,000.00 - Town of Ridgeland Election; (to include but not limited; 
Election supplies; delivery of voting equipment; vehicle leasing fees; 
custodian fees; COVID-19 precinct cleaning expenses; voter registration 
drives, poll workers training 

2870 MEDIA SERVICES $5,000.00 $5,000.00  

3200 VORTERS REGISTR-BOARD MEMBERS $20,700.00 $20,700.00 

TOTAL  $473,750.00 $536,250.00 



3 
 

 





PROCLAMATION 

Jasper County Proclamation for Fatherhood  

WHEREAS, fathers are the cornerstone of strong families, providing love, guidance, 

and support to their children; and 

WHEREAS, the positive impact of fathers on their children’s development cannot be 

overstated, as they instill values, encourage growth, and foster resilience; and 

WHEREAS, the South Carolina Center for Fathers and Families, established in 2002, 

has been a beacon of support, equipping tens of thousands of fathers across our state 

with the resources and knowledge needed to embrace responsible fatherhood; and 

WHEREAS, the long public-private partnership between the Center and state, local, 

and private agencies, has led to the Center’s expansion and innovation of programs to 

serve more dads better; and 

WHEREAS, the Center has developed and expanded the reach of its network of five 

regional fatherhood organizations, including A Father’s Place, Man 2 Man, Midlands 

Fatherhood Coalition, A Father’s Way, and Upstate Fatherhood Coalition; and 

WHEREAS, when fathers actively lead and engage with their children, these young 

lives flourish socially, emotionally, and academically; and 

WHEREAS, the Center continues to serve as a model for fatherhood initiatives 

nationwide; and 

WHEREAS, the month of June provides an opportunity for all citizens of South 

Carolina to celebrate and honor the joys of fatherhood, recognizing the tireless efforts of 

fathers in shaping the future of our communities; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Jasper County Council of the great 

State of South Carolina do hereby proclaim the month of June 2024 as 

The Joy of Fatherhood Month 

throughout our county and encourage all our residents to express gratitude for the 

fathers in their lives, celebrate their contributions, and to promote the active 

involvement of fathers in children's lives to enhance the lives of our young people, build 

better citizens, and strengthen South Carolina families and communities. 

Dated this 3rd day of June 2024.  

County Council of Jasper County, SC 

____________________________________ 

 (Seal)     Chairman, Jasper County Council 











1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
JASPER COUNTY 

RESOLUTION NUMBER # R-2024 -18 

RESOLUTION OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE JASPER COUNTY 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  

WHEREAS, Jasper County, South Carolina has developed a policy to promote 
the specific goals and objectives for ensuring equal opportunities within the 
County; and 

WHEREAS, such a policy has been created in conformance with the guidelines 
established by the federal government utilizing the most recent data available; 
and 

WHEREAS, it is the continuing policy of the Jasper County Council to afford 
equal employment opportunities to qualified individuals regardless of sex, race, 
creed, disability, or national origin, and to conform to the applicable law and 
regulations; and 

WHEREAS, equal opportunity encompasses all aspects of employment 
practices to include, but no limited to, recruiting, hiring, training, compensation, 
benefits, promotions, transfers, recalls from layoffs, discipline, and department 
sponsored educational and social and recreational programs; and  

WHEREAS, it is the policy of Jasper County to provide its employees a viable 
means for communicating and resolving grievances and complaints regarding 
unlawful discriminatory employment practices, and any employee of Jasper 
County who fails to comply with this policy is subject to disciplinary action;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Jasper County Council, in 
Council duly assembled and by the authority of the same, that Jasper County 



2 

Council hereby adopts and enacts the attached Jasper County Equal Employment 
Opportunity Plan; and  

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all previously adopted or approved 
Equal Employment Opportunity Plans are hereby repealed and replaced with the 
Jasper County Equal Employment Opportunity Plan adopted herein.  

ADOPTED THIS THE 3rd DAY OF JUNE 2024.   

SIGNATURES FOLLOW 

This Resolution No. R-2024-18  made this 3rd day of June, 2024. 

_____________________ 
L. Martin Sauls, IV 
Chairman

ATTEST: 

_____________________ 
Wanda H. Giles  
Clerk to Council 

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney. 

___________________________ _____________ 
David L. Tedder Date 



EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN 
ADOPTED JUNE 3, 2024 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

i 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-- Place holder for a resolution -- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

ii 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................................ V 

SECTION I ................................................................................................................................................... 1 

EEOP Purpose ...................................................................................................................................................... 1 

EEO Policy Statement .......................................................................................................................................... 2 

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Policy ................................................................................................................. 3 

SECTION II .................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Demographics ..................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Utilization Analysis .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

SECTION III ................................................................................................................................................. 8 

Objectives ............................................................................................................................................................ 8 

Implementation................................................................................................................................................... 9 

SECTION IV ................................................................................................................................................ 12 

Appendix A: Demographics ............................................................................................................................... 12 

Appendix B: Workforce Analysis ....................................................................................................................... 15 

Appendix C: Definitions of Race/Ethnicity Categories ...................................................................................... 40 

Appendix D: Description of Job Categories ....................................................................................................... 41 

 

 

  



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

iii 

LIST OF TABLES 

Table 1: Population Change 2000-2020 ................................................................................................................ 12 

Table 2: Race and Ethnicity 2000-2020 ................................................................................................................. 12 

Table 3: Age Distribution 2000-2020 .................................................................................................................... 13 

Table 4: Household Formation 2000-2020 ........................................................................................................... 13 

Table 5: Educational Attainment 2000-2020 ........................................................................................................ 14 

Table 6: Income 2000-2020 ................................................................................................................................... 14 

Table 7: Workforce Utilization Analysis 2021 ....................................................................................................... 25 

Table 8: Significant Workforce Underutilization 2021 .......................................................................................... 27 

Table 9: Workforce Utilization Analysis between 2011 and 2021 ........................................................................ 37 

Table 10: Significant Improvement of Workforce Utilization between 2011 and 2021 ....................................... 39 

 

 

 

  



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

iv 

LIST OF FIGURES 

Figure 1: Workforce for All Job Categories by Sex in 2021 ................................................................................... 15 

Figure 2: Male Workforce by Job Category in 2021 .............................................................................................. 16 

Figure 3: Female Workforce by Job Category in 2021 .......................................................................................... 17 

Figure 4: Workforce for All Job Categories by Race and Ethnicity in 2021 ........................................................... 18 

Figure 5: White Workforce by Job Category in 2021 ............................................................................................ 19 

Figure 6: Black or African American Workforce by Job Category in 2021 ............................................................ 20 

Figure 7: American Indian or Alaska Native Workforce by Job Category in 2021 ................................................ 21 

Figure 8: Asian Workforce by Job Category in 2021 ............................................................................................. 22 

Figure 9: Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander Workforce by Job Category for in 2021 .............................. 23 

Figure 10: Hispanic or Latino Workforce by Job Category in 2021 ....................................................................... 24 

Figure 11: Workforce for All Job Categories by Sex between 2011 and 2021 ...................................................... 28 

Figure 12: Male Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 2021................................................................. 29 

Figure 13: Female Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 2021 ............................................................. 30 

Figure 14: Workforce for All Job Categories by Race and Ethnicity between 2011 and 2021 .............................. 31 

Figure 15: White Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 2021 ............................................................... 32 

Figure 16: Black or African American Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 2021 ............................... 33 

Figure 17: American Indian or Alaska Native Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 2021 ................... 34 

Figure 18: Asian or Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 

2021 ...................................................................................................................................................... 35 

Figure 19: Hispanic or Latino Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 2021 ............................................ 36 

  



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

v 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Jasper County is committed to ensuring that equal employment opportunity in the workplace is mandatory. 

The Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) has been updated to reiterate the County’s commitment to a 

diverse workforce through employment, career development opportunities, and promotion of an inclusive 

workforce; and provide a work environment that prohibits discrimination based on sex, race, color, religion, 

national origin, disability, age, sexual orientation, pregnancy, socio-economic, or marital status.  

The EEOP includes information on the importance of equal employment opportunities in the workplace, 

demographics and trends, workforce utilization analysis, and key objectives for ensuring equal employment 

opportunities at all levels.  

A comparison of county workforce and available workforce indicates underutilization of women and minorities 

in several categories i.e., Officials/Administrators, Professionals, Technicians, and Protective Services. In 

addition, a comparison of county workforce between 2011 and 2021 shows significant improvements in the 

recruitment and retention of women and minorities in the Officials/Administrators, Professionals, Skill Craft, 

and Service/Maintenance categories. The County has analyzed this information to determine whether and 

where underutilization of workforce exists. The County will address any areas of underutilization and will 

prioritize available recruitment and promotional opportunities.  

Promoting diversity and inclusion at all levels of the workforce shall not be exercised through quotas, but 

rather through merits. Jasper County recognizes that an effective and efficient government requires a 

workforce with knowledge, skills, and abilities that are necessary for essential job functions to support the 

County’s services. 

Key objectives have been developed to guide and measure progress towards achieving equal employment 

opportunities. The three key objectives are: 

• Compliance with policies and regulations  

• Increased communication, outreach, and diversity 

• Diversity, equity, and inclusion training 

Jasper County, with support of the Equal Employment Opportunity Committee, the Human Resources 

Department, Department Heads, and employees, will implement these objectives and pursue solutions to 

problems that might impede the progress of this plan.  

 

 

 

 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

1 

SECTION I 

 

EEOP PURPOSE 

An Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) is a comprehensive document that analyzes the organization’s 

relevant labor market data, as well as the organization’s employment practices, to identify possible barriers to 

the participation of all groups of people, specifically addressing the level of participation of minorities and 

women in the organization’s workforce. The EEOP purpose is to ensure the opportunity for full and equal 

participation of men and women in the workplace, regardless of race, color, or national origin.  

The EEOP is required by a federal regulation to implement the provision prohibiting employment 

discrimination. According to the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, federal equal employment 

laws for local governments include: 

Race, Color, Religion, Sex, National Origin 

Title VII of the Civil Right Act of 1964, as amended, protects applicants and employees from discrimination in 

hiring, promotion, discharge, pay, fringe benefits, job training, classification, referral, and other aspects of 

employment, on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy), or national origin. Religious 

discrimination includes failing to reasonably accommodate an employee’s religious practices where the 

accommodation does not impose undue hardship. 

Disability 

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, protect qualified individuals from discrimination on the 

basis of disability in hiring, promotion, discharge, pay, fringe benefits, job training, classification, referral, and 

other aspects of employment. Disability discrimination includes not making reasonable accommodation to the 

known physical or mental limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a disability who is an applicant 

or employee, barring undue hardship. 

 

COUNTY MISSION: TO PROVIDE EFFICIENT GOVERNMENT SERVICES 
AND MANAGE GROWTH WHILE PROTECTING JASPER COUNTY’S RICH 

ENVIRONMENTAL HERITAGE AND QUALITY OF LIFE. 

 

https://www.eeoc.gov/statutes/title-vii-civil-rights-act-1964
https://www.eeoc.gov/statutes/titles-i-and-v-americans-disabilities-act-1990-ada


 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

2 

Age 

Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA) of 1967, as amended, protects applicants and employees 40 

years of age or older from discrimination based on age in hiring, promotion, discharge, pay, fringe benefits, job 

training, classification, referral, and other aspects of employment. 

Sex (Wages) 

The Equal Pay Act of 1963, as amended, prohibits sex discrimination in the payment of wages to women and 

men performing substantially equal work, in jobs that require equal skill, effort, and responsibility, under 

similar working conditions, in the same establishment. 

Genetics 

Title II of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (GINA), protects applicants and employees 

from discrimination based on genetic information in hiring, promotion, discharge, pay, fringe benefits, job 

training, classification, referral, and other aspects of employment. GINA also restricts employers’ acquisition of 

genetic information and strictly limits disclosure of genetic information. Genetic information includes 

information about genetic tests of applicants, employees, or their family members; the manifestation of 

diseases or disorders in family members (family medical history); and requests for or receipt of genetic services 

by applicants, employees, or their family members. 

EEO POLICY STATEMENT 

It is the policy of Jasper County to provide fair and equal employment opportunity to all qualified men and 

women within its workforce and to prohibit discrimination in employment on the basis of race, color, religion, 

sex, national origin, disability, age, sexual orientation, pregnancy, socio-economic, or marital status. The 

County is committed to ensuring an inclusive, diverse workforce that is reflective of the community it serves. 

This Equal Employment Opportunity Plan provides the foundation of the community it serves. The County’s 

fair and equal employment opportunity policy includes, but is not limited to: 

• Nondiscriminatory recruitment, screening, testing, hiring, training, promoting of persons in all job 

categories. 

• Employment decisions that are based on Jasper County’s commitment to equal employment opportunity. 

• Ensuring that promotion decisions are in accordance with the principles of equal employment 

opportunity by imposing only valid requirements for promotional opportunity. 

• Ensuring that all personnel actions such as compensation, benefits, transfers, work assignments, 

layoffs, return from layoff, disciplinary actions, terminations, training, and education are administered 

in a fair and nondiscriminatory manner. 

• Ensuring affirmative steps are taken to correct under-representation of any protected group within the 

County’s workforce. 

https://www.eeoc.gov/statutes/age-discrimination-employment-act-1967
https://www.eeoc.gov/history/equal-pay-act-1963#:~:text=To%20prohibit%20discrimination%20on%20account,production%20of%20goods%20for%20commerce.
https://www.eeoc.gov/genetic-information-discrimination#:~:text=Title%20II%20of%20the%20Genetic,applicants%20because%20of%20genetic%20information.


 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

3 

DIVERSITY, EQUITY, AND INCLUSION POLICY 

Jasper County is committed to fostering, cultivating, and preserving a culture of diversity, equity and inclusion. 

Our human capital is the most valuable asset we have. The collective sum of the individual differences, life 

experiences, knowledge, inventiveness, innovation, self-expression, unique capabilities and talent that our 

employees invest in their work represents a significant part of not only our culture, but our reputation and 

company’s achievement as well. 

We embrace and encourage our employee’s differences in age, color, disability, ethnicity, family or marital 

status, gender identity or expression, language, national origin, physical and mental ability, political affiliation, 

race, religion, sexual orientation, socio-economic status, veteran status, and other characteristics that make 

our employees unique. 

Jasper County’s diversity initiatives are applicable, but are not limited, to our practices and policies on 

recruitment and selection, compensation and benefits, professional development and training, promotions, 

transfers, social and recreational programs, layoffs, terminations, and the ongoing development of a work 

environment built on the premise of diversity, equity, and inclusion that encourages and enforces. 

• Respectful communication and cooperation between all employees. 

• Teamwork and employee participation, permitting the representation of all groups and employee 

perspectives. 

• Work/life balance through flexible work schedules to accommodate employees’ varying needs. 

• Employer and employee contributions to the communities we serve to promote a greater 

understanding and respect for diversity. 

All employees of Jasper County have a responsibility to treat others with dignity and respect at all times. All 

employees are expected to exhibit conduct that reflects inclusion during work, at work functions on or off the 

work site, and at all other county-sponsored and participative events. All employees are also required to 

attend and complete annual diversity awareness training to enhance their knowledge to fulfill this 

responsibility.  

Any employees found to have exhibited any inappropriate conduct or behavior against others may be subject 

to disciplinary action. Employees who believe they have been subjected to any kind of discrimination that 

conflicts with the county’s diversity policy and initiatives should seek assistance from a supervisor or an HR 

representative. 

 

 

 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

4 

SECTION II 

DEMOGRAPHICS 

Jasper County comprises the City of Hardeeville, the Town of Ridgeland, and unincorporated areas. According 

to Census Bureau’s urban-rural classification, 14% of the County’s areas are classified as urban in 2020. 

According to Census Decennial, the County’s population increased by 39.2% from 20,678 in 2000 to 28,363 in 

2020, with the strongest growth in the southern portions of the County. These figures include a large increase 

from 1,793 to 7,228 (316.8%) in the City of Hardeeville. The County’s population is expected to increase by 

64.6% by 2035 to exceed 34,000. In 2020, the County’s population density stood at 43.9 persons per square 

mile.  

Historically the County’s population was almost entirely composed of Blacks and Whites, with relatively small 

numbers of Asians, Native Americans, Pacific Islanders, and Hispanics. Between 2000 and 2020, there have 

been significant changes in the population’s composition, with an increase of Hispanics by 326.8%. In 2020, the 

racial mixture is 45.3% Whites, 33.2% Blacks, 21.5% other races. The ethnic population comprises Hispanics 

(17.6%). The Hispanic population continued to grow in the County. 

The age composition is an important factor in determining the workforce available in the County. The County’s 

median age is 42.5 in 2020. The number of working age population (15-64) has increased but at a slow rate. 

This may suggest a shrinking future labor force. The County also saw a marked increase in population 60 years 

and older at 183.8% from 2000 to 2020. The population 60 years and older comprises approximately three in 

ten people.   

In 2020, a total of 11,272 households resided in the County, with a 60.5% increase from 2000. The average 

household size of 2.71 persons in the County is slightly larger than that of the Lowcountry region (2.56) and the 

state (2.53). The majority of households (46.9%) are married couples. There are more female-headed 

households (29.2%) compared to male-headed households (17.9%). Among single-person households, 40.8% 

are people aged 65 or older.  

The educational attainment of the County’s population can influence economic development, earning 

potential, and quality of life. Between 2000 and 2020, the County saw an increase of population 25 years and 

older that holds a high school diploma (65.7%) or a higher education degree (some college or associate’s 

degree 117.9%, bachelor’s degree 291.2%, and graduate degree 292.3%). Presumably, the high percentage in 

higher education compensates for the low percentage of the population with a high school diploma. 

In 2020, the County’s median household income is $45,924, below the averages for the region ($48,070) and 

the state ($54,864). Between 2000 and 2020, median income had increased by 49.5%, however inflation-

adjusted median incomes had declined by 0.1%. Further details on demographics can be found in Appendix A. 

 

 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

5 

UTILIZATION ANALYSIS 

A utilization analysis is a workforce analysis made to ensure that Jasper County provides equal employment 

opportunities to women and minorities. A utilization analysis compares the County’s workforce to the relevant 

labor market in terms of sex, race and ethnicity, and job category. In addition, this section provides a 

comparison of County workforce between 2011 and 2021 to reflect changes in workforce overtime. Further 

details on comparison of County workforce to available workforce and comparison of County workforce 

between 2011 and 2021 can be found in Appendix B. Definitions of race and ethnicity and description of job 

category can be found in Appendix C and Appendix D respectively. 

The results of the analyses will help determine if there is underutilization in the County government and how 

to develop goals and engage in targeted outreach and recruitment activities to help meet Equal Employment 

Opportunity requirements.  

Comparison of County Workforce to Available Workforce 

Workforce by Sex 

The County’s workforce is predominantly male, while the available workforce is predominantly female. Males 

comprise 53% of the County’s workforce and 47.5% of the available workforce. Females comprise 47% of the 

County’s workforce and 52.5% of the available workforce. The County’s female workforce is under-

represented by 5.5%. 

Workforce by Race and Ethnicity 

The County’s workforce and available workforce are predominantly White. The County’s racial/ethnic 

workforce exceeds available workforce in Whites by 3%, Blacks by 3.2%, and American Indian or Alaska Natives 

by 0.6%. The County’s racial/ethnic workforce is under-represented in Asians by 0.7%, Hispanics by 5.5%, and 

Others by 0.8%. 

Workforce by Job Category 

• Officials/Administrators 

- There was an under-representation of White males by 24.2%, White females by 17.5%, and 

Hispanic males by 2.4%.  

- Hispanics females were not represented at all, with an under-representation by 2.4%. 

• Professionals 

- There was an under-representation of Whites females by 31.3%.  

- Asian males, Asian females, and Hispanic males were not represented at all, with an under-

representation by 3%, 3.5%, and 1% respectively. 

 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

6 

• Technicians 

- Black males and Hispanic males were not represented at all, with an under-representation by 

13.5% and 11.7% respectively. 

• Protective Services 

- Black males were under-represented by 24.4%. 

• Administrative Support 

- There was an under-representation of White males by 9.1%, Black males by 0.5%, and Black 

females by 1.4%. 

- Asian males, Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander males, and Hispanic males were not 

represented at all, with an under-representation by 1.1%, 0.2%, and by 0.6% respectively. 

• Skilled Craft 

- There was an under-representation of White males by 4.5%.  

- Hispanic males were not represented at all, with an under-representation by 30.1%. 

• Service/Maintenance 

- There was an under-representation of White males by 4.9% and Black females by 11.7%. Hispanic 

males and females were not represented at all, with an under-representation by 5.8% and 4.2% 

respectively.  

Comparison of County Workforce between 2011 and 2021 

Workforce by Sex 

A comparison of the County’s workforce between 2011 and 2021 reflects the predominance of male employees. 

However, the County saw an increase of females in the workforce from 41.9% in 2011 to 47% in 2021.  

Workforce by race and Ethnicity 

A comparison of the County’s workforce between 2011 and 2021 reflects the predominance of Whites with 

roughly unchanged representation from 57.3% in 2011 to 57.5% in 2021. The County saw an increase of Blacks 

in the workforce from 41.9% in 2011 to 47% in 2021. For the same period, the representation of other races 

and ethnicities decreased: American Indians and Alaska Natives (0% to 0.6%), Asians or Native Hawaiians or 

Other Pacific Islanders (0.3% to 0.6%), and Hispanics (0.7% to 3.2%). 

Workforce by Job Category 

• Officials/Administrators 

- Increase in representation: Black males by 16.7%, Black females by 15%, and American Indian or 

Alaska Native females by 2.5%.  

- Decrease in representation: White males by 28.3%, White females by 4.2%, and Asian or Native 

Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander females by 1.7%. 

- No representation at all: American Indian or Alaska Native males, Asian or Native Hawaiian or 

Other Pacific Islander males, Hispanic males, and Hispanic females. 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

7 

• Professionals 

- Increase in representation: Black males by 9.1%, Asian or Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander 

males by 3.1%, White females by 1.6%, Black females by 2.5%, American Indian or Alaska Native 

females by 3.1%.  

- Decrease in representation: White males by 19.3%. 

- No representation at all: American Indian or Alaska Native males, Hispanic males, Asian or Native 

Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander females, and Hispanic females. 

• Technicians 

- Increase in representation: White males by 40%. 

- Decrease in representation: Black males by 20% and Hispanic males by 20% 

- No representation at all: American Indian or Alaska Native males, Asian or Native Hawaiian or 

Other Pacific Islander males, Hispanic males, American Indian or Alaska Native females, Asian or 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander females, and Hispanic females. 

• Protective Services 

- Increase in representation: White males by 25.4%, White females by 3.3%, and Hispanic females 

by 0.7% 

- Decrease in representation: Black males by 24.5%, Hispanic males by 0.8%, and Black females by 

4.1% 

- No representation at all: American Indian or Alaska Native males, Asian or Native Hawaiian or 

Other Pacific Islander males, American Indian or Alaska Native females, and Asian or Native 

Hawaiian or Other pacific Islander females.  

• Administrative Support 

- Increase in representation: White males by 2.3%, Black males by 2.3%, Black females by 6.2%, and 

Hispanic females by 9.2%. 

- Decrease in representation: White females by 20%. 

- No representation at all: American Indian or Alaska Native males, Asian or native Hawaiian or 

Other Pacific Islander males, Hispanic males, American Indian or Alaska Native females, and Asian 

or Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander females. 

• Skilled Craft 

- Increase in representation: White males by 20.5% and White females by 23.7%. 

- Decrease in representation: Black males by 34.5% and Black females 9.8%. 

- No representation at all: American Indian or Alaska Native males, Asian or Native Hawaiian or 

Other Pacific Islander males, Hispanic males, American Indian or Alaska Native females, Asian or 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander females, and Hispanic females. 

• Service/Maintenance 

- Increase in representation: White males by 16.7%, Black males by 54.2%, White females by 20.8%, 

Black females by 8.3% 

- Decrease in representation: None because there was no workforce utilization in 2011. 

- No representation at all: American Indian or Alaska Native males, Asian or Native Hawaiian or 

Other Pacific Islander males, Hispanic males, American Indian or Alaska Native females, Asian or 

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander females, and Hispanic females.  



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

8 

SECTION III 

As the 8th largest employer in the County with approximately 350 employees, Jasper County is committed to 

the principle that equal employment opportunity must be affordable to all persons, regardless of race, 

ethnicity, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin or ancestry, 

marital or familial status, pregnancy, veteran status, religious belief or non-belief, age, disability or any other 

legally protected class under federal or state law. No person shall suffer discrimination with respect to 

employment or other terms or conditions of employment by reason of such person’s status as enumerated 

above. 

Jasper County administration reflects the people it serves. The following provides the County’s key objectives 

for ensuring equal employment opportunities at all levels.   

OBJECTIVES 

Compliance with Policies and Regulations  

• To evaluate the County’s personnel activities and management to ensure compliance with federal and 

state employment regulations.  

• To align with the goals of the Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Policy. 

• To administer all personnel actions in a non-discriminatory manner as stated within the Equal 

Employment Opportunity Plan.  

Increased Communication, Outreach, and Diversity 

• To clearly communicate with all elected officials, department heads, employees, applicants, and the 

public about the EEO information on a regular basis throughout the year with educational information 

and policy reminders.  

• To expand the pool of diverse and under-represented applicants based on assessments, reviews, and 

data. In addition, to participate in various community events to build partnerships with diverse 

community organizations.  

• To increase employment opportunities and equal participation of all qualified persons by eliminating 

non-job related factors, conditions, and requirements from any job vacancies. 

• To identify and remove any artificial, arbitrary, or unnecessary barriers to employment which operate 

to discriminate on the basis of race, ethnicity, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or 

expression, national origin or ancestry, marital or familial status, pregnancy, veteran status, religious 

belief or non- belief, age, disability or any other legally protected class under federal and state law.  

 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

9 

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Training 

• To provide training regarding County policies that promote diversity, equity, and inclusion to foster 

positive intergroup relationships and a welcoming environment for all employees.  

• To provide training regarding workplace discrimination, harassment, retaliation, and inclusion, to 

ensure equal employment opportunities for all employees.  

IMPLEMENTATION 

Jasper County recognizes that equal employment opportunity may be ensured only by a carefully administered 

and practiced program designed to eliminate any practices, standards or conditions tending to result in 

discrimination. Additionally, by initiating positive efforts in recruitment, examination, selection, promotion, 

and training procedures, the County seeks to extend equal employment opportunities to all qualified persons 

without limiting, segregating, or classifying employees and applicants for employment in any way which would 

deprive any individual of employment opportunities or otherwise affect his or her status as an employee. An 

individual’s race, natural hair or hairstyles, ethnicity, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or 

expression, national origin or ancestry, marital or familial status, pregnancy, veteran status, religious belief or 

non-belief, age, disability or any other legally protected class under federal or state law shall not be 

considerations when extending employment opportunities. 

The County’s commitment to equal employment opportunity requires the support of County leadership, the 

Human Resources Department, department heads, and all employees as set forth in the following: 

Equal Employment Opportunity Committee 

• Comprising representatives from County Departments and citizens. 

• Encouraging and communicating EEO and diversity, equity, and inclusion policies and initiatives so that 

the County can better support the diverse workforce. 

• Reviewing statistical data of the County’s demographics and workforce for the purpose of evaluating 

the effectiveness of the County’s equal employment opportunity. 

• Liaising with Human Resources, Department heads, and employees to identify EEO problem areas and 

to recommend solutions. 

County Administrator 

• Providing executive leadership and oversight to ensure that department heads act as necessary to 

achieve and implement the EEO objectives as well as diversity, equity and inclusion. 

• Reiterating the County’s commitment to equal employment opportunities and a diverse and inclusive 

workforce at all levels through leadership support, policies and guidance, resources, and budgetary 

assistance. 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

10 

Human Resources Department 

• Complying with applicable laws and regulations, reviewing personnel policies, employment practices 

and procedures, and making improvements or recommendations on steps to promote equal 

employment opportunity and diversity, equity and inclusion.  

• Conducting ongoing statistical analysis of the County’s workforce and taking steps to remedy 

underutilization to promote full participation and diversity at all levels of employment. 

• Developing and disseminating an EEO’s communication plan and materials to ensure that all 

departments and staff are aware, understand, and work within federal and state law, as well as County 

policies and procedures. The dissemination includes hard copy in areas highly visible to employees, the 

county web page for viewing and printing, and the county employee handbook. 

• Increasing countywide recruitment efforts to attract a broad and diverse candidate pool for positions 

in all categories, particularly for under-represented groups, to maintain a workforce reflective of the 

community it serves. Advertising for job openings with the statement: 

“We are an equal opportunity employer, and all qualified applicants will receive 

consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual 

orientation, gender identity or expression, pregnancy, age, national origin, disability 

status, genetic information, protected veteran status, or any other characteristic 

protected by law.” 

Department Heads 

• Achieving progress towards equal employment practices by reviewing its department’s utilization of 

minorities, females, and disabled persons, determining barriers that may hinder their efforts for 

creating a diverse workforce, and working with the Human Resources Department to make 

improvement in those areas. 

• Creating and fostering work environments free of discrimination and taking prompt action when an 

employee, workforce member, or non-employee has been found engaging in discrimination, 

retaliation, or harassment (including sexual harassment) while conducting business on behalf of the 

County. 

• Encouraging department employees to notify or report all incidents of discrimination, retaliation, or 

harassment and taking appropriate measures to resolve the situation. 

 

 

 

 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

11 

Employees 

• Applying the County’s policies, guidance, and training with respect to equal employment opportunity 

and conducting themselves in a manner that adheres to the County’s policies and guidance. 

• Supporting a work climate that is conducive to achieving equal employment opportunities and that is 

free of any form of discrimination or harassment. 

• Promptly notifying or reporting to Department Heads, the Human Resources Department, or the 

County attorney of all incidents of discrimination, retaliation, or harassment. 

 

  



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

12 

SECTION IV 

APPENDIX A: DEMOGRAPHICS 

Table 1: Population Change 2000-2020 

 
2000 2010 2020 

Change 
2000-2010 

Change 
2010-2020 

Change 
2000-2020 

Jasper County 20,678 24,777 28,791 19.8% 16.2% 39.2% 

City of Hardeeville 1,793 2,952 7,473 64.6% 153.2% 316.8% 

Town of Ridgeland 2,518 4,036 3,758 60.3% -6.9% 49.2% 

Unincorporated Areas 16,367 17,789 17,560 8.7% -1.3% 7.3% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Decennial Census 2000-2020 

 

Table 2: Race and Ethnicity 2000-2020 
 

2000 2010 2020 
Change 
2000-
2010 

Change 
2010-
2020 

Change 
2000-
2020 

Race 

White 8,766  10,658 13,715 21.6% 28.7% 56.5% 

Black or African American 10,895  11,406 9,645 4.7% -15.4% -11.5% 

American Indian and Alaska Native 76  122 145 60.5% 18.9% 90.8% 

Asian 92  176 197 91.3% 11.9% 114.1% 

Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 10  13 24 30.0% 84.6% 140.0% 

Some Other Race 700  2,050 3,029 192.9% 47.8% 332.7% 

Two or More Races 139  352 2,036 153.2% 478.4% 1,364.7% 

Ethnicity 

Hispanic or Latino 1,190  3752 5,079 215.3% 35.4% 326.8% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Decennial Census 2000-2020 

 

 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

13 

Table 3: Age Distribution 2000-2020 
 

2000 2010 2020 
Change  

2000-2010 
Change  

2010-2020 
Change  

2000-2020 

Under 5 1,499 1,859 1,503 24.0% -19.2% 0.3% 

5 to 9 1,602 1,711 1,594 6.8% -6.8% -0.5% 

10 to 14 1,559 1,546 1,627 -0.8% 5.2% 4.4% 

15 to 19 1,483 1,751 1,587 18.1% -9.4% 7.0% 

20 to 24 1,527 1,969 1,713 28.9% -13.0% 12.2% 

25 to 34 3,063 3,685 3,607 20.3% -2.1% 17.8% 

35 to 44 3,282 3,217 3,267 -2.0% 1.6% -0.5% 

45 to 54 2,538 3,524 3,201 38.8% -9.2% 26.1% 

55 to 59 1,041 1,428 1,940 37.2% 35.9% 86.4% 

60 to 64 815 1,300 2,237 59.5% 72.1% 174.5% 

65 to 74 1,273 1,671 4,271 31.3% 155.6% 235.5% 

75 to 84 738 785 1,784 6.4% 127.3% 141.7% 

85 years and over 258 313 460 21.3% 47.0% 78.3% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Decennial Census 2000-2020 

 

Table 4: Household Formation 2000-2020 
 

2000 2010 2020 
Change 

2000-2010 
Change 

2010-2020 
Change 

2000-2020 

Total Households 7,025 8,517 11,272 21.2% 32.3% 60.5% 

Married Couple Household 3,565 3,768 5,284 5.7% 40.2% 48.2% 

Male Householder (no spouse) 376 596 2,019 58.5% 238.8% 437.0% 

Female Householder (no spouse) 1,176 1,580 3,293 34.4% 108.4% 180.0% 

Average Household Size 2.75 2.73 2.71 -0.7% -0.7% -1.5% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Decennial Census 2000-2020 

 

 

 

 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

14 

Table 5: Educational Attainment 2000-2020 

 
2000 2010 2020 

Change 
2000-2010 

Change 
2010-2020 

Change 
2000-2020 

Less than High School 4,569 3,740 2,823 -18.2% -24.5% -38.2% 

High school  4,713 5,900 7,808 25.2% 32.3% 65.7% 

Some College or Associate's  2,685 3,844 5,850 43.2% 52.2% 117.9% 

Bachelor's degree 808 998 3,161 23.5% 216.7% 291.2% 

Graduate or professional degree 337 402 1,322 19.4% 228.6% 292.3% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 2000-2020 

 

Table 6: Income 2000-2020 

 2000 2010 2020 
Change 

2000-2010 
Change 

2010-2020 
Change 

2000-2020 

Median Household Income $30,727  $37,393  $45,924  21.7% 22.8% 49.5% 

Inflation Adjusted $45,990  $43,976  $45,924  -4.4% 4.4% -0.1% 

Per Capita Income $14,161  $17,997  $24,886  27.1% 38.3% 75.7% 

Inflation Adjusted $21,195  $21,165  $24,886  -0.1% 17.6% 17.4% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates 2000-2020 

 

 

  



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

15 

APPENDIX B: WORKFORCE ANALYSIS 

The following data provides statistical summaries on Jasper County’s current workforce and the civilian labor 

workforce or available workforce broken down by sex, race/ethnicity, and job classification. This section also 

provides comparison of County workforce to the community workforce to help determine if there is 

underutilization in the County government. In addition, it provides a comparison of County workforce between 

2011 and 2021 to reflect changes in workforce overtime. 

Comparison of County Workforce to Available Workforce 

Workforce by Sex 

The County’s workforce is predominantly male, while the available workforce is predominantly female. Males 

comprise 53% of the County’s workforce and 47.5% of the available workforce. Females comprise 47% of the 

County’s workforce and 52.5% of the available workforce. The County’s female workforce is under-

represented by 5.5%.  

Figure 1: Workforce for All Job Categories by Sex in 2021 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Equal Employment Opportunity Data (reflecting persons 16 years of age or older who were employed or 

seeking employment, excluding those in the Armed Services.  

 

 

 

53%
47%

County Workforce

Male Female

47.5%
52.5%

Available Workforce

Male Female



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

16 

The County’s male workforce exceeds available workforce in Professionals by 31.2% and Service/Maintenance 

by 5%. The County’s male workforce is under-represented in Officials/Administrators by 4.4%, Technician by 

9.5%, Protective Services by 13%, Administrative Support by 11.5%, and Skilled Craft by 27.2%. 

Figure 2: Male Workforce by Job Category in 2021 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Equal Employment Opportunity Data (reflecting persons 16 years of age or older who were employed or 

seeking employment, excluding those in the Armed Services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

55.0%

68.8%

40.0%

70.6%

10.3%

71.4%

70.8%

59.4%

37.6%

49.5%

83.6%

21.8%

98.6%

65.8%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

County Workforce Available Workforce



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

17 

The County’s female workforce exceeds available workforce in Officials/Administrators 4.4%, Technicians by 

9.5%, Administrative Support by 11.5%, and Skilled Craft by 27.2%. The County’s female workforce is under-

represented in Professionals by 31.1% and Service/Maintenance by 5%. 

Figure 3: Female Workforce by Job Category in 2021 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Equal Employment Opportunity Data (reflecting persons 16 years of age or older who were employed or 

seeking employment, excluding those in the Armed Services. 

 

 

 

 

 

45.0%

31.3%

60.0%

29.4%

89.7%

28.6%

29.2%

40.6%

62.4%

50.5%

16.4%

78.2%

1.4%

34.2%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

County Workforce Available Workforce



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

18 

Workforce by Race and Ethnicity 

The County’s workforce and available workforce are predominantly White. The County’s racial/ethnic 

workforce exceeds available workforce in Whites by 3%, Blacks by 3.2%, and American Indian or Alaska Natives 

by 0.6%. The County’s racial/ethnic workforce is under-represented in Asians by 0.7%, Hispanics by 5.5%, and 

Others by 0.8%. 

Figure 4: Workforce for All Job Categories by Race and Ethnicity in 2021 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Equal Employment Opportunity Data (reflecting persons 16 years of age or older who were employed or 

seeking employment, excluding those in the Armed Services. 

 

 

 

 

57.3%

38.4%

0.6%

0.3%

0.3%

3.2%

0.0%

54.3%

35.2%

0.0%

1.0%

0.0%

8.7%

0.8%

White

Black or African American

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian

Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander

Hispanic or Latino

Other

County Workforce Available Workforce



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

19 

Whites represent 57.3% of the County’s workforce and 54.3% of the available workforce. The County’s White 

workforce exceeds available workforce in Technicians by 20.5%, Protective Services by 13.6%, Skilled Craft by 

22.7%, and Service/Maintenance by 7.7%. The County’s White workforce is under-represented in 

Officials/Administrators by 41.1%, Professionals by 6.8%, and Administrative Support by 3.5%. 

Figure 5: White Workforce by Job Category in 2021 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Equal Employment Opportunity Data (reflecting persons 16 years of age or older who were employed or 

seeking employment, excluding those in the Armed Services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42.5%

71.9%

80.0%

61.4%

54.0%

85.7%

37.5%

84.2%

78.7%

59.5%

47.8%

57.5%

63.0%

29.8%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

County Workforce Available Workforce



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

20 

Blacks represent 38.4% of the County’s workforce and 35.2% of the available workforce. The County’s Black 

workforce exceeds available workforce in Officials/Administrators by 43.8%, Professionals by 8%, Skilled Craft 

by 7.5%, and Service/Maintenance by 3.9%. The County’s Black workforce is under-represented in Technicians 

by 8.8%, Protective Services by 15.6%, and Administrative Support by 1.9%. 

Figure 6: Black or African American Workforce by Job Category in 2021 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Equal Employment Opportunity Data (reflecting persons 16 years of age or older who were employed or 

seeking employment, excluding those in the Armed Services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52.5%

21.9%

20.0%

36.6%

36.8%

14.3%

62.5%

8.7%

13.9%

28.8%

52.2%

38.7%

6.8%

58.6%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

County Workforce Available Workforce



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

21 

American Indians or Alaska Natives represent 0.6% of the County’s workforce and 0% of the available 

workforce. The County’s American Indian or Alaska Native workforce exceeds available workforce in 

Officials/Administrators by 2.5% and Professionals by 3.1%. The County’s American Indian or Alaska Native 

workforce is not represented at all in Technicians, Protective Services, and Administrative Support, Skilled Craft 

by, and Service/Maintenance 

Figure 7: American Indian or Alaska Native Workforce by Job Category in 2021 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Equal Employment Opportunity Data (reflecting persons 16 years of age or older who were employed or 

seeking employment, excluding those in the Armed Services. 

 

 

 

 

 

2.5%

3.1%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

County Workforce Available Workforce



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

22 

Asians represent 0.3% of the County’s workforce and 1% of the available workforce. The County’s Asian 

workforce exceeds available workforce in Officials/Administrators by 2.5%. The County’s Asian workforce is not 

represented at all in Professionals, Technicians, Protective Services, and Administrative Support, Skilled Craft 

by, and Service/Maintenance. Among these, the under-representations are 6.4% in Professionals and -1.1% in 

Administrative Support. 

Figure 8: Asian Workforce by Job Category in 2021 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Equal Employment Opportunity Data (reflecting persons 16 years of age or older who were employed or 

seeking employment, excluding those in the Armed Services. 

 

 

 

 

 

2.5%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

6.4%

0.0%

0.0%

1.1%

0.0%

0.0%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

County Workforce Available Workforce



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

23 

Native Hawaiians or Other Pacific Islanders represent 0.3% of the County’s workforce and 0% of the available 

workforce. The County’s Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander workforce exceeds available workforce in 

Professionals by 3.1%. The County’s Asian workforce is not represented at all in Officials/Administrators, 

Technicians, Protective Services, and Administrative Support, Skilled Craft by, and Service/Maintenance. 

Among these, the under-representations are 0.2% in Administrative Support. 

Figure 9: Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander Workforce by Job Category for in 2021 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Equal Employment Opportunity Data (reflecting persons 16 years of age or older who were employed or 

seeking employment, excluding those in the Armed Services. 

 

 

 

 

 

0.0%

3.1%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.2%

0.0%

0.0%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

County Workforce Available Workforce



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MAY 2024 

 

 

 

24 

Hispanics represent 3.2% of the County’s workforce and 8.7% of the available workforce. The County’s 

Hispanic workforce exceeds available workforce in Protective Services by 2% and Administrative Support by 

6.8%. The County’s Hispanic workforce is not represented at all in Officials/Administrators, Professionals, 

Technicians, Skilled Craft, and Service/Maintenance, with under representation by 4.7%, 1%, 11.7%, 30.1%, 

and 9.9% respectively. 

Figure 10: Hispanic or Latino Workforce by Job Category in 2021 

 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Equal Employment Opportunity Data (reflecting persons 16 years of age or older who were employed or 

seeking employment, excluding those in the Armed Services. 

 

  

 

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

2.0%

9.2%

0.0%

0.0%

4.7%

1.0%

11.7%

0.0%

2.4%

30.1%

9.9%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

County Workforce Available Workforce



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

25 

Summary of Workforce Utilization 

Table 7: Workforce Utilization Analysis 2021 

Job Categories 

Male Female 

White 
Black or 
African 

American 

American 
Indian or 

Alaska 
Native 

Asian 

Native 
Hawaiian 
or Other 
Pacific 

Islander 

Hispanic 
or Latino 

Other White 
Black or 
African 

American 

American 
Indian or 

Alaska 
Native 

Asian 

Native 
Hawaiian 
or Other 
Pacific 

Islander 

Hispanic 
or Latino 

Other 

Officials/Administrators 

Workforce # 12 10 0 0 0 0 0 5 11 1 1 0 0 0 

Workforce % 30.0% 25.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 12.5% 27.5% 2.5% 2.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

CLS # 460 4 0 0 0 20 20 255 70 0 0 0 20 0 

CLS % 54.2% 0.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 2.4% 2.4% 30.0% 8.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 2.4% 0.0% 

Utilization % -24.2% 24.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -2.4% -2.4% -17.5% 19.3% 2.5% 2.5% 0.0% -2.4% 0.0% 

Professionals 

Workforce # 17 4 0 0 1 0 0 6 3 1 0 0 0 0 

Workforce % 53.1% 12.5% 0.0% 0.0% 3.1% 0.0% 0.0% 18.8% 9.4% 3.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

CLS # 290 50 0 30 0 10 0 505 90 0 35 0 0 0 

CLS % 28.7% 5.0% 0.0% 3.0% 0.0% 1.0% 0.0% 50.0% 8.9% 0.0% 3.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Utilization % 24.4% 7.5% 0.0% -3.0% 3.1% -1.0% 0.0% -31.3% 0.5% 3.1% -3.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Technicians 

Workforce # 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 

Workforce % 40.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 40.0% 20.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

CLS # 135 75 0 0 0 65 0 195 85 0 0 0 0 0 

CLS % 24.3% 13.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 11.7% 0.0% 35.1% 15.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Utilization % 15.7% -13.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -11.7% 0.0% 4.9% 4.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Protective Services 

Workforce # 84 22 0 0 0 2 0 10 34 0 0 0 1 0 

Workforce % 54.9% 14.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1.3% 0.0% 6.5% 22.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.7% 0.0% 

CLS # 150 130 0 0 0 0 0 10 45 0 0 0 0 0 

CLS % 44.8% 38.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 3.0% 13.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Utilization % 10.1% -24.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1.3% 0.0% 3.6% 8.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.7% 0.0% 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

26 

Job Categories 

Male Female 

White 
Black or 
African 

American 

American 
Indian or 

Alaska 
Native 

Asian 

Native 
Hawaiian 
or Other 
Pacific 

Islander 

Hispanic 
or Latino 

Other White 
Black or 
African 

American 

American 
Indian or 

Alaska 
Native 

Asian 

Native 
Hawaiian 
or Other 
Pacific 

Islander 

Hispanic 
or Latino 

Other 

Paraprofessional 

Workforce # 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 

Workforce % 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

CLS # n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

CLS % n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Utilization % n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Administrative Support 

Workforce # 7 2 0 0 0 0 0 40 30 0 0 0 8 0 

Workforce % 8.0% 2.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 46.0% 34.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 9.2% 0.0% 

CLS # 400 65 0 25 4 15 0 945 840 0 0 0 40 4 

CLS % 17.1% 2.8% 0.0% 1.1% 0.2% 0.6% 0.0% 40.4% 35.9% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1.7% 0.2% 

Utilization % -9.1% -0.5% 0.0% -1.1% -0.2% -0.6% 0.0% 5.6% -1.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 7.5% -0.2% 

Skilled Craft 

Workforce # 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Workforce % 57.1% 14.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 28.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

CLS # 675 75 0 0 0 330 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 

CLS % 61.6% 6.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 30.1% 0.0% 1.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Utilization % -4.5% 7.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -30.1% 0.0% 27.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Service/Maintenance 

Workforce # 4 13 0 0 0 0 0 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 

Workforce % 16.7% 54.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 20.8% 8.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

CLS # 595 1065 0 0 0 160 0 230 555 0 0 0 115 45 

CLS % 21.5% 38.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 5.8% 0.0% 8.3% 20.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 4.2% 1.6% 

Utilization % -4.9% 15.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -5.8% 0.0% 12.5% -11.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -4.2% -1.6% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Equal Employment Opportunity Data (reflecting persons 16 years of age or older who were employed or seeking employment, excluding those in the Armed 

Services. 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

27 

Table 8: Significant Workforce Underutilization 2021 

Job Categories 

Male Female 

White 
Black or 
African 

American 

American 
Indian or 

Alaska 
Native 

Asian 

Native 
Hawaiian 
or Other 
Pacific 

Islander 

Hispanic 
or Latino 

Other White 
Black or 
African 

American 

American 
Indian or 

Alaska 
Native 

Asian 

Native 
Hawaiian 
or Other 
Pacific 

Islander 

Hispanic 
or Latino 

Other 

Officials/ 
Administrators 

✓     ✓ ✓ ✓     ✓  

Professionals    ✓  ✓  ✓   ✓    

Technicians  ✓    ✓         

Protective 
Services 

 ✓             

Paraprofessional               

Administrative 
Support 

✓ ✓  ✓ ✓ ✓   ✓     ✓ 

Skilled Craft ✓     ✓         

Service/ 
Maintenance 

✓     ✓   ✓    ✓ ✓ 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Equal Employment Opportunity Data (reflecting persons 16 years of age or older who were employed or seeking employment, excluding those in the Armed 

Services. 

 

 

 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

28 

Comparison of County Workforce between 2011 and 2021 

Workforce by Sex 

A comparison of County’s workforce between 2011 and 2021 reflects predominant males. However, the 

County saw an increase of female workforce from 41.9% in 2011 to 47% in 2021.  

Figure 11: Workforce for All Job Categories by Sex between 2011 and 2021 

 

Source: Jasper County EE04 Report 2011 and 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58.1%

41.9%

County Workforce 2011

Male Female

53%
47%

County Workforce 2021

Male Female



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

29 

For males, there was a decrease in Officials/Administrators, Professionals, Paraprofessionals, and Skilled Craft; 

while there was an increase in Technicians, Administrative Support, and Service/Maintenance. A 

representation of males in Protective Services was roughly unchanged. 

Figure 12: Male Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 2021 

 

Source: Jasper County EE04 Report 2011 and 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66.7%

75.9%

20.0%

70.5%

57.4%

5.7%

85.4%

0.0%

55.0%

68.8%

40.0%

70.6%

0.0%

10.3%

71.4%

70.8%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Paraprofessionals

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

2011 2021



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

30 

For females, there was a decrease in Technicians and Administrative Support, while there was an increase in 

Officials/Administrators, Professionals, Paraprofessionals, Skilled Craft, and Service/Maintenance. A 

representation of females in Protective Services was roughly unchanged. 

Figure 13: Female Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 2021 

 

Source: Jasper County EE04 Report 2011 and 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

33.3%

24.1%

80.0%

29.5%

42.6%

94.3%

14.6%

0.0%

45.0%

31.3%

60.0%

29.4%

100.0%

89.7%

28.6%

29.2%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Paraprofessionals

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

2011 2021



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

31 

Workforce by Race and Ethnicity 

A comparison of County’s workforce between 2011 and 2021 reflects predominant Whites with roughly 

unchanged representation from 57.3% in 2011 to 57.5% in 2021. The County saw an increase of Black 

workforce from 41.9% in 2011 to 47% in 2021. For the same period, the representation of other races and 

ethnicity decreased: American Indians and Alaska Natives (0% to 0.6%), Asians or Native Hawaiians or Other 

Pacific Islanders (0.3% to 0.6%), and Hispanics (0.7% to 3.2%). 

Figure 14: Workforce for All Job Categories by Race and Ethnicity between 2011 and 2021 

 

Source: Jasper County EE04 Report 2011 and 2021 

 

 

 

 

57.5%

41.5%

0.0%

0.3%

0.7%

57.3%

38.4%

0.6%

0.6%

3.2%

White

Black or African American

American Indian or Alaska Native

Asian or Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander

Hispanic or Latino

County Workforce 2011 County Workforce 2021



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

32 

For Whites, there was a decrease in Officials/Administrators, Professionals, Paraprofessionals, and 

Administrative Support; while there was an increase in Technicians, Protective Services, and 

Service/Maintenance. In 2011, Whites were not represented at all in Service/Maintenance. In 2021, Whites 

were not represented at all in Paraprofessionals. 

Figure 15: White Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 2021 

 

Source: Jasper County EE04 Report 2011 and 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

75.0%

89.7%

40.0%

32.6%

75.9%

71.7%

41.5%

0.0%

42.5%

71.9%

80.0%

61.4%

0.0%

54.0%

85.7%

37.5%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Paraprofessionals

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

County Workforce 2011 County Workforce 2021



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

33 

For Blacks, there was a decrease in Technicians, Protective Services, and Skilled Craft; while there was an 

increase in Officials/Administrators, Professionals, Paraprofessionals, Administrative Support, and 

Service/Maintenance. In 2011, Blacks were not represented at all in Service/Maintenance. 

Figure 16: Black or African American Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 2021 

 

Source: Jasper County EE04 Report 2011 and 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20.8%

10.3%

60.0%

65.3%

24.1%

28.3%

58.5%

0.0%

52.5%

21.9%

20.0%

36.6%

100.0%

36.8%

14.3%

62.5%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Paraprofessionals

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

County Workforce 2011 County Workforce 2021



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

34 

In 2011, American Indians or Alaska Natives were not represented at all in all job categories. In 2021, they 

were represented only Officials/Administrators and Professionals.  

Figure 17: American Indian or Alaska Native Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 2021 

 

Source: Jasper County EE04 Report 2011 and 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

2.5%

3.1%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Paraprofessionals

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

County Workforce 2011 County Workforce 2021



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

35 

In 2011 and 2021, Asians or Native Hawaiians or Other Pacific Islanders were not represented at all in all job 

categories, except for Officials/Administrators (4.2% in 2011 and 2.5% in 2021).   

Figure 18: Asian or Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 

2021 

 

Source: Jasper County EE04 Report 2011 and 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.2%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

2.5%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Paraprofessionals

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

County Workforce 2011 County Workforce 2021



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

36 

In 2011 and 2021, Hispanics were not represented at all in all job categories, except for Protective Services (2.1% 

in 2011 and 2% in 2021) and Administrative Support (0% in 2011 and 9.2% in 2021).   

Figure 19: Hispanic or Latino Workforce by Job Category between 2011 and 2021 

 

Source: Jasper County EE04 Report 2011 and 2021 

 

 

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

2.1%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

2.0%

0.0%

9.2%

0.0%

0.0%

Officials/Administrators

Professionals

Technicians

Protective Services

Paraprofessionals

Administrative Support

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintenance

County Workforce 2011 County Workforce 2021



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

37 

Summary of Workforce Utilization 

Table 9: Workforce Utilization Analysis between 2011 and 2021 

Job Categories 

Male Female 

White 
Black or 
African 

American 

American 
Indian or 

Alaska Native 

Asian or 
Native 

Hawaiian or 
Other Pacific 

Islander 

Hispanic or 
Latino 

White 
Black or 
African 

American 

American 
Indian or 

Alaska Native 

Asian or 
Native 

Hawaiian or 
Other Pacific 

Islander 

Hispanic or 
Latino 

Officials/Administrators  

Workforce 2011 % 58.3% 8.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 16.7% 12.5% 0.0% 4.2% 0.0% 

Workforce 2021 % 30.0% 25.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 12.5% 27.5% 2.5% 2.5% 0.0% 

Change in Utilization -28.3% 16.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -4.2% 15.0% 2.5% -1.7% 0.0% 

Professionals  

Workforce 2011 % 72.4% 3.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 17.2% 6.9% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Workforce 2021 % 53.1% 12.5% 0.0% 3.1% 0.0% 18.8% 9.4% 3.1% 0.0% 0.0% 

Change in Utilization -19.3% 9.1% 0.0% 3.1% 0.0% 1.6% 2.5% 3.1% 0.0% 0.0% 

Technicians  

Workforce 2011 % 0.0% 20.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 40.0% 40.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Workforce 2021 % 40.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 40.0% 20.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Change in Utilization 40.0% -20.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -20.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Protective Services  

Workforce 2011 % 29.5% 38.9% 0.0% 0.0% 2.1% 3.2% 26.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Workforce 2021 % 54.9% 14.4% 0.0% 0.0% 1.3% 6.5% 22.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.7% 

Change in Utilization 25.4% -24.5% 0.0% 0.0% -0.8% 3.3% -4.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.7% 

Paraprofessional  

Workforce 2011 % 53.7% 3.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 22.2% 20.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Workforce 2021 % 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Change in Utilization -53.7% -3.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -22.2% 79.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

38 

Job Categories 

Male Female 

White 
Black or 
African 

American 

American 
Indian or 

Alaska Native 

Asian or 
Native 

Hawaiian or 
Other Pacific 

Islander 

Hispanic or 
Latino 

White 
Black or 
African 

American 

American 
Indian or 

Alaska Native 

Asian or 
Native 

Hawaiian or 
Other Pacific 

Islander 

Hispanic or 
Latino 

Administrative Support  

Workforce 2011 % 5.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 66.0% 28.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Workforce 2021 % 8.0% 2.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 46.0% 34.5% 0.0% 0.0% 9.2% 

Change in Utilization 2.3% 2.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -20.0% 6.2% 0.0% 0.0% 9.2% 

Skilled Craft  

Workforce 2011 % 36.6% 48.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 4.9% 9.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Workforce 2021 % 57.1% 14.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 28.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Change in Utilization 20.5% -34.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 23.7% -9.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Service/Maintenance  

Workforce 2011 % 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Workforce 2021 % 16.7% 54.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 20.8% 8.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Change in Utilization 16.7% 54.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 20.8% 8.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Source: Jasper County EE04 Report 2011 and 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

39 

Table 10: Significant Improvement of Workforce Utilization between 2011 and 2021 

Job Categories 

Male Female 

White 
Black or 
African 

American 

American 
Indian or 

Alaska Native 

Asian or 
Native 

Hawaiian or 
Other Pacific 

Islander 

Hispanic or 
Latino 

White 
Black or 
African 

American 

American 
Indian or 

Alaska Native 

Asian or 
Native 

Hawaiian or 
Other Pacific 

Islander 

Hispanic or 
Latino 

Officials/Administrators  ✓     ✓ ✓   

Professionals  ✓  ✓  ✓ ✓ ✓   

Technicians ✓          

Protective Services ✓     ✓    ✓ 

Paraprofessional       ✓    

Administrative Support ✓ ✓     ✓   ✓ 

Skilled Craft ✓     ✓     

Service/Maintenance ✓ ✓    ✓ ✓    

Source: Jasper County EE04 Report 2011 and 2021 

 

 

 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

40 

APPENDIX C: DEFINITIONS OF RACE/ETHNICITY CATEGORIES 

• White (Not Hispanic or Latino): A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, the 

Middle East, or North Africa. 

• Black or African American (Not Hispanic or Latino):  A person having origins in any of the black racial 

groups of Africa. 

• American Indian or Alaska Native (Not Hispanic or Latino): A person having origins in any of the 

original people of North and South America (including Central America), and who maintain tribal 

affiliation or community attachment. 

• Asian (Not Hispanic or Latino): A person having origins in any of the original people of the Far East, 

Southeast Asia, or the Indian Subcontinent, including, for example, Cambodia, China, India, Japan, 

Korea, Malaysia, Pakistan, the Philippine Islands, Thailand, and Vietnam. 

• Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander (Not Hispanic or Latino): A person having origins in any of 

the people of Hawaii, Guam, Samoa, or other Pacific Islands. 

• Two or More Races (Not Hispanic or Latino): All persons who identify with more than one of the 

above five races (White, Black or African American, Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander, Asian, 

American Indian or Alaska Native). 

• Hispanic or Latino: A person of Cuban, Mexican, Puerto Rican, South or Central American, or other 

Spanish culture or origin regardless of race. 

  



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

41 

APPENDIX D: DESCRIPTION OF JOB CATEGORIES 

• Officials/Administrators: Occupations in which employees set broad policies, exercise overall 

responsibility for execution of these policies, direct individual departments or special phases of the 

agency’s operations, or provide specialized consultation on a regional, district or area basis. Includes: 

department heads, bureau chiefs, division chiefs, directors, deputy directors, controllers, wardens, 

superintendents, sheriffs, police and fire chiefs and inspectors, examiners (bank, hearing, motor 

vehicle, warehouse), inspectors (construction, building, safety, rent-and-housing, fire, A.B.C. Board, 

license, dairy, livestock, transportation), assessors, tax appraisers and investigators, coroners, farm 

managers, and kindred workers. 

• Professionals: Occupations which require specialized and theoretical knowledge which is usually 

acquired through college training or through work experience and other training which provides 

comparable knowledge. Includes: personnel and labor relations workers, social workers, doctors, 

psychologists, registered nurses, economists, dietitians, lawyers, systems analysts, accountants, 

engineers, employment and vocational rehabilitation counselors, teachers or instructors, police and 

fire captains and lieutenants, librarians, management analysts, airplane pilots and navigators, 

surveyors and mapping scientists, and kindred workers. 

• Technicians: Occupations which require a combination of basic scientific or technical knowledge and 

manual skill which can be obtained through specialized post-secondary school education or through 

equivalent on-the-job training. Includes: computer programmers, drafters, survey and mapping 

technicians, licensed practical nurses, photographers, radio operators, technical illustrators, highway 

technicians, technicians (medical, dental, electronic, physical sciences), police and fire sergeants, 

inspectors (production or processing inspectors, testers and weighers), and kindred workers. 

• Protective Services: Occupations in which workers are entrusted with public safety, security and 

protection from destructive forces. Includes: police patrol officers, firefighters, guards, deputy sheriffs, 

bailiffs, correctional officers, detectives, marshals, harbor patrol officers, game and fish wardens, park 

rangers (except maintenance), and kindred workers. 

• Paraprofessionals: Occupations in which workers perform some of the duties of a professional or 

technician in a supportive role, which usually require less formal training and/or experience normally 

required for professional or technical status. Such positions may fall within an identified pattern of 

staff development and promotion under the New Careers concept, including research assistants, 

medical aides, child support workers, policy auxiliary welfare service aides, recreation assistants, 

homemaker aides, home health aides, library assistants and clerks, ambulance drivers and attendants, 

and kindred workers. 

• Administrative Support: Occupations in which workers are responsible for internal and external 

communication, recording and retrieval of data and/or information and other paperwork required in 

an office. Includes: bookkeepers, messengers, clerk-typists, stenographers, court transcribers, hearing 

reporters, statistical clerks, dispatchers, license distributors, payroll clerks, office machine and 

computer operators, telephone operators, legal assistants, sales workers, cashiers, toll collectors, and 

kindred workers. 



 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PLAN  MARCH 2024 

 

 

 

42 

• Skilled Craft: Occupations in which workers perform jobs which require special manual skill and a 

thorough and comprehensive knowledge of the process involved in the work which is acquired 

through on-the-job training and experience or through apprenticeship or other formal training 

programs. Includes: mechanics and repairers, electricians, heavy equipment operators, stationary 

engineers, skilled machining occupations, carpenters, compositors and typesetters, power plant 

operators, water and sewage treatment plant operators, and kindred workers. 

• Service/Maintenance: Occupations in which workers perform duties which result in or contribute to 

the comfort, convenience, hygiene or safety of the general public or which contribute to the upkeep 

and care of buildings, facilities or grounds of public property. Workers in this group may operate 

machinery. Includes: chauffeurs, laundry and dry-cleaning operatives, truck drivers, bus drivers, garage 

laborers, custodial employees, gardeners and groundskeepers, refuse collectors, construction laborers, 

park rangers (maintenance), farm workers (except managers), craft apprentices/trainees/helpers, and 

kindred workers. 

 

 





Draft dated 4/29/24 

{10090-106 / 00108279 / V2} 

 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

ORDINANCE #O-2024-12 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
 

AUTHORISING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF CERTAIN INSTRUMENTS 
RELATING TO THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, EQUIPPING, USE, 
AND LEASING OF CERTAIN COUNTY FACILITIES; APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF ST. 
PETERS PARISH/JASPER COUNTY PUBLIC FACILITIES CORPORATION 
INSTALLMENT PURCHASE REVENUE BONDS AND BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES; 
CONSENTING TO THE FORM OF TRUST AGREEMENTS BETWEEN ST. PETERS 
PARISH/JASPER COUNTY PUBLIC FACILITIES CORPORATION AND THE CORPORATE 
TRUSTEE; THE LEASE OF CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY, REAL PROPERTY AND 
THE BUILDINGS AND OTHER SITE IMPROVEMENTS LOCATED THEREON, BY JASPER 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA TO ST. PETERS PARISH/JASPER COUNTY PUBLIC 
FACILITIES CORPORATION, INCLUDING AUTHORISING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF A BASE LEASE AGREEMENT, BETWEEN JASPER COUNTY AND ST. 
PETERS PARISH/JASPER COUNTY PUBLIC FACILITIES CORPORATION; 
AUTHORISING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A PUBLIC FACILITIES 
PURCHASE AND OCCUPANCY AGREEMENT BETWEEN JASPER COUNTY AND ST. 
PETERS PARISH/JASPER COUNTY PUBLIC FACILITIES CORPORATION; 
AUTHORISING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LEASE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN JASPER COUNTY AND ST. PETERS PARISH/JASPER COUNTY PUBLIC 
FACILITIES CORPORATION; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________ 



 

{10090-106 / 00108279 / V2} 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

(This Table of Contents for the Ordinance is for convenience of reference only and is not intended 
to define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of any provision of the Ordinance) 
 
                Page 

 
Section 1. Approval of Leasing of New Facilities Real Property and Capital Projects  
 by County; Approval and Execution of Base Lease Agreement. ................................... 2 
Section 2. Approval of Purchase and Use of the New Facilities Real Property and Capital 

Projects by County; Approval and Execution of the Facilities Agreement. ................... 2 
Section 3. Approval of Lease Purchase of the Capital Projects by County; Approval and 

Execution of the Lease Agreement. ................................................................................. 2 
Section 4. Agreement to Accept Title to Capital Projects. ............................................................... 3 
Section 5. Consent to Creation of Corporation ................................................................................. 3 
Section 6. Consent to Trust Agreement ............................................................................................ 3 
Section 7. Consent to Leasehold Mortgage. ..................................................................................... 3 
Section 8. Consent to and Approval of Obligations ......................................................................... 3 
Section 9. Use of Proceeds of the Obligations .................................................................................. 3 
Section 10. Sale of Obligations; Approval and Execution of Purchase Agreements ........................ 4 
Section 11. Approval of Offering Documents .................................................................................... 4 
Section 12. Consent to Appointment of Trustee ................................................................................. 4 
Section 13. Authorisation for Issuance and Sale of BANs. ................................................................ 4 
Section 14. Execution of Closing Documents and Obligations ......................................................... 5 
Section 15. Law and Place of Enforcement of the Ordinance ............................................................ 5 
Section 16. Effective Date ................................................................................................................... 5 
Section 17. Severability ....................................................................................................................... 5 
Section 18. Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances ................................................................................... 5 
Section 19. No Personal Liability........................................................................................................ 5 
Section 19. Effect of Article and Section Headings and Table of Contents ....................................... 6 

 
 



 

{10090-106 / 00108279 / V2} 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
AUTHORISING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF CERTAIN INSTRUMENTS 
RELATING TO THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, EQUIPPING, USE, 
AND LEASING OF CERTAIN COUNTY FACILITIES; APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF ST. 
PETERS PARISH/JASPER COUNTY PUBLIC FACILITIES CORPORATION 
INSTALLMENT PURCHASE REVENUE BONDS AND BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES; 
CONSENTING TO THE FORM OF TRUST AGREEMENTS BETWEEN ST. PETERS 
PARISH/JASPER COUNTY PUBLIC FACILITIES CORPORATION AND THE CORPORATE 
TRUSTEE; THE LEASE OF CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY, REAL PROPERTY AND 
THE BUILDINGS AND OTHER SITE IMPROVEMENTS LOCATED THEREON, BY JASPER 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA TO ST. PETERS PARISH/JASPER COUNTY PUBLIC 
FACILITIES CORPORATION, INCLUDING AUTHORISING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF A BASE LEASE AGREEMENT, BETWEEN JASPER COUNTY AND ST. 
PETERS PARISH/JASPER COUNTY PUBLIC FACILITIES CORPORATION; 
AUTHORISING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A PUBLIC FACILITIES 
PURCHASE AND OCCUPANCY AGREEMENT BETWEEN JASPER COUNTY AND ST. 
PETERS PARISH/JASPER COUNTY PUBLIC FACILITIES CORPORATION; 
AUTHORISING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LEASE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN JASPER COUNTY AND ST. PETERS PARISH/JASPER COUNTY PUBLIC 
FACILITIES CORPORATION; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, St. Peters Parish/Jasper County Public Facilities Corporation (the 

“Corporation”) is a non-profit corporation formed under the provisions of Title 33, Chapter 31 of 
the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Corporation intends to finance a fleet of replacement pumper trucks for 

the Jasper County Fire-Rescue department (the “New Equipment”), and intends to develop and 
finance certain library facilities related to the Pratt Memorial Library (the “New Facilities”) located 
within, and to be used by, Jasper County, South Carolina (the “County”) on real property currently 
owned by the County (the “New Facilities Real Property”); the undertaking to finance the New 
Equipment and to develop and finance the New Facilities is referred to herein to be known as the 
“Capital Projects;” and 

 
WHEREAS, the Corporation has agreed to enter into a Base Lease Agreement (the “Base 

Lease”), pursuant to which the County will lease the New Facilities Real Property, including the 
improvements located thereon, or portions thereof; to the Corporation so that the Corporation may 
provide for the acquisition, construction, renovation, and equipping thereon of the New Facilities; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, in order to provide funds for the payment of the costs of the Capital Projects, 

the Corporation is arranging for the issuance of an aggregate of not exceeding $[16,400,000] 
Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds (the “Obligations”), in one or more series under and by the 
terms of one or more Trust Agreements (collectively, the “Trust Agreement”), by and between the 
Corporation and a trustee to be designated as provided herein (the “Trustee”); and 

 



 

 {10090-106 / 00108279 / V2} 2  

WHEREAS, the County intends to make certain acquisition or lease-purchase payments 
(the “Acquisition Payments”) for the acquisition or lease-purchase of the Capital Projects and, 
pending acquisition thereof, shall be entitled to the use and occupancy of the New Facilities Real 
Property and the Capital Projects pursuant to the terms of the Public Facilities and Occupancy 
Agreement (the “Facilities Agreement”), between the Corporation and the County and the 
Facilities Lease Agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) between the Corporation and the County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the rights to receive Acquisition Payments are being assigned to the Trustee 

under the Trust Agreement as security and the source of payment of the Obligations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Corporation will grant to the Trustee a leasehold mortgage interest in its 

rights under the Base Lease Agreement as security for the Obligations pursuant to the Leasehold 
Mortgage and Security Agreement (the “Leasehold Mortgage”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the members of the Board of Directors of the Corporation propose to adopt a 

resolution approving the Base Lease, the Facilities Agreement, the Lease Agreement, the Trust 
Agreement, the Leasehold Mortgage, and the issuance and sale of the Obligations; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF JASPER 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. Approval of Leasing of New Facilities Real Property and Capital Projects 
by County; Approval and Execution of Base Lease Agreement.  The conveyance of a leasehold 
interest in the New Facilities Real Property and the Capital Projects, or any portions thereof, by the 
County to the Corporation pursuant to the terms of the Base Lease Agreement is hereby approved, 
and the form of the Base Lease Agreement as submitted herewith is hereby approved.  The 
Chairman of the County Council (the “Chairman”) is hereby authorised and directed to execute 
and deliver the Base Lease Agreement, in substantially the form submitted herewith, with any 
changes, insertions, and omissions as may be approved by the Chairman, with the advice of 
counsel, his execution being conclusive evidence of his approval. 
 
 Section 2. Approval of Purchase and Use of the New Facilities Real Property and 
Capital Projects by County; Approval and Execution of the Facilities Agreement.  The purchase 
and use of the New Facilities Real Property and the Capital Projects, or any portions thereof, by the 
County from the Corporation pursuant to the terms set forth in the Facilities Agreement is hereby 
approved, and the form of the Facilities Agreement as submitted herewith is hereby approved.  The 
Chairman is hereby authorised and directed to execute and deliver the Facilities Agreement, in 
substantially the form submitted herewith, with any changes, insertions, and omissions as may be 
approved by the Chairman, with the advice of counsel, his execution being conclusive evidence of 
his approval. 
 
 Section 3. Approval of Lease Purchase of the Capital Projects by County; Approval 
and Execution of the Lease Agreement.  The lease purchase of the Capital Projects, or any portions 
thereof, by the County from the Corporation pursuant to the terms set forth in the Lease Agreement 
is hereby approved, and the form of the Lease Agreement as submitted herewith is hereby 
approved.  The Chairman is hereby authorised and directed to execute and deliver the Lease 



 

 {10090-106 / 00108279 / V2} 3  

Agreement, in substantially the form submitted herewith, with any changes, insertions, and 
omissions as may be approved by the Chairman, with the advice of counsel, his execution being 
conclusive evidence of his approval. 
 
 Section 4. Agreement to Accept Title to Capital Projects. 
 
 The County Council hereby agree to accept title to the Capital Projects and any other 
property financed by the Obligations or the BANs (as hereinafter defined), including any additions 
to the Capital Projects or that other property, when the Obligations are discharged. 
 
 Section 5. Consent to Creation of Corporation.  The County Council hereby confirm 
and ratify the creation of the Corporation and consent to and approve the undertaking by the 
Corporation respecting the Capital Projects. 
 
 Section 6. Consent to Trust Agreement.  The County Council hereby consent to the 
Trust Agreement now before this meeting, with any changes as may be thereafter made as shall be 
in furtherance of the transactions contemplated therein and in this Ordinance and as shall not be 
inconsistent with or contrary to the matters contemplated herein.  The County Council hereby 
further consent to the execution and delivery of the Trust Agreement by the parties thereto.  The 
County Council covenant to observe and comply with all provisions pertaining to the County in the 
Trust Agreement, including without limitation provisions concerning the use of proceeds of the 
Obligations. 
 

Section 7. Consent to Leasehold Mortgage.  The County Council hereby consent to the 
Leasehold Mortgage now before this meeting, with any changes as may be thereafter made as shall 
be in furtherance of the transactions contemplated therein and in this Ordinance and as shall not be 
inconsistent with or contrary to the matters contemplated herein.  The County Council hereby 
further consent to the execution and delivery of the Leasehold Mortgage by the parties thereto.   
 
 Section 8. Consent to and Approval of Obligations.  The County Council hereby 
consent to and approve the creation of the Corporation, the undertaking by the Corporation 
respecting the Capital Projects, and the issuance of the Obligations in the aggregate principal 
amount not to exceed $[16,400,000]; provided, however, that the approval provided under the 
Ordinance for the issuance of Obligations to finance the New Facilities shall not exceed 
$[5,600,000] and the approval provided hereunder for the issuance of Obligations to finance the 
New Equipment shall not exceed $[10,800,000]. The Obligations may be issued in one or more 
series over a period not to exceed five years, as approved by the County Administrator on behalf of 
the County; provided, however, that the initial series of Obligations or BANs (as hereinafter 
defined) shall be issued within one year of the date of enactment of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 9. Use of Proceeds of the Obligations.  The proceeds of the Obligations, net of 
underwriter’s discount as provided in the respective bond purchase agreement, shall be applied, as 
provided in the Trust Agreement, (a) to provide the amounts necessary for the acquisition, 
construction, renovation, and equipping of the Capital Projects (including any capitalized interest), 
(b) to fund any necessary reserve fund for the Obligations, and (c) to pay costs of issuance of the 
Obligations.  Proceeds of the Obligations may be applied to refund BANs (as hereinafter defined) 



 

 {10090-106 / 00108279 / V2} 4  

or other obligations of the County the proceeds of which were applied as described in this Section 
9. 
 
 Section 10. Sale of Obligations; Approval and Execution of Purchase Agreements.  The 
Obligations shall be sold from time to time as approved by the County Administrator to an 
investment banking firm or firms or other institutional lenders or investors as designated by the 
County Administrator as in the best interest of the County, pursuant to the terms of purchase 
agreements for a price as approved by the County Administrator.  The County Administrator is 
hereby authorised and directed to execute and deliver the respective purchase agreement for any 
series of Obligations, in the form as may be approved by the County Administrator subject to the 
provisions hereof, with the advice of counsel, his execution being conclusive evidence of his 
approval. 
 
 Section 11. Approval of Offering Documents.  The preparation and use of offering 
documents, if deemed necessary by the County Administrator in the offering and sale of any series 
of Obligations, are hereby authorised, confirmed, and ratified.   
 
 Section 12. Consent to Appointment of Trustee.  The County Administrator is hereby 
authorised and directed to approve the appointment by the Corporation of one or more corporate 
trustees, as Trustee, Registrar, and Paying Agent under the Trust Agreement. 
 

Section 13. Authorisation for Issuance and Sale of BANs. 
 

(a) Authorisation of BANs.   The County hereby consents to the issuance by the 
Corporation of one or more series of bond anticipation notes (the “BANs”) in order for the 
Corporation to borrow on a temporary basis in anticipation of the receipt of the proceeds of the 
Obligations; provided, however, that such BANs shall be discharged not later than five years after 
the date of issue of the first series of BANs by the Corporation. 
 

(b) Issuance of BANs.  The County hereby approves the borrowing by the Corporation 
of not exceeding $[16,400,000] in anticipation of the issuance of the Obligations to be evidenced 
by bond anticipation notes in the aggregate principal amount of not exceeding $[16,400,000] 
outstanding at any one time, dated their date of issuance and maturing on a date approved by the 
County Administrator not later than one year after the date of issuance of such BANs. 

 
(c) Interest Rate on BANs.  The BANs shall bear interest at the rate of interest as 

approved by the County Administrator.  
 
(d) Redemption of BANs.   The BANs may be subject to redemption on the terms and 

at the prices as approved by the County Administrator prior to their issuance and delivery. 
 

(e)  Sale of BANs. The BANs shall be sold by the Corporation on the terms and 
conditions as the County Administrator determines to be in the best interest of the County. 
 

(f) Security for the BANs.  For the payment of the BANs, the Corporation shall pledge 
the proceeds derived from the sale of the Obligations and such other security as is provided 



 

 {10090-106 / 00108279 / V2} 5  

therefor in the Trust Agreement. 
 

(g) Additional BANs.  The County hereby approves, subject to the limitations set forth 
in paragraph (b) of this Section 13, the issuance by the Corporation of additional BANs secured by 
a pledge of the proceeds of the Obligations upon maturity of the BANs in the event that 
Obligations are not issued by the maturity date of such BANs.   
 
 Section 14. Execution of Closing Documents.  The Chairman, the County 
Administrator, and all other appropriate officials and employees of the County are hereby 
authorised to execute, deliver, and receive any other agreements and documents as may be required 
by the County in order to carry out, give effect to, and consummate the transactions contemplated 
by the Base Lease Agreement, the Facilities Agreement, the Lease Agreement, and the purchase 
agreements (collectively, the “County Agreements”). 
 
 Section 15. Law and Place of Enforcement of the Ordinance.  This Ordinance shall be 
construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina and all suits 
and actions arising out of this Ordinance shall be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction in 
the State of South Carolina. 
 
 Section 16. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 
approval after receiving third reading by the County Council. 
 
 Section 17. Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be 
severable and if any section, phrase, or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, that declaration shall not affect the validity 
of the remainder of the sections, phrases, and provisions hereof. 
 
 Section 18. Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances.  All ordinances, resolutions, and parts 
thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of the conflict, hereby repealed. 
 
 Section 19. No Personal Liability.  No recourse shall be had for the enforcement of any 
obligation, covenant, promise, or agreement of the County contained in this Ordinance, the County 
Agreements, the Obligations or the BANs, against any member of the County Council, any officer 
or employee, as such, in his or her individual capacity, past, present, or future, of the County, either 
directly or through the County, whether by virtue of any constitutional provision, statute, or rule of 
law, or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise; it being expressly agreed 
and understood that this Ordinance, the County Agreements, the Obligations, and the BANs are 
solely corporate obligations, and that no personal liability whatsoever shall attach to, or be incurred 
by, any member,  officer, or employee as such, past, present, or future, of the County, either directly 
or by reason of  any of the obligations, covenants, promises, or agreements, entered into between 
the County and the owners of the Obligations or the BANs or to be implied therefrom as being 
supplemental hereto or thereto; and that all personal liability of that character against every such 
member, officer, and employee is, by the enactment of this Ordinance and the execution of the 
County Agreements, the Obligations, and the BANs, and as a condition of, and as a part of the 
consideration for, the enactment of this Ordinance and the execution of the County Agreements, 
the Obligations, and the BANs, expressly waived and released.  The immunity of the members, 



 

 {10090-106 / 00108279 / V2} 6  

officers, and employees, of the County under the provision contained in this Section shall survive 
the termination of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 20. Effect of Article and Section Headings and Table of Contents.  The heading 
or titles of the several Articles and Sections hereof, and any table of contents appended hereto or 
copies hereof, shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, 
construction, interpretation, or effect of this Ordinance. 

 
 
     JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
(SEAL) 
 

      By:          
      Its:  Chairman, County Council 

 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Clerk, County Council 
 
First Reading:  April 1, 2024 
Public Hearing  June 3, 2024 
Second Reading: May 6, 2024 
Third Reading:  June 3, 2024 





 

 1 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
JASPER COUNTY 

 
ORDINANCE #O-2024-14 

 
ORDINANCE OF JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
An Ordinance authorizing the sale of a right of way easement over 
approximately 0.34 acres, 14,878 sq. ft., being a portion of TMS 
042-00-05-040 adjacent to the Interstate Highway I-95, to the 
South Carolina Department of Transportation in order to facilitate 
the widening, in exchange for the amount of $20,900.00 in just 
compensation, and to authorize the Jasper County Administrator to 
execute such right of way easement and other documents as may be 
necessary and appropriate to effect the transfer to the South 
Carolina Department of Transportation, or its assigns, and matters 
related thereto. 

 
WHEREAS, The South Carolina Department of Transportation (“SCDOT”) is in 

the process of widening Interstate 95 (“I-95”)  through Jasper County from 4 

lanes to six lanes; and  

 

WHEREAS,   in order to provide adequate area to perform the widening and its 

associated improvements, including storm drainage, SCDOT has determined that 

it is necessary to obtain for public use and purposes a right of way easement over 

a 0.34 acre, 14,878 sq. ft. portion of TMS 042-00-05-040, being part of a 51.24 

acre parcel owned by Jasper County; 

 

WHEREAS, SCDOT has performed an evaluation of the fair value of the 

property desired, and has made an offer of $20,000.00 as just compensation; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with South Carolina law, Jasper County Council 

must pass an ordinance authorizing the sale of real property, including 

easements; and  

 

WHEREAS, Jasper County Council finds the terms of the SCDOT offer of 

compensation to be fair, equitable and in the best interests of the citizens of 

Jasper County;  

 



 

 2 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by Jasper County Council, in council 

duly assembled and by the authority of the same: 

 

 

1. Jasper County Council adopts the foregoing recitals as part of this 

Ordinance, and approves the sale of a right of way easement over the 

referenced County property consisting of 0.34 acres of land, as shown on 

the attached Exhibit “A”, for the sum of $20,900.00;  

 

2. The Jasper County Administrator, with the assistance of the County 

Attorney, is further authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of Jasper 

County an executed right of way easement, in substantially the same form 

as set forth in the attached Exhibit “B”, as well as a closing statements and 

such other documents as may be necessary or desirable to accomplish the 

creation of the right of way easement over the referenced property in favor 

of the South Carolina Department of Transportation. 

 

3. This Ordinance shall take effect upon approval of the Council. 

  
 
Done this ____ day of _______________, 2024. 
 

_________________________________  

L. Martin Sauls, IV, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________  

Wanda H. Giles, Clerk to Council 

ORDINANCE # O-2024-14 

First Reading:   04.01.2024 

Second Reading:  06.03.2024 

Public hearing: 06.03.2024 

Adopted:  _________ 

 

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney. 

 

_______________________________________ 

David L. Tedder Date:  _______________ 



6
'x

4
' 

B
O

X
 

C
U

L
V

E
R

T
6
'x

4
' 

B
O

X
 

C
U

L
V

E
R

T

6
'x

4
' 

D
B

L
 

B
O

X
 

C
U

L
V

E
R

T
6
'x

4
' 

D
B

L
 

B
O

X
 

C
U

L
V

E
R

T
IE

=
9
.9

4
'

IE
=

9
.9

6
'

IE
=

9
.8

4
'

IE
=

9
.9

1
'

IE
=

1
0
.1

0
'

IE
=

1
0
.0

6
'

IE
=

1
0
.0

6
'

IE
=

9
.8

8
'

IE
=

1
0
.1

2
'

IE
=

1
0
.0

0
'

IE
=

1
0
.2

3
'

IE
=

1
0
.0

4
'

IE
=

9
.9

4
'

IE
=

9
.9

5
'

IE=9.83' IE=9.92'

IE
=

1
0
.3

0
'

IE=10.37'

.
L

B
D
 '

4
x'

6

T
R

E
V

L
U

C
 

X
O

B

T
R

E
V

L
U

C

X
O

B
 '

4
x'

6

L/P

WOVEN WIRE WOVEN WIRE

C
H

A
IN
 

L
IN

K

F
O

F
O

V

CC

CT

V

S

T-FO 24T-FO 24

T
-
F

O
 
2
4

T
-
5
0

T-100

S 22° 17' 53" W

COUNTYPREPARED

JASPER11 / 01 / 2023
SCALE FEET

050 100

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

DRAWING 809-105-00.
SUBMITTED TO THE REGISTER OF DEEDS IN COMPLIANCE WITH SCDOT STANDARD
UPON COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION, A RECORDABLE RIGHT OF WAY PLAT SHALL BE
FROM SCDOT HEADQUARTERS; 955 PARK STREET, COLUMBIA, SC 29201. ADDITIONALLY,
IN DIRECT REFERENCE TO THE ENGINEERING PLANS, A COPY OF WHICH CAN BE OBTAINED
THIS EXHIBIT IS A GRAPHIC REPRESENTATION OF THE "AREA OF ACQUISITION" AND IS

EXHIBIT "A"

P
a
g
e
 3
 o
f 

3
 P

a
g
e
s

AREA OF ACQUISITION FROM TRACT        Proj. ID P040106

215.00' LT
+31.43

230.00' LT
+60.00

215.00' LT
+60.00

230.00' LT
+60.00

215.00' LT
+60.00

TRANS. PERM. EASEMENT

200.00' LT
+03.71

230' PERM. EASEMENT

215' PERM. EASEMENT

215.00' LT
+75.00

230.00' LT
+75.00

TRANS. PERM. EASEMENT

215.00' LT
+37.38

230' PERM. EASEMENT

200.00' LT
+47.04

PRES. 175' R/W (27.301 1963)
PRES. 175' R/W (27.301 1963) PRES. TRANS. R/W (27.301 1963)

11'

11'

11'

11'

11'

11'

730

730

730

725

725

12'

12'

12'

12'

12'

720

720

65 70

S-422 EXIST. C/L STA. 63+77.77

BEGIN CONSTRUCTION

S 22° 17' 53" W

S 22° 17' 53" WS 22° 17' 53" W

S 22° 17' 53" W

175.00' RT
+91.27 (I-95 EXIST. C)

C10'

F17'

F32'

F32' F35'

F31'

F37'

F31'
F33'

F33'

F35'

F29'

F30'

C9'

C11'

F19'

F38'F35'

F38'

F35'

F37'F19'

F31'F35'

F16'
C10'

F99'
F99' F99' F102'

F101'
F104' F105' F104'

F103' F103'

F4'

F7'

F6'

F5'
F2'

F5'F4'

F2'

F103' F100' F102'F102' F104'
F108'

F105' F106' F105'
F102'

F107'

12'

12'

12'

12'

12'

12'

725720

S-422 (MEDICAL CENTER DR.)

I-95 SB

I-95

I-95 NB

I-95

I-95 SB

I-95 NB

S-422 (MEDICAL CENTER DR.)

CONSTRUCTION `

EXISTING `

CONSTRUCTION `

3

2
4 5

45

44

CONSTRUCTION `

CONSTRUCTION `

EXISTING `

PRES. 200' R/W (27.301 1963) PRES. 200' R/W (27.301 1963) PRES. 200' R/W (27.301 1963)

14,878 SF(0.34 AC)

OBTAIN

C/AC/AC/AC/A

TSIX
E

C/AC/AC/AC/A

TSIX
E

C/A

TSIX
E C/A

TSIX
E

C/A

TSIX
E

S-422 EXIST. C/L STA. 75+00.00

END CONSTRUCTION

75

N

2

01 / 24 / 2024



SCDOT R/W Form 801EXHI (10-2019) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GRANTEE’S ADDRESS (Return Address): SCDOT, Director, Rights of Way, P. O. Box 191, Columbia, SC 29202-0191 

Date Checked   By    

Project ID No. P040106  Route I-95 Tract 2 

Page 1 of 3 Pages 
 

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA RIGHT OF WAY  

EASEMENT 
COUNTY OF JASPER Approximate Survey Stations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That I (or we) Jasper County, P.O. Box 1149, 

Ridgeland, South Carolina  29936 in consideration of the sum of Twenty Thousand Nine Hundred and 

No/100 ($20,900.00) Dollars, to me (or us) in hand paid, and other valuable consideration at and before the sealing 

and delivering thereof, by the South Carolina Department of Transportation, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

have granted, bargained, sold and released, and by these presents do grant, give, bargain, sell and release, unto the said 

South Carolina Department of Transportation, its successors and assigns, an easement or right of way for the 

construction, improvement, operation and maintenance of a public road known as a State Highway from 1.07 Miles 

North of US-278 (Exit 8) to 0.57 Miles Southwest of Georgia State Line on Route I-95, State and County 

aforesaid, as shown on plans prepared by the South Carolina Department of Transportation, upon and across the land 

which I (or we) may own, in whole or in part, between the survey stations referenced above and as depicted and described 

on the above reference plans together with, all and singular, the rights, members, hereditaments, and appurtenances 

thereunto belonging, or in any way incident or appertaining.  The grantor expressly recognizes the possibility that the 

property herein may be used in the future by public utility or others granted the statutory right to use the right of way.  

 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS:  

  

The above consideration is for all that parcel or strip of land, to establish a right of way, containing 0.34 acre 

(14,878 square feet), more or less, and all improvements, thereon, if any, owned by Jasper County, shown as the “Area 

of Right of Way” on Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof.  

 

Tax Map No. 042-00-05-040 

 

64+00 To 73+00 Lt. 

Road S-422 (Medical Center Dr.) Survey 

      To       

      

      To       

      

Road/Route Route I-95 

Project ID No. P040106 

Tract 2 



SCDOT R/W Form 801EXHI (10-2019) 

Project ID No. P040106  Route I-95 Tract 2 

Page 2 of 3 Pages 
 

 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, all and singular, the said easement or right of way and the rights hereinabove 

granted, unto the said South Carolina Department of Transportation, its successors and assigns forever for a public road, 

highway, other public transportation purposes or other public uses as are permitted within and in conjunction with 

highway rights of way and the grantors hereby dedicated their respective interest in said strip of land to public use for 

such purposes. 
 

 It is agreed that buildings, fences, signs or other obstructions will not be erected by me (or us), my (or our) heirs, 

assigns or administrators within the limits of the right of way herein conveyed. 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I (or we) have hereunto set my (or our) hand(s) and seal(s) this ________ day of 

_________________________, in the year of our Lord, Two Thousand and Twenty Four. 

 

 

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of:           Jasper County 

 
 

1st Witness  By: Andrew P. Fulghum 

Its: County Administrator  

Grantor (L.S.) 

 

 

2nd Witness   Grantor (L.S.) 

 

 

NOTE:  All right of way agreements must be in writing and are subject to rejection by the South Carolina Department of 

Transportation. 

 

 

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )  

 ) ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

COUNTY OF JASPER  )  

 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____day of _______________, 2024 by 

Andrew P. Fulghum as its County Administrator on behalf of Jasper County. 

 

 

 Signature of Notary Public 

      

 Printed Name of Notary Public 

NOTARY PUBLIC FOR THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

My Commission Expires:       

(Affix seal if outside SC) 
 

 





CSP PDD and DA Amendment                                                                                        Page 1 of 2 

Jasper County  

Planning and Building Services 
 

358 Third Avenue - Post Office Box 1659 

Ridgeland, South Carolina  29936 

Phone (843) 717-3650   Fax (843) 726-7707 

 

        

Lisa Wagner, CFM 
Director of Planning and Building Services 

lwagner@jaspercountysc.gov 

  

 

Jasper County Council 

Staff Report 

Meeting Date: June 3, 2024 

Project: Amendment of the CSP Planned Development District (PDD) Standards 

and the CSP Development Agreement (DA)   

Applicant: Peter Zadoretzky, Co-Manager, Conduit Street Partners 

Tax Map Number: 041-00-03-030 

Submitted For: Public Hearing and 2nd Reading  

Recommendation: Planning Commission recommends approval of the proposed amendment 

to the CSP PDD Standards and the CSP DA. 

 

Description: The Applicant is requesting approval of an amendment to the CSP Planned 

Development District (PDD) Standards and the CSP Development Agreement (DA). The CSP PDD 

and DA was approved by Jasper County Council on June 27, 2022, as a single-family “for rent” 

community, with a maximum density of 275 units, all to be situated on one parcel of land, consisting 

of 38.84 acres. The subject property is located along Independence Boulevard (Highway 278) 

between Brickyard Road and Hilton Head Lakes.  

 

The purpose of amending the CSP PDD and DA is to add language to allow the option of residential 

uses “for rent” or “for sale” that can be situated on “unsubdivided land” or “subdivided land”. Of 

course, the “for sale” option will be situated on subdivided lots. The approved CSP PDD and DA 

only assume residential units “for rent” that would be situated on one parcel of land. In order to 

support the residential units “for sale on subdivided lots,” minimum lot size and setbacks are 

included as part of the proposed amendment to the PDD Standards. Exhibit A – 2 of the Ordinance is 

a redline version of the amendment to the PDD Standards outlining the proposed changes.  Exhibit A 

– 1 is a clean copy of the proposed amendment and if approved it will be recorded at the Register of 

Deeds Office.  

 

Exhibit B – 2 of the Ordinance is the redline version of the proposed amendment to the DA and 

consists of very minimal changes, primarily to identify the community as a single-family community 

rather than a single family “rental” community. Exhibit B – 1 is the clean copy of the proposed 

amendment and if approved it will be recorded at the Register of Deeds Office.  

 

mailto:lwagner@jaspercountysc.gov


CSP PDD and DA Amendment                                                                                        Page 2 of 2 

Analysis: The proposed amendment does not change the Concept Plan, the density, the land use, or 

the layout of the community, roads, and utilities. However, since the CSP PDD Standards and 

Development Agreement were previously adopted, any changes to either document must be 

approved by the County Council.  

 

Staff Recommendation: The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed amendment to the CSP 

PDD Standards at their April 9, 2024 meeting and recommends approval.  

 

Attachments:  

 

1. Ordinance with Exhibits A – 1, A – 2, B – 1, and B – 2   

2. Aerial Map 

 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
JASPER COUNTY 

ORDINANCE #O-2024-15 

AN ORDINANCE OF  
JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

To amend: (i) Ordinance O-2022-16 to adopt updated 
standards for the Planned Development District 
encompassing a 38.84 acre parcel located on U.S. Highway 
278 (the “Property”); and (ii) Ordinance O-2022-14 to 
amend the development agreement (the “Development 
Agreement”) between Jasper County (the “County”) and 
Conduit Street Partners, LLC (“CSP” or the “Developer”) 
that governs CSP’s development of the Property into a 275-
unit single-family residential community (the “Project”); 
in both cases to allow for the possibility that the Project 
may include not only “for rent” residential dwellings, but 
also “for sale” residential dwellings; and matters related 
thereto.  

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2022, the Jasper County Council passed Ordinance O-2022-
16, recorded in Book 1105, Page 481 of the Jasper County Register of Deeds (the “PDD 
Ordinance”), which ordinance adopted Planned Development District zoning for the 
Property, subject to the planned development district standards attached thereto (the 
“PDD Standards”), and the conceptual master plan attached as Exhibit B thereto. 

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2022, the Jasper County Council also passed Ordinance O-
2022-14, recorded in Book 1107, Page 1678 of the Jasper County Register of Deeds (the 
“Development Agreement Ordinance”, which ordinance approved the County’s entry into 
and execution of the Development Agreement that had been negotiated between the 
County and Conduit Street Partners, LLC, which Development Agreement governs the 
relationship between the County and the Developer with regard to the Project. 

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement Ordinance further contained a provision (in 
Paragraph 2 thereof) that instituted a deadline of June 30, 2023, by which the 
“Owner/Developer” (defined therein as CSP) must acquire legal title to the Property (the 
“Acquisition Deadline”); otherwise, the Development Agreement would automatically be 
null and void.   



2 
April 2024 

 
WHEREAS, on October 11, 2022, the Jasper County Planning Commission approved 
the CSP Development PDD Master Plan (the “PDD Master Plan”), which contemplated a 
single family residential rental community containing 275 residential detached and 
attached units, and associated amenities. 
 
WHEREAS, on April 17, 2023, the Jasper County Council passed Ordinance O-2023-
06, recorded in Book 1123, Page 109 of the Jasper County Register of Deeds, which 
ordinance amended the Development Agreement Ordinance to extend the Acquisition 
Deadline through December 31, 2023, to give the Developer sufficient time to address 
permitting delays with outside agencies. 
 
WHEREAS, on October 16, 2023, the Jasper County Council passed Ordinance O-2023-
18, recorded in Book 1136, Page 407 of the Jasper County Register of Deeds, which 
ordinance amended the Development Agreement Ordinance to: (i) clarify that the entity 
to which the Property must be conveyed by the Acquisition Deadline includes the 
successors and assigns of CSP; (ii) specify certain forms of assignment that must be used 
for any assignment of CSP’s rights under the Development Agreement to any successor or 
assign of CSP; and (iii) extend the Acquisition Deadline through the date which is ninety 
(90) days after receipt of all final land use and development permit approvals, but no later 
than December 31, 2024. 
 
WHEREAS, the PDD Standards, the Development Agreement and the PDD Master Plan 
all include a description of the principal use of the Property as a single-family, “for rent” 
residential community, to be developed on a single, un-subdivided parcel of land that 
would be owned by the Developer. 
 
WHEREAS, since the inception of the Project, economic conditions and financing 
structures have changed significantly, to the degree that the investment and financing 
community has begun requiring additional “safety valve” options that would let lenders 
mitigate likely losses by selling off portions of their collateral, if necessary.   
 
WHEREAS, as a result of these changed financial circumstances, in order to attract 
quality financing and investment partners, CSP desires to be able to retain, as an 
alternative, a “for sale” use within the Project, which would include the ability to place 
residential dwellings on subdivided parcels (as opposed to a single, commonly-owned 
parcel as typically seen in a “for rent” context). 
 
WHEREAS, notwithstanding this request for “for sale” residential dwellings, CSP fully 
intends to develop the Project as a “for rent” residential community, with the “for sale” 
option serving only as the “safety valve” necessary to attract suitable financing and 



3 
April 2024 

investment which would allow the Project to be developed as a “for rent” residential 
community, as originally and currently intended. 
 
WHEREAS, in order to contemplate the alternative “for sale” use within the Project, 
CSP desires to amend the PDD Standards, the Development Agreement and the PDD 
Master Plan to provide for items that would be applicable in a “for sale” context due to 
the possibility of subdivided lots within the Project, including standards such as setbacks, 
lot areas/widths, and other master plan details. 
 
WHEREAS, after giving the matter consideration, the Jasper County Council has 
determined that it would be appropriate to pass an ordinance which: 
 

(i) amends the PDD Ordinance (Ordinance O-2022-16) to adopt updated PDD 
Standards that address the “for sale” alternative use and provide the 
development standards applicable thereto (including those relating to any 
subdivided lots); and 
 

(ii) amends the Development Agreement Ordinance (Ordinance O-2022-14) to 
adopt an updated Development Agreement that addresses the “for sale” 
alternative use and the related matter of the subdivision of lots within the 
Property. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Jasper County Council, duly 
assembled and with authority of same, that the above premises be incorporated by 
reference; and:  
 

1. Ordinance O-2022-16 is hereby amended by substituting for the “Planned 
Development District Standards” attached thereto, the updated Planned 
Development District Standards attached hereto as Exhibit A-1.  The effect of 
such substitution shall be to accept those changes shown in red and underlined in 
the redlined version of the Planned Development District Standards attached 
hereto as Exhibit A-2. 
 

2. Ordinance O-2022-14 is hereby amended by substituting for the “Development 
Agreement” attached thereto as Exhibit A, the updated Development Agreement 
attached hereto as Exhibit B-1.  The effect of such substitution shall be to accept 
those changes shown in red and underlined in the redlined version of the 
Development Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B-2.  
 

3. If any section, clause, paragraph, sentence or phrase of this ordinance, or any 
application thereof, shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional., 



4 
April 2024 

the invalid section, clause paragraph, sentence, phrase or application shall in no 
way affect the remainder of this ordinance: and it is hereby declared to be the 
intention of the County Council that the remainder of this ordinance would have 
passed notwithstanding the invalidity or unconstitutionality of any section, clause 
paragraph, sentence, phrase or application thereof. 

 
4. This ordinance shall take effect upon approval by Council. 

 

 
[Signatures Contained on Following Page] 



Signature Page to Ordinance O-2024-_____ 

Martin L. Sauls, IV 
Chairman 

ATTEST: 

Wanda H. Giles 
Clerk to Council 

, 2024 
, 2024 
, 2024 
, 2024 

ORDINANCE: -2024-__

First Reading:  May 06 

Public Hearing: June 03 

Second Reading: June 03 

Third Reading:

Adopted:  , 2024 

_____________________________________________ 

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney. 

__________________________ 
David Tedder   Date 



 

FIRST EXHIBIT TO ORDINANCE 
 

EXHIBIT A-1 
 

Updated Planned Development District Standards (CLEAN) 
 

[attached] 
 



 

SECOND EXHIBIT TO ORDINANCE 
 

EXHIBIT A-2 
 

Updated Planned Development District Standards (REDLINED) 
 

[attached] 



 

THIRD EXHIBIT TO ORDINANCE 
 

EXHIBIT B-1 
 

Updated Development Agreement (CLEAN) 
 

[attached] 



 

FOURTH EXHIBIT TO ORDINANCE 
 

EXHIBIT B-2 
 

Updated Development Agreement (REDLINED) 
 

[attached] 
 



PDD EXHIBIT A-1 “CLEAN” 
CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

APPLICANT AND PLANNING TEAM……………………………………………………………………………………. 1 

SECTION I – INTRODUCTION AND NARRATIVE………………………………………………………………… 2 

A. The Property………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 2 

B. Planned Development District Process………………………………………………………………………..  3 

C. Conceptual Master Plan…………………………………………………………………………………………………  4 

D. Environmental Protection……………………………………………………………………………………………….  5 

E. Water and Sewer Service………………………………………………………………………………………………  5 

F. Utility Service…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 5 

G. Roadways and Traffic…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 5 

H. Tree Preservation and Replacement…………………………………………………………………………….  6 

I. Parking…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 7 

J. Stormwater Management……………………………………………………………………………………………….  7 

K. Cultural and Historical Resources…………………………………………………………………………………. 7 

L. Emergency Services………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 7 

SECTION II – LAND USE DESIGNATION AND DEFINITIONS……………………………………………… 8 

A. Introduction and Narrative………………………………………………………………………………………………. 8 

B. Allowed Land Uses………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 8 

C. Allowed Density and Transfer of Density Between Planning Areas…………………………… 9 

D. Definition of Land Use Terms and Density Terms……………………………………………………….. 9 

 SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit A Site Location Map Exhibit I FEMA Flood Zones 

Exhibit B Conceptual Master Plan Exhibit J BJWSA Availability to Serve Letter 

Exhibit C Property Aerial Exhibit K Dominion Availability to Serve Letter 

Exhibit D-1 Jasper County Zoning Map Exhibit L Palmetto Availability to Serve Letter 

Exhibit D-2 Hardeeville Zoning Map Exhibit M Hargray Availability to Serve Letter 

Exhibit E Wetlands Delineation  Exhibit N Archaeological Report 

Exhibit F Boundary Survey Exhibit O Concept Development Schedule 

Exhibit G USDA Soils Data Exhibit P Fire Station and EMS Locations 

Exhibit H Topography Exhibit Q Thomas & Hutton Traffic Memo 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 1  
 

 

 

APPLICANT AND PLANNING TEAM 

 

Owner………….………………………………………………………………………………………….Paul H. Anderson, Emily A.Tillman 

&  John F. Anderson 

Developer / Applicant……………………………………..………………………………………………Conduit Street Partners, LLC 

Annapolis, MD 

Mr. Peter Zadoretzky 

 

 Land Planner and Engineer………………………………………………………………………..Thomas & Hutton Engineering 

 Savannah, GA 

 Mr. Lamar Mercer, P.E. 

 Mr. Scott Monson, P.E 

Carolina Engineering Consultants, Inc 

         Beaufort, SC 

Mr. Jeff P. Ackerman, P.E 

 

 Wetlands / Environmental Consultant and Permitting…………….Newkirk Environmental Consultants, Inc.   

  Beaufort, SC 

Mr. Ashley Howell 

 

Archaeologist……………………………………….………………………………………..…………….Brockington & Associates, Inc. 

Savannah, GA 

Mr. Alex Sweeney, MA, RPA 

 

Land Use Attorney / Legal Counsel……………………………………………………..…………………..Bouhan Falligant LLP 

Savannah, GA 

John D. Northup III, Esq. 

            

  



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 2  
 

CSP DEVELOPMENT 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AND 

CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

 
SECTION I: 
 

INTRODUCTION AND NARRATIVE 
 

The Conduit Street Partners, LLC project currently consists of one parcel located in Jasper 
County, SC. Currently, the parcel is zoned Rural Preservation (“RP”) and is identified as PIN no. 
041-00-03-030. The property is approximately 38.84 acres with substantial frontage on the north 
side of U.S. Highway 278 situated between the Hilton Head Lakes North development to its east 
and the Prime Storage facility to its west.  The property is surrounded by City of Hardeeville land 
nearly all of which is zoned PDD with a very small area zoned GC (the Prime Storage property). 
The property has been in the Anderson Family estate for many years and was originally part of 
the J.A. Coleman Estate. Exhibit A Site Location Map is attached. 
 
The property is under agreement to be purchased from the Anderson family members by the 
Applicant, Conduit Street Partners, LLC, who are pursuing a new PDD zoning encompassing all 
the  parcel to allow for the property to be developed under the stipulations set forth by the 
proposed PDD zoning in accordance with the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance (ZO) and Land 
Development Regulations (LDR) in effect at the time of submittal of this rezoning application. 
Upon approval, the benefits of the proposed PDD Standards shall apply to the Applicant I Owner 
and its successors and assignees. For the purposes of the PDD and Exhibit B Conceptual 
Master Plan, the parcel is hereby known as a single project (“CSP Development”) in this  
document  henceforth. 
 
A. THE PROPERTY 
 
1. The CSP Development property is a raw, unimproved forested, predominately uplands 
parcel in Jasper County. There are no nor have there ever been any existing buildings, structures, 
or other facilities on the property. The property is surrounded by PDD zoned Hardeeville land to 
its east, north and south and by Hardeeville GC zoned land to its west. It is bounded on its eastern 
side by the Hilton Head Lakes North development – a large, golf course residential community 
and one of the initial phases of the Hardeeville West Argent PDD development project. To the 
north and contiguous to the CSP Development is an undeveloped, principally forested, and 
regulated wetlands parcel which is also part of the West Argent PDD development project. West 
of the property is an existing Prime Storage facility situated on land located in Hardeeville and 
zoned GC. The southern property line of the property is frontage along the north side of highway 
U.S. 278 – a four lane divided, center median, limited access highway. And on the other/south 
side of U.S. 278 across the highway from the CSP Development there are two major Hardeeville 
PDD land parcels. One of the parcels is a part of the existing Latitude Margaritaville development 
and is at the present time planned to be Margaritaville’s future 70-acre retail/commercial phase. 
The second parcel that is to the west and contiguous with the Latitude Margaritaville land is 
another very large Hardeeville PDD land parcel known as the Morgan PDD project. Both land 
tracts on the south side of U.S. 278 immediately across the highway from the proposed CSP 
Development are raw, unimproved but PDD zoned properties with existing Hardeeville 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 3  
 

development agreements. Combined, the West Argent PDD, the Latitude Margaritaville PDD and 
the Morgan Tract PDD amount to approximately 10,500 acres of Hardeeville development parcels 
zoned PDD. The CSP Development 38.84-acre parcel has just under 2,700 feet of frontage along 
the north side of U.S. 278 and will access this highway at one central location in alignment with 
an existing median break. The CSP Development property will also have access to existing 
Brickyard Road at the road’s eastern termination point which is located at the property’s western 
property line. A Property Aerial (Exhibit C), a Jasper County Zoning Map (Exhibit D-1) and a 
Hardeeville Zoning Map (Exhibit D-2) are provided. 
 
2. The proposed PDD consists of approximately 38.84 acres and has an anticipated area of 
approximately 37 acres of uplands and approximately 1.5 acres of jurisdictional wetlands, and 0.5 
acres of non-jurisdictional wetlands (excluded waters – gum pond) based upon a preliminary 
wetland exhibit prepared by Newkirk Environmental, dated December 2021 (see Exhibit E 
Wetlands Delineation). The delineation of the wetlands within the property have been submitted 
to the Army Corps of Engineers to obtain a valid Jurisdictional Determination. The Conceptual 
Plan has taken into account the jurisdictional wetlands and has avoided any development impacts 
to these areas. The property does not have any critical area or frontage on salt marsh or creeks. 
 
3. Exhibit F Boundary Survey depicts the property boundary. 

 
4. Exhibit G USDA Soils Data depicts soils types of the property 

. 
5. Exhibit H Topography depicts topographic information for the CSP Development 
property. GIS data topography was used for the purposes of the exhibit. Elevations on the site 
range from elevation 10.0 along its northern edge sloping quickly upwards to the property’s interior 
where grades are relatively flat averaging between elevations 18.0 to 20.0 with two small knolls 
on the west end of the property averaging elevation 24.0. Exhibit I FEMA Flood Zones Map 
depicts the 2019 FEMA flood zones which indicate that the property is in FEMA zone “X”  which 
is defined to be an area of minimal flood hazard generally above or outside the 500-year flood 
level. Finished floor elevations of building structures will adhere to current Flood Zone 
requirements of the Jasper County Land Development Regulations. 
 
B. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT PROCESS 
 
1.     The Planned Development District (PDD) was established by the Jasper County to 
encourage flexibility in the development of land to promote its most appropriate, economical, and 
efficient use as well as to encourage creative design and produce a better environment 
particularly for large undeveloped tracts. The purpose of the PDD is to, among other things, permit 
development for specialized purposes which are planned and developed on a unified basis. In 
this case the specialized purpose is a first-class Single-Family Rental Home (“SFR”) community 
as proposed by Conduit Street Partners, LLC. The homes themselves will be of unique design, 
tasteful architecture and generally resemble single family detached and townhouse home types. 
The community will be under one ownership structure which will maintain most all aspects of the 
community, i.e., its infrastructure including its roads, the interior and exteriors of the homes and 
the grounds on which they are constructed including the community amenities and open spaces.  
 
 
 
 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 4  
 

C. CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 
 
It is anticipated that the Conduit Street Development property will be developed over a period of 
no more than four to five years in as many as two phases in accordance with the Conceptual 
Master Plan as set forth in this document and as the same may be supplemented by subsequent 
master and development plans submitted pursuant to the provisions of this PDD (see Exhibit N 
Concept Development Schedule). The Conceptual Master Plan sets forth the general scope of 
the development including number of allowed units, development standards, infrastructure 
requirements, and other guidelines. In addition to the Conceptual Master Plan, development of 
the Property will be controlled by other provisions of the PDD. 
 
The goal of this PDD is to produce a development that raises the quality of life and development 
standards in the area while also anticipating the County’s existing and future needs for naturally 
affordable single-family homes. 
 
The Conduit Street Development Conceptual Master Plan displays a general and privately owned 
and maintained roadway layout, general housing unit layout, open space areas as well as 
amenities that will serve the property. The final locations of these site elements may vary at the 
time of development permit. Proposed land uses in the development are detailed under Section 
2 - Land Use Designation and Definitions. 
 
The Conceptual Master Plan seeks to maintain open space  requirements set forth in Section II, 
D.3 of this PDD. The open space and amenities will be owned and maintained by the Applicant I 
Owner, or other legally designated entity. Property deeded to a governmental or private utility 
entity will be the maintenance responsibility of that entity. 
 
The Conceptual Master Plan and the provisions of this PDD will constitute the zoning for the 
Property and a waiver from the current Jasper County codes and regulations where differences  
occur. However, activities in the PDD shall conform to all other Jasper County Zoning Ordinance 
and Land Development Regulations where differences do not occur. 
 
The provisions of the Conceptual Master Plan shall apply to development of the property. In the 
event of a conflict, the hierarchy of documents will be the “to be approved”, (i) Development 
Agreement (DA), (ii) the PDD and Conceptual Master Plan and, (iii) the Master Plan (MP). 
 
D. ENVIRONMENTAL  PROTECTION 
 
1. As part of the development process, the CSP Development will meet or exceed the 
stormwater management requirements of Jasper County, and the requirements of South Carolina 
Department of Health and Environmental Control (DHEC) and Office of Ocean and Coastal 
Resource Management (OCRM).The Applicant I Owner will prepare stormwater management 
plans for the project as it is developed in accordance with a stormwater drainage master plan to 
be prepared by a professional engineering firm licensed by the State of South Carolina. The 
stormwater drainage master plan will address the hydrological characteristics of the entire site as 
well as adjacent drainage patterns of relative importance. The plan will address  pre-development 
conditions and post-development stormwater  management  for  flood  control and sediment 
reduction. This plan will also address storm water quality through, among other things, the use of 
several types of BMP's (as established by the stormwater standards of the applicable state and 
federal governmental regulations) to enhance water quality and protect the adjacent wetlands. 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 5  
 

 
2. Approximately 4 percent of the site consists of regulated jurisdictional wetlands. Exhibit E 
is a preliminary wetland plan prepared by Newkirk Environmental dated December 2021 which 
depicts the  preliminary observation of  wetlands vs uplands for the project area. The wetland plan 
has been submitted to the Army Corps of Engineers to obtain a jurisdictional determination prior 
to development of the property. 
 
3. There will be no development impacts to the regulated jurisdictional wetlands. Subject to 
the approval of the Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource Management, the CSP Development 
will seek to remove/fill the non-regulated “gum pond” located in proximity to the project’s proposed 
main entrance off highway U.S. 278.   
 
E. WATER AND SEWER SERVICE 
 
Water and sewer service will be provided to the CSP Development by Beaufort Jasper Water and 
Sewer Authority. Preliminary planning for the water and sewer systems will be provided at the 
time of Initial Master Plan submittal to Jasper County. Preliminary discussions with Beaufort-
Jasper Water and Sewer Authority (BJWSA) indicate a willingness to serve the property. BJWSA 
operates and maintains water and sewer systems within their service area upon completion by 
the developer and acceptance by the Authority.  See Exhibit J BJWSA Availability to Serve 
Letter. 
 
F. UTILITY SERVICE 
 
1 .     The CSP Development property is in the service territory of Dominion Energy tor natural 
gas services, See Exhibit K Dominion Energy Availability to Serve Letter. The Applicant I 
Owner will coordinate with Dominion Energy regarding planning for the CSP Development project. 
 
2.  The CSP Development property is in the service territory of Palmetto Electric Cooperative 
tor electric services, See Exhibit L Palmetto Availability to Serve Letter. The Applicant I Owner 
will coordinate with Dominion Energy regarding planning for the CSP Development project. 
 
3.  Hargray or/or another licensed provider will provide internet and communication services 
to the CSP Development property. The Applicant/Owner will coordinate with the provider 
regarding planning and installation of these services. All servicing is anticipated to be via fiber 
optics cable to include broadband capability. See Exhibit M Hargray Availability to Serve 
Letter. 
 
4. Other Utility services shall be provided by legally established entities at the discretion of 
the Applicant I Owner, provided such are in accordance with the franchising ordinances/licensing 
with the County. 
 
5. Utilities will be underground except as reasonably necessary for above ground support 
facilities. 
 
G. ROADWAYS AND TRAFFIC 
 
1. The CSP Development PDD shall have on-site roads designed and constructed to the 
standards of the Jasper County Land Development Regulations or other engineering standards 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 6  
 

reasonably acceptable to the Jasper County Engineer. Roadway construction within SCDOT 
right-of-way's will be in accordance with SCDOT standards. Roadway section details will be 
submitted for review at time of development permit approval. Interconnectivity to other adjoining 
tracts of land is not proposed. Public access into or across other private developments will not be 
required. Roadway design standards may be modified subject to the approval of Jasper County 
to reduce environmental impacts provided safety concerns are not compromised. All onsite roads 
shall be privately owned and maintained.  
 
2.       The Applicant I Owner intends to create up to three new points of vehicular access to 
existing public roads and highways for the project. The first is proposed to be a main entrance  
ingress and egress to U.S. 278 located and aligned with the center most existing highway median 
cut. The second access location is anticipated to provide ingress and egress to U.S. 278 at the 
highway’s median cut fronting the eastern end of the property. The third point of vehicular 
connectivity is planned as a proposed connection with existing Brickyard Road at the roads point 
of termination at the property’s western property line and adjacent to the U.S. 278 right-of-way. A 
traffic plan study will be provided at the Master Plan stage.  The traffic study shall be reviewed by 
the SCDOT and final configuration for the new accesses will be governed by the SCDOT. Final 
entrance configuration and locations will be based upon SCDOT guidelines at the time of 
development permit. 
 
3.   Access to the CSP Development PDD may be restricted and/or gated appropriately at 
the Applicant I Owner's discretion. Sidewalks and possibly trails shall be provided within the PDD 
at appropriate locations. The frequency and location of sidewalks or pathways shall be 
established based upon anticipated pedestrian circulation within the project. Sidewalks and trails 
shown on the Conceptual Master Plan are conceptual in nature and are subject to change over 
the course of the development permit process. 
 
4. Notwithstanding the provisions of section G hereof, roadway design standards may be 
modified to reduce environmental impacts provided safety concerns are not compromised. To 
protect and preserve significant natural property attributes including avoiding wetland impacts, 
such design will be encouraged. 

 
5. Reference Thomas & Hutton Traffic Memo Exhibit Q for preliminary traffic analysis and 
commentary concluding no material traffic impacts to existing road systems. 
 
6. TREE PRESERVATION AND REPLACEMENT 
 
The CSP Development shall meet or exceed the minimum allowable post development tree 
coverage requirements of Jasper County. Trees required and/or worthy of preserving shall be 
incorporated into buffer areas around jurisdictional wetlands, in required buffer yards and in the 
required Highway Corridor Overlay District 50’ buffer parallel and adjacent to the U.S. 278 
Highway.  
 
In those cases where the minimum allowable tree coverage cannot be met by preservation within 
a required buffer area, replacement trees shall be planted to meet the tree types and quantities 
as required by code. Trees to be preserved in buffer areas shall be identified and located by a 
tree survey within the CSP Development PDD. 
 
Plantings, including trees, situated in any buffer area shall be maintained in good health and any 

 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 7  
 

dead or damaged plants will be replaced. And if any tree in a buffer is severely damaged due to 
weather or other reasons, all severely damaged trees shall be replaced no later than the end of 
the next dormant season.  
 
I. PARKING 
 
Parking for the CSP Development community shall be provided by a combination of attached 
and/or detached residential parking garages and their corresponding driveways, and community 
surface parking lots for overflow parking, the community amenity areas and leasing offices. All 
parking shall be generally consistent with Jasper County development standards or as otherwise 
proposed by the Applicant/Owner and approved by Jasper County.  
 
J. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
 
The CSP Development PDD shall conform to the Stormwater Management Provisions of the 
Jasper County Land Development Standards including but not necessarily limited to the Jasper 
County Stormwater Management Design Manual and applicable state and federal requirements. 
Among other things, the post-development peak runoff discharge rate for the  2-, 10- and 25-year, 
24-hour design storm events will be designed to control these rates to pre-development discharge 
rates. Additionally, the CSP Development PDD shall design its stormwater system to manage a 
100-year, 24-hour storm event without causing damage to on-site and offsite structures. Sufficient 
stormwater best management practices will be employed in the development of the PDD to 
ensure runoff leaving the site does not degrade water quality of the surrounding receiving waters. 
 
K. CULTURAL AND HISTORICAL RESOURCES 
 

As part of a comprehensive study of the property a Phase I and Phase II archeological 
investigations and studies were conducted by Brockington & Associates. The investigations have 
concluded that there are no archeological sites eligible for the National Register requiring 
preservation or management considerations on the property. Exhibit N Archaeological Report 
is attached. 
 

L. EMERGENCY SERVICES 
 

Fire and emergency medical services will be provided to the residents of the CSP Development 
by no less than two Jasper County Fire-Rescue stations which are located less than 5 miles from 
the property. FIRE STATION AND EMS LOCATIONS EXHIBIT P is attached identifying Jasper 
County Fire Stations 34 and 35 and their distances (each less than 5 miles) and times in route to 
the CSP Development.   
 
  



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 8  
 

SECTION II: 
 
LAND USE DESIGNATION AND DEFINITIONS 
 
A . INTRODUCTION and NARRATIVE 
 
The Conceptual Master Plan consists of an area of approximately 38.84 acres. The proposed 
predominate uses  shall include but not be necessarily limited to: 
 

• For-Rent Single Family Residential situated on an unsubdivided parcel(s) and/or on 
subdivided individual platted lots 

• Single Family For Sale Residential situated on subdivided individual platted lots  

• Active and passive community amenity areas  

• Model homes and leasing and sales centers 

• Site infrastructure 
 
The land use areas indicated on the Conceptual Master Plan are not intended to be rigid exact 
boundaries for future improvements. The Conceptual Master Plan PDD for the CSP Development 
shall maintain flexibility to accommodate specific soils conditions, environmental concerns, 
physical constraints, market conditions and design parameters and as such, the exact location of 
boundary lines and any proposed buildings or structures, between land uses and their subsequent 
location and size indicated within the planning area shall be subject to change at the time of the 
Master Plan Phase and Development Permit Plan submission; provided that maximum densities 
and other conditions of the Development Agreement between the Applicant / Owner and Jasper 
County, South Carolina will be adhered to strictly, unless adjustments are requested by the 
Applicant / Owner and approved by Jasper County.  
 
All rental residential dwelling units shall be owned, controlled and maintained by the Applicant or 
its assigns or successors which units may be located on an unsubdivided parcel or individual 
platted lots. Amenities, on-property infrastructure and improvements not dedicated or otherwise 
conveyed to public or private third parties (such as a homeowner’s association) shall be owned, 
controlled and maintained by the Applicant / Owner or its successors.  
 
If at any time in the future rental homes that are situated on subdivided platted lots are sold and 
owner occupied, these housing units shall be owned, controlled, and maintained by their 
individual owners.  
 
B. ALLOWED LAND USES 
 
The following land uses shall be permitted in the CSP Development PDD. The purpose of this 
portion of the PDD document is to state which land uses shall be allowed within the CSP 
Development PDD and to clearly define development within the area. However, by allowing these 
uses this does not obligate the Applicant / Owner to provide all of the uses or facilities herein. The 
allowed land uses and definitions shall be as follows: 
 
For-Rent and/or For Sale Single Family Residential 
 

• Single Family Residential Dwelling - A detached or attached home used exclusively for 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 9  
 

residential purposes which is either (i) leased to its tenant(s) located on a single parcel of 
unsubdivided land  or on subdivided platted lots and/or (ii) detached or attached homes 
sold to buyers/homeowners which homes shall be located on single subdivided platted 
lots. Dwelling units may have either private or shared access. Units may be arranged in a 
variety of configurations including detached, attached, back-to-back, side to side, vertical 
or any combination thereof. 

• Home Sites - Individual un-platted parcels or individual platted lots available for short or 
long-term lease for the rental homes or for owner occupied  homes. 

• Amenity Areas - including Club House / swimming pool / playground / bocce ball / cornhole 
/ horseshoes / oyster tables / pickleball and tennis courts / amphitheater / fitness facility 
or other recreational amenities. 

• Mail kiosks including drone delivery station(s) 

• Utilities 

• Recreational Amenity Uses such as, but not limited to: 
o Dog park 
o Multi-use field(s) 
o Gazebo 
o Kayak, canoe and boat storage areas 
o Trails or sidewalks 
o Bike paths 
o Mini-golf and/or golf putting green 
o Pavilion 
o Grilling areas 
o Common open space and other active and passive recreational uses 
o Maintenance Areas or Buildings 
o Planting/vegetable garden(s) 

 
Design Standards and Regulations may be established for each area and use at the time of 
development permit, unless agreed at development permit approval or in this PDD, the standard 
for uses from the Jaser County Land Development Regulations shall apply.  
 
Any easement that occurs within the property shall have the same land uses as any of the 
adjacent land uses. Any restrictions shall be based on the legal definition of the easement. 
 
C. ALLOWED DENSITY WITHIN PLANNING AREAS 
 
1. Preliminary planning for the Property contemplates the Residential land uses {including 
wetlands) for the entire property as depicted on the Conceptual Master Plan. The Conceptual 
Master Plan layout may be modified at the time of development permit application. 
 
2.  The total project is allowed a maximum of 275 Single Family Dwelling Units. The maximum 
size per dwelling unit shall be 2,500 square feet. The minimum dwelling unit shall be 800 square 
feet. The size and configuration of anticipated dwelling units displayed on the Conceptual Master 
Plan may be modified at the time of development  permit. The submitted Conceptual Site Plan 
presently indicates 265 Single Family Dwelling Units. 
 
3.  Overall residential density may include both Attached and Detached Single Family 
Residential dwelling units. 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 10  
 

 
D. DEFINITIONS OF LAND USE TERMS AND DENSITY TERMS 
 
In the absence of a term definition in this Conceptual Master Plan or in the proposed CSP 
Development PDD with Jasper County, the definitions of the Jaser County Land Development 
Regulations shall apply in the interpretation of this Conceptual Master Plan. The definitions below 
shall generally describe the allowed uses and terms within the CSP Development PDD. 
 
1. Acre 

a. Gross Acre shall mean the entire acreage within the site boundaries. 
b. Net  Acre   shall  mean  the  acre  which   remains  after deduction  of easements for 

existing utilities, wetland buffers, and onsite wetlands. 
 
2. Maintenance Areas 
 

The maintenance areas will contain the facilities, tools, and equipment necessary to 
maintain the common properties and amenities within the CSP Development PDD. 
These facilities may be congregated on a central site or located in separate convenient 
sites for different services such as general community maintenance, recreation area  
maintenance or individual property regime maintenance. 

 
Permitted uses include: 

 
a. Storage of vehicles and parts, boats, recreational vehicles. tools, supplies, and 

resident storage. 
b. Offices associated with community and maintenance. 

 
3. Open Space 
 

Total open space for the Property shall be calculated for the boundary of the Property 
and not on a site-specific basis for each parcel or phase of the Property, individual 
development. or  project. The  Property shall  provide  at  least  10% open space.  Open  
space shall be calculated based upon the total gross acreage. Open space shall consist 
of the following: 

 
a. Landscape surface areas (areas not covered by buildings, parking. 

impervious surface) including manicured village greens or equivalent 
b. Lagoons, ponds, impoundments, and lakes (detention, retention, or 

recreational) 
c. Freshwater wetlands 
d. Wetland buffers 
e. Forest, wildlife preserves / corridors, conservation areas and greenbelts 
f. Community Park, amenity areas and community garden plots 
g. Recreation areas including swimming pools, tennis courts, playgrounds , 

multi-purpose fields, lawn games, gardens, etc. 
h. Pedestrian / bicycle trails /paths /nature trails 
i. Perimeter buffers    

 
4. Setbacks, Lot Sizes and Buffers 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 11  
 

 
a. There shall be no minimum setbacks applied to the CSP Development PDD 

unless noted otherwise in this PDD document. Setbacks and buffers shall 
meet the minimum requirements established herein, and except as set forth 
in this PDD Standards, shall apply to the perimeter of the PDD only 
provided, however, that any required wetlands buffers shall apply 
according to law throughout the Property. 
 

b. Setbacks /buffer areas shall be provided for jurisdictional wetlands within 
the PDD. Setbacks / buffers for wetlands shall be 25 feet . 

 
c. Perimeter buffer standards shall include: 

 
(i) At adjacent property boundaries to the east and to the north of the 

PDD (adjacent properties to east and north are jurisdictional 
wetlands) buffers shall be 20 feet at a minimum. See PDD 
Conceptual Master Plan for proposed perimeter buffers. A 50-foot 
buffer shall be provided along the property’s boundary with the GC 
zoned property to its west. Underground utilities and stormwater 
management facilities are allowed in the perimeter buffer area. 

 
(ii) At all buffers of the PDD, disturbances  related  to  grading activities 

are allowed provided that the following preservation practices are 
met: 

 
(A) Within 50-foot U.S. 278 highway buffer a minimum of  7 

broadleaf overstory trees, 8 understory trees, and 35 shrubs 
shall be preserved or re-planted per 100 linear feet of U.S 278 
frontage.  
 

(iii) Highway 278 Corridor Overlay District (HCOD) standards shall be 
adhered to provided that signage shall be governed by the 
provisions established by the future Master Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 12  
 

 
d. Lot Areas and Setbacks 

 
(i) Single Family For Rent Homes and Single Family For Sale homes 

will have setback and yard requirements as set forth in the below 
TABLE 1: 

  

CSP PDD DEVELOPMENT TABLE 1 
MEASUREMENTS FOR UNSUBDIVIDED AND SUBDIVIDED RESIDENTIAL  

Single Family  Schedule of Lot Area, Yard, and Setbacks 
Minimum Lot Per Unit  

  SF Patio4 Duplex5 Townhome6 
Non-
Resi7 

Unsubdivided Residential (For Rent Only)1 NA NA NA NA NA 
Subdivided Residential (For Sale and/or 
For Rent) 1700 NA NA 1000 NA 
            
Minimum Yard and Building Setback (feet) 
Single Family & Non-Residential Uses 

  SF Patio4 Duplex5 Townhome6 
Non-
Resi7 

Unsubdivided Residential Min lot width 2 NA NA NA NA NA 
Subdivided Residential Min lot width  30 NA NA 18 NA 
              
Front Yard  (Measured from Edge of Road R/W) 

Major Street         (Multi-Lane) 
NA NA NA NA   

 

Major Street         (Multi-Lane) 
NA NA NA NA   

 

 
Minor Street 10 NA NA 10 NA  

Side Yard3            

Residential  5 NA NA 5    

Non-Residential        NA  

Rear Yard3            

Residential  10 NA NA 5    

Non-Residential         N/A  

Notes:       
1. "For Rent" homes can be situated on an unsubdivided single parcel and not on  
individual subdivided lots. Therefore, there are no legal fee simple lots with defined  
lot areas.        
2. Because the "For Rent" homes can be situated on a unsubdivided single parcel  



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 13  
 

and not on individual subdivided fee simple lots, there are no defined lot dimensions.  
3. For unsubdivided rental residential units, yard dimensions provided are minimum   
side yard and back yard depths. In all cases, there shall be 10' minimum clear between structures. 
4. Patio homes are not an included product.      
5. Duplexes are not an included product.      
6. Townhomes are two or more attached units with 5'  side yards at each end   
 unit with 10' clear between adjacent structures.     
7. Non-Resi is a non-residential/commercial use exclusive of community amenity improvements 
and leasing and sales offices. Non-Resi uses are not an included product.   
8. Setbacks are measured to the front, side or rear face of the principal structure and excludes 
measurements to such things as HVAC equipment, stoops, ground level or upper-level decks, 
 or similar ancillary structures.      

   9. Minimum easement width for storm drain pipe of 15” to 24” in size shall not be less than 10 feet.  
 
 
5. Wetlands 
 

This designation allows the following uses within wetlands. Freshwater wetlands on the 
property shall be those areas over which the applicable governmental agencies claim 
jurisdiction for freshwater  wetlands. Unless restricted via a future Memorandum of 
Understanding (MPA) to the contrary, the following are permitted uses: 

 
a. Open space and buffers 
b. Conservation areas 
c. Activities in all wetland areas as permitted by the U.S. Army Corps of 

Engineers and/or the South Carolina Department of Health and 
Environmental Control, Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource 
Management  as applicable 

d. Disposal of reclaimed water as permitted by SCDHEC. 
e. Boardwalks, trails, bridges, and other permitted structures. 
f. Game Management 

 
6. Utilities 
 

This designation allows for utility service to serve the planning areas of the CSP 
Development PDD. The following land uses shall be allowed only after written approval 
from the Applicant I Owner and its consultants for location and design. Screening, 
buffering, and other aesthetic matters must meet or exceed the Jaser County Land 
Development Regulations and may be approved at the time of site development 
application. 

 
a. Potable water supply and distribution 
b. Wastewater collection, treatment, and disposal 
c. Stormwater collection, treatment and detention 
d. Irrigation 
e. Communication towers 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 14  
 

f. Satellite antennas 
g. Cable television facilities 
h. Telephone facilities 
i. Power transmission and distribution 
j. Fiber optic lines 
k. Other utility services i.e., Internet access and other telecommunication 
 uses 

 
Certain community-wide infrastructure is required for the development of any large, 
master-planned community.  This infrastructure  may include, but is not limited to the 
following: 
 

1. Arterial streets and primary access roads 
2. Water supply 
3. Wastewater Treatment and Effluent Disposal 
4. Power substations 
5. Central telephone facilities/ Cell phone towers 
6. Stormwater Management Lagoons 
7. Natural Gas Supply 
8. Sewer Pump Station 

 
Infrastructure serving the community (on-site and off-site) will be approved as part of the 
development plan approval process.  

 
7. Design Standards 

 
Design Standards shall be submitted at the Master  Plan stage and may have standards 
deviating from the Jasper County Ordinances or this PDD, provided that health, safety, 
ingress/egress, and fire protection are addressed to the satisfaction of the County. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT B
CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN

Single Family Residential Community

pzado
Rectangle



1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
) 

COUNTY OF JASPER ) CSP DEVELOPMENT TRACT 

This Development Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered this day of 

, 2022 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Conduit Street Partners, LLC (a 

Maryland Limited Liability Company) ("Owner") and the governmental authority of the Jasper 

County, South Carolina ("County"). 

WHEREAS, the legislature of the State of South  Carolina has enacted the "South 

Carolina Local Government Development Agreement Act (the "Act") as set forth in Sections 6- 

31-10 through 6-31-160 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976), as amended; and, 

WHEREAS, the Act recognizes that the lack of certainty in the approval of 

development can result in a waste of economic and land resources, can discourage sound 

capital improvement planning and financing, can cause the cost of housing and development to 

escalate, and can discourage commitment to comprehensive planning." [Section 6-31-10 (B)(1)]; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the Act also states: "Development agreements will encourage the vesting of 

property rights by protecting such rights from the effect of subsequently enacted local legislation 

or from the effects of changing policies and procedures of local government agencies which 

may conflict with any term or provision of the Development Agreement or in any way hinder, 

restrict, or prevent the development of the project. Development Agreements will provide a 

reasonable certainty as to the lawful  requirements that must be met in protecting vested property 

rights, while maintaining the authority and duty of government to enforce laws and regulations 

which promote the public safety, health, and general welfare of the citizens of our State." 

[Section 6-31-10 (B)(6)]; and, 

EXHIBIT B-1



2  

 

 
WHEREAS, the Act further authorizes local governments, including County governments, 

to enter Development Agreements with owners to accomplish these and other goals as set forth 

in Section 6-31-10 of the Act; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Owner is the contract purchaser of approximately 38.84 acres, generally to 

be known as CSP Development, and being more particularly described in Exhibit A and proposes 

to develop, or cause to be developed, therein Residential uses, to include the potential of any 

alternative allowed uses, including accessory and complimentary uses as described in the 

Planned Development District Standards adopted contemporaneously herewith by separate 

County Ordinance No. O-2022-16;  and, 

 

WHEREAS, the County seeks to protect and preserve the natural environment and 

to secure for its citizens quality, well planned and designed development and a stable and viable 

tax base; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the County finds that the program of development proposed by Owner for 

this Property is consistent with the County’s comprehensive land use plan; and will further the 

health, safety, welfare and economic well-being of the County and its residents; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the program for development of the Property presents an opportunity for 

the County to secure quality planning and growth to protect the environment and strengthen 

and revitalized the tax base; and, 

 

WHEREAS, this Development Agreement is being made and entered between Owner 

and the County, under the terms of the Act, for the purpose of providing assurances to Owner that 

it may proceed with its development plan under  the terms hereof, as hereinafter  defined, 

consistent with Jasper County Zoning Ordinance and the Planned Development District Standards 

for the CSP Development (as herein defined) without encountering future changes in law which 

would affect the ability to develop under the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance and the Planned 

Development District Standards for the CSP Development Tract,  and for the purpose of providing 

important protection to the natural environment and long term financial stability and a viable tax 

base to the County, and for the purpose of providing certain funding and funding sources to 

assist the County in meeting the service and infrastructure needs associated with the 



3  

development authorized hereunder; 

 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions set forth herein, and 

other good and valuable consideration, including the potential economic benefits to both the 

County and Owner by entering into this Agreement, and to encourage well planned development 

by Owner, the receipt and sufficiency of such consideration being hereby acknowledged, the 

County and Owner hereby agree as follows: 

 

I. INCORPORATION. 

The above recitals are hereby incorporated into this Agreement, together with the 

South Carolina General Assembly findings as set forth in Section 6-31-10(B) of the Act. 

 

II. DEFINITIONS. 

As used herein, the following terms mean: 
 

 
"Act" means the South Carolina Local Government Development Agreement Act, as 

codified in Sections 6-31-10 through 6-31-160 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina (1976), as 

amended; incorporated herein by reference. 

 

“Adjustment Factor” shall mean the greater of three percent 3% per annum or the annual 

inflation factor supplied to local governments by the SC Department of Revenue and Fiscal Affairs 

for use by local governments in determining allowable millage increases, such adjustment to be 

applied on July 1st of each year with the first adjustment being applied July 1, 2023. 

 
 

 

“Agreement” shall mean this Development Agreement as amended by the County 

and Developer in writing from time to time. 

 
 

“Association” shall mean one (1) or more property owners’ associations established to 

maintain portions of the Property, if such is ever formulated, which is not expected for that 

portion(s) of the Property that is developed as rental units which are under single ownership, as 

contemplated under the PDD. 

 



4  

“BJWSA” shall mean the Beaufort/Jasper Water and Sewer Authority, its successors or 

assigns. 

“Civic Fund” shall mean the segregated interest bearing Escrow Account into which all 

Development Fees for Police, EMS and Fire are contributed pursuant to Section XI herein. 

 

“Conceptual Master Plan” shall mean the Conceptual Master Plan adopted as part of the 

Planned Development District Standards (“CSP PDD Standards”) by the County,.  

 

“CSP PDD” means the Planned Development District for the CSP Development approved 

by the County by Ordinance Number 0-2022-16, concurrently with its approval of this Agreement 

 

“CSP PDD Standards” means the development standards applicable to the CSP PDD, 

including the Conceptual Master Plan, as adopted by the County in connection with its approval of 

the CSP PDD, attached hereto or incorporated by reference as  Exhibit B. 

 

“Current Legal Owner” means Paul H. Anderson, Emily A Tillman, and John F. Anderson, 

who have contracted with Conduit Street Partners, LLC to sell the Property. 

 
“County” shall mean Jasper County, South Carolina. 

 
“DHEC” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control 

 
 

“Developer” means the Owner, along with any and all successors in title, assigns or 

lessees of the Owner who are transferred in writing from the Owner all or a portion of the 

Development Rights under this Agreement and undertake Development of any portion of the 

Property, as applicable in the context where such term is used. 

 

"Development" means the development of portions of the Property as contemplated in 

the Zoning Regulations. 

 

“Development Fees” or “Developer Fees” shall have the meaning set forth in 
Paragraph XI. 
 

 
"Development Rights" means Development undertaken by the Owner or Developers in 

accordance with the Zoning Regulations and this Development Agreement 

 



5  

“OCRM” means the South Carolina Office of Ocean and Coastal  Resource Management 

 

"Owner" means Conduit Street Partners, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, its 

corporate successors and any assignee, whereby such interest is assigned in writing to it by 

Owner. Owner has a present equitable interest in the Property by virtue of a contract to purchase 

with Current Legal Owner. 

 

“Park Fund” shall mean the segregated interest bearing Escrow Account into which all 

Development Fees for Parks are contributed pursuant to Section XI herein.  

 

 “CSP Development”, “CSP Tract” or “Property” means that certain tract of land 

described on Exhibit A, as may be amended with the Agreement of the County and Owner. 

 

 
“Project” means the Development that will occur within and upon the CSP Tract. 

 

“Roadway Fund” shall mean the segregated interest bearing account into which all 

Development Fees for Roads are contributed until utilized for public roadway improvements 

pursuant to Section XI herein. 

 

"Term" means the duration of this agreement as set forth in Section III hereof. 

 

“Zoning Ordinance” means the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance adopted November 

13, 2007, as amended through the Effective Date hereof, and attached hereto as Exhibit C and 

incorporated herein by reference. 

 

"Zoning Regulations" means the CSP PDD establishing a Planned Development District 

for the Property, and all the attachments thereto, including but not being limited to the PDD 

Conceptual Master Plan, all narratives, applications, and site development standards thereof (a 

copy of all of which is attached hereto marked Exhibit B and/or incorporated herein by reference), 

all as same may be hereafter amended by mutual agreement of the County and the Owner, this 

Development Agreement, and the Jasper County Development Ordinance(s) being codified with 

Municode© and current on Municode© through Supplement No. 3 as of June 21, 2021 as 

amended through the Effective Date of this Agreement, except as the provisions thereof may be 



6  

clarified or modified by the terms of the CSP PDD and this Agreement, and all other applicable 

statutes, ordinances and regulations governing uses and development of the Property. 

 

III. TERM. 

 
The term of this Agreement commenced on the date this Agreement was executed by the 

County and Owner and terminates Five (5) years thereafter (“Termination Date”). This is the 

maximum initial term permitted by law for the Property. Nothing in this Agreement shall be 

interpreted to preclude the Parties from extending the Termination Date by mutual agreement or 

from entering into subsequent development agreements.   

 

IV. DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY. 

 

The Property shall be developed in accordance with the Zoning Regulations and 

this Agreement. All costs charged by or to the County for reviews required by the Jasper County 

Zoning and Development Ordinance(s) shall be paid by the Owner or Developer or other party 

applying for such review as generally charged throughout the County for plan review. The County 

shall, throughout the Term, maintain or cause to be maintained,  a  procedure  for  the  processing  

of  reviews  as  contemplated  by  the  Zoning Regulations and this Agreement. 

 

V. CHANGES TO ZONING REGULATIONS. 
 

 

The Zoning Regulations relating to the Property subject to this Agreement shall 

not be amended or modified during the Term, without the express written consent of the Owner 

except in accordance with the procedures and provisions of Section 6-31-80(B) of the Act, 

which Owner shall have the right to challenge. Owner does, for itself and its successors and 

assigns, including Developers and notwithstanding the Zoning Regulations, agrees to be bound 

by the following: 

 

1. The Owner shall be required to notify the County, in writing, as and 

when Development Rights are transferred to any other party. Such information shall include 

the identity and address of the acquiring party, a proper contact person, the location and number 

of acres of the Property transferred, and the number of residential units and/or commercial 

acreage and square footage of structure, as applicable, subject to the transfer. Developers 



7  

transferring Development Rights to any other party shall be subject to this requirement of 

notification, and any entity acquiring Development Rights hereunder shall be required to file 

with the County an acknowledgment of this Agreement and a commitment to be bound by it. 

 

2. The Owners and Developers, and their respective heirs, successors and 

assigns agree that all Development, with the exception of irrigation, incidental maintenance 

facilities, and similar amenities which exist from time to time, and facilities existing at the date of 

this Agreement will be served by potable water and public sewer prior to occupancy, except as 

otherwise provided herein for temporary use, temporary being defined as one year or less. 

Septic tanks and/or wells may be allowed with the permission of BJWSA where there is a 

specific finding that such use for specific portions of the Property will comply with the overall 

environmental standards. 

 
 
 

VI. DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE. 
 

The Property shall be developed in accordance with the development schedule, 

attached as Exhibit D, or as may be amended by Owner or Developer(s) in the future to reflect 

actual market absorption. Pursuant to the Act, the failure of the Owner and any Developer to 

meet the initial development schedule shall not, in and of itself, constitute a material breach of 

this Agreement. In such event, the failure to meet the development schedule shall be judged by 

the totality of circumstances, including but not limited to the Owners and Developer(s) good faith 

efforts to attain compliance with the development schedule. These schedules are planning and 

forecasting tools only and shall not be interpreted as mandating the development pace initially 

forecast or preventing a faster pace if market conditions support a faster pace. The fact that 

actual development may take place at a different pace, based on future market forces, is 

expected and shall not be considered a default hereunder. Development activity may occur 

faster or slower than the forecast schedule, as a matter of right, depending upon market 

conditions. Furthermore, periodic adjustments to the development  schedule which may be 

submitted unilaterally by Owner / Developers in the future, shall not be considered a material 

amendment or breach of the Agreement. 

 

VII. DENSITY.  

The criteria as set forth in Section II of the CSP PDD Standards shall apply with respect 

to lot size, frontage, setbacks, impervious surface and height requirements, respectively, within the 



8  

Project. Residential density and types on the Property shall be the densities and types as set forth 

in the CSP Planned Unit Development approval, Conceptual Master Plan, and as set forth 

below: 

1. Up to a maximum of 275 residential dwelling units may be constructed. The CSP 

PDD and the CSP Conceptual Master Plan depict the expected mix and general location of allowed 

residential units, however, so long as the total residential unit count does not exceed 275 units 

and the general concept of development as shown on the Conceptual Master Plan is followed, the 

Owner shall be allowed to alter location and product mix among all allowed uses under the PDD 

at the time of Master Plan submittal when more specific design are available, based upon ongoing 

project planning and market conditions.  

2. Any such changes to exact location or product mix shall not be considered a 

material amendment hereto, or an amendment to the attached PDD or the Conceptual Master 

Plan, so long as the total allowed density is not exceeded and the use remains residential.  Such 

minor changes will be approved at the staff review level. 

 
 

VIII. RESTRICTED ACCESS 
 

The Owner and/or each Developer shall have the right (but not the obligation) to 

create restricted access communities within the Property as long as such limited access does 

not adversely affect in any material respect adjacent traffic patterns located on public rights-of-

way. 

 

IX. EFFECT OF FUTURE LAWS. 
 

 

Owner and Developers shall have vested rights to undertake Development of any 

or all of the Property in accordance with the Zoning Regulations, as defined herein and modified 

hereby, and as may be modified in the future pursuant to the terms of this Agreement for the 

entirety of the Term. Future enactments of, or changes or amendments to the County ordinances, 

including zoning or development standards ordinances, which conflict with the Zoning 

Regulations shall not apply to the Property unless the procedures and provisions of §6-31-80 

(B) of the Act are followed, which Owner shall have the right to challenge. Notwithstanding the 

above, the Property will be subject to then current fire safety standards and state and/or 

federal environmental guidelines standards of general application. 

 



9  

The parties specifically acknowledge that this Agreement shall not prohibit the 

application of any present or future building, housing, electrical, plumbing, gas or other standard 

codes, or any ad valorem tax of general application throughout the County, found by the 

County Council to be necessary to protect the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the 

County. 

 

 
X. INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES 

 

 

The County and Owner recognize that the majority of the direct costs associated 

with the Development of the Property will be borne by the Owner and Developers, and many 

other necessary services will be provided by other governmental or quasi-governmental entities, 

and not by the County. For clarification, the parties make specific note of and acknowledge 

the following: 

 

 
A. Private Roads. All roads within the Property shall be constructed by the 

Owner, Developer or other parties and maintained by such party(ies) and/or Association(s) or 

dedicated for maintenance to other appropriate entities. The County will not be responsible for 

the construction or maintenance of any private roads within the Property. The CSP 

Development project shall have private roads designed to the standards reasonably acceptable 

to the County Engineer. Road construction within SCDOT right of ways will be in accordance 

with SCDOT standards. Roadway section details shall be submitted for review at the time of 

development permit applications, as provided in the PDD. 

 

B. Public Roads. All public roads outside the Property that serve the Property 

are under the jurisdiction of the State of South Carolina or other governmental entities regarding 

access, construction, improvements and maintenance. Owner acknowledges that it must comply 

with all applicable state statues and rules and regulations of the South Carolina Department of 

Transportation (“SCDOT”) or its successor regarding access and use of such public roads. 

Future public roads may serve the Property. The County shall not be responsible for construction, 

improvements or maintenance of the public roads which now or hereafter serve the Property, 

unless it otherwise agrees in the future. Owner has engaged Bihl Engineering, LLC, of Charleston, 

SC, to prepare a traffic impact analysis which has been submitted to the SCDOT for review and 

comment. Subject to the approval of SDOT and any other the applicable jurisdictional authorities, 

the Property is proposed to be served by direct access to the existing Brickyard Road and U.S. 



10  

Highway 278. Developer shall be responsible for construction of property access improvements 

as recommended by SCDOT after review of the SCDOT required traffic study. Upon completion 

of construction of any such improvements within the SCDOT right of way, and acceptance by 

SCDOT, the SCDOT shall then maintain all roadway improvements within the public road right of 

way. 

 

C. Potable Water. Potable water will be supplied to the Property by BJWSA 

or some other legally constituted public or private provider allowed to operate in the County. 

The County shall not be responsible for any construction, treatment, maintenance or costs 

associated with water service to the Property unless the County elects to provide such 

services with the agreement of the applicable utility authority then providing such service to the 

Property. Owner will construct or cause to be constructed all related infrastructure 

improvements within the Property, which will be maintained by it or the service provider as 

provided in any utility agreement between Owner and the service provider. 

 

D. Sewage Treatment and Disposal. Sewage treatment and disposal will 

be provided by BJWSA or some other legally constituted public or private provider allowed to 

operate in the County. The County will not be responsible for any treatment, maintenance or 

costs associated with sewage treatment within the Property, unless the County elects to 

provide such service with the agreement of the applicable utility authority then providing such 

service to the Property. Nothing herein shall be construed as precluding the County from 

providing  sewer services to its residents in accordance with applicable provisions of law. Owner 

will construct or cause to be constructed all related infrastructure improvements within the 

Property, which will be maintained by it or the provider as provided in any utility agreement 

between Owner and the service provider. 

 

E. Use of Effluent. Owner agrees that treated effluent will be disposed of 

only in such manner as may be approved by DHEC and the BJWSA. 

 

F. Police Services. County shall provide police protection services to the 

Property on the same basis as is provided to other similarly situated residents and businesses 

in the County. Owner acknowledges the jurisdiction the Sheriff of Jasper County on the Property 

and shall not interfere or in any way hinder public safety activities on the Property regardless of 

whether such may be a restricted access community. Should Owner desire an increased level of 

service above the normal County level of police service, Owner shall be responsible for either 



11  

providing such services through the use of private security forces or shall pay the County’s direct 

and indirect costs for providing such increased level of service. 

 

G. Fire Services. County shall provide fire protection services to the Property 

on the same basis as is provided to other similarly situated residents and businesses in the County. 

Owner acknowledges the jurisdiction of the County’s fire department on the Property and shall 

not interfere or in any way hinder public safety activities on the Property regardless of whether 

such may be a restricted access community. 

 
H. Sanitation Services. County will not provide sanitation services to any 

properties with the Property.  Should Owner desire such services, the Owner shall provide these 

directly to the Property by a private licensed private contractor. 

I. Recreation Services. County shall provide recreation services to the 

Property on the same basis as it provides to other similarly situated residents and businesses in 

the County. 

 

J. Library Services. Such services shall be provided to residents on the 

same basis as to all other citizens of the County. 

 

K. Emergency Medical Services (EMS). Such services shall be provided to 

residents of the Property on the same basis as to all other citizens of the County. 

 

L. Drainage System. All stormwater runoff, treatment and drainage system 

improvements within the Property will be designed in accordance with the Zoning Regulations 

and Best Management Practices then current. All stormwater runoff, treatment and drainage 

system improvements for the Property shall be constructed by Owner or the Association, as 

applicable. The County will not be responsible for any construction or maintenance cost associated 

with the stormwater runoff, treatment and drainage system within the Property. 

 
M.   Storm Water Quality. Protection of the quality in nearby waters and 

wetlands is a primary goal of the County. The Owners shall be required to abide by all 

provisions of federal, state and local laws and regulations, including those established by the 

Department of Health and Environmental Control, the Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource 

Management, and their successors for the handling of storm water. In addition to the water 

quality safeguards as committed to by Owner above, notwithstanding Section IX hereof, Owner 



12  

and any developer shall adhere to any and all future ordinances or regulations of the County (or 

portions thereof) governing detention, filtration, and treatment of storm water provided those 

ordinances and regulations apply county wide, and are consistent with sound engineering 

practices.  Further provisions regarding Storm Water are included within the PDD for this Project. 

 

 
XI. DEVELOPMENT FEES 

 
1. To assist the County in meeting expenses resulting from ongoing 

development, Owner shall pay development fees for Road, Civic and Parks (“Development Fees”) 

as follows: 

2.  

 

 
DEVELOPMENT FEES 

 
AMOUNT 

 
Residential Dwelling Units 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TOTAL FEE PER 
RESIDENTIAL DWELLING 
UNIT 
 

 

$1,745 Net Roads Fee. See Section 3. 
below.  
 

$1,572.000 – Civic (Police, EMS and 
Fire) 

 

$1,683.00 – Park 

 

$5,000.00 

 

3. Net Roads Fee.  The Net Roads Fee is calculated as the proposed Jasper 

County gross Road Fee of $5,000 per unit, less an estimated per unit “public road improvement 

credit” in the amount of $3,755.  The “road improvement credit” represents a $1,000,000 

estimate of costs of all external, off-site road improvements that will be borne by Owner at its 

sole cost and expense in connection with the development of the project, including but not 

necessarily limited to the construction of Highway 278 and Brickyard Road external roadway 

improvements, divided by the estimated number of residential units that will be constructed 

within the CSP PDD (265 units).  The Net Road Fee is not intended to compensate the County 

for the construction of any private road improvements within the CSP PDD, since all private 

roads within the CSP PDD are to be constructed and maintained by Owner at Owner’s sole cost 

and expense.  Accordingly, no Development Fees for on-site, internal roads shall be collected.  



13  

 
 

 

4. All Development Fees f o r  bu i ld ing  perm i t s  issued to  Owner  

shall be collected at the time of issuance of an occupancy  permit instead of at issuance of the 

building permit.  All Development Fees shall be placed in separate interest bearing accounts 

established for Roads, Civic and Parks. The County may expend these funds for any purposes 

designed to provide or enhance such services.    

 
5. Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary contained within this 

Agreement, it is acknowledged Jasper County is in the process of considering the adoption of 

Impact Fees as allowed by §6-1-910, et. seq. of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976, as 

amended). The Property shall be exempt from any requirement to pay County Impact Fees under 

any ordinance subsequently passed and enacted  by the County, for the first five (5) years of the 

Term of this Agreement as it may be extended by mutual agreement between the Owner and 

County. In the event Impact Fees are adopted by the County, the Property shall be subject to 

such fees provided they are applied uniformly to similar properties as this Property, and provided 

further, that any Developer Fees paid by the Developer under Article XI (1), (2) and (3) shall be 

credited against the Impact Fees to the extent the Development Fees are for items included in 

the capital program incorporated in the formulation of the Impact Fees, or for the traffic 

improvements on Highway 278 and Brickyard Road as recommended by the SCDOT as itemized 

above.. It is further provided Owner and/or Developers shall be subject to the payment of any 

and all present or future permitting fees enacted by the County that are of County wide application 

and that relate to processing applications, development permits, building permits, review of plans, 

or inspection (no other capital improvement related impact, development or other extractions) 

 

6. Except as set forth in this Agreement, nothing herein shall be construed as 

relieving the Owner, its successors and assigns, from payment of any such fees or charges as may 

be assessed by entities other than the County, provided however, if an entity other than the County 

is permitted by the County to impose fees or obligations similar in nature to those contemplated by 

this Agreement, the Owner shall be entitled to  either an offset against the Development Fees of 

this Agreement the in the entire amount of such fees or obligations which are collected or an entire 

credit against the other fees allowed to be collected.  It is the intent of the parties that the fees and 

obligations contemplated by this Agreement are the only obligations which will be imposed upon 

the Property and that County shall not permit any other governmental authority to impose fees or 

obligations of a similar nature to that which are contemplated by this Agreement without providing 



14  

for a credit against the other fees for the fees due under this Agreement; provided, however, the 

provisions of this paragraph shall not preclude the County or another governmental authority from 

imposing a fee of a nature which is  for services or improvements other than those contemplated 

under this Agreement - (i.e., roads, fire/public safety), which are imposed on a consistent basis 

throughout the area regulated by such governmental authority imposing such obligations. The 

County or other governing body shall not be precluded by this Agreement from charging fees for 

delivery of services to citizens or residents (i.e., an EMS response fee or the like), nor from charging 

fees statutorily authorized in the future (i.e, a real estate transfer fee or the like) which are not 

collected as a prerequisite to approval of a plat, plan or construction. 

 
7.  The fees set forth above in Article XI are vested for the entire Property 

during the Term of this Agreement and shall not be increased. No other Development Fee shall be 

imposed in connection with the Property, except as may be allowed pursuant to Article X and fees 

set out in generally applicable ordinances such as building permitting fees and inspection fees. 

The Civic, Park and Road Development Fees are subject to an annual inflation factor equal to 

inflation factor as provided by the State of South Carolina to each local government for the 

calculation of tax millage increases.  

 
8. Any Development Fees paid and/or credits for Development Fees with 

respect to property conveyed, services performed and/or money paid as provided in this 

Agreement may be assigned by the Owner and/or Developer owning such credits and all such 

credits, shall remain valid until utilized.  The County shall recognize all such written assignments 

of such rights and shall credit same against any Development Fees which are owned pursuant to 

this Agreement. 

 

9. Development Fees for on-site, internal roads shall not be collected. All internal 

roads shall be constructed and maintained by Owner at Owner’s sole cost and expense. 

 
10. All Net Road Fees shall be utilized in the discretion of the County, for traffic 

and highway improvements as contained in the capital improvement program to be funded by the 

proposed County impact fees, or other traffic and highway improvements to Highway 278 or Argent 

Boulevard. 

 
11. Owner agrees to pay the reasonable costs and expenses of the County’s 

consultants and professionals incurred in negotiating, processing and evaluating this Agreement 

and the accompanying PDD.  County will provide sufficient documentation of these charges. Owner 



15  

shall pay such fees within 60 days of the delivery of the invoice(s). 

 
XII. PERMITTING PROCEDURES: 

 

 

1. The County agrees to allow the Developer the ability to permit and 

construct model homes without utilities (i.e., “dry models”) and to relocate the models as necessary 

within the CSP Tract. 

 
2. The County agrees that the Owner and/or any Developer is not required 

to phase development but shall have the right to do so. 

 
3. The County agrees to review all land use changes, land development 

applications, and plats in an expeditious manner in accordance with County regulations as 

modified by the CSP PDD Standards for this Project. Plans will be processed in accordance 

with t h e  then current County PDD Plan and development plan procedural requirements. 

Developer may submit these items for concurrent review with the County and other governmental 

authorities. County may give final approval to any submission but will not grant authorization 

to record plats or begin development construction activities until all permitting agencies have 

completed their reviews. 

 

4. Signage for the Project is governed by the provisions of the PDD for this 

Project. 

5. The County acknowledges that the Developer has the initial right of 

architectural review regarding improvements and building upon the property subject to normal 

review by the County Planning Commission. Developer shall be responsible for assuring such 

modifications are in compliance the Zoning Regulations. 

 
6. The County agrees to allow plat recording with a financial security 

instrument acceptable to the County prior to completion of infrastructure development and to 

issue building permits prior to completion of such bonded infrastructure in accordance with the 

Zoning Regulations as modified by the PDD Standards for this Property. However, rental or sale  

and occupancy of completed residential dwellings shall not be allowed until 

infrastructure for a particular phase of the Project is completed and public utilities are 

accepted for service by the appropriate agency. 

 
7. The County agrees the Property shall be governed by County Zoning 



16  

Regulations as in effect at the time of execution of this Agreement.  If future codes are more 

desirable to Property, then Developer may request the County to have such regulations become 

applicable to any portion of the Project that Owner designates. 

 
8. The County agrees that the Property is approved and fully vested for 

intensity, density, development fees, uses and height, and shall not have any obligations for on 

or off-site transportation or other facilities or improvements other than as provided in this 

Agreement, but must adhere to the then current requirements of the CSP PDD Standards, 

including, but not limited to the Conceptual Master Plan, and subdivision plat and development 

plan procedural guidelines. The County may not impose additional development obligations or 

regulations in connection with the ownership or development of the Property, except in 

accordance with the procedures and provisions of § 6-31-80 (B) of the Act, which the Owner shall 

have the right to challenge. 

 
9. Roadways (public or private) may utilize swale drainage systems and are 

not required to have raised curb and gutter systems, provided that pedestrian and non-vehicular 

pathways or sidewalks are provided in residential areas and to provide interconnectivity 

between interior subdivisions, commercial or institutional areas and public gathering areas. 

Public Road Improvements are subject to the drainage requirements of the public agency having 

jurisdiction and/or ownership . Roadway cross sections utilizing swale drainage will be designed, 

constructed and maintained to meet BMP standards (imposed by regulatory agencies) for 

stormwater quality. Roadway cross sections will be reviewed at time of proposed construction of 

such Roadway based upon engineering and planning standards consistent with the CSP PDD 

Standards prepared by Developer, subject to the approval of the County Planning Administrator. 

 

10. All plan review fees shall be consistent with the fees charged generally in 

the County. 

 
XIII. DEVELOPER ENTITLEMENTS 

 County acknowledges that Developer is vested with the following items: 
 

1. The County will, to the extent available, promote public transportation 

which exists within the County to service the Property. 

2. Intentionally Deleted 

 
3. All drainage systems constructed within the CSP Development shall be 



17  

owned and maintained by the Owner, its assigns, or one (1) or more Association(s) which may 

be established for various portions of the Property and the County shall have no responsibility for 

the construction, operation or maintenance of such systems. Such systems shall be constructed 

in compliance with any applicable federal, state or local requirements, utilizing the then current 

Best Management Practices requirements. 

 

4. On-site burning will be permitted within the Property upon obtaining any 

applicable federal state or local permits. 

 

5. The County agrees to cooperate with the Owner and each Developer with 

county, state and federal roadway permitting in connection with the Development of portions of 

the Property. 

 

6. County services, including, but not limited to, police, fire, sanitation, 

recreational parks and other governmental services shall be supplied to the Property in the 

same manner and to the same extent as provided to other properties within the County, subject 

to the limitations (if any) of Section X above. Subject to the limitations of Section X above (if any), 

should the Owner require enhanced services beyond that which is routinely provided within the 

County, then the County agrees that upon the written request of Owner, it shall negotiate in good 

faith with the Owner to provide such enhanced services to the Property. Any enhanced services 

shall be at the sole cost, if any, of the Owner. 

 

XIV. COMPLIANCE REVIEWS. 
 

 

As long as Owner owns any of the Property, Owner or its designee, shall meet 

with the County, or its designee, at least once, per year, during the Term to review Development 

completed by Owner in the prior year and the Development anticipated to be commenced or 

completed by Owner in the ensuing year. The Owner, or its designee, shall provide such 

information as may reasonably be requested, to include but not be limited to, acreage of the 

Property sold in the prior year, acreage of the Property under contract, the number of certificates 

of occupancy issued in the prior year, and the number anticipated to be issued in the ensuing 

year, and Development Rights transferred in the prior year, and anticipated to be transferred 

in the ensuing year. The Owner, or its designee, shall be required to compile this information 

within a reasonable time after written request by the County.  

 



18  

XV. DEFAULTS. 
 

 

The failure of the Owner, Developer or the County to comply with the terms of this 

Agreement not cured within thirty (30) days after written notice from the non-defaulting party to the 

defaulting party (as such time period may be extended with regard to non-monetary breaches for 

a reasonable period of time based on the circumstances, provided such defaulting party 

commences to cure such breach within such period and is proceeding diligently and expeditiously 

to complete such cure) shall constitute a default, entitling the non-defaulting party to pursue such 

remedies that are deemed appropriate, including specific performance; provided however no 

termination of this Agreement may be declared by the County absent its according the Owner and 

any relevant Developer the notice, hearing and opportunity to cure in accordance with the Act; and 

provided any such termination shall be limited to the portion of the Property in default, and provided 

further that nothing herein shall be deemed or construed to preclude the County or its designee 

from issuing stop work orders or voiding permits issued for Development when such Development 

contravenes the provisions of the Zoning Regulations or this Agreement.  

 

Each Party recognizes that the other Party may suffer irreparable harm from a 

material breach of this Agreement and that no adequate remedy at law may exist to enforce this 

Agreement. Consequently, the Parties agree that any non-breaching Party who seeks enforcement 

of the Agreement is entitled to seek the equitable remedies of injunction and specific performance. 

However, if there is a dispute between the County and Owner, or its successor or assign, 

concerning the terms, meaning, interpretation, rights or obligations under this Agreement (including 

any determination of material breach under the Act), the Parties agree to submit such dispute to 

prompt mediation before invoking legal proceedings. This pre-litigation mediation, conducted 

pursuant to South Carolina Rules for Alternative Dispute Resolution with subsequent judicial action 

lying in the Court of Common Pleas for Jasper County, South Carolina, shall be initiated by one 

Party notifying the other Party or Parties in writing of the dispute together with a request for 

mediation as described herein.  The Parties agree that disputes under this Agreement not involving 

the Jasper County, South Carolina Zoning Regulations are contractual matters, not appealable to 

the Zoning Board of Appeals or the Planning Commission, but to the Court of Common Pleas for 

Jasper County; however, matters involving the application of the Jasper County, South Carolina 

Zoning Regulations are not contractual between the County and the Owner, but are subject to the 

administrative review and appellate provisions involving the Zoning Board of Appeals or the 

Planning Commission.  



19  

 

A default of the Owner shall not constitute a default by Developers, and default by 

Developers shall not constitute a default by the Owner. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure 

of the Owner to reasonably pursue the required permitting/approvals for and completion of required 

traffic mitigation measures shall be grounds for the cessation of the issuance of development 

permits for future sites; provided, however, that should the County Administrator determine that 

there is a default by the Owner, he shall immediately notify the Owner in writing by certified mail, 

return receipt requested, and allow the Owner fifteen (15) days to respond with an explanation of 

why Owner is not in default or a plan for remedying the default. In the event the Owner presents a 

plan of remediation for approval by the County Administrator, whose approval shall not be 

unreasonably withheld, the parties shall agree to a commercially reasonable time to complete the 

remediation plan, and during such time no negative action shall be taken against the Owner or 

Developers. Failure to submit such a response or failure to subsequently pursue a plan of 

remediation l may result in a moratorium on future development permits, a stop work order, and 

any other consequences reasonably determined by the County Administrator. The parties 

acknowledge that owners of completed buildings within the Project shall not be obligated for the 

obligations of the Owner or Developer set forth in this Agreement, unless the Property remains 

under unified ownership or unless such owners of completed buildings have been assigned any 

rights under this Agreement.  In such case, the owners of completed buildings shall also be 

obligated for obligations set forth in this Agreement. 

 

 
XVI. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT. 

 

 

This Agreement may be modified or amended only by the written agreement of 

the County and the Owner; such written agreement may be by resolution or ordinance at the 

County’s sole discretion. No statement, action or agreement hereafter made shall be effective to 

change, amend, waive, modify, discharge, terminate or effect an abandonment of this 

Agreement in whole or in part unless such statement, action or agreement is in writing and signed 

by the party against whom such change, amendment, waiver, modification, discharge, 

termination or abandonment is sought to be enforced. 

 

This Agreement may be modified or amended as to a portion of the Property only by the 

written agreement of the County and the Owner of said portion of the Property. No statement, 

action or agreement hereafter made shall be effective to change, amend, waive, modify, 



20  

discharge, terminate, or effect an abandonment of this Agreement in whole or in part unless 

such change, amendment, waiver, modification, discharge, termination or abandonment is sought 

to be enforced. 

 

The Conceptual; Master Plan is not intended to be rigid, nor to identify exact site plans for 

future development. The location of roads, buildings, recreational amenities and other elements 

may vary at the time of permit applications when more specific designs are available, as long as 

the maximum densities set forth herein and the general concept of environmentally sensitive 

residential developments suggested by the Conceptua l  Master Plan is followed and 

respected, however, reductions in buffers and setbacks in relation to external properties and 

roadways are major modifications. Such minor variations are eligible to be approved at staff 

level in accordance with the Zoning Regulations. 

 
XVII. NOTICES. 

 

Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or communication which a 

signatory party is required to or may give to another signatory party hereunder shall be in writing 

and shall be delivered or addressed to the other at the address below set forth or to such other 

address as such party may from time to time direct by written notice given in the manner herein 

prescribed, and such notice or communication shall be deemed to have been given or made 

when communicated by, i) immediately upon delivery i f  by  personal delivery or by independent 

courier service or by facsimile or, ii) if by mail on the fifth (5th) business day after the deposit 

thereof in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified or, iii) the day of 

transmission by electronic mail transmission, i f  r e c e i p t  i s  c o n f i r m e d  o r  a  m a i l i n g  i s  

m a d e  t h e  d a y  o f  t r a n s m i s s i o n  b y  U n i t e d  S t a t e  M a i l ,  addressed as hereinafter 

provided. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals or communications shall be 

given at the following addresses: 

 

To Jasper County: 

County Administrator 
Jasper County 
358 Third Avenue 
Courthouse Square 
Post Office Box 1149 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 
Email: afulghum@jaspercountysc.gov 

 
 



21  

With Copy To: County Attorney 

Jasper County 
358 Third Avenue 
Courthouse Square 
Post Office Box 1149 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 
Email: dtedder@jaspercountysc.gob 

 
And to the Owner at: Conduit Street Partners, LLC 
 Peter Zadoretzky, Co-Managing Member 
 59 Franklin Street 
 Annapolis, Maryland  21401 
 Email: pzadoretzky@oapartners.com 
  

With Copy To: Bouhan Falligant LLP 
 John D. Northup, III 
 One West Park Avenue 
 Savannah, Georgia  31401 
 Email: jdnorthup@bouhan.com 

 
 

XVIII. ENFORCEMENT. 
 

 

Any  party  hereto  shall  have  the  right  to  enforce  the  terms,  provisions  and 

conditions of this Agreement (if not cured within the applicable cure period) by any remedies 

available at law or in equity, including specific performance, and the right to recover attorney’s 

fees and costs associated with said enforcement. 

 
XIX. GENERAL. 

 

A. Subsequent Laws. In the event state or federal laws or regulations are 

enacted after the execution of this Agreement or decisions are issued by a court of competent 

jurisdiction which prevent or preclude compliance with the Act or one or more provisions of this 

Agreement ("New Laws"), the provisions of this Agreement shall be modified or suspended as 

may be necessary to comply with such New Laws. Immediately after enactment of any such 

New Law, or court decision, a party designated by the Owners and Developer(s) and the County 

shall meet and confer in good faith in order to agree upon such modification or suspension 

based on the effect such New Law would have on the purposes and intent of this Agreement. 

During the time that these parties are conferring on such modification or suspension or 

challenging the New Laws, the County may take reasonable action to comply with such New 

Laws. Should these parties be unable to agree to a modification or suspension, either may 

petition a court of competent jurisdiction for an appropriate modification or suspension of this 



22  

Agreement. In addition, the Owner, Developers and the County each shall have the right to 

challenge the New Law preventing compliance with the terms of this Agreement. In the event 

that such challenge is successful, this Agreement shall remain unmodified and in full force and 

effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any adoption by the County of an ordinance assessing 

Impacts Fees or their equivalent shall be governed by Article XII hereof. 

B. Estoppel Certificate. The County, the Owner or any Developer may, at 

any time, and from time to time, deliver written notice to the other applicable party requesting 

such party to certify in writing: 

 
(1) that this Agreement is in full force and effect, 

 
 

(2) that this Agreement has not been amended or modified, or if so 

amended, identifying the amendments, 

 

 
(3) whether, to the knowledge of such party, the requesting party is in 

default or claimed default in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, and, if so, 

describing the nature and amount, if any, of any such default or claimed default, and 

 

(4) whether, to the knowledge of such party, any event has occurred 

or failed to occur which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would 

constitute a default and, if so, specifying each such event. 

 

C. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth and incorporates by 

reference all of the agreements. conditions and understandings among the County and the Owner 

relative to the Property and its Development and there are no promises, agreements, conditions 

or understandings, oral or written, expressed or implied, among these parties relative to the 

matters addressed herein other than as set forth or as referred to herein. 

 

D  No Partnership or Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement shall be 

deemed to create a partnership or joint venture between the County, the Owner or any Developer 

or to render such party liable in any manner for the debts or obligations of another party. 

 

E. Exhibits. All exhibits attached hereto and/or referred to in this 

Agreement are incorporated herein as though set forth in full. 



23  

 

F. Construction. The parties agree that each party and its counsel have 

reviewed and revised this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that 

ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this 

Agreement or any amendments or exhibits hereto. This Agreement should be construed so as to 

effectuate the public purpose of settlement of disputes, while protecting the public health, safety 

and welfare, including but not limited to ensuring the adequacy of public facilities and compatibility 

between developed and undeveloped lands and their uses. 

 

G. Assignment. Subject to the notification provisions hereof, Owner may 

assign its rights and responsibilities hereunder to a subsidiary or sister company. 

 

H. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 

State of South Carolina. 

 

I. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and such counterparts shall constitute 

but one and the same instrument. 

 

J. Agreement to Cooperate.   In the event of any legal action instituted by 

a third party or other governmental entity or official challenging the validity of any provision of 

this Agreement, the parties hereby agree to cooperate in defending such action; provided, 

however, each party shall retain the right to pursue its own independent legal defense. 

 

K. Eminent Domain. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit, impair 

or restrict the County's right and power of eminent domain under the laws of the State of 

South Carolina. 

 

L. No Third Party Beneficiaries. The provisions of this Agreement may be 

enforced only by the County, the Owner and Developers. No other persons shall have any rights 

hereunder. 

M. Contingencies.  This Agreement is contingent on acquisition of the Property,  

the approval of the Board of Directors of Owner and the County Council of the Jasper County, 

South Carolina.  Notwithstanding the above, Owner agrees to remain responsible for the payment 

of the processing fees incurred by the County in reviewing and approving the Planned 



24  

Development District application and Development Agreement as set forth in Article XI (11) above. 

N. Recording.  Within fourteen (14) days after execution of this Agreement, the 

Property Owner shall record the agreement with the Jasper County Register of Deeds.  The 

burdens of this Agreement are binding upon, and the benefits of this Agreement shall inure to, all 

successors in interest and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement. 

O. Agreement to Run with the Land.  This Agreement shall be recorded 

against the Property as described in Exhibit A attached hereto.  The agreements contained 

herein shall be deemed to run with the land.  The burdens of this Agreement are binding upon, 

and the benefits of the Agreement shall inure to, all successors in interest to the Parties to the 

Agreement. 

 
 

XX. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. 

 

 A. Binding Effect.   This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and 

assigns of the Owner in the ownership or Development of any portion of the Property or the Project.  

A purchaser, lessee or other successor in interest of any portion of the Property shall be solely 

responsible for performance of obligations hereunder as to the portion or portions of the Property 

so transferred.  Developers or other assignees of development tracts shall be required to execute a 

written acknowledgment accepting and agreeing to perform the obligations in this Agreement, said 

document to be in recordable form and provided to the County at the time of the recording of any 

deed transferring a development tract.  Following delivery of such documents, the previous Owner 

shall be released of any further liability or obligation with respect to the obligations. 

  

 B. Transfer of Project. The Property Owner shall be entitled to transfer any 

portion or all of the Property to a purchaser(s), subject to the following exceptions: 

  

1.  Transfer of Facilities and Service Obligations.  Simultaneous with 

the Owner conveying any portion of the Property to a third party, the Owner shall be 

required to obtain a written agreement in substantially the same form as Exhibit F, 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, expressly assuming the 

obligations with regard to the parcel conveyed and the potential Development of 

same.  The Owner shall notify the County within thirty (30) days after the conveyance 

of the property, provide the County with the applicable documents assigning the 



25  

development obligations to the transferee and record the same in the office of the 

Jasper County Register of Deeds. 

 

2. Assignment of Development Rights.  Any and all conveyances of 

any portion of the Property subject to the intensities/square footage set forth in Article 

VII herein to third party developers shall, by written agreement in substantially the 

same form as Exhibit E, assign a precise number of residential units and/or 

commercial/office square footage along with the permitted land uses that may be 

constructed on the subject property being conveyed.  The Owner shall notify the 

County within thirty (30) days of the conveyance of the property, provide the County 

with the applicable documents assigning the development rights to the transferee 

and record the same in the Office of the Jasper County Register of Deeds. 

 

3. Mortgage Lenders.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 

contained herein, the exceptions to transfer contained in this Section shall not apply: 

(i) to any mortgage lender either as the result of foreclosure of any mortgage secured 

by any portion of the Property or any other transfer in lieu of foreclosure; (ii) to any 

third party purchaser at such a foreclosure; or (iii) to any third party purchaser of such 

mortgage lender’s interest subsequent to the mortgage lender’s acquiring ownership 

of any portion of the Property as set forth above.  Furthermore, nothing contained 

herein shall prevent, hinder or delay any transfer or any portion of the Property to 

any such mortgage lender or subsequent purchaser.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

the obligations and restrictions arising under this Development Agreement run with 

the land, and a foreclosure or subsequent transfer does not extinguish the obligations 

and restrictions, arising hereunder, and such shall survive the foreclosure or 

subsequent transfer.  It is the intention of this subsection to merely forego the 

prerequisite notice of transfer documentation contained in subsections 1 and 2 

immediately above.  

 

  C. Release of Property Owner.  In the event of conveyance of all or a portion 

of the Property and compliance with the conditions set forth herein, and specifically subsections 

XX(B) (1) and (2), Conduit Street Partners, LLC shall be released from all obligations as to the 

portion of Property so transferred, and the transferee shall be substituted as the Owner under the 

Agreement as to the portion of the Property so transferred. 

 



26  

XXI. STATEMENT OF REQUIRED PROVISIONS 
 
 
 

A. Specific Statements. The Act requires that a development agreement 

must include certain mandatory provisions, pursuant to Section 6-31-60 (A). Although certain of 

these items are addressed elsewhere in this Agreement, the following listing of the required 

provisions is ser forth for convenient reference. The numbering below corresponds to the 

numbering utilized under Section 6-31-60 (A) for the required items: 

 

1. Legal Description of Property and Legal and Equitable Owners. The legal 

description of the Property is set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. The 

present legal Owners of the Property are Paul H. Anderson, Emily A. Tillman 

and John F. Anderson. Conduit Street Partners, LLC have an equitable interest 

in the Property by virtue of a purchase agreement with the present legal 

Owners. 

 

 
2. Duration of Agreement. The duration of this Agreement shall be as 

provided in Article III. 

 

3. Permitted Uses, Densities, Building Heights and Intensities. A complete 

listing and description of permitted uses, population densities, building 

intensities and heights, as well as other development  related standards, are 

contained in Zoning Regulations, as supplemented by this Agreement. Based 

on prior experience with the type of Development contemplated by the Zoning 

Regulations, it is estimated that the average size household of the Project will 

be 2.5 persons.  Based on maximum density build out, the population density of 

the Project is anticipated to be approximately 690 to 700 persons. 

 
4. Required Public Facilities. The utility services available to the Property are 

described generally above regarding water service, sewer service, cable 

and other telecommunication services, gas service, electrical services, 

telephone service and solid waste disposal. The mandatory procedures of 

the Zoning Regulations will ensure availability of roads and utilities to serve the 

residents on a timely basis. 



27  

 

5. Dedication of Land and Provisions to Protect Environmentally Sensitive 

Areas. All requirements relating to land transfers for public facilities, if any, 

are set forth above. The Zoning Regulations described above, and 

incorporated herein, contain numerous provisions for the protection of 

environmentally sensitive areas. All relevant State and Federal laws will be 

fully complied with, in addition to the important provisions set forth in this 

Agreement. 

 

6. Local Development Permits. The Development standards for the Property 

shall be as set forth in the Zoning Regulations. Specific permits must be 

obtained prior to commencing Development, consistent with the standards set 

forth in the Zoning Regulations. Building Permits must be obtained under 

applicable law for any vertical construction, and appropriate permits must be 

obtained from the State of South Carolina(OCRM) and Army Corps of 

Engineers, when applicable, prior to any impact upon freshwater wetlands. 

It is specifically understood that the failure of this Agreement to address a 

particular permit, condition, term or restriction does not relieve the Owner, its 

successors and assign, of the necessity of complying with the law governing 

the permitting requirements, conditions, terms or restrictions, unless otherwise 

provided hereunder. 

 

7. Comprehensive Plan and Development Agreement. The Development 

permitted and proposed under the Zoning Regulations and  permitted under 

this Agreement is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and with current 

land use regulations of the County, which include a Planned Development 

District for the Property. 

 

8. Terms for Public Health, Safety and Welfare. The County Council finds 

that all issues relating to public health, safety and welfare have been 

adequately considered and appropriately dealt with under the terms of this 

Agreement, the Zoning Regulations and existing laws. 

 

9. Historical Structures. Any cultural, historical structure or sites will be 

addressed through applicable federal and state regulations the permitting 



28  

process at the time of development, as required by applicable state regulations.  

No such structures or sites are known to exist. 

 
 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby set their hands and seals, effective the 

date first above written. 
 

 
SIGNATURES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE 



29  

 
 
 

 

WITNESSES: CONDUIT STREET PARTNERS, LLC 

 

 
 

   By:   
       Peter Zadoretzky 

 

   Its: Co-Manager 
 
 

 

STATE OF  ) 
 ) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF ) 
 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this   ______ day of , 2022. before me, the 
undersigned Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared the duly 
authorized official of Conduit Street Partners, LLC., known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to 
be the person whose name is subscribed to the within document, who acknowledged the due 
execution of the foregoing document. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal the day and 
year last above mentioned. 

 

 

       
      Notary Public for Maryland 

My Commission Expires:    

 

 



30  

 
 
 
 

 

WITNESSES: JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

_______________________________ By:   _____________________________ 

             Barbara B. Clark 
 

Its:     
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA. ) 
 ) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
COUNTY  OF JASPER )   
 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this day of , 2022. before me, 

the  undersigned  Notary  Public  of  the  State  and  County  aforesaid,  personally  appeared 

Barbara B. Clark, Chair of Jasper County Council, known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be 

the person whose name is subscribed to the within document, as the appropriate officials of 

the County of Jasper, South Carolina, who acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing 

document. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal the day 

and year last above mentioned. 

 
 

  
Notary Public for South Carolina 
My Commission Expires:    



31  

 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION OF CSP DEVELOPMENT TRACT 

 

 



32  

 



33  

 
 

 

EXHIBIT B-1 
 

TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 

 
The Planned Development District approval for CSP Development (the Property 

hereunder), as a d o p t e d  i n  O r d i n a n c e  O - 2 0 2 2 - 1 6 b y  t h e  J a s p e r  County 
Council on June 27, 2022, is hereby incorporated herein by reference, to include all drawings, 
plans, narratives and documentation submitted therewith, as fully as if attached hereto. The 
parties hereto may elect to physically attach said documents hereto, or may rely upon the above 
stated incorporation by reference, at their discretion. 

 
  



34  

EXHIBIT B-2 
 

TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN



35  
  



36  

 

 
EXHIBIT C 

 
TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
ZONING REGULATIONS 

 
 

1. The Jasper County Zoning Ordinance, being codified with Municode© and current on 
Municode© through Supplement No. 3 as of June 21, 2021 as amended through the 
Effective Date of this Agreement 

 
2. The Planned District Development (PDD) Conceptual Master Plan dated January 27, 

2022 and adopted by Jasper County  by Ordinance Number O-2022-16.



37  

EXHIBIT D 

 

 TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE 
 
 
 

Development of the Property is expected to occur over the five (5) year term of the 
Agreement, with the sequence and timing of development activity to be dictated largely 
by market conditions. The following estimate of expected activity is hereby included, 
to be updated by Owner as the development evolves over the term. 
 

 
Type of Development  Year(s) of Commencement / Completion 
 
 
Rental and/or For Sale  2024 commencement,  
Residential Single Family  expected buildout 2027 

 
 
 

As stated in the Development Agreement, Article VI, actual development may occur 
more rapidly or less rapidly, based on market conditions and final product mix. 

 



PDD EXHIBIT A-2 “REDLINE” 
CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

APPLICANT AND PLANNING TEAM……………………………………………………………………………………. 1 

SECTION I – INTRODUCTION AND NARRATIVE………………………………………………………………… 2 

A. The Property………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 2 

B. Planned Development District Process………………………………………………………………………..  3 

C. Conceptual Master Plan…………………………………………………………………………………………………  4 

D. Environmental Protection……………………………………………………………………………………………….  5 

E. Water and Sewer Service………………………………………………………………………………………………  5 

F. Utility Service…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 5 

G. Roadways and Traffic…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 5 

H. Tree Preservation and Replacement…………………………………………………………………………….  6 

I. Parking…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 7 

J. Stormwater Management……………………………………………………………………………………………….  7 

K. Cultural and Historical Resources…………………………………………………………………………………. 7 

L. Emergency Services………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 7 

SECTION II – LAND USE DESIGNATION AND DEFINITIONS……………………………………………… 8 

A. Introduction and Narrative………………………………………………………………………………………………. 8 

B. Allowed Land Uses………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 8 

C. Allowed Density and Transfer of Density Between Planning Areas…………………………… 9 

D. Definition of Land Use Terms and Density Terms……………………………………………………….. 9 

 SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit A Site Location Map Exhibit I FEMA Flood Zones 

Exhibit B Conceptual Master Plan Exhibit J BJWSA Availability to Serve Letter 

Exhibit C Property Aerial Exhibit K Dominion Availability to Serve Letter 

Exhibit D-1 Jasper County Zoning Map Exhibit L Palmetto Availability to Serve Letter 

Exhibit D-2 Hardeeville Zoning Map Exhibit M Hargray Availability to Serve Letter 

Exhibit E Wetlands Deliniation  Exhibit N Archaeological Report 

Exhibit F Boundary Survey Exhibit O Concept Development Schedule 

Exhibit G USDA Soils Data Exhibit P Fire Station and EMS Locations 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 

Page | 1 

Exhibit H Topography Exhibit Q Thomas & Hutton Traffic Memo 

APPLICANT AND PLANNING TEAM 

Owner………….………………………………………………………………………………………….Paul H. Anderson, Emily A.Tillman 

&  John F. Anderson 

Developer / Applicant……………………………………..………………………………………………Conduit Street Partners, LLC 

Annapolis, MD 

Mr. Peter Zadoretzky 

 Land Planner and Engineer………………………………………………………………………..Thomas & Hutton Engineering 

Savannah, GA 

Mr. Lamar Mercer, P.E. 

Mr. Scott Monson, P.E 

Carolina Engineering Consultants, Inc 

    Beaufort, SC 

Mr. Jeff P. Ackerman, P.E 

 Wetlands / Environmental Consultant and Permitting…………….Newkirk Environmental Consultants, Inc.  

  Beaufort, SC 

Mr. Ashley Howell 

Archaeologist……………………………………….………………………………………..…………….Brockington & Associates, Inc. 

Savannah, GA 

Mr. Alex Sweeney, MA, RPA 

Land Use Attorney / Legal Counsel……………………………………………………..…………………..Bouhan Falligant LLP 

Savannah, GA 

John D. Northup III, Esq. 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 

Page | 2 

CSP DEVELOPMENT 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AND 

CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

SECTION I: 

INTRODUCTION AND NARRATIVE 

The Conduit Street Partners, LLC project currently consists of one parcel located in Jasper 
County, SC. Currently, the parcel is zoned Rural Preservation (“RP”) and is identified as PIN no. 
041-00-03-030. The property is approximately 38.84 acres with substantial frontage on the north
side of U.S. Highway 278 situated between the Hilton Head Lakes North development to its east
and the Prime Storage facility to its west.  The property is surrounded by City of Hardeeville land
nearly all of which is zoned PDD with a very small area zoned GC (the Prime Storage property).
The property has been in the Anderson Family estate for many years and was originally part of
the J.A. Coleman Estate. Exhibit A Site Location Map is attached.

The property is under agreement to be purchased from the Anderson family members by the 
Applicant, Conduit Street Partners, LLC, who are pursuing a new PDD zoning encompassing all 
the  parcel to allow for the property to be developed under the stipulations set forth by the 
proposed PDD zoning in accordance with the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance (ZO) and Land 
Development Regulations (LDR) in effect at the time of submittal of this rezoning application. 
Upon approval, the benefits of the proposed PDD Standards shall apply to the Applicant I Owner 
and its successors and assignees. For the purposes of the PDD and Exhibit B Conceptual 
Master Plan, the parcel is hereby known as a single project (“CSP Development”) in this 
document  henceforth. 

A. THE PROPERTY

1. The CSP Development property is a raw, unimproved forested, predominately uplands
parcel in Jasper County. There are no nor have there ever been any existing buildings, structures,
or other facilities on the property. The property is surrounded by PDD zoned Hardeeville land to
its east, north and south and by Hardeeville GC zoned land to its west. It is bounded on its eastern
side by the Hilton Head Lakes North development – a large, golf course residential community
and one of the initial phases of the Hardeeville West Argent PDD development project. To the
north and contiguous to the CSP Development is an undeveloped, principally forested, and
regulated wetlands parcel which is also part of the West Argent PDD development project. West
of the property is an existing Prime Storage facility situated on land located in Hardeeville and
zoned GC. The southern property line of the property is frontage along the north side of highway
U.S. 278 – a four lane divided, center median, limited access highway. And on the other/south
side of U.S. 278 across the highway from the CSP Development there are two major Hardeeville
PDD land parcels. One of the parcels is a part of the existing Latitude Margaritaville development
and is at the present time planned to be Margaritaville’s future 70-acre retail/commercial phase.
The second parcel that is to the west and contiguous with the Latitude Margaritaville land is
another very large Hardeeville PDD land parcel known as the Morgan PDD project. Both land
tracts on the south side of U.S. 278 immediately across the highway from the proposed CSP
Development are raw, unimproved but PDD zoned properties with existing Hardeeville



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 

Page | 3 

development agreements. Combined, the West Argent PDD, the Latitude Margaritaville PDD and 
the Morgan Tract PDD amount to approximately 10,500 acres of Hardeeville development parcels 
zoned PDD. The CSP Development 38.84-acre parcel has just under 2,700 feet of frontage along 
the north side of U.S. 278 and will access this highway at one central location in alignment with 
an existing median break. The CSP Development property will also have access to existing 
Brickyard Road at the road’s eastern termination point which is located at the property’s western 
property line. A Property Aerial (Exhibit C), a Jasper County Zoning Map (Exhibit D-1) and a 
Hardeeville Zoning Map (Exhibit D-2) are provided. 

2. The proposed PDD consists of approximately 38.84 acres and has an anticipated area of
approximately 37 acres of uplands and approximately 1.5 acres of jurisdictional wetlands, and 0.5
acres of non-jurisdictional wetlands (excluded waters – gum pond) based upon a preliminary
wetland exhibit prepared by Newkirk Environmental, dated December 2021 (see Exhibit E
Wetlands DeliniationDelineation). The delineation of the wetlands within the property have
been submitted to the Army Corps of Engineers to obtain a valid Jurisdictional Determination. The
Conceptual Plan has taken into account the jurisdictional wetlands and has avoided any
development impacts to these areas. The property does not have any critical area or frontage on
salt marsh or creeks.

3. Exhibit F Boundary Survey depicts the property boundary.

4. Exhibit G USDA Soils Data depicts soils types of the property
.

5. Exhibit H Topography depicts topographic information for the CSP Development
property. GIS data topography was used for the purposes of the exhibit. Elevations on the site
range from elevation 10.0 along its northern edge sloping quickly upwards to the property’s interior
where grades are relatively flat averaging between elevations 18.0 to 20.0 with two small knolls
on the west end of the property averaging elevation 24.0. Exhibit I FEMA Flood Zones Map
depicts the 2019 FEMA flood zones which indicate that the property is in FEMA zone “X”  which
is defined to be an area of minimal flood hazard generally above or outside the 500-year flood
level. Finished floor elevations of building structures will adhere to current Flood Zone
requirements of the Jasper County Land Development Regulations.

B. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT PROCESS

1. The Planned Development District (PDD) was established by the Jasper County to
encourage flexibility in the development of land to promote its most appropriate, economical, and
efficient use as well as to encourage creative design and produce a better environment
particularly for large undeveloped tracts. The purpose of the PDD is to, among other things, permit
development for specialized purposes which are planned and developed on a unified basis. In
this case the specialized purpose is a first-class Single-Family Rental Home (“SFR”) community
as proposed by Conduit Street Partners, LLC. The homes themselves will be of unique design,
tasteful architecture and generally resemble residential cottage, villa and/or patiosingle family
detached and townhouse home types. The community will be under one ownership structure
which will maintain most all aspects of the community, i.e., its infrastructure including its roads,
the interior and exteriors of the homes and the grounds on which they are constructed including
the community amenities and open spaces.



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 

Page | 4 

C. CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN

It is anticipated that the Conduit Street Development property will be developed over a period of 
no more than four to five years in as many as two phases in accordance with the Conceptual 
Master Plan as set forth in this document and as the same may be supplemented by subsequent 
master and development plans submitted pursuant to the provisions of this PDD (see Exhibit N 
Concept Development Schedule). The Conceptual Master Plan sets forth the general scope of 
the development including number of allowed units, development standards, infrastructure 
requirements, and other guidelines. In addition to the Conceptual Master Plan, development of 
the Property will be controlled by other provisions of the PDD. 

The goal of this PDD is to produce a development that raises the quality of life and development 
standards in the area while also anticipating the County’s existing and future needs for naturally 
affordable single-family homes. 

The Conduit Street Development Conceptual Master Plan displays a general and privately owned 
and maintained roadway layout, general housing unit layout, open space areas as well as 
amenities that will serve the property. The final locations of these site elements may vary at the 
time of development permit. Proposed land uses in the development are detailed under Section 
2 - Land Use Designation and Definitions. 

The Conceptual Master Plan seeks to maintain open space  requirements set forth in Section II, 
D.3 of this PDD. The open space and amenities will be owned and maintained by the Applicant I
Owner, or other legally designated entity. Property deeded to a governmental or private utility
entity will be the maintenance responsibility of that entity.

The Conceptual Master Plan and the provisions of this PDD will constitute the zoning for the 
Property and a waiver from the current Jasper County codes and regulations where differences 
occur. However,, activities in the PDD shall conform to all other Jasper County Zoning Ordinance 
and Land Development Regulations where differences do not occur. 

The provisions of the Conceptual Master Plan shall apply to development of the property. In the 
event of a conflict, the hierarchy of documents will be the “to be approved”, (i) Development 
Agreement (DA), (ii) the PDD and Conceptual Master Plan and, (iii) the Master Plan (MP). 

D. ENVIRONMENTAL  PROTECTION

1. As part of the development process, the CSP Development will meet or exceed the
stormwater management requirements of Jasper County, and the requirements of South Carolina
Department of Health and Environmental Control (DHEC) and Office of Ocean and Coastal
Resource Management (OCRM).The Applicant I Owner will prepare stormwater management
plans for the project as it is developed in accordance with a stormwater drainage master plan to
be prepared by a professional engineering firm licensed by the State of South Carolina. The
stormwater drainage master plan will address the hydrological characteristics of the entire site as
well as adjacent drainage patterns of relative importance. The plan will address  pre-development
conditions and post-development stormwater  management  for  flood  control and sediment
reduction. This plan will also address storm water quality through, among other things, the use of



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 

Page | 5 

several types of BMP's (as established by the stormwater standards of the applicable state and 
federal governmental regulations) to enhance water quality and protect the adjacent wetlands. 

2. Approximately 4 percent of the site consists of regulated jurisdictional wetlands. Exhibit E
is a preliminary wetland plan prepared by Newkirk Environmental dated December 2021 which
depicts the  preliminary observation of  wetlands vs uplands for the project area. The wetland plan
has been submitted to the Army Corps of Engineers to obtain a jurisdictional determination prior
to development of the property.

3. There will be no development impacts to the regulated jurisdictional wetlands. Subject to
the approval of the Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource Management, the CSP Development
will seek to remove/fill the non-regulated “gum pond” located in proximity to the project’s proposed
main entrance off highway U.S. 278.

E. WATER AND SEWER SERVICE

Water and sewer service will be provided to the CSP Development by Beaufort Jasper Water and 
Sewer Authority. Preliminary planning for the water and sewer systems will be provided at the 
time of Initial Master Plan submittal to Jasper County. Preliminary discussions with Beaufort-
Jasper Water and Sewer Authority (BJWSA) indicate a willingness to serve the property. BJWSA 
operates and maintains water and sewer systems within their service area upon completion by 
the developer and acceptance by the Authority.  See Exhibit J BJWSA Availability to Serve 
Letter. 

F. UTILITY SERVICE

1 .     The CSP Development property is in the service territory of Dominion Energy tor natural
gas services, See Exhibit K Dominion Energy Availability to Serve Letter. The Applicant I
Owner will coordinate with Dominion Energy regarding planning for the CSP Development project.

2. The CSP Development property is in the service territory of Palmetto Electric Cooperative
tor electric services, See Exhibit L Palmetto Availability to Serve Letter. The Applicant I Owner
will coordinate with Dominion Energy regarding planning for the CSP Development project.

3. Hargray or/or another licensed provider will provide internet and communication services
to the CSP Development property. The Applicant/Owner will coordinate with the provider
regarding planning and installation of these services. All servicing is anticipated to be via fiber
optics cable to include broadband capability. See Exhibit M Hargray Availability to Serve
Letter.

4. Other Utility services shall be provided by legally established entities at the discretion of
the Applicant I Owner, provided such are in accordance with the franchising ordinances/licensing
with the County.

5. Utilities will be underground except as reasonably necessary for above ground support
facilities.

G. ROADWAYS AND TRAFFIC



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 

Page | 6 

1. The CSP Development PDD shall have on-site roads designed and constructed to the
standards of the Jasper County Land Development Regulations or other engineering standards
reasonably acceptable to the Jasper County Engineer. Roadway construction within SCDOT
right-of-way's will be in accordance with SCDOT standards. Roadway section details will be
submitted for review at time of development permit approval. Interconnectivity to other adjoining
tracts of land is not proposed. Public access into or across other private developments will not be
required. Roadway design standards may be modified subject to the approval of Jasper County
to reduce environmental impacts provided safety concerns are not compromised. All onsite roads
shall be privately owned and maintained.

2. The Applicant I Owner intends to create up to three new points of vehicular access to
existing public roads and highways for the project. The first is proposed to be a main entrance
ingress and egress to U.S. 278 located and aligned with the center most existing highway median
cut. The second access location is anticipated to provide ingress and egress to U.S. 278 at the
highway’s median cut fronting the eastern end of the property. The third point of vehicular
connectivity is planned as a proposed connection with existing Brickyard Road at the roads point
of termination at the property’s western property line and adjacent to the U.S. 278 right-of-way. A
traffic plan study will be provided at the Master Plan stage.  The traffic study shall be reviewed by
the SCDOT and final configuration for the new accesses will be governed by the SCDOT. Final
entrance configuration and locations will be based upon SCDOT guidelines at the time of
development permit.

3. Access to the CSP Development PDD may be restricted and/or gated appropriately at
the Applicant I Owner's discretion. Sidewalks and possibly trails shall be provided within the PDD
at appropriate locations. The frequency and location of sidewalks or pathways shall be
established based upon anticipated pedestrian circulation within the project. Sidewalks and trails
shown on the Conceptual Master Plan are conceptual in nature and are subject to change over
the course of the development permit process.

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of section G hereof, roadway design standards may be
modified to reduce environmental impacts provided safety concerns are not compromised. To
protect and preserve significant natural property attributes including avoiding wetland impacts,
such design will be encouraged.

5. Reference Thomas & Hutton Traffic Memo Exhibit Q for preliminary traffic analysis and
commentary concluding no material traffic impacts to existing road systems.

6. TREE PRESERVATION AND REPLACEMENT

The CSP Development shall meet or exceed the minimum allowable post development tree 
coverage requirements of Jasper County. Trees required and/or worthy of preserving shall be 
incorporated into buffer areas around jurisdictional wetlands, in required buffer yards and in the 
required Highway Corridor Overlay District 50’ buffer parallel and adjacent to the U.S. 278 
Highway.  

In those cases where the minimum allowable tree coverage cannot be met by preservation within 
a required buffer area, replacement trees shall be planted to meet the tree types and quantities 
as required by code. Trees to be preserved in buffer areas shall be identified and located by a 
tree survey within the CSP Development PDD. 

 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 7  
 

 
Plantings, including trees, situated in any buffer area shall be maintained in good health and any 
dead or damaged plants will be replaced. And if any tree in a buffer is severely damaged due to 
weather or other reasons, all severely damaged trees shall be replaced no later than the end of 
the next dormant season.  
 
I. PARKING 
 
Parking for the CSP Development community shall be provided by a combination of attached 
and/or detached residential parking garages and their corresponding driveways, and community 
surface parking lots for overflow parking, the community amenity areas and leasing offices. All 
parking shall be generally consistent with Jasper County development standards or as otherwise 
proposed by the Applicant/Owner and approved by Jasper County.  
 
J. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
 
The CSP Development PDD shall conform to the Stormwater Management Provisions of the 
Jasper County Land Development Standards including but not necessarily limited to the Jasper 
County Stormwater Management Design Manual and applicable state and federal requirements. 
Among other things, the post-development peak runoff discharge rate for the  2-, 10- and 25-year, 
24-hour design storm events will be designed to control these rates to pre-development discharge 
rates. Additionally, the CSP Development PDD shall design its stormwater system to manage a 
100-year, 24-hour storm event without causing damage to on-site and offsite structures. Sufficient 
stormwater best management practices will be employed in the development of the PDD to 
ensure runoff leaving the site does not degrade water quality of the surrounding receiving waters. 
 
K. CULTURAL AND HISTORICAL RESOURCES 
 

As part of a comprehensive study of the property a Phase I and Phase II archeological 
investigations and studies were conducted by Brockington & Associates. The investigations have 
concluded that there are no archeological sites eligible for the National Register requiring 
preservation or management considerations on the property. Exhibit N Archaeological Report 
is attached. 
 

L. EMERGENCY SERVICES 
 

Fire and emergency medical services will be provided to the residents of the CSP Development 
by no less than two Jasper County Fire-Rescue stations which are located less than 5 miles from 
the property. FIRE STATION AND EMS LOCATIONS EXHIBIT P is attached identifying Jasper 
County Fire Stations 34 and 35 and their distances (each less than 5 miles) and times in route to 
the CSP Development.   
 
  



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 8  
 

SECTION II: 
 
LAND USE DESIGNATION AND DEFINITIONS 
 
A . INTRODUCTION and NARRATIVE 
 
The Conceptual Master Plan consists of an area of approximately 38.84 acres. The proposed 
predominate uses  shall include but not be necessarily limited to: 
 

• For-Rent Single Family Residential situated on an unsubdivided parcel(s) and/or on 
subdivided individual platted lots 

• Single Family For Sale Residential situated on subdivided individual platted lots  

• Active and passive community amenity areas  

• Model homes and leasing and sales centers 

• Site infrastructure 
 
The land use areas indicated on the Conceptual Master Plan are not intended to be rigid exact 
boundaries for future improvements. The Conceptual Master Plan PDD for the CSP Development 
shall maintain flexibility to accommodate specific soils conditions, environmental concerns, 
physical constraints, market conditions and design parameters and as such, the exact location of 
boundary lines and any proposed buildings or structures, between land uses and their subsequent 
location and size indicated within the planning area shall be subject to change at the time of the 
Master Plan Phase and Development Permit Plan submission; provided that maximum densities 
and other conditions of the Development Agreement between the Applicant / Owner and Jasper 
County, South Carolina will be adhered to strictly, unless adjustments are requested by the 
Applicant / Owner and approved by Jasper County.  
 
All rental residential dwelling units shall be owned, controlled and maintained by the Applicant or 
its assigns or successors which units may be located on an unsubdivided parcel or individual 
platted lots., amenitiesAmenities, on-property infrastructure and improvements not dedicated or 
otherwise conveyed to public or private third parties (such as a homeowner’s association) shall 
beshall be owned, controlled and maintained by the Applicant / Owner or its successors.  
 
If at any time in the future rental homes that are situated on subdivided platted lots are sold and 
owner occupied, these housing units shall be owned, controlled, and maintained by their 
individual owners.  
 
B. ALLOWED LAND USES 
 
The following land uses shall be permitted in the CSP Development PDD. The purpose of this 
portion of the PDD document is to state which land uses shall be allowed within the CSP 
Development PDD and to clearly define development within the area. However, by allowing these 
uses this does not obligate the Applicant / Owner to provide all of the uses or facilities herein. The 
allowed land uses and definitions shall be as follows: 
 
For-Rent and/or For Sale Single Family Residential 
 

• For-Rent Single Family Residential Dwelling - A detached or attached home used 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 9  
 

exclusively for residential purposes which is either (i) leased to its tenant(s) located on a 
single parcel of unsubdivided land  or on subdivided platted landlots and/or (ii) detached 
or attached homes sold to buyers/homeowners which homes shall be located on single 
subdivided platted lots. Dwelling units may have either private or shared access. Units 
may be arranged in a variety of configurations including detached, attached, back-to-back, 
side to side, vertical or any combination thereof. 

• Home Sites - Individual un-platted parcels or individual platted sites lots available for short 
or long-term lease for the rental homes or for owner occupied  homes. 

• Amenity Areas - including Club House / swimming pool / playground / bocce ball / cornhole 
/ horseshoes / oyster tables / pickleball and tennis courts / amphitheater / fitness facility 
or other recreational amenities. 

• Mail kiosks including drone delivery station(s) 

• Utilities 

• Recreational Amenity Uses such as, but not limited to: 
o Dog park 
o Multi-use field(s) 
o Gazebo 
o Kayak, canoe and boat storage areas 
o Trails or sidewalks 
o Bike paths 
o Mini-golf and/or golf putting green 
o Pavilion 
o Grilling areas 
o Common open space and other active and passive recreational uses 
o Maintenance Areas or Buildings 
o Planting/vegetable garden(s) 

 
Design Standards and Regulations may be established for each area and use at the time of 
development permit, unless agreed at development permit approval or in this PDD, the standard 
for uses from the Jaser County Land Development Regulations shall apply.  
 
Any easement that occurs within the property shall have the same land uses as any of the 
adjacent land uses. Any restrictions shall be based on the legal definition of the easement. 
 
C. ALLOWED DENSITY WITHIN PLANNING AREAS 
 
1. Preliminary planning for the Property contemplates the For-Rent Residential land uses 
{including wetlands) for the entire property as depicted on the Conceptual Master Plan. The 
Conceptual Master Plan layout may be modified at the time of development permit application. 
 
2.  The total project is allowed a maximum of 275 For-Rent, Single Family Dwelling Units. 
The maximum size per dwelling unit shall be 2,500 square feet. The minimum dwelling unit shall 
be 800 square feet. The size and configuration of anticipated dwelling units displayed on the 
Conceptual Master Plan may be modified at the time of development  permit. The submitted 
Conceptual Site Plan presently indicates 265 For-Rent, Single Family Dwelling Units. 
 
3.  Overall residential density may include both Attached and Detached Single Family 
Residential dwelling units. 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 10  
 

 
D. DEFINITIONS OF LAND USE TERMS AND DENSITY TERMS 
 
In the absence of a term definition in this Conceptual Master Plan or in the proposed CSP 
Development PDD with Jasper County, the definitions of the Jaser County Land Development 
Regulations shall apply in the interpretation of this Conceptual Master Plan. The definitions below 
shall generally describe the allowed uses and terms within the CSP Development PDD. 
 
1. Acre 

a. Gross Acre shall mean the entire acreage within the site boundaries. 
b. Net  Acre   shall  mean  the  acre  which   remains  after deduction  of easements for 

existing utilities, wetland buffers, and onsite wetlands. 
 
2. Maintenance Areas 
 

The maintenance areas will contain the facilities, tools, and equipment necessary to 
maintain the common properties and amenities within the CSP Development PDD. 
These facilities may be congregated on a central site or located in separate convenient 
sites for different services such as general community maintenance, recreation area  
maintenance or individual property regime maintenance. 

 
Permitted uses include: 

 
a. Storage of vehicles and parts, boats, recreational vehicles. tools, supplies, and 

resident storage. 
b. Offices associated with community and maintenance. 

 
3. Open Space 
 

Total open space for the Property shall be calculated for the boundary of the Property 
and not on a site-specific basis for each parcel or phase of the Property, individual 
development. or  project. The  Property shall  provide  at  least  10% open space.  Open  
space shall be calculated based upon the total gross acreage. Open space shall consist 
of the following: 

 
a. Landscape surface areas (areas not covered by buildings, parking. 

impervious surface) including manicured village greens or equivalent 
b. Lagoons, ponds, impoundments, and lakes (detention, retention, or 

recreational) 
c. Freshwater wetlands 
d. Wetland buffers 
e. Forest, wildlife preserves / corridors, conservation areas and greenbelts 
f. Community Park, amenity areas and community garden plots 
g. Recreation areas including swimming pools, tennis courts, playgrounds , 

multi-purpose fields, lawn games, gardens, etc. 
h. Pedestrian / bicycle trails /paths /nature trails 
i. Perimeter buffers    

 
4. Setbacks, Lot Sizes and Buffers 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 11  
 

 
a. There shall be no minimum setbacks applied to the CSP Development PDD 

unless noted otherwise in this PDD document. Setbacks and buffers shall 
meet the minimum requirements established herein, and except as set forth 
in this PDD Standards, shall apply to the perimeter of the PDD only 
provided, however, that any required wetlands buffers shall apply 
according to law throughout the Property. 
 

b. Setbacks /buffer areas shall be provided for jurisdictional wetlands within 
the PDD. Setbacks / buffers for wetlands shall be 25 feet . 

 
c. Perimeter buffer standards shall include: 

 
(i) At adjacent property boundaries to the east and to the north of the 

PDD (adjacent properties to east and north are jurisdictional 
wetlands) buffers shall be 20 feet at a minimum. See PDD 
Conceptual Master Plan for proposed perimeter buffers. A 50-foot 
buffer shall be provided along the property’s boundary with the GC 
zoned property to its west. Underground utilities and stormwater 
management facilities are allowed in the perimeter buffer area. 

 
(ii) At all buffers of the PDD, disturbances  related  to  grading activities 

are allowed provided that the following preservation practices are 
met: 

 
(A) Within 50-foot U.S. 278 highway buffer a minimum of  7 

broadleaf overstory trees, 8 understory trees, and 35 shrubs 
shall be preserved or re-planted per 100 linear feet of U.S 278 
frontage.  
 

(iii) Highway 278 Corridor Overlay District (HCOD) standards shall be 
adhered to provided that signage shall be governed by the 
provisions established by the future Master Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 12  
 

(iii)  
 

d. Lot Areas and Setbacks 
 
(i) Single Family For Rent Homes and Single Family For Sale homes 

will have setback and yard requirements as set forth in the below 
TABLE 1: 

  

CSP PDD DEVELOPMENT TABLE 1 
MEASUREMENTS FOR UNSUBDIVIDED AND SUBDIVIDED RESIDENTIAL  

Single Family  Schedule of Lot Area, Yard, and Setbacks 
Minimum Lot Per Unit  
  SF Patio4 Duplex5 Townhome6 Non-Resi7 
Unsubdivided Residential (For Rent Only)1 NA NA NA NA NA 
Subdivided Residential (For Sale and/or 
For Rent) 1700 NA NA 1000 NA 
            
Minimum Yard and Building Setback (feet) 
Single Family & Non-Residential Uses 
  SF Patio4 Duplex5 Townhome6 Non-Resi7 
Unsubdivided Residential Min lot width 2 NA NA NA NA NA 
Subdivided Residential Min lot width  30 NA NA 18 NA 
              
Front Yard  (Measured from Edge of Road R/W) 

Major Street         (Multi-Lane) 
NA NA NA NA   

 

Major Street         (Multi-Lane) 
NA NA NA NA   

 

 
Minor Street 10 NA NA 10 NA  

Side Yard3            

Residential  5 NA NA 5    

Non-Residential        NA  

Rear Yard3            

Residential  10 NA NA 5    

Non-Residential         N/A  

 

Notes:       
1. "For Rent" homes can be situated on an unsubdivided single parcel and not on  
individual subdivided lots. Therefore, there are no legal fee simple lots with defined  
lot areas.        



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 13  
 

2. Because the "For Rent" homes can be situated on a unsubdivided single parcel  
and not on individual subdivided fee simple lots, there are no defined lot dimensions.  
3. For unsubdivided rental residential units, yard dimensions provided are minimum   
side yard and back yard depths. In all cases, there shall be 10' minimum clear between structures. 
4. Patio homes are not an included product.      
5. Duplexes are not an included product.      
6. Townhomes are two or more attached units with 5'  side yards at each end   
 unit with 10' clear between adjacent structures.     
7. Non-Resi is a non-residential/commercial use exclusive of community amenity improvements 
and leasing and sales offices. Non-Resi uses are not an included product.   
8. Setbacks are measured to the front, side or rear face of the principal structure and excludes 
measurements to such things as HVAC equipment, stoops, ground level or upper-level decks, 
 or similar ancillary structures.      

  9. The required easement width for storm drainpipe of 15” to 24” in size shall not be less than 10 feet.  
 
5. Wetlands 
 

This designation allows the following uses within wetlands. Freshwater wetlands on the 
property shall be those areas over which the applicable governmental agencies claim 
jurisdiction for freshwater  wetlands. Unless restricted via a future Memorandum of 
Understanding (MPA) to the contrary, the following are permitted uses: 

 
a. Open space and buffers 
b. Conservation areas 
c. Activities in all wetland areas as permitted by the U.S. Army Corps of 

Engineers and/or the South Carolina Department of Health and 
Environmental Control, Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource 
Management  as applicable 

d. Disposal of reclaimed water as permitted by SCDHEC. 
e. Boardwalks, trails, bridges, and other permitted structures. 
f. Game Management 

 
6. Utilities 
 

This designation allows for utility service to serve the planning areas of the CSP 
Development PDD. The following land uses shall be allowed only after written approval 
from the Applicant I Owner and its consultants for location and design. Screening, 
buffering, and other aesthetic matters must meet or exceed the Jaser County Land 
Development Regulations and may be approved at the time of site development 
application. 

 
a. Potable water supply and distribution 
b. Wastewater collection, treatment, and disposal 
c. Stormwater collection, treatment and detention 
d. Irrigation 
e. Communication towers 



CSP DEVELOPMENT PDD AND CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 

JASPER COUNTY, SC JANUARY 2022/REVISED MARCH 2024 
 

 
 

Page | 14  
 

f. Satellite antennas 
g. Cable television facilities 
h. Telephone facilities 
i. Power transmission and distribution 
j. Fiber optic lines 
k. Other utility services i.e., Internet access and other telecommunication 
 uses 

 
Certain community-wide infrastructure is required for the development of any large, 
master-planned community.  This infrastructure  may include, but is not limited to the 
following: 
 

1. Arterial streets and primary access roads 
2. Water supply 
3. Wastewater Treatment and Effluent Disposal 
4. Power substations 
5. Central telephone facilities/ Cell phone towers 
6. Stormwater Management Lagoons 
7. Natural Gas Supply 
8. Sewer Pump Station 

 
Infrastructure serving the community (on-site and off-site) will be approved as part of the 
development plan approval process.  

 
7. Design Standards 

 
Design Standards shall be submitted at the Master  Plan stage and may have standards 
deviating from the Jasper County Ordinances or this PDD, provided that health, safety, 
ingress/egress, and fire protection are addressed to the satisfaction of the County. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT B
CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN

Residential

pzado
Line



1 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
) 

COUNTY OF JASPER ) CSP DEVELOPMENT TRACT 

This Development Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered this day of 

, 2022 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Conduit Street Partners, LLC (a 

Maryland Limited Liability Company) ("Owner") and the governmental authority of the Jasper 

County, South Carolina ("County"). 

WHEREAS, the legislature of the State of South  Carolina has enacted the "South 

Carolina Local Government Development Agreement Act (the "Act") as set forth in Sections 6- 

31-10 through 6-31-160 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976), as amended; and, 

WHEREAS, the Act recognizes that the lack of certainty in the approval of 

development can result in a waste of economic and land resources, can discourage sound 

capital improvement planning and financing, can cause the cost of housing and development to 

escalate, and can discourage commitment to comprehensive planning." [Section 6-31-10 (B)(1)]; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the Act also states: "Development agreements will encourage the vesting of 

property rights by protecting such rights from the effect of subsequently enacted local legislation 

or from the effects of changing policies and procedures of local government agencies which 

may conflict with any term or provision of the Development Agreement or in any way hinder, 

restrict, or prevent the development of the project. Development Agreements will provide a 

reasonable certainty as to the lawful  requirements that must be met in protecting vested property 

rights, while maintaining the authority and duty of government to enforce laws and regulations 

which promote the public safety, health, and general welfare of the citizens of our State." 

[Section 6-31-10 (B)(6)]; and, 

      EXHIBIT B-2

       "REDLINE"



2  

 

 
WHEREAS, the Act further authorizes local governments, including County governments, 

to enter Development Agreements with owners to accomplish these and other goals as set forth 

in Section 6-31-10 of the Act; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Owner is the contract purchaser of approximately 38.84 acres, generally to 

be known as CSP Development, and being more particularly described in Exhibit A and proposes 

to develop, or cause to be developed, therein Residential uses, to include the potential of any 

alternative allowed uses, including accessory and complimentary uses as described in the 

Planned Development District Standards adopted contemporaneously herewith by separate 

County Ordinance No. O-2022-16;  and, 

 

WHEREAS, the County seeks to protect and preserve the natural environment and 

to secure for its citizens quality, well planned and designed development and a stable and viable 

tax base; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the County finds that the program of development proposed by Owner for 

this Property is consistent with the County’s comprehensive land use plan; and will further the 

health, safety, welfare and economic well-being of the County and its residents; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the program for development of the Property presents an opportunity for 

the County to secure quality planning and growth to protect the environment and strengthen 

and revitalized the tax base; and, 

 

WHEREAS, this Development Agreement is being made and entered between Owner 

and the County, under the terms of the Act, for the purpose of providing assurances to Owner that 

it may proceed with its development plan under  the terms hereof, as hereinafter  defined, 

consistent with Jasper County Zoning Ordinance and the Planned Development District Standards 

for the CSP Development (as herein defined) without encountering future changes in law which 

would affect the ability to develop under the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance and the Planned 

Development District Standards for the CSP Development Tract,  and for the purpose of providing 

important protection to the natural environment and long term financial stability and a viable tax 

base to the County, and for the purpose of providing certain funding and funding sources to 

assist the County in meeting the service and infrastructure needs associated with the 



3  

development authorized hereunder; 

 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions set forth herein, and 

other good and valuable consideration, including the potential economic benefits to both the 

County and Owner by entering into this Agreement, and to encourage well planned development 

by Owner, the receipt and sufficiency of such consideration being hereby acknowledged, the 

County and Owner hereby agree as follows: 

 

I. INCORPORATION. 

The above recitals are hereby incorporated into this Agreement, together with the 

South Carolina General Assembly findings as set forth in Section 6-31-10(B) of the Act. 

 

II. DEFINITIONS. 

As used herein, the following terms mean: 
 

 
"Act" means the South Carolina Local Government Development Agreement Act, as 

codified in Sections 6-31-10 through 6-31-160 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina (1976), as 

amended; incorporated herein by reference. 

 

“Adjustment Factor” shall mean the greater of three percent 3% per annum or the annual 

inflation factor supplied to local governments by the SC Department of Revenue and Fiscal Affairs 

for use by local governments in determining allowable millage increases, such adjustment to be 

applied on July 1st of each year with the first adjustment being applied July 1, 2023. 

 
 

 

“Agreement” shall mean this Development Agreement as amended by the County 

and Developer in writing from time to time. 

 
 

“Association” shall mean one (1) or more property owners’ associations established to 

maintain portions of the Property, if such is ever formulated, which is not expected if the 

for that portion(s) of the Property that is developed as rental units which are under single 

ownership, as contemplated under the PDD. 

 



4  

“BJWSA” shall mean the Beaufort/Jasper Water and Sewer Authority, its successors or 

assigns. 

“Civic Fund” shall mean the segregated interest bearing Escrow Account into which all 

Development Fees for Police, EMS and Fire are contributed pursuant to Section XI herein. 

 

“Conceptual Master Plan” shall mean the Conceptual Master Plan adopted as part of the 

Planned Development District Standards (“CSP PDD Standards”) by the County,.  

 

“CSP PDD” means the Planned Development District for the CSP Development approved 

by the County by Ordinance Number 0-2022-16, concurrently with its approval of this Agreement 

 

“CSP PDD Standards” means the development standards applicable to the CSP PDD, 

including the Conceptual Master Plan, as adopted by the County in connection with its approval of 

the CSP PDD, attached hereto or incorporated by reference as  Exhibit B. 

 

“Current Legal Owner” means Paul H. Anderson, Emily A Tillman, and John F. Anderson, 

who have contracted with Conduit Street Partners, LLC to sell the Property. 

 
“County” shall mean Jasper County, South Carolina. 

 
“DHEC” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control 

 
 

“Developer” means the Owner, along with any and all successors in title, assigns or 

lessees of the Owner who are transferred in writing from the Owner all or a portion of the 

Development Rights under this Agreement and undertake Development of any portion of the 

Property, as applicable in the context where such term is used. 

 

"Development" means the development of portions of the Property as contemplated in 

the Zoning Regulations. 

 

“Development Fees” or “Developer Fees” shall have the meaning set forth in 
Paragraph XI. 
 

 
"Development Rights" means Development undertaken by the Owner or Developers in 

accordance with the Zoning Regulations and this Development Agreement 

 



5  

“OCRM” means the South Carolina Office of Ocean and Coastal  Resource Management 

 

"Owner" means Conduit Street Partners, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, its 

corporate successors and any assignee, whereby such interest is assigned in writing to it by 

Owner. Owner has a present equitable interest in the Property by virtue of a contract to purchase 

with Current Legal Owner. 

 

“Park Fund” shall mean the segregated interest bearing Escrow Account into which all 

Development Fees for Parks are contributed pursuant to Section XI herein.  

 

 “CSP Development”, “CSP Tract” or “Property” means that certain tract of land 

described on Exhibit A, as may be amended with the Agreement of the County and Owner. 

 

 
“Project” means the Development that will occur within and upon the CSP Tract. 

 

“Roadway Fund” shall mean the segregated interest bearing account into which all 

Development Fees for Roads are contributed until utilized for public roadway improvements 

pursuant to Section XI herein. 

 

"Term" means the duration of this agreement as set forth in Section III hereof. 

 

“Zoning Ordinance” means the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance adopted November 

13, 2007, as amended through the Effective Date hereof, and attached hereto as Exhibit C and 

incorporated herein by reference. 

 

"Zoning Regulations" means the CSP PDD establishing a Planned Development District 

for the Property, and all the attachments thereto, including but not being limited to the PDD 

Conceptual Master Plan, all narratives, applications, and site development standards thereof (a 

copy of all of which is attached hereto marked Exhibit B and/or incorporated herein by reference), 

all as same may be hereafter amended by mutual agreement of the County and the Owner, this 

Development Agreement, and the Jasper County Development Ordinance(s) being codified with 

Municode© and current on Municode© through Supplement No. 3 as of June 21, 2021 as 

amended through the Effective Date of this Agreement, except as the provisions thereof may be 



6  

clarified or modified by the terms of the CSP PDD and this Agreement, and all other applicable 

statutes, ordinances and regulations governing uses and development of the Property. 

 

III. TERM. 

 
The term of this Agreement commenced on the date this Agreement was executed by the 

County and Owner and terminates Five (5) years thereafter (“Termination Date”). This is the 

maximum initial term permitted by law for the Property. Nothing in this Agreement shall be 

interpreted to preclude the Parties from extending the Termination Date by mutual agreement or 

from entering into subsequent development agreements.   

 

IV. DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY. 

 

The Property shall be developed in accordance with the Zoning Regulations and 

this Agreement. All costs charged by or to the County for reviews required by the Jasper County 

Zoning and Development Ordinance(s) shall be paid by the Owner or Developer or other party 

applying for such review as generally charged throughout the County for plan review. The County 

shall, throughout the Term, maintain or cause to be maintained,  a  procedure  for  the  processing  

of  reviews  as  contemplated  by  the  Zoning Regulations and this Agreement. 

 

V. CHANGES TO ZONING REGULATIONS. 
 

 

The Zoning Regulations relating to the Property subject to this Agreement shall 

not be amended or modified during the Term, without the express written consent of the Owner 

except in accordance with the procedures and provisions of Section 6-31-80(B) of the Act, 

which Owner shall have the right to challenge. Owner does, for itself and its successors and 

assigns, including Developers and notwithstanding the Zoning Regulations, agrees to be bound 

by the following: 

 

1. The Owner shall be required to notify the County, in writing, as and 

when Development Rights are transferred to any other party. Such information shall include 

the identity and address of the acquiring party, a proper contact person, the location and number 

of acres of the Property transferred, and the number of residential units and/or commercial 

acreage and square footage of structure, as applicable, subject to the transfer. Developers 



7  

transferring Development Rights to any other party shall be subject to this requirement of 

notification, and any entity acquiring Development Rights hereunder shall be required to file 

with the County an acknowledgment of this Agreement and a commitment to be bound by it. 

 

2. The Owners and Developers, and their respective heirs, successors and 

assigns agree that all Development, with the exception of irrigation, incidental maintenance 

facilities, and similar amenities which exist from time to time, and facilities existing at the date of 

this Agreement will be served by potable water and public sewer prior to occupancy, except as 

otherwise provided herein for temporary use, temporary being defined as one year or less. 

Septic tanks and/or wells may be allowed with the permission of BJWSA where there is a 

specific finding that such use for specific portions of the Property will comply with the overall 

environmental standards. 

 
 
 

VI. DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE. 
 

The Property shall be developed in accordance with the development schedule, 

attached as Exhibit D, or as may be amended by Owner or Developer(s) in the future to reflect 

actual market absorption. Pursuant to the Act, the failure of the Owner and any Developer to 

meet the initial development schedule shall not, in and of itself, constitute a material breach of 

this Agreement. In such event, the failure to meet the development schedule shall be judged by 

the totality of circumstances, including but not limited to the Owners and Developer(s) good faith 

efforts to attain compliance with the development schedule. These schedules are planning and 

forecasting tools only and shall not be interpreted as mandating the development pace initially 

forecast or preventing a faster pace if market conditions support a faster pace. The fact that 

actual development may take place at a different pace, based on future market forces, is 

expected and shall not be considered a default hereunder. Development activity may occur 

faster or slower than the forecast schedule, as a matter of right, depending upon market 

conditions. Furthermore, periodic adjustments to the development  schedule which may be 

submitted unilaterally by Owner / Developers in the future, shall not be considered a material 

amendment or breach of the Agreement. 

 

VII. DENSITY.  

The criteria as set forth in Section II of the CSP PDD Standards shall apply with respect 

to lot size, frontage, setbacks, impervious surface and height requirements, respectively, within the 



8  

Project. Residential density and types on the Property shall be the densities and types as set forth 

in the CSP Planned Unit Development approval, Conceptual Master Plan, and as set forth 

below: 

1. Up to a maximum of 275 residential dwelling units may be constructed. The CSP 

PDD and the CSP Conceptual Master Plan depict the expected mix and general location of allowed 

residential units, however, so long as the total residential unit count does not exceed 275 units 

and the general concept of development as shown on the Conceptual Master Plan is followed, the 

Owner shall be allowed to alter location and product mix among all allowed uses under the PDD 

at the time of Master Plan submittal when more specific design are available, based upon ongoing 

project planning and market conditions.  

2. Any such changes to exact location or product mix shall not be considered a 

material amendment hereto, or an amendment to the attached PDD or the Conceptual Master 

Plan, so long as the total allowed density is not exceeded and the use remains residential.  Such 

minor changes will be approved at the staff review level. 

 
 

VIII. RESTRICTED ACCESS 
 

The Owner and/or each Developer shall have the right (but not the obligation) to 

create restricted access communities within the Property as long as such limited access does 

not adversely affect in any material respect adjacent traffic patterns located on public rights-of-

way. 

 

IX. EFFECT OF FUTURE LAWS. 
 

 

Owner and Developers shall have vested rights to undertake Development of any 

or all of the Property in accordance with the Zoning Regulations, as defined herein and modified 

hereby, and as may be modified in the future pursuant to the terms of this Agreement for the 

entirety of the Term. Future enactments of, or changes or amendments to the County ordinances, 

including zoning or development standards ordinances, which conflict with the Zoning 

Regulations shall not apply to the Property unless the procedures and provisions of §6-31-80 

(B) of the Act are followed, which Owner shall have the right to challenge. Notwithstanding the 

above, the Property will be subject to then current fire safety standards and state and/or 

federal environmental guidelines standards of general application. 

 



9  

The parties specifically acknowledge that this Agreement shall not prohibit the 

application of any present or future building, housing, electrical, plumbing, gas or other standard 

codes, or any ad valorem tax of general application throughout the County, found by the 

County Council to be necessary to protect the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the 

County. 

 

 
X. INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES 

 

 

The County and Owner recognize that the majority of the direct costs associated 

with the Development of the Property will be borne by the Owner and Developers, and many 

other necessary services will be provided by other governmental or quasi-governmental entities, 

and not by the County. For clarification, the parties make specific note of and acknowledge 

the following: 

 

 
A. Private Roads. All roads within the Property shall be constructed by the 

Owner, Developer or other parties and maintained by such party(ies) and/or Association(s) or 

dedicated for maintenance to other appropriate entities. The County will not be responsible for 

the construction or maintenance of any private roads within the Property. The CSP 

Development project shall have private roads designed to the standards reasonably acceptable 

to the County Engineer. Road construction within SCDOT right of ways will be in accordance 

with SCDOT standards. Roadway section details shall be submitted for review at the time of 

development permit applications, as provided in the PDD. 

 

B. Public Roads. All public roads outside the Property that serve the Property 

are under the jurisdiction of the State of South Carolina or other governmental entities regarding 

access, construction, improvements and maintenance. Owner acknowledges that it must comply 

with all applicable state statues and rules and regulations of the South Carolina Department of 

Transportation (“SCDOT”) or its successor regarding access and use of such public roads. 

Future public roads may serve the Property. The County shall not be responsible for construction, 

improvements or maintenance of the public roads which now or hereafter serve the Property, 

unless it otherwise agrees in the future. Owner has engaged Bihl Engineering, LLC, of Charleston, 

SC, to prepare a traffic impact analysis which has been submitted to the SCDOT for review and 

comment. Subject to the approval of SDOT and any other the applicable jurisdictional authorities, 

the Property is proposed to be served by direct access to the existing Brickyard Road and U.S. 



10  

Highway 278. Developer shall be responsible for construction of property access improvements 

as recommended by SCDOT after review of the SCDOT required traffic study. Upon completion 

of construction of any such improvements within the SCDOT right of way, and acceptance by 

SCDOT, the SCDOT shall then maintain all roadway improvements within the public road right of 

way. 

 

C. Potable Water. Potable water will be supplied to the Property by BJWSA 

or some other legally constituted public or private provider allowed to operate in the County. 

The County shall not be responsible for any construction, treatment, maintenance or costs 

associated with water service to the Property unless the County elects to provide such 

services with the agreement of the applicable utility authority then providing such service to the 

Property. Owner will construct or cause to be constructed all related infrastructure 

improvements within the Property, which will be maintained by it or the service provider as 

provided in any utility agreement between Owner and the service provider. 

 

D. Sewage Treatment and Disposal. Sewage treatment and disposal will 

be provided by BJWSA or some other legally constituted public or private provider allowed to 

operate in the County. The County will not be responsible for any treatment, maintenance or 

costs associated with sewage treatment within the Property, unless the County elects to 

provide such service with the agreement of the applicable utility authority then providing such 

service to the Property. Nothing herein shall be construed as precluding the County from 

providing  sewer services to its residents in accordance with applicable provisions of law. Owner 

will construct or cause to be constructed all related infrastructure improvements within the 

Property, which will be maintained by it or the provider as provided in any utility agreement 

between Owner and the service provider. 

 

E. Use of Effluent. Owner agrees that treated effluent will be disposed of 

only in such manner as may be approved by DHEC and the BJWSA. 

 

F. Police Services. County shall provide police protection services to the 

Property on the same basis as is provided to other similarly situated residents and businesses 

in the County. Owner acknowledges the jurisdiction the Sheriff of Jasper County on the Property 

and shall not interfere or in any way hinder public safety activities on the Property regardless of 

whether such may be a restricted access community. Should Owner desire an increased level of 

service above the normal County level of police service, Owner shall be responsible for either 



11  

providing such services through the use of private security forces or shall pay the County’s direct 

and indirect costs for providing such increased level of service. 

 

G. Fire Services. County shall provide fire protection services to the Property 

on the same basis as is provided to other similarly situated residents and businesses in the County. 

Owner acknowledges the jurisdiction of the County’s fire department on the Property and shall 

not interfere or in any way hinder public safety activities on the Property regardless of whether 

such may be a restricted access community. 

 
H. Sanitation Services. County will not provide sanitation services to any 

properties with the Property.  Should Owner desire such services, the Owner shall provide these 

directly to the Property by a private licensed private contractor. 

I. Recreation Services. County shall provide recreation services to the 

Property on the same basis as it provides to other similarly situated residents and businesses in 

the County. 

 

J. Library Services. Such services shall be provided to residents on the 

same basis as to all other citizens of the County. 

 

K. Emergency Medical Services (EMS). Such services shall be provided to 

residents of the Property on the same basis as to all other citizens of the County. 

 

L. Drainage System. All stormwater runoff, treatment and drainage system 

improvements within the Property will be designed in accordance with the Zoning Regulations 

and Best Management Practices then current. All stormwater runoff, treatment and drainage 

system improvements for the Property shall be constructed by Owner or the Association, as 

applicable. The County will not be responsible for any construction or maintenance cost associated 

with the stormwater runoff, treatment and drainage system within the Property. 

 
M.   Storm Water Quality. Protection of the quality in nearby waters and 

wetlands is a primary goal of the County. The Owners shall be required to abide by all 

provisions of federal, state and local laws and regulations, including those established by the 

Department of Health and Environmental Control, the Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource 

Management, and their successors for the handling of storm water. In addition to the water 

quality safeguards as committed to by Owner above, notwithstanding Section IX hereof, Owner 



12  

and any developer shall adhere to any and all future ordinances or regulations of the County (or 

portions thereof) governing detention, filtration, and treatment of storm water provided those 

ordinances and regulations apply county wide, and are consistent with sound engineering 

practices.  Further provisions regarding Storm Water are included within the PDD for this Project. 

 

 
XI. DEVELOPMENT FEES 

 
1. To assist the County in meeting expenses resulting from ongoing 

development, Owner shall pay development fees for Road, Civic and Parks (“Development Fees”) 

as follows: 

2.  

 

 
DEVELOPMENT FEES 

 
AMOUNT 

 
Residential Dwelling Units 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TOTAL FEE PER 
RESIDENTIAL DWELLING 
UNIT 
 

 

$1,745 Net Roads Fee. See Section 3. 
below.  
 

$1,572.000 – Civic (Police, EMS and 
Fire) 

 

$1,683.00 – Park 

 

$5,000.00 

 

3. Net Roads Fee.  The Net Roads Fee is calculated as the proposed Jasper 

County gross Road Fee of $5,000 per unit, less an estimated per unit “public road improvement 

credit” in the amount of $3,755.  The “road improvement credit” represents a $1,000,000 

estimate of costs of all external, off-site road improvements that will be borne by Owner at its 

sole cost and expense in connection with the development of the project, including but not 

necessarily limited to the construction of Highway 278 and Brickyard Road external roadway 

improvements, divided by the estimated number of residential units that will be constructed 

within the CSP PDD (265 units).  The Net Road Fee is not intended to compensate the County 

for the construction of any private road improvements within the CSP PDD, since all private 

roads within the CSP PDD are to be constructed and maintained by Owner at Owner’s sole cost 

and expense.  Accordingly, no Development Fees for on-site, internal roads shall be collected.  



13  

 
 

 

4. All Development Fees f o r  bu i ld ing  perm i t s  issued to  Owner  

shall be collected at the time of issuance of an occupancy  permit instead of at issuance of the 

building permit.  All Development Fees shall be placed in separate interest bearing accounts 

established for Roads, Civic and Parks. The County may expend these funds for any purposes 

designed to provide or enhance such services.    

 
5. Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary contained within this 

Agreement, it is acknowledged Jasper County is in the process of considering the adoption of 

Impact Fees as allowed by §6-1-910, et. seq. of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976, as 

amended). The Property shall be exempt from any requirement to pay County Impact Fees under 

any ordinance subsequently passed and enacted  by the County, for the first five (5) years of the 

Term of this Agreement as it may be extended by mutual agreement between the Owner and 

County. In the event Impact Fees are adopted by the County, the Property shall be subject to 

such fees provided they are applied uniformly to similar properties as this Property, and provided 

further, that any Developer Fees paid by the Developer under Article XI (1), (2) and (3) shall be 

credited against the Impact Fees to the extent the Development Fees are for items included in 

the capital program incorporated in the formulation of the Impact Fees, or for the traffic 

improvements on Highway 278 and Brickyard Road as recommended by the SCDOT as itemized 

above.. It is further provided Owner and/or Developers shall be subject to the payment of any 

and all present or future permitting fees enacted by the County that are of County wide application 

and that relate to processing applications, development permits, building permits, review of plans, 

or inspection (no other capital improvement related impact, development or other extractions) 

 

6. Except as set forth in this Agreement, nothing herein shall be construed as 

relieving the Owner, its successors and assigns, from payment of any such fees or charges as may 

be assessed by entities other than the County, provided however, if an entity other than the County 

is permitted by the County to impose fees or obligations similar in nature to those contemplated by 

this Agreement, the Owner shall be entitled to  either an offset against the Development Fees of 

this Agreement the in the entire amount of such fees or obligations which are collected or an entire 

credit against the other fees allowed to be collected.  It is the intent of the parties that the fees and 

obligations contemplated by this Agreement are the only obligations which will be imposed upon 

the Property and that County shall not permit any other governmental authority to impose fees or 

obligations of a similar nature to that which are contemplated by this Agreement without providing 



14  

for a credit against the other fees for the fees due under this Agreement; provided, however, the 

provisions of this paragraph shall not preclude the County or another governmental authority from 

imposing a fee of a nature which is  for services or improvements other than those contemplated 

under this Agreement - (i.e., roads, fire/public safety), which are imposed on a consistent basis 

throughout the area regulated by such governmental authority imposing such obligations. The 

County or other governing body shall not be precluded by this Agreement from charging fees for 

delivery of services to citizens or residents (i.e., an EMS response fee or the like), nor from charging 

fees statutorily authorized in the future (i.e, a real estate transfer fee or the like) which are not 

collected as a prerequisite to approval of a plat, plan or construction. 

 
7.  The fees set forth above in Article XI are vested for the entire Property 

during the Term of this Agreement and shall not be increased. No other Development Fee shall be 

imposed in connection with the Property, except as may be allowed pursuant to Article X and fees 

set out in generally applicable ordinances such as building permitting fees and inspection fees. 

The Civic, Park and Road Development Fees are subject to an annual inflation factor equal to 

inflation factor as provided by the State of South Carolina to each local government for the 

calculation of tax millage increases.  

 
8. Any Development Fees paid and/or credits for Development Fees with 

respect to property conveyed, services performed and/or money paid as provided in this 

Agreement may be assigned by the Owner and/or Developer owning such credits and all such 

credits, shall remain valid until utilized.  The County shall recognize all such written assignments 

of such rights and shall credit same against any Development Fees which are owned pursuant to 

this Agreement. 

 

9. Development Fees for on-site, internal roads shall not be collected. All internal 

roads shall be constructed and maintained by Owner at Owner’s sole cost and expense. 

 
10. All Net Road Fees shall be utilized in the discretion of the County, for traffic 

and highway improvements as contained in the capital improvement program to be funded by the 

proposed County impact fees, or other traffic and highway improvements to Highway 278 or Argent 

Boulevard. 

 
11. Owner agrees to pay the reasonable costs and expenses of the County’s 

consultants and professionals incurred in negotiating, processing and evaluating this Agreement 

and the accompanying PDD.  County will provide sufficient documentation of these charges. Owner 



15  

shall pay such fees within 60 days of the delivery of the invoice(s). 

 
XII. PERMITTING PROCEDURES: 

 

 

1. The County agrees to allow the Developer the ability to permit and 

construct model homes without utilities (i.e., “dry models”) and to relocate the models as necessary 

within the CSP Tract. 

 
2. The County agrees that the Owner and/or any Developer is not required 

to phase development but shall have the right to do so. 

 
3. The County agrees to review all land use changes, land development 

applications, and plats in an expeditious manner in accordance with County regulations as 

modified by the CSP PDD Standards for this Project. Plans will be processed in accordance 

with t h e  then current County PDD Plan and development plan procedural requirements. 

Developer may submit these items for concurrent review with the County and other governmental 

authorities. County may give final approval to any submission but will not grant authorization 

to record plats or begin development construction activities until all permitting agencies have 

completed their reviews. 

 

4. Signage for the Project is governed by the provisions of the PDD for this 

Project. 

5. The County acknowledges that the Developer has the initial right of 

architectural review regarding improvements and building upon the property subject to normal 

review by the County Planning Commission. Developer shall be responsible for assuring such 

modifications are in compliance the Zoning Regulations. 

 
6. The County agrees to allow plat recording with a financial security 

instrument acceptable to the County prior to completion of infrastructure development and to 

issue building permits prior to completion of such bonded infrastructure in accordance with the 

Zoning Regulations as modified by the PDD Standards for this Property. However, rental or sale  

and occupancy of completed residential dwellings shall not be allowed until 

infrastructure for a particular phase of the Project is completed and public utilities are 

accepted for service by the appropriate agency. 

 
7. The County agrees the Property shall be governed by County Zoning 



16  

Regulations as in effect at the time of execution of this Agreement.  If future codes are more 

desirable to Property, then Developer may request the County to have such regulations become 

applicable to any portion of the Project that Owner designates. 

 
8. The County agrees that the Property is approved and fully vested for 

intensity, density, development fees, uses and height, and shall not have any obligations for on 

or off-site transportation or other facilities or improvements other than as provided in this 

Agreement, but must adhere to the then current requirements of the CSP PDD Standards, 

including, but not limited to the Conceptual Master Plan, and subdivision plat and development 

plan procedural guidelines. The County may not impose additional development obligations or 

regulations in connection with the ownership or development of the Property, except in 

accordance with the procedures and provisions of § 6-31-80 (B) of the Act, which the Owner shall 

have the right to challenge. 

 
9. Roadways (public or private) may utilize swale drainage systems and are 

not required to have raised curb and gutter systems, provided that pedestrian and non-vehicular 

pathways or sidewalks are provided in residential areas and to provide interconnectivity 

between interior subdivisions, commercial or institutional areas and public gathering areas. 

Public Road Improvements are subject to the drainage requirements of the public agency having 

jurisdiction and/or ownership . Roadway cross sections utilizing swale drainage will be designed, 

constructed and maintained to meet BMP standards (imposed by regulatory agencies) for 

stormwater quality. Roadway cross sections will be reviewed at time of proposed construction of 

such Roadway based upon engineering and planning standards consistent with the CSP PDD 

Standards prepared by Developer, subject to the approval of the County Planning Administrator. 

 

10. All plan review fees shall be consistent with the fees charged generally in 

the County. 

 
XIII. DEVELOPER ENTITLEMENTS 

 County acknowledges that Developer is vested with the following items: 
 

1. The County will, to the extent available, promote public transportation 

which exists within the County to service the Property. 

2. Intentionally Deleted 

 
3. All drainage systems constructed within the CSP Development shall be 



17  

owned and maintained by the Owner, its assigns, or one (1) or more Association(s) which may 

be established for various portions of the Property and the County shall have no responsibility for 

the construction, operation or maintenance of such systems. Such systems shall be constructed 

in compliance with any applicable federal, state or local requirements, utilizing the then current 

Best Management Practices requirements. 

 

4. On-site burning will be permitted within the Property upon obtaining any 

applicable federal state or local permits. 

 

5. The County agrees to cooperate with the Owner and each Developer with 

county, state and federal roadway permitting in connection with the Development of portions of 

the Property. 

 

6. County services, including, but not limited to, police, fire, sanitation, 

recreational parks and other governmental services shall be supplied to the Property in the 

same manner and to the same extent as provided to other properties within the County, subject 

to the limitations (if any) of Section X above. Subject to the limitations of Section X above (if any), 

should the Owner require enhanced services beyond that which is routinely provided within the 

County, then the County agrees that upon the written request of Owner, it shall negotiate in good 

faith with the Owner to provide such enhanced services to the Property. Any enhanced services 

shall be at the sole cost, if any, of the Owner. 

 

XIV. COMPLIANCE REVIEWS. 
 

 

As long as Owner owns any of the Property, Owner or its designee, shall meet 

with the County, or its designee, at least once, per year, during the Term to review Development 

completed by Owner in the prior year and the Development anticipated to be commenced or 

completed by Owner in the ensuing year. The Owner, or its designee, shall provide such 

information as may reasonably be requested, to include but not be limited to, acreage of the 

Property sold in the prior year, acreage of the Property under contract, the number of certificates 

of occupancy issued in the prior year, and the number anticipated to be issued in the ensuing 

year, and Development Rights transferred in the prior year, and anticipated to be transferred 

in the ensuing year. The Owner, or its designee, shall be required to compile this information 

within a reasonable time after written request by the County.  

 



18  

XV. DEFAULTS. 
 

 

The failure of the Owner, Developer or the County to comply with the terms of this 

Agreement not cured within thirty (30) days after written notice from the non-defaulting party to the 

defaulting party (as such time period may be extended with regard to non-monetary breaches for 

a reasonable period of time based on the circumstances, provided such defaulting party 

commences to cure such breach within such period and is proceeding diligently and expeditiously 

to complete such cure) shall constitute a default, entitling the non-defaulting party to pursue such 

remedies that are deemed appropriate, including specific performance; provided however no 

termination of this Agreement may be declared by the County absent its according the Owner and 

any relevant Developer the notice, hearing and opportunity to cure in accordance with the Act; and 

provided any such termination shall be limited to the portion of the Property in default, and provided 

further that nothing herein shall be deemed or construed to preclude the County or its designee 

from issuing stop work orders or voiding permits issued for Development when such Development 

contravenes the provisions of the Zoning Regulations or this Agreement.  

 

Each Party recognizes that the other Party may suffer irreparable harm from a 

material breach of this Agreement and that no adequate remedy at law may exist to enforce this 

Agreement. Consequently, the Parties agree that any non-breaching Party who seeks enforcement 

of the Agreement is entitled to seek the equitable remedies of injunction and specific performance. 

However, if there is a dispute between the County and Owner, or its successor or assign, 

concerning the terms, meaning, interpretation, rights or obligations under this Agreement (including 

any determination of material breach under the Act), the Parties agree to submit such dispute to 

prompt mediation before invoking legal proceedings. This pre-litigation mediation, conducted 

pursuant to South Carolina Rules for Alternative Dispute Resolution with subsequent judicial action 

lying in the Court of Common Pleas for Jasper County, South Carolina, shall be initiated by one 

Party notifying the other Party or Parties in writing of the dispute together with a request for 

mediation as described herein.  The Parties agree that disputes under this Agreement not involving 

the Jasper County, South Carolina Zoning Regulations are contractual matters, not appealable to 

the Zoning Board of Appeals or the Planning Commission, but to the Court of Common Pleas for 

Jasper County; however, matters involving the application of the Jasper County, South Carolina 

Zoning Regulations are not contractual between the County and the Owner, but are subject to the 

administrative review and appellate provisions involving the Zoning Board of Appeals or the 

Planning Commission.  



19  

 

A default of the Owner shall not constitute a default by Developers, and default by 

Developers shall not constitute a default by the Owner. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure 

of the Owner to reasonably pursue the required permitting/approvals for and completion of required 

traffic mitigation measures shall be grounds for the cessation of the issuance of development 

permits for future sites; provided, however, that should the County Administrator determine that 

there is a default by the Owner, he shall immediately notify the Owner in writing by certified mail, 

return receipt requested, and allow the Owner fifteen (15) days to respond with an explanation of 

why Owner is not in default or a plan for remedying the default. In the event the Owner presents a 

plan of remediation for approval by the County Administrator, whose approval shall not be 

unreasonably withheld, the parties shall agree to a commercially reasonable time to complete the 

remediation plan, and during such time no negative action shall be taken against the Owner or 

Developers. Failure to submit such a response or failure to subsequently pursue a plan of 

remediation l may result in a moratorium on future development permits, a stop work order, and 

any other consequences reasonably determined by the County Administrator. The parties 

acknowledge that owners of completed buildings within the Project shall not be obligated for the 

obligations of the Owner or Developer set forth in this Agreement, unless the Property remains 

under unified ownership or unless such owners of completed buildings have been assigned any 

rights under this Agreement.  In such case, the owners of completed buildings shall also be 

obligated for obligations set forth in this Agreement. 

 

 
XVI. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT. 

 

 

This Agreement may be modified or amended only by the written agreement of 

the County and the Owner; such written agreement may be by resolution or ordinance at the 

County’s sole discretion. No statement, action or agreement hereafter made shall be effective to 

change, amend, waive, modify, discharge, terminate or effect an abandonment of this 

Agreement in whole or in part unless such statement, action or agreement is in writing and signed 

by the party against whom such change, amendment, waiver, modification, discharge, 

termination or abandonment is sought to be enforced. 

 

This Agreement may be modified or amended as to a portion of the Property only by the 

written agreement of the County and the Owner of said portion of the Property. No statement, 

action or agreement hereafter made shall be effective to change, amend, waive, modify, 



20  

discharge, terminate, or effect an abandonment of this Agreement in whole or in part unless 

such change, amendment, waiver, modification, discharge, termination or abandonment is sought 

to be enforced. 

 

The Conceptual; Master Plan is not intended to be rigid, nor to identify exact site plans for 

future development. The location of roads, buildings, recreational amenities and other elements 

may vary at the time of permit applications when more specific designs are available, as long as 

the maximum densities set forth herein and the general concept of environmentally sensitive 

residential developments suggested by the Conceptua l  Master Plan is followed and 

respected, however, reductions in buffers and setbacks in relation to external properties and 

roadways are major modifications. Such minor variations are eligible to be approved at staff 

level in accordance with the Zoning Regulations. 

 
XVII. NOTICES. 

 

Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or communication which a 

signatory party is required to or may give to another signatory party hereunder shall be in writing 

and shall be delivered or addressed to the other at the address below set forth or to such other 

address as such party may from time to time direct by written notice given in the manner herein 

prescribed, and such notice or communication shall be deemed to have been given or made 

when communicated by, i) immediately upon delivery i f  by  personal delivery or by independent 

courier service or by facsimile or, ii) if by mail on the fifth (5th) business day after the deposit 

thereof in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified or, iii) the day of 

transmission by electronic mail transmission, i f  r e c e i p t  i s  c o n f i r m e d  o r  a  m a i l i n g  i s  

m a d e  t h e  d a y  o f  t r a n s m i s s i o n  b y  U n i t e d  S t a t e  M a i l ,  addressed as hereinafter 

provided. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals or communications shall be 

given at the following addresses: 

 

To Jasper County: 

County Administrator 
Jasper County 
358 Third Avenue 
Courthouse Square 
Post Office Box 1149 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 
Email: afulghum@jaspercountysc.gov 

 
 



21  

With Copy To: County Attorney 

Jasper County 
358 Third Avenue 
Courthouse Square 
Post Office Box 1149 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 
Email: dtedder@jaspercountysc.gob 

 
And to the Owner at: Conduit Street Partners, LLC 
 Peter Zadoretzky, Co-Managing Member 
 59 Franklin Street 
 Annapolis, Maryland  21401 
 Email: pzadoretzky@oapartners.com 
  

With Copy To: Bouhan Falligant LLP 
 John D. Northup, III 
 One West Park Avenue 
 Savannah, Georgia  31401 
 Email: jdnorthup@bouhan.com 

 
 

XVIII. ENFORCEMENT. 
 

 

Any  party  hereto  shall  have  the  right  to  enforce  the  terms,  provisions  and 

conditions of this Agreement (if not cured within the applicable cure period) by any remedies 

available at law or in equity, including specific performance, and the right to recover attorney’s 

fees and costs associated with said enforcement. 

 
XIX. GENERAL. 

 

A. Subsequent Laws. In the event state or federal laws or regulations are 

enacted after the execution of this Agreement or decisions are issued by a court of competent 

jurisdiction which prevent or preclude compliance with the Act or one or more provisions of this 

Agreement ("New Laws"), the provisions of this Agreement shall be modified or suspended as 

may be necessary to comply with such New Laws. Immediately after enactment of any such 

New Law, or court decision, a party designated by the Owners and Developer(s) and the County 

shall meet and confer in good faith in order to agree upon such modification or suspension 

based on the effect such New Law would have on the purposes and intent of this Agreement. 

During the time that these parties are conferring on such modification or suspension or 

challenging the New Laws, the County may take reasonable action to comply with such New 

Laws. Should these parties be unable to agree to a modification or suspension, either may 

petition a court of competent jurisdiction for an appropriate modification or suspension of this 



22  

Agreement. In addition, the Owner, Developers and the County each shall have the right to 

challenge the New Law preventing compliance with the terms of this Agreement. In the event 

that such challenge is successful, this Agreement shall remain unmodified and in full force and 

effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any adoption by the County of an ordinance assessing 

Impacts Fees or their equivalent shall be governed by Article XII hereof. 

B. Estoppel Certificate. The County, the Owner or any Developer may, at 

any time, and from time to time, deliver written notice to the other applicable party requesting 

such party to certify in writing: 

 
(1) that this Agreement is in full force and effect, 

 
 

(2) that this Agreement has not been amended or modified, or if so 

amended, identifying the amendments, 

 

 
(3) whether, to the knowledge of such party, the requesting party is in 

default or claimed default in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, and, if so, 

describing the nature and amount, if any, of any such default or claimed default, and 

 

(4) whether, to the knowledge of such party, any event has occurred 

or failed to occur which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would 

constitute a default and, if so, specifying each such event. 

 

C. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth and incorporates by 

reference all of the agreements. conditions and understandings among the County and the Owner 

relative to the Property and its Development and there are no promises, agreements, conditions 

or understandings, oral or written, expressed or implied, among these parties relative to the 

matters addressed herein other than as set forth or as referred to herein. 

 

D  No Partnership or Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement shall be 

deemed to create a partnership or joint venture between the County, the Owner or any Developer 

or to render such party liable in any manner for the debts or obligations of another party. 

 

E. Exhibits. All exhibits attached hereto and/or referred to in this 

Agreement are incorporated herein as though set forth in full. 



23  

 

F. Construction. The parties agree that each party and its counsel have 

reviewed and revised this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that 

ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this 

Agreement or any amendments or exhibits hereto. This Agreement should be construed so as to 

effectuate the public purpose of settlement of disputes, while protecting the public health, safety 

and welfare, including but not limited to ensuring the adequacy of public facilities and compatibility 

between developed and undeveloped lands and their uses. 

 

G. Assignment. Subject to the notification provisions hereof, Owner may 

assign its rights and responsibilities hereunder to a subsidiary or sister company. 

 

H. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 

State of South Carolina. 

 

I. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and such counterparts shall constitute 

but one and the same instrument. 

 

J. Agreement to Cooperate.   In the event of any legal action instituted by 

a third party or other governmental entity or official challenging the validity of any provision of 

this Agreement, the parties hereby agree to cooperate in defending such action; provided, 

however, each party shall retain the right to pursue its own independent legal defense. 

 

K. Eminent Domain. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit, impair 

or restrict the County's right and power of eminent domain under the laws of the State of 

South Carolina. 

 

L. No Third Party Beneficiaries. The provisions of this Agreement may be 

enforced only by the County, the Owner and Developers. No other persons shall have any rights 

hereunder. 

M. Contingencies.  This Agreement is contingent on acquisition of the Property,  

the approval of the Board of Directors of Owner and the County Council of the Jasper County, 

South Carolina.  Notwithstanding the above, Owner agrees to remain responsible for the payment 

of the processing fees incurred by the County in reviewing and approving the Planned 



24  

Development District application and Development Agreement as set forth in Article XI (11) above. 

N. Recording.  Within fourteen (14) days after execution of this Agreement, the 

Property Owner shall record the agreement with the Jasper County Register of Deeds.  The 

burdens of this Agreement are binding upon, and the benefits of this Agreement shall inure to, all 

successors in interest and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement. 

O. Agreement to Run with the Land.  This Agreement shall be recorded 

against the Property as described in Exhibit A attached hereto.  The agreements contained 

herein shall be deemed to run with the land.  The burdens of this Agreement are binding upon, 

and the benefits of the Agreement shall inure to, all successors in interest to the Parties to the 

Agreement. 

 
 

XX. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. 

 

 A. Binding Effect.   This Agreement shall be binding on the successors and 

assigns of the Owner in the ownership or Development of any portion of the Property or the Project.  

A purchaser, lessee or other successor in interest of any portion of the Property shall be solely 

responsible for performance of obligations hereunder as to the portion or portions of the Property 

so transferred.  Developers or other assignees of development tracts shall be required to execute a 

written acknowledgment accepting and agreeing to perform the obligations in this Agreement, said 

document to be in recordable form and provided to the County at the time of the recording of any 

deed transferring a development tract.  Following delivery of such documents, the previous Owner 

shall be released of any further liability or obligation with respect to the obligations. 

  

 B. Transfer of Project. The Property Owner shall be entitled to transfer any 

portion or all of the Property to a purchaser(s), subject to the following exceptions: 

  

1.  Transfer of Facilities and Service Obligations.  Simultaneous with 

the Owner conveying any portion of the Property to a third party, the Owner shall be 

required to obtain a written agreement in substantially the same form as Exhibit F, 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, expressly assuming the 

obligations with regard to the parcel conveyed and the potential Development of 

same.  The Owner shall notify the County within thirty (30) days after the conveyance 

of the property, provide the County with the applicable documents assigning the 



25  

development obligations to the transferee and record the same in the office of the 

Jasper County Register of Deeds. 

 

2. Assignment of Development Rights.  Any and all conveyances of 

any portion of the Property subject to the intensities/square footage set forth in Article 

VII herein to third party developers shall, by written agreement in substantially the 

same form as Exhibit E, assign a precise number of residential units and/or 

commercial/office square footage along with the permitted land uses that may be 

constructed on the subject property being conveyed.  The Owner shall notify the 

County within thirty (30) days of the conveyance of the property, provide the County 

with the applicable documents assigning the development rights to the transferee 

and record the same in the Office of the Jasper County Register of Deeds. 

 

3. Mortgage Lenders.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 

contained herein, the exceptions to transfer contained in this Section shall not apply: 

(i) to any mortgage lender either as the result of foreclosure of any mortgage secured 

by any portion of the Property or any other transfer in lieu of foreclosure; (ii) to any 

third party purchaser at such a foreclosure; or (iii) to any third party purchaser of such 

mortgage lender’s interest subsequent to the mortgage lender’s acquiring ownership 

of any portion of the Property as set forth above.  Furthermore, nothing contained 

herein shall prevent, hinder or delay any transfer or any portion of the Property to 

any such mortgage lender or subsequent purchaser.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

the obligations and restrictions arising under this Development Agreement run with 

the land, and a foreclosure or subsequent transfer does not extinguish the obligations 

and restrictions, arising hereunder, and such shall survive the foreclosure or 

subsequent transfer.  It is the intention of this subsection to merely forego the 

prerequisite notice of transfer documentation contained in subsections 1 and 2 

immediately above.  

 

  C. Release of Property Owner.  In the event of conveyance of all or a portion 

of the Property and compliance with the conditions set forth herein, and specifically subsections 

XX(B) (1) and (2), Conduit Street Partners, LLC shall be released from all obligations as to the 

portion of Property so transferred, and the transferee shall be substituted as the Owner under the 

Agreement as to the portion of the Property so transferred. 

 



26  

XXI. STATEMENT OF REQUIRED PROVISIONS 
 
 
 

A. Specific Statements. The Act requires that a development agreement 

must include certain mandatory provisions, pursuant to Section 6-31-60 (A). Although certain of 

these items are addressed elsewhere in this Agreement, the following listing of the required 

provisions is ser forth for convenient reference. The numbering below corresponds to the 

numbering utilized under Section 6-31-60 (A) for the required items: 

 

1. Legal Description of Property and Legal and Equitable Owners. The legal 

description of the Property is set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. The 

present legal Owners of the Property are Paul H. Anderson, Emily A. Tillman 

and John F. Anderson. Conduit Street Partners, LLC have an equitable interest 

in the Property by virtue of a purchase agreement with the present legal 

Owners. 

 

 
2. Duration of Agreement. The duration of this Agreement shall be as 

provided in Article III. 

 

3. Permitted Uses, Densities, Building Heights and Intensities. A complete 

listing and description of permitted uses, population densities, building 

intensities and heights, as well as other development  related standards, are 

contained in Zoning Regulations, as supplemented by this Agreement. Based 

on prior experience with the type of Development contemplated by the Zoning 

Regulations, it is estimated that the average size household of the Project will 

be 2.5 persons.  Based on maximum density build out, the population density of 

the Project is anticipated to be approximately 690 to 700 persons. 

 
4. Required Public Facilities. The utility services available to the Property are 

described generally above regarding water service, sewer service, cable 

and other telecommunication services, gas service, electrical services, 

telephone service and solid waste disposal. The mandatory procedures of 

the Zoning Regulations will ensure availability of roads and utilities to serve the 

residents on a timely basis. 



27  

 

5. Dedication of Land and Provisions to Protect Environmentally Sensitive 

Areas. All requirements relating to land transfers for public facilities, if any, 

are set forth above. The Zoning Regulations described above, and 

incorporated herein, contain numerous provisions for the protection of 

environmentally sensitive areas. All relevant State and Federal laws will be 

fully complied with, in addition to the important provisions set forth in this 

Agreement. 

 

6. Local Development Permits. The Development standards for the Property 

shall be as set forth in the Zoning Regulations. Specific permits must be 

obtained prior to commencing Development, consistent with the standards set 

forth in the Zoning Regulations. Building Permits must be obtained under 

applicable law for any vertical construction, and appropriate permits must be 

obtained from the State of South Carolina(OCRM) and Army Corps of 

Engineers, when applicable, prior to any impact upon freshwater wetlands. 

It is specifically understood that the failure of this Agreement to address a 

particular permit, condition, term or restriction does not relieve the Owner, its 

successors and assign, of the necessity of complying with the law governing 

the permitting requirements, conditions, terms or restrictions, unless otherwise 

provided hereunder. 

 

7. Comprehensive Plan and Development Agreement. The Development 

permitted and proposed under the Zoning Regulations and  permitted under 

this Agreement is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and with current 

land use regulations of the County, which include a Planned Development 

District for the Property. 

 

8. Terms for Public Health, Safety and Welfare. The County Council finds 

that all issues relating to public health, safety and welfare have been 

adequately considered and appropriately dealt with under the terms of this 

Agreement, the Zoning Regulations and existing laws. 

 

9. Historical Structures. Any cultural, historical structure or sites will be 

addressed through applicable federal and state regulations the permitting 



28  

process at the time of development, as required by applicable state regulations.  

No such structures or sites are known to exist. 

 
 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby set their hands and seals, effective the 

date first above written. 
 

 
SIGNATURES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE 



29  

 
 
 

 

WITNESSES: CONDUIT STREET PARTNERS, LLC 

 

 
 

   By:   
       Peter Zadoretzky 

 

   Its: Co-Manager 
 
 

 

STATE OF  ) 
 ) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF ) 
 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this   ______ day of , 2022. before me, the 
undersigned Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared the duly 
authorized official of Conduit Street Partners, LLC., known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to 
be the person whose name is subscribed to the within document, who acknowledged the due 
execution of the foregoing document. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal the day and 
year last above mentioned. 

 

 

       
      Notary Public for Maryland 

My Commission Expires:    

 

 



30  

 
 
 
 

 

WITNESSES: JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

_______________________________ By:   _____________________________ 

             Barbara B. Clark 
 

Its:     
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA. ) 
 ) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
COUNTY  OF JASPER )   
 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this day of , 2022. before me, 

the  undersigned  Notary  Public  of  the  State  and  County  aforesaid,  personally  appeared 

Barbara B. Clark, Chair of Jasper County Council, known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be 

the person whose name is subscribed to the within document, as the appropriate officials of 

the County of Jasper, South Carolina, who acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing 

document. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal the day 

and year last above mentioned. 

 
 

  
Notary Public for South Carolina 
My Commission Expires:    



31  

 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION OF CSP DEVELOPMENT TRACT 

 

 



32  

 



33  

 
 

 

EXHIBIT B-1 
 

TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 

 
The Planned Development District approval for CSP Development (the Property 

hereunder), as a d o p t e d  i n  O r d i n a n c e  O - 2 0 2 2 - 1 6 b y  t h e  J a s p e r  County 
Council on June 27, 2022, is hereby incorporated herein by reference, to include all drawings, 
plans, narratives and documentation submitted therewith, as fully as if attached hereto. The 
parties hereto may elect to physically attach said documents hereto, or may rely upon the above 
stated incorporation by reference, at their discretion. 

 
  



34  

EXHIBIT B-2 
 

TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN



35  
  



36  

 

 
EXHIBIT C 

 
TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 
ZONING REGULATIONS 

 
 

1. The Jasper County Zoning Ordinance, being codified with Municode© and current on 
Municode© through Supplement No. 3 as of June 21, 2021 as amended through the 
Effective Date of this Agreement 

 
2. The Planned District Development (PDD) Conceptual Master Plan dated January 27, 

2022 and adopted by Jasper County  by Ordinance Number O-2022-16.



37  

EXHIBIT D 

 

 TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  

 

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE 
 
 
 

Development of the Property is expected to occur over the five (5) year term of the 
Agreement, with the sequence and timing of development activity to be dictated largely 
by market conditions. The following estimate of expected activity is hereby included, 
to be updated by Owner as the development evolves over the term. 
 

 
Type of Development  Year(s) of Commencement / Completion 
 
 
Rental and/or For Sale  2023 2024 commencement,  
Residential Single Family  expected buildout 2027 

 
 
 

As stated in the Development Agreement, Article VI, actual development may occur 
more rapidly or less rapidly, based on market conditions and final product mix. 

 



























Page 1 of 6 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF JASPER 
Ordinance #O-2024-13 

An Ordinance  
of Jasper County Council 

To provide for the levy of tax for public purposes in Jasper 
County for the fiscal year beginning July 1st, 2024 and ending 
June 30th 2025 and to make appropriations for said purposes; to 
adopt and approve the Jasper County capital and operations 
budget for fiscal year 2024-2025, to adopt and approve the 
Jasper County School District capital and operations budget for 
fiscal year 2024–2025; to provide for the levy of taxation for 
fiscal year 2024–2025;  to limit the disbursements by the county 
treasurer to those appropriated by law; to provide that 
expenditures not exceed appropriations; to authorize tax 
anticipation notes; to make authorization of certain transfers; 
to provide for additional appropriations and borrowing; to 
codify Jasper County rates and fees; to provide for lapsing funds 
and continuing appropriations for subsequent years; to require 
certain agencies and departments to file accountings; to require 
the treasurer to sign general fund checks; to provide special 
rules for travel and training disbursements; to provide for 
travel reimbursements; to provide compliance with act no. 317 
of 1990; to provide certain benefits to council members; to 
provide for county commission and committee stipends; to 
provide for jury mileage; to adopt property values; and to 
provide for effective date of this ordinance. 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Jasper County Council in council duly assembled and by the 
authority of the same: 

SECTION 1.  Appropriation for Jasper County Capital and General Operations 
Budget.  There is hereby appropriated from revenues to be collected from the stated 
sources the following sums for the Jasper County Capital and Operational needs and for 
the purposes set forth for fiscal year 2024 – 2025: 



Page 2 of 6 

JASPER COUNTY  
CAPITAL AND GENERAL OPERATIONS BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 

REVENUE EXPENDITURES 
County Property Tax Levy $  33,205,600 Emergency Services $  18,254,423 
Local Option Sales Tax $    4,862,500 Sheriff $    9,928,300 
Fee in Lieu  $    2,100,000 Detention Center $    4,139,000 
S.C. Local Government Fund
Allocation $    1,350,300 

Engineering Services and 
Solid Waste $    4,250,700 

Cash Carry Forward $    5,944,052 Agency Appropriations $    2,683,079 
All Other Revenue $  13,085,550 All Other Expenditures $  21,292,500 

Total Revenue $  60,548,002 Total Expenditures $  60,548,002 

County Debt Tax Levy $    3,120,400 County Debt $    3,120,400 

County Grand Total $  63,668,402 County Grand Total $  63,668,402 

The detailed Operations Budget containing line-by-line accounts by department and /or 
agency is hereby adopted as part of this Ordinance.  Management of individual accounts 
for the functions of elected officials shall be the responsibility of that elected official.  

SECTION 2.  Appropriation for Jasper County School District Capital and General 
Operations Budget.  There is hereby appropriated to the 
School Operations Budget the remaining non-appropriated funds collected through School 
District ad valorem taxation in Fiscal Year 2023-2024, which were in excess of School 
District funds appropriated by the FY 2023- 2024 budget ordinance. There is further hereby 
appropriated from revenues to be collected from the stated sources the following sums for 
the Jasper County School District Capital and Operational needs and for the purposes set 
forth for fiscal year 2024 - 2025: 



Page 3 of 6 
 

JASPER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CAPITAL AND GENERAL OPERATIONS BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 
 

   REVENUES                                                         APPROPRIATIONS 
 
School Property                                  School District                                 
Operations Tax Levy $ 30,384,644        Operations Tax Levy     $ 30,384,644  
School Debt   $   6,500,878          School Debt  $   6,500,878 
School Grand Total  $ 36,885,522          School Grand Total       $ 36,885,522 
 
 
SECTION 3.  Levy. There is hereby levied upon the taxable property of Jasper County a 
sufficient number of mills by the County Council from assessment of the property therein 
which, together with fines, forfeitures and taxes collected by various tax offices and all 
income of the County shall raise the amount therein appropriated and for the purpose herein 
stated.  
 

 Millage 
County  139.00   
County Debt 12.00 
School 166.00 
School Debt 25.00 
Total Mils 342.00 

 
 

Cherry Point Fire District 31.00 
 
SECTION 4.  Disbursement by Treasurer.  The Treasurer is directed to disburse to or 
on behalf of the activities described in Sections 1 and 2 no more than the amount 
appropriated and to hold all additional revenues referred to herein and all revenues 
collected as a result of and through the levied millage, over and above the appropriations 
stated herein, in an interest bearing account of the County, pending future appropriation by 
the County Council.  In the event that the actual collection of revenue shall be less than the 
appropriations made in Section 1 or 2, then appropriations shall be reduced to a sum equal 
to the amount of revenue actually collected. 
 
SECTION 5.  Expenditures Not to Exceed Appropriations. Expenditures shall not 
exceed appropriations without the consent of the County Council.  County Council 
authorization to amend the budget shall be ratified by ordinance through a budget 
amendment. 
 
SECTION 6. Tax Anticipation Notes Authorized.   For the purpose of paying in cash 
for the foregoing and all other general ordinary County expenses for Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 as authorized by this ordinance or by any other appropriation ordinance hereafter 
passed in and for said fiscal year, the County Council of Jasper County is hereby 
authorized, empowered, and directed to borrow from time to time as may be necessary on 



Page 4 of 6 
 

the official note or notes of Jasper County, or other evidence or evidences of indebtedness, 
in anticipation of the collection of the taxes herein levied, provided that all loans made 
from private persons, firms, or corporations shall not exceed $6,000,000  in the aggregate.  
Such borrowing shall be sold in such manner and upon such terms as the County 
Administrator shall deem in the best interest of Jasper County, upon the advice of the 
County’s financial advisor and counsel.  Such borrowing may take the form of a public or 
private sale, as deemed appropriate by the Administrator.  Such sum or sums so borrowed 
shall constitute a valid and prior claim against the said taxes herein levied and against 
Jasper County, and shall also be secured by a pledge of the full faith, credit, and taxing 
power of Jasper County.  The Administrator, and any other officers or staff of Jasper 
County as are deemed by the Administrator necessary or convenient to the accomplishment 
of the borrowing authorized herein, are hereby authorized to execute all agreements, 
contracts, certificates, undertakings, disclosures, and other documentation as is convenient 
or necessary to facilitate such borrowing. 
 
SECTION 7.  Authorization of Transfer of Funds.  Each department head is permitted, 
subject to the County Administrator’s (or his designee’s) approval, to transfer 
appropriation(s) between object classifications codes within that department. Transfers 
from objects 2000 through 2080 (personnel codes) are not permitted under any 
circumstances without the approval of the County Administrator.  The County 
Administrator is permitted, when it is in the best interest of the individual County 
departments or agencies, to transfer appropriations between departments (from one 
department to another department) and between the County’s General Fund, Capital 
Projects Fund and Capital Improvements Fund (from one fund to another fund up to 
$50,000.   
 
SECTION 8.  Additional Appropriations and Borrowing.   If circumstances arise 
which, in the judgment of a majority of County Council, require the expenditure of a greater 
amount than herein above enumerated then the County Administrator shall have and is 
hereby given the right by this Ordinance to transfer funds between the County’s General 
Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Funds and may also appropriate 
available funds for a purpose not mentioned or referred to in this Ordinance, and the County 
Treasurer is authorized to borrow, if necessary, such amount as may be required to meet 
such increases or additional appropriations and may pledge the full faith and credit of 
Jasper County for the payment of the amount borrowed.  Should actual funding sources be 
greater than projected in this Ordinance, the County Administrator may revise budgeted 
revenues and expenditures or direct the increase to be held for future year’s disbursements.  
 
SECTION 9.  Jasper County Rates and Fees.  The rates and fees attached hereto that are 
not included or provided for in either South Carolina law or other Jasper County law shall 
hereby be declared to be part thereof this Ordinance and shall be followed during 
implementation of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget for Jasper County.  
 
SECTION 10.  Lapsing of Funds and Continuing Appropriations for Subsequent 
Year.  Budget appropriations of monies received by County departments and existing at 
the close of the fiscal year shall revert to the appropriate fund of the County.  Departments 
wishing to carry over appropriations into the next succeeding fiscal year must submit the 
request in writing to the County Administrator no later than August 1, 2024, for approval 



Page 5 of 6 
 

by the County Council.  These carryovers must be for specific items budgeted in the 2023 
- 2024 fiscal year for which unforeseen circumstances prevented the funds from being spent 
during the current year.  Any “excess” funds accumulated at the end of the fiscal year shall 
be used only with the approval of County Council either to fund capital assets or other 
expenditures needed by the County or placed in the appropriate reserve fund by the County 
Administrator.  Departments charged with the proper keeping and reporting of County 
accounts shall maintain both revenue and expenditure ledgers, and under no circumstances, 
except in such instances as over-payment errors, authorized transfers, or supplemental 
appropriations, shall entries except those enumerated in this Ordinance, be recorded on 
appropriations and/or expenditure ledgers.  
 
Should the County Council in any subsequent year fail to enact an appropriation ordinance 
for Jasper County, the appropriation and tax levy herein set forth shall be the appropriation 
ordinance for such subsequent year for Jasper County. 
 
SECTION 11. Agencies and Departments to File Accounting.  Agencies or departments 
receiving appropriated funds under this ordinance, at the County Council’s request, shall 
file an accounting for use of such funds.  This accounting shall be available for examination 
or inspection by the citizens of Jasper County. 
 
SECTION 12. Treasurer to Sign Checks. The Jasper County Treasurer or the Treasurer’s 
designee shall sign all general fund checks. 
 
SECTION 13.  Special Rules for Travel and Training Disbursements.  The elected 
officials, appointed officials and/or department heads who receive an annual appropriation 
for travel and training shall be required to present an itemized statement and all appropriate 
receipts for reimbursement of the same.  No official or department head shall be reimbursed 
in excess of their annual appropriation unless such expenditures are approved in advance 
by the County Administrator. 
 
SECTION 14.  Travel Reimbursements.  All Jasper County employees who have reason 
to travel outside of Jasper County on official County business shall be reimbursed for same 
with respect to the County mileage rate and the latest approved subsistence schedule both 
of which are published in the Jasper County Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual.     
All out of state travel must be approved in advance by the County Administrator. 
 
SECTION 15.  Compliance with Act No. 317 of 1990.  Section 1 of the Fiscal Year 2024–
2025 Budget Ordinance contains provisions for the rollback against County property tax 
of $3,926,400 of local option sales tax revenue for the fiscal year 2024-2025.  The 
$3,926,400 meets or exceeds the amount required as rollback in Act No. 317, 1990 Acts 
and Joint Resolutions 1822.  All other local option tax discount revenue shall become 
general fund expenditures, as budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget.  The local 
option sales tax discount factor for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 shall be .0007 which determines 
the amount of discount on individual tax bills.  The factor was determined by using the 
formula prescribed by Act No. 317, 1990 Acts and Joint Resolutions 1822. 
 
SECTION 16. Council Member Benefits.  The Council Members wishing to be on the 
County Health Insurance Plan may do so under the same guidelines as the other County 



Page 6 of 6 

employees.  Council Members, who do not choose to be on the County’s Health Insurance 
Plan, may be compensated with additional benefits not to exceed the value of a County 
employee’s health insurance benefit paid by the County.  Additional benefits that may be 
offered in lieu of health insurance include, but are not limited to, life insurance, dental 
insurance, existing 401K, new 401K accounts, existing IRA accounts or new IRA accounts, 
deferred compensation and credit union.  These benefits will be limited to those plans 
already in place by the County and the County Administrator will have full discretion as to 
which benefits are offered.  These benefits may not be exchanged for monetary 
compensation under any circumstances. 

SECTION 17.  Commission and Committee Stipends. This budget ordinance limits the 
payment of stipends to members of the Jasper County Planning Commission to one stipend 
per month in the amount of $100.00. These stipends shall be paid providing the member 
attends the scheduled meeting.  A quorum of the committees must be in attendance at the 
scheduled meeting for the stipend to be paid. The Board of Assessment Appeals and the 
Board of Zoning Appeals members will be paid an annual stipend of $500.00. 

SECTION 18.  Juror Mileage. The Clerk of Court is hereby authorized and required to 
reimburse jurors for mileage for each day’s attendance upon court at the current Internal 
Revenue Service published rate for mileage. 

SECTION 19.  Property Values Adopted. The property values established by the County 
Auditor, County Assessor and the South Carolina Department of Revenue, based on Dec. 
31, 2023, valuation are adopted and ordered implemented for tax year 2024. 

SECTION 20. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect on July 1, 2024. 

Jasper County Council  

BY:  _________________________ 
L. Martin Sauls IV, Chairman

ATTEST: 

_________________________ 
 Wanda H. Giles,   
Clerk to Council 

First Reading:  5/06/2024 
Second Reading: 5/20/2024 
Public Hearings: 5/20/2024 
Adopted: 6/03/2024  

Reviewed for form and draftsmanship by the Jasper County Attorney. 

__________________________  _______________ 
David Tedder  Date 



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

541,000.00 .00 .00 400,000.00

10,000.00 8,992.32 10,000.00 10,000.00

29,184.00 .00 .00 .00

$580,184.00 $8,992.32 $10,000.00 $410,000.00

100,000.00 115,235.00 115,000.00 115,000.00

$100,000.00 $115,235.00 $115,000.00 $115,000.00

926,700.00 751,763.09 987,100.00 987,100.00

$926,700.00 $751,763.09 $987,100.00 $987,100.00

575,000.00 252,668.57 450,000.00 575,000.00

40,000.00 32,599.60 30,000.00 30,000.00

$615,000.00 $285,268.17 $480,000.00 $605,000.00

.00 627.70 .00 .00

950,000.00 534,869.68 .00 615,000.00

$950,000.00 $535,497.38 $0.00 $615,000.00

4,000.00 4,581.75 .00 4,000.00

500,000.00 160,498.17 .00 760,000.00

140,000.00 .00 .00 140,000.00

$644,000.00 $165,079.92 $0.00 $904,000.00

65,000.00 111,298.40 100,000.00 100,000.00

$65,000.00 $111,298.40 $100,000.00 $100,000.00

.00 80,753.95 3,749,000.00 3,749,000.00

$0.00 $80,753.95 $3,749,000.00 $3,749,000.00

60,000.00 175,365.82 .00 125,000.00

$60,000.00 $175,365.82 $0.00 $125,000.00Department   063 - CLERK OF COURT Totals $60,000.00

Department   064 - MAGISTRATE-LEE (TRAFFIC COURT)

Department   062 - INTERDEPARTMENTAL Totals $0.00

Department   063 - CLERK OF COURT
1507 CLERK OF COURT FINES 60,000.00

Department   060 - PLANNING Totals $65,000.00

Department   062 - INTERDEPARTMENTAL
1710 ARPA FUND REVENUE .00

Department   057 - SHERIFF Totals $644,000.00

Department   060 - PLANNING
1531 DEVELOPMENT FEES 65,000.00

1608 SRO REIMBURSEMENT 500,000.00

1609 AIRPORT OFFICER REIMBURSEMENT 140,000.00

Department   056 - EMERGENCY SERVICES Totals $950,000.00

Department   057 - SHERIFF
1509 SHERIFF-CIVIL FEES 4,000.00

Department   056 - EMERGENCY SERVICES
1512 FIRE INSURANCE CLAIMS .00

1517 EMS REVENUE 950,000.00

1603 SIGN FEES 40,000.00

Department   055 - BUSINESS LICENSES Totals $615,000.00

Department   054 - CHERRY POINT FIRE DEPT. Totals $926,700.00

Department   055 - BUSINESS LICENSES
1600 BUSINESS LICENSE FEES 575,000.00

Department   053 - TAX COLLECTOR Totals $100,000.00

Department   054 - CHERRY POINT FIRE DEPT.
1501 CHERRY PT. FIRE DISTRICT 926,700.00

Department   048 - EMERGENCY TELECOMMUNICATIONS $580,184.00

Department   053 - TAX COLLECTOR
1506 DELINQUENT TAX FEES 100,000.00

1536 RADIO FEES 10,000.00

1580 DISPATCHER SALARY REIMB. 29,184.00

Fund   010 - GENERAL FUND
REVENUE

Department   048 - EMERGENCY TELECOMMUNICATIONS
1523 911 FEES 541,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
1 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
250,000.00 292,996.72 .00 318,000.00

$250,000.00 $292,996.72 $0.00 $318,000.00

20,000.00 14,347.90 20,000.00 20,000.00

$20,000.00 $14,347.90 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

5,200.00 4,022.09 5,200.00 5,200.00

$5,200.00 $4,022.09 $5,200.00 $5,200.00

1,000.00 1,056.50 1,000.00 1,000.00

$1,000.00 $1,056.50 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

8,800.00 9,790.36 .00 8,800.00

$8,800.00 $9,790.36 $0.00 $8,800.00

667,500.00 .00 667,500.00 667,500.00

200,000.00 .00 200,000.00 195,000.00

$867,500.00 $0.00 $867,500.00 $862,500.00

6,000.00 7,960.00 8,500.00 8,500.00

35,000.00 28,985.50 35,000.00 35,000.00

$41,000.00 $36,945.50 $43,500.00 $43,500.00

5,000.00 5,332.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

$5,000.00 $5,332.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

10,000.00 .00 42,000.00 42,000.00

$10,000.00 $0.00 $42,000.00 $42,000.00

16,000.00 60,600.00 50,000.00 50,000.00

4,000.00 .00 .00 .00

$20,000.00 $60,600.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

700,000.00 136,280.00 .00 740,000.00

.00 .00 .00 200,000.00

$700,000.00 $136,280.00 $0.00 $940,000.00Department   081 - ROADS & BRIDGES Totals $700,000.00

Department   081 - ROADS & BRIDGES
1519 ROAD MAINTENANCE FEE 700,000.00

1569 GRANTS .00

1604 RENTS 4,000.00

Department   078 - PARKS & RECREATION Totals $20,000.00

Department   077 - SGT. JASPER PARK Totals $10,000.00

Department   078 - PARKS & RECREATION
1518 PARKS/RECREATION FEES 16,000.00

Department   076 - MAGISTRATE-JOHNSON $5,000.00

Department   077 - SGT. JASPER PARK
1518 PARKS/RECREATION FEES 10,000.00

Department   075 - CORONER Totals $41,000.00

Department   076 - MAGISTRATE-JOHNSON (HARDEEVILLE)
1510 MAGISTRATE FINES 5,000.00

Department   075 - CORONER
1508 CORONER FEES 6,000.00

1565 CORONER SUPPLEMENTAL 35,000.00

1594 LOCAL ACCOM./HOSP. TAX 200,000.00

Department   074 - DEVELOPMENT SERVICES Totals $867,500.00

Department   072 - ELECTION COMMISSION Totals $8,800.00

Department   074 - DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
1591 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUNDS 667,500.00

Department   069 - ASSESSOR Totals $1,000.00

Department   072 - ELECTION COMMISSION
1566 ELECTION COMMISSION 8,800.00

Department   068 - VETERANS AFFAIRS Totals $5,200.00

Department   069 - ASSESSOR
1582 MOBILE HOME DECALS 1,000.00

Department   065 - PROBATE JUDGE Totals $20,000.00

Department   068 - VETERANS AFFAIRS
1568 VA SALARY SUPPLEMENT 5,200.00

Department   064 - MAGISTRATE-LEE (TRAFFIC COURT) $250,000.00

Department   065 - PROBATE JUDGE
1511 PROBATE JUDGE FINES 20,000.00

1510 MAGISTRATE FINES 250,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
2 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget

100,000.00 58,009.50 .00 75,000.00

$100,000.00 $58,009.50 $0.00 $75,000.00

990,000.00 1,043,549.38 999,999.00 1,000,000.00

$990,000.00 $1,043,549.38 $999,999.00 $1,000,000.00

325,000.00 431,817.38 420,000.00 420,000.00

$325,000.00 $431,817.38 $420,000.00 $420,000.00

36,000.00 54,106.67 60,000.00 60,000.00

$36,000.00 $54,106.67 $60,000.00 $60,000.00

28,000.00 .00 .00 .00

$28,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

38,000.00 .00 .00 .00

$38,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

.00 29,143.50 .00 38,000.00

$0.00 $29,143.50 $0.00 $38,000.00

.00 7,418.00 .00 9,800.00

$0.00 $7,418.00 $0.00 $9,800.00

350,000.00 175,000.00 350,000.00 350,000.00

1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00

2,880.00 42,720.07 25,200.00 25,200.00

240,000.00 177,490.05 222,800.00 222,800.00

.00 1,877.57 .00 .00

.00 71.10 .00 .00

$593,880.00 $397,158.79 $599,000.00 $599,000.00

.00 7,950.67 .00 .00

31,425,200.00 21,236,948.70 36,404,900.00 30,321,800.00

.00 1,518,515.46 .00 1,751,800.001503 AUTO TAXES .00

Department   170 - GENERAL REVENUES
1501 CHERRY PT. FIRE DISTRICT .00

1502 PROPERTY TAXES 31,425,200.00

1730 MERCHANDISE SALES .00

Department   103 - RIDGELAND-CLAUDE DEAN AIRPORT $593,880.00

1720 AIRPORT FUEL SALES 240,000.00

1725 CATERING SERVICES .00

1604 RENTS 1,000.00

1715 AIRPORT FEES 2,880.00

Department   098 - MAGISTRATE-DORE Totals $0.00

Department   103 - RIDGELAND-CLAUDE DEAN AIRPORT
1575 ACCOMMODATIONS TAX 350,000.00

Department   096 - MAGISTRATE-EDWARDS (BOND $0.00

Department   098 - MAGISTRATE-DORE
1510 MAGISTRATE FINES .00

Department   094 - MAGISTRATE-CARTER (CIVIL COURT) $38,000.00

Department   096 - MAGISTRATE-EDWARDS (BOND COURT)
1510 MAGISTRATE FINES .00

Department   093 - VICTIM'S WITNESS Totals $28,000.00

Department   094 - MAGISTRATE-CARTER (CIVIL COURT)
1510 MAGISTRATE FINES 38,000.00

Department   090 - AGENCY APPROPRIATIONS Totals $36,000.00

Department   093 - VICTIM'S WITNESS
1525 VICTIMS/WITNESS FUNDS 28,000.00

Department   086 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT Totals $325,000.00

Department   090 - AGENCY APPROPRIATIONS
1552 MINI-BOTTLE REVENUE 36,000.00

Department   085 - REGISTER OF DEEDS Totals $990,000.00

Department   086 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT
1520 BUILDING PERMITS 325,000.00

Department   084 - SOLID WASTE Totals $100,000.00

Department   085 - REGISTER OF DEEDS
1532 REGISTER OF DEEDS 990,000.00

Department   084 - SOLID WASTE
1601 RECYCLING FEES 100,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
3 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
760,170.00 1,090,104.99 .00 1,000,000.00

142,800.00 109,777.98 .00 147,000.00

5,242,060.00 1,231,009.40 5,700,000.00 1,604,600.00

(1,278,214.00) .00 .00 .00

(3,721,863.00) 3,460,445.62 (4,047,000.00) 3,257,900.00

2,100,000.00 3,210,724.37 2,100,000.00 2,100,000.00

8,000.00 81,081.20 100,000.00 100,000.00

.00 98.00 .00 .00

1,285,297.00 2,360,862.04 .00 1,350,300.00

.00 12,936.03 .00 .00

52,875.00 95,625.00 75,000.00 75,000.00

31,250.00 141,051.33 29,750.00 29,750.00

32,980.00 .00 32,000.00 32,000.00

24,000.00 21,942.00 29,000.00 29,000.00

.00 46,946.00 .00 .00

35,700.00 18,271.66 25,000.00 25,000.00

.00 19,726.93 27,000.00 27,000.00

475,000.00 1,391,502.20 500,000.00 500,000.00

13,300.00 .00 .00 .00

11,297,525.00 .00 .00 5,944,052.00

30,700.00 .00 .00 .00

.00 (80,753.95) .00 .00

.00 39,420.65 .00 144,900.00

$47,956,780.00 $36,014,186.28 $40,975,650.00 $48,440,102.00

$55,937,044.00 $40,826,014.62 $49,529,949.00 $60,548,002.00

615,000.00 624,404.20 821,171.00 819,000.00

.00 .00 206,000.00 .00

34,500.00 .00 .00 46,900.00

75,000.00 81,298.79 82,259.00 83,000.00

53,000.00 52,036.90 67,087.00 62,700.00

147,000.00 161,493.54 186,167.00 182,300.00

76,800.00 83,960.45 75,473.00 120,600.00

460.00 413.47 1,690.00 1,700.00

6,700.00 11,365.64 79,668.00 77,900.002060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 6,700.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 76,800.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 460.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 53,000.00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 147,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 34,500.00

2020 OVERTIME 75,000.00

Department   045 - LEVY FIRE DEPARTMENT
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 615,000.00

2005 NEW PERSONNEL .00

Department   170 - GENERAL REVENUES Totals $43,686,413.00

REVENUE TOTALS $51,666,677.00

EXPENSE

1607 TRANSFER IN .00

1630 WATERCRAFT .00

1590 CASH CARRY FORWARD 7,027,158.00

1597 MERCHANTS' INVENTORY 30,700.00

1588 MISC. REVENUE 475,000.00

1589 COMCAST CABLE 13,300.00

1585 HARGRAY CATV FRANCHISE 35,700.00

1586 FRANCHISE FEE--CABLE TELEVISION .00

1583 TAX ACCT AUTO DECAL FEE 24,000.00

1584 SALE OF PROPERTY .00

1575 ACCOMMODATIONS TAX 31,250.00

1576 SAVANNAH WILDLIFE REFUGE 32,980.00

1555 TITLE IV FUNDS .00

1572 SALARY SUPPLEMENTS 52,875.00

1530 VITAL RECORDS .00

1550 LOCAL GOVERNMENT FUND ALLOCATION 1,285,297.00

1516 FEE IN LIEU 2,100,000.00

1522 INTEREST 8,000.00

1514 L.O.S.T. CARRY FORWARD (1,278,214.00)

1515 L.O.S.T. CREDIT (3,721,863.00)

1505 MOTOR CARRIER TAXES 142,800.00

1513 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 5,242,060.00

1504 DELINQUENT TAXES 760,170.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
4 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2,400.00 2,497.43 3,000.00 .00

2,000.00 4,923.33 2,500.00 2,500.00

10,000.00 161.89 10,000.00 10,000.00

.00 .00 500,000.00 .00

20,000.00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00

12,000.00 16,221.18 20,000.00 20,000.00

8,500.00 5,842.21 10,000.00 10,000.00

144,000.00 82,794.00 144,000.00 144,000.00

5,000.00 464.39 5,000.00 5,000.00

15,600.00 1,867.85 15,600.00 15,600.00

1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00

.00 8,223.85 5,000.00 9,000.00

24,000.00 12,786.30 24,000.00 17,000.00

21,000.00 .00 21,000.00 21,000.00

15,000.00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00

15,000.00 6,682.04 50,000.00 50,000.00

$1,304,460.00 $1,157,437.46 $2,366,115.00 $1,734,700.00

3,500,000.00 3,078,711.38 4,300,316.00 4,000,000.00

200,000.00 308,946.69 250,000.00 200,000.00

287,000.00 .00 1,573,544.00 .00

205,400.00 .00 .00 246,800.00

510,000.00 647,837.97 550,000.00 550,000.00

315,000.00 305,400.84 328,975.00 370,800.00

17,900.00 39,862.36 46,400.00 46,400.00

875,000.00 829,463.32 948,365.00 987,800.00

527,000.00 403,136.64 474,256.00 474,000.00

.00 .00 9,620.00 10,000.00

110,000.00 116,478.78 408,961.00 461,000.00

2,200.00 1,064.28 2,200.00 .00

5,000.00 1,740.40 7,500.00 7,500.00

200,000.00 166,675.53 200,000.00 200,000.00

1,634,332.00 1,087,686.95 1,550,000.00 .00

300,000.00 247,340.41 300,000.00 300,000.00

339,900.00 227,817.79 340,000.00 340,000.00

228,049.00 197,209.98 300,000.00 300,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 339,900.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 150,000.00

2307 NEW VEHICLES 925,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 300,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 5,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 200,000.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 110,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 2,200.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 527,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE .00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 17,900.00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 875,000.00

2020 OVERTIME 510,000.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 315,000.00

2005 NEW PERSONNEL 287,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 205,400.00

Department   046 - FIRE & RESCUE
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 3,500,000.00

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 200,000.00

5095 BUILDING REPAIRS 15,000.00

Department   045 - LEVY FIRE DEPARTMENT Totals $1,304,460.00

4130 FIREMEN-SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE 21,000.00

5055 FIREFIGHTER PHYSICALS 15,000.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE .00

2825 UTILITIES 24,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 15,600.00

2670 MEMBERSHIP & DUES 1,500.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 144,000.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 5,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 12,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 8,500.00

2307 NEW VEHICLES .00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE 20,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 10,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 2,400.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
5 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
250,000.00 240,704.83 275,000.00 275,000.00

6,500.00 1,086.59 8,000.00 8,000.00

46,000.00 10,351.75 46,000.00 25,000.00

265,000.00 171,363.06 265,000.00 265,000.00

158,000.00 135,759.89 100,000.00 100,000.00

6,000.00 315.00 6,000.00 6,000.00

.00 1,547.97 .00 .00

30,000.00 5,000.00 35,000.00 45,000.00

566,606.00 .00 8,350,000.00 .00

60,000.00 41,947.00 60,000.00 60,000.00

50,000.00 58,670.23 60,000.00 60,000.00

1,221,100.00 47,533.07 .00 101,100.00

5,000.00 3,981.91 5,000.00 5,000.00

45,000.00 30,610.00 45,000.00 45,000.00

287,249.00 103,151.48 200,000.00 200,000.00

.00 .00 276,000.00 .00

12,000.00 .00 .00 .00

175,000.00 125,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00

$12,440,236.00 $8,636,396.10 $21,396,137.00 $9,764,400.00

138,000.00 159,580.78 228,000.00 228,000.00

55,000.00 .00 198,800.00 .00

6,900.00 .00 .00 13,000.00

.00 567.01 .00 .00

11,000.00 11,673.13 17,037.00 17,100.00

.00 17,350.19 30,220.00 30,300.00

30,000.00 12,060.14 15,517.00 15,600.00

36,000.00 29,506.50 47,454.00 47,500.00

.00 .00 3,378.00 3,400.00

6,000.00 5,686.32 21,179.00 21,200.00

3,500.00 .00 6,300.00 .00

125,000.00 20,743.41 125,000.00 25,000.00

26,000.00 37,219.70 35,000.00 35,000.00

4,000.00 3,251.72 8,000.00 8,000.00

9,000.00 12,730.12 15,000.00 15,000.00

7,500.00 3,909.88 7,500.00 7,500.002645 UNIFORMS 7,500.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 4,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 9,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 125,000.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 26,000.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 6,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 3,500.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 36,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE .00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER .00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 30,000.00

2020 OVERTIME .00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 11,000.00

2005 NEW PERSONNEL 55,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 6,900.00

Department   046 - FIRE & RESCUE Totals $10,999,000.00

Department   047 - COMMUNITY RISK REDUCTION DEPT. 
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 138,000.00

9073 ROSELAND FIRE DEPT. 12,000.00

9075 FIRE TOWER RD. FIRE STATION 175,000.00

5095 BUILDING REPAIRS 200,000.00

9030 RIDGELAND FIRE DEPT. .00

4900 INFECTION CONTROL 5,000.00

5055 FIREFIGHTER PHYSICALS 45,000.00

4200 VOLUNTEER PAY 50,000.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS 1,221,100.00

3752 CAPITAL OUTLAY .00

4130 FIREMEN-SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE 60,000.00

2825 UTILITIES .00

3430 MEDICAL CONTROL PHYSICIAN 30,000.00

2645 UNIFORMS 158,000.00

2670 MEMBERSHIP & DUES 6,000.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 46,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 265,000.00

2431 MEDICAL SUPPLIES 250,000.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 6,500.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
6 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
4,000.00 694.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

50,000.00 26,339.35 75,000.00 50,000.00

$511,900.00 $341,312.25 $837,385.00 $520,600.00

734,000.00 518,486.00 667,455.00 667,500.00

123,000.00 55,985.21 123,000.00 123,000.00

.00 .00 279,500.00 279,500.00

40,500.00 .00 .00 54,300.00

135,000.00 117,591.96 275,000.00 275,000.00

65,500.00 51,497.41 51,061.00 81,600.00

186,000.00 127,401.41 131,890.00 210,600.00

180,000.00 60,999.49 113,152.00 80,000.00

4,000.00 3,595.38 2,340.00 3,900.00

25,000.00 22,889.95 18,356.00 30,000.00

90,000.00 30,674.96 90,000.00 .00

5,000.00 5,180.14 5,000.00 5,000.00

119,000.00 76,463.29 119,000.00 119,000.00

218,500.00 124,218.11 229,500.00 229,500.00

202,000.00 114,470.36 202,000.00 202,000.00

260,000.00 136,433.62 130,000.00 130,000.00

5,000.00 8,655.21 5,000.00 5,000.00

15,000.00 12,421.12 15,000.00 15,000.00

36,500.00 20,494.51 36,500.00 36,500.00

4,000.00 6,337.16 10,000.00 10,000.00

3,000.00 972.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

743,369.00 588,670.04 .00 .00

272,506.00 30,165.41 50,000.00 50,000.00

$3,466,875.00 $2,113,602.74 $2,556,754.00 $2,610,400.00

448,000.00 449,080.82 474,000.00 474,000.00

.00 .00 85,000.00 85,000.00

22,600.00 .00 .00 24,400.00

2,700.00 2,743.48 2,700.00 2,700.00

26,250.00 33,022.12 36,500.00 36,500.00

68,750.00 79,676.42 68,750.00 68,800.00

48,250.00 52,223.85 48,250.00 48,300.002040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 48,250.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 26,250.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 68,750.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 22,600.00

2020 OVERTIME 2,700.00

Department   049 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 448,000.00

2005 NEW PERSONNEL .00

5095 BUILDING REPAIRS 50,000.00

Department   048 - EMERGENCY TELECOMMUNICATIONS $2,571,000.00

2670 MEMBERSHIP & DUES 3,000.00

3752 CAPITAL OUTLAY 200,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 36,500.00

2645 UNIFORMS 4,000.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 5,000.00

2450 DISPATCH EQUIPMENT 15,000.00

2412 PALMETTO 800-RADIO CONTRACT 202,000.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 130,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 119,000.00

2410 RADIO MAINTENANCE 218,500.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 90,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 5,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 4,000.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 25,000.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 186,000.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 180,000.00

2020 OVERTIME 135,000.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 65,500.00

2005 NEW PERSONNEL .00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 40,500.00

Department   048 - EMERGENCY TELECOMMUNICATIONS
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 734,000.00

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 123,000.00

5045 EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT 50,000.00

Department   047 - COMMUNITY RISK REDUCTION DEPT. $511,900.00

2670 MEMBERSHIP & DUES 4,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
7 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2,150.00 1,932.51 2,150.00 2,200.00

19,275.00 18,056.20 19,275.00 19,300.00

8,000.00 20,321.34 363,500.00 366,000.00

.00 .00 130,000.00 130,000.00

7,150.00 21,755.37 11,500.00 11,500.00

4,900.00 3,359.14 5,000.00 5,000.00

.00 .00 62,800.00 62,800.00

4,000.00 4,633.21 4,500.00 5,000.00

2,750.00 9,626.20 5,000.00 5,000.00

305,500.00 507,331.72 405,000.00 405,000.00

182,000.00 239,907.04 185,000.00 185,000.00

26,750.00 50,714.70 27,000.00 27,000.00

91,000.00 23,227.30 91,000.00 91,000.00

21,500.00 13,031.38 25,000.00 25,000.00

69,500.00 17,925.01 85,000.00 85,000.00

19,250.00 10,457.88 25,000.00 25,000.00

6,500.00 3,231.28 10,000.00 7,500.00

500.00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00

.00 9,725.00 .00 .00

4,800.00 13,760.18 7,500.00 16,000.00

12,800.00 .00 .00 .00

68,500.00 63,728.30 68,500.00 68,500.00

$1,473,375.00 $1,649,470.45 $2,248,925.00 $2,282,500.00

140,000.00 119,532.82 142,000.00 142,000.00

2,700.00 .00 .00 7,300.00

10,800.00 7,865.68 11,000.00 11,000.00

26,300.00 28,051.88 28,000.00 28,000.00

32,200.00 39,100.20 51,700.00 51,700.00

1,000.00 898.84 4,500.00 4,500.00

5,000.00 4,996.16 3,900.00 3,900.00

9,600.00 5,299.09 7,000.00 .00

3,500.00 2,159.94 3,500.00 3,500.00

1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00

1,200.00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00

1,870.00 613.08 1,500.00 1,500.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE 1,200.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,870.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,500.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 1,000.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 5,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 9,600.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 32,200.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,000.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 10,800.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 26,300.00

Department   050 - COUNTY COUNCIL
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 140,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 2,700.00

4930 TECHNOLOGY UPGRADES 68,500.00

Department   049 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY Totals $1,473,375.00

2825 UTILITIES 4,800.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS 12,800.00

2670 MEMBERSHIP & DUES 500.00

2821 DATA PROCESSING INSURANCE PREMIUM .00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 19,250.00

2645 UNIFORMS 6,500.00

2464 COMPUTER MAINTENANCE 21,500.00

2526 GIS EXPENDITURES 69,500.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 26,750.00

2463 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 91,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 305,500.00

2405 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 182,000.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE 4,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 2,750.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 4,900.00

2307 NEW VEHICLES .00

2110 CELL PHONE SERVICES .00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 7,150.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 19,275.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 8,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 2,150.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
8 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
16,000.00 18,695.68 20,000.00 20,000.00

10,000.00 80.84 2,500.00 2,500.00

3,500.00 (457.78) 2,500.00 2,500.00

50,000.00 3,763.61 25,000.00 25,000.00

16,500.00 17,523.31 18,000.00 18,000.00

7,400.00 250.00 500.00 500.00

5,000.00 4,226.74 5,000.00 5,000.00

18,000.00 15,823.43 18,000.00 18,000.00

7,100.00 5,235.65 7,100.00 7,100.00

7,500.00 15,410.23 6,000.00 6,000.00

$376,170.00 $289,069.40 $359,900.00 $360,200.00

191,400.00 183,177.56 223,000.00 223,000.00

9,600.00 .00 .00 11,400.00

15,400.00 13,964.99 170,000.00 17,000.00

41,500.00 37,096.73 59,100.00 59,100.00

30,200.00 20,731.26 25,700.00 25,700.00

1,100.00 988.73 1,000.00 1,000.00

6,000.00 6,431.60 6,300.00 6,300.00

25,000.00 20,460.46 25,000.00 .00

4,000.00 2,957.87 4,000.00 4,000.00

3,700.00 2,640.58 3,500.00 3,500.00

9,600.00 .00 9,600.00 9,600.00

5,000.00 4,912.23 5,000.00 5,000.00

1,870.00 706.55 1,200.00 1,200.00

16,000.00 6,199.04 8,000.00 8,000.00

14,000.00 38,657.25 43,200.00 43,200.00

1,000.00 3,677.40 1,200.00 1,200.00

2,500.00 2,155.53 2,500.00 2,500.00

6,800.00 10,860.60 12,000.00 12,000.00

2,000.00 1,614.90 2,000.00 2,000.00

10,000.00 13,591.00 15,000.00 15,000.00

68,500.00 71,146.98 72,000.00 72,000.00

7,000.00 15,662.03 7,000.00 7,000.00

$472,170.00 $457,633.29 $696,300.00 $529,700.00

Department   052 - DATA PROCESSING

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS 7,000.00

Department   051 - ADMINISTRATION Totals $472,170.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE 10,000.00

2825 UTILITIES 68,500.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 6,800.00

2670 MEMBERSHIP & DUES 2,000.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1,000.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 2,500.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 16,000.00

2405 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 14,000.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE 5,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,870.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 3,700.00

2305 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE 9,600.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 25,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,100.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 6,000.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 41,500.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 30,200.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 9,600.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 15,400.00

Department   050 - COUNTY COUNCIL Totals $376,170.00

Department   051 - ADMINISTRATION
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 191,400.00

2875 MEETING EXPENSES 7,100.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS 7,500.00

2831 DISCRETIONARY FUNDS 5,000.00

2870 MEDIA SERVICES 18,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 16,500.00

2670 MEMBERSHIP & DUES 7,400.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 3,500.00

2605 ADVERTISING  50,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 16,000.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 10,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
9 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
312,000.00 368,514.75 335,000.00 335,000.00

87,000.00 88,219.53 90,000.00 90,000.00

65,400.00 62,095.77 65,000.00 65,000.00

$464,400.00 $518,830.05 $490,000.00 $490,000.00

126,100.00 112,078.24 133,000.00 133,000.00

50,000.00 36,330.00 50,000.00 50,000.00

6,300.00 .00 .00 6,800.00

.00 454.92 .00 .00

9,700.00 8,239.44 10,200.00 10,200.00

23,700.00 20,981.82 26,200.00 26,200.00

15,700.00 17,772.51 22,000.00 22,000.00

1,100.00 988.73 1,000.00 1,000.00

4,000.00 4,155.74 500.00 500.00

1,900.00 1,167.52 2,000.00 .00

5,500.00 1,286.09 5,500.00 5,500.00

300.00 .00 400.00 400.00

3,500.00 1,469.48 3,500.00 3,500.00

.00 .00 3,600.00 3,600.00

30,000.00 2,894.40 30,000.00 15,000.00

4,500.00 6,416.40 6,600.00 6,600.00

5,000.00 2,610.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

$287,300.00 $216,845.29 $299,500.00 $289,300.00

655,000.00 632,118.86 636,046.00 636,100.00

42,000.00 4,952.79 42,000.00 42,000.00

.00 .00 460,000.00 .00

38,700.00 .00 .00 39,500.00

76,000.00 84,062.71 82,194.00 82,000.00

59,200.00 52,911.08 48,658.00 49,000.00

.00 546.36 .00 .00

164,200.00 176,418.26 164,200.00 164,200.00

125,500.00 96,456.03 125,500.00 125,500.00

1,800.00 1,617.92 1,800.00 1,800.00

25,000.00 24,740.10 25,000.00 25,000.00

5,000.00 2,692.29 5,000.00 .00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 25,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 5,000.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 125,500.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,800.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER .00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 164,200.00

2020 OVERTIME 76,000.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 59,200.00

2005 NEW PERSONNEL .00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 38,700.00

Department   054 - CHERRY POINT FIRE DEPT.
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 655,000.00

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 42,000.00

2666 PARALEGAL SERVICES 5,000.00

Department   053 - TAX COLLECTOR Totals $287,300.00

2605 ADVERTISING  30,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 4,500.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 3,500.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT .00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 5,500.00

2230 PRINTING & SUPPLIES 300.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 4,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 1,900.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 15,700.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,100.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 9,700.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 23,700.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 6,300.00

2020 OVERTIME .00

Department   053 - TAX COLLECTOR
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 126,100.00

2003 CONTRACT LABOR 50,000.00

2520 PAYROLL PROCESSING 65,400.00

Department   052 - DATA PROCESSING Totals $464,400.00

2510 AUDITOR, TREASURER, TAX COLLECTOR SOFTWARE 312,000.00

2515 NEW WORLD SOFTWARE MAINT. 87,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
10 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
5,400.00 .00 5,400.00 5,400.00

10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00

32,000.00 .00 32,000.00 32,000.00

10,500.00 .00 10,500.00 10,500.00

50,000.00 24,308.39 50,000.00 50,000.00

50,000.00 32,225.37 50,000.00 50,000.00

50,000.00 31,446.98 50,000.00 50,000.00

5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00

45,000.00 15,694.68 45,000.00 45,000.00

40,000.00 16,472.60 40,000.00 40,000.00

.00 7,110.19 5,000.00 7,200.00

42,000.00 15,209.00 42,000.00 42,000.00

90,000.00 .00 .00 .00

.00 .00 182,000.00 182,000.00

3,900.00 .00 3,900.00 3,900.00

5,000.00 6,606.53 5,000.00 5,000.00

$1,631,200.00 $1,225,590.14 $2,126,198.00 $1,703,100.00

48,000.00 42,422.32 50,500.00 50,500.00

2,400.00 .00 .00 2,600.00

3,700.00 3,066.16 3,900.00 3,900.00

9,000.00 7,855.25 10,000.00 10,000.00

12,300.00 10,094.39 11,045.00 11,100.00

200.00 179.77 200.00 200.00

1,500.00 1,572.42 1,400.00 1,400.00

1,000.00 794.90 1,000.00 .00

800.00 136.85 1,000.00 1,000.00

2,000.00 2,038.85 2,000.00 2,000.00

900.00 824.90 900.00 900.00

800.00 641.81 800.00 800.00

4,000.00 109.46 1,200.00 1,200.00

7,000.00 6,540.00 8,000.00 8,000.00

1,000.00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00

1,200.00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00

500.00 100.00 500.00 500.00

$96,300.00 $76,377.08 $97,945.00 $99,600.00Department   055 - BUSINESS LICENSES Totals $96,300.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,200.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 500.00

2405 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 7,000.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 800.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 4,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 2,000.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE 900.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 1,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 800.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 200.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 1,500.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 9,000.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 12,300.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 2,400.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 3,700.00

Department   054 - CHERRY POINT FIRE DEPT. Totals $1,631,200.00

Department   055 - BUSINESS LICENSES
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 48,000.00

5055 FIREFIGHTER PHYSICALS 3,900.00

5095 BUILDING REPAIRS 5,000.00

3752 CAPITAL OUTLAY 90,000.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS .00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE .00

2825 UTILITIES 42,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 45,000.00

2645 UNIFORMS 40,000.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 50,000.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 5,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 50,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 50,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 32,000.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE 10,500.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 5,400.00

2280 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 10,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
11 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget

235,000.00 203,260.75 262,015.00 262,000.00

20,800.00 .00 20,800.00 20,800.00

52,500.00 .00 436,850.00 .00

12,800.00 .00 .00 15,000.00

1,000.00 1,078.18 5,000.00 5,000.00

19,700.00 14,253.78 20,045.00 20,100.00

48,200.00 23,918.47 36,691.00 36,691.00

.00 13,303.67 16,977.00 17,000.00

37,300.00 22,988.55 31,707.00 31,700.00

8,200.00 7,370.52 1,091.00 1,100.00

.00 4,463.90 16,615.00 16,700.00

50,000.00 56,251.71 63,000.00 .00

13,000.00 10,727.30 20,000.00 13,000.00

8,000.00 5,707.93 8,000.00 8,000.00

26,000.00 26,925.19 30,000.00 30,000.00

10,000.00 4,064.73 15,000.00 15,000.00

.00 .00 350,000.00 .00

153,000.00 179,547.52 201,000.00 187,200.00

10,000.00 11,309.13 15,000.00 15,000.00

50,000.00 58,440.02 245,000.00 70,000.00

5,000.00 527.79 5,000.00 5,000.00

249,466.00 64,437.43 150,000.00 150,000.00

145,000.00 78,857.28 145,000.00 145,000.00

5,000.00 9,098.50 15,000.00 15,000.00

20,000.00 28,545.67 20,000.00 20,000.00

12,000.00 4,359.05 12,000.00 12,000.00

.00 30,694.29 .00 .00

.00 6,281.00 .00 8,000.00

3,500.00 1,501.61 5,000.00 5,000.00

3,000.00 250.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

.00 42,042.38 .00 47,300.00

130,000.00 130,993.99 130,000.00 130,000.00

205,000.00 205,000.00 275,632.00 275,632.00

.00 .00 40,000.00 .00

.00 .00 750,000.00 .00

3430 MEDICAL CONTROL PHYSICIAN .00

3752 CAPITAL OUTLAY .00

2825 UTILITIES 130,000.00

3421 RIDGELAND FIRE CONTRACT 205,000.00

2670 MEMBERSHIP & DUES 3,000.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE .00

2621 PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE PREMIUM .00

2645 UNIFORMS 3,500.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 12,000.00

2613 EMS GRANT .00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 5,000.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 20,000.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 150,000.00

2431 MEDICAL SUPPLIES 145,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 50,000.00

2410 RADIO MAINTENANCE 5,000.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE 153,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 10,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 10,000.00

2307 NEW VEHICLES .00

2260 EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION 8,000.00

2280 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 26,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 50,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 13,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 8,200.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION .00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER .00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 37,300.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 19,700.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 48,200.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 12,800.00

2020 OVERTIME 1,000.00

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 20,800.00

2005 NEW PERSONNEL 52,500.00

Department   056 - EMERGENCY SERVICES
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 235,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
12 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
15,000.00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00

50,000.00 42,828.89 50,000.00 50,000.00

.00 .00 .00 276,000.00

.00 .00 125,000.00 .00

.00 .00 175,000.00 .00

$1,598,466.00 $1,289,029.23 $3,710,423.00 $1,921,223.00

3,335,000.00 3,111,158.94 3,335,000.00 3,600,000.00

28,200.00 8,821.89 28,200.00 28,200.00

10,000.00 161.55 10,000.00 10,000.00

15,000.00 13,389.68 15,000.00 15,000.00

.00 .00 .00 15,000.00

.00 .00 2,601,872.00 1,000,000.00

176,400.00 .00 .00 197,100.00

165,000.00 170,482.70 165,000.00 165,000.00

270,000.00 240,280.63 .00 288,000.00

50,000.00 39,167.59 .00 47,000.00

749,400.00 646,979.12 .00 784,000.00

566,500.00 426,192.33 .00 563,000.00

70,000.00 62,919.08 .00 89,200.00

115,000.00 117,691.08 .00 123,000.00

65,000.00 73,377.73 75,000.00 .00

.00 .00 .00 75,000.00

15,000.00 16,240.87 15,000.00 15,000.00

234,300.00 284,699.38 260,000.00 341,000.00

170,896.00 88,176.13 638,896.00 .00

150,000.00 147,016.27 155,000.00 152,000.00

100,000.00 42,864.84 125,000.00 100,000.00

463,000.00 222,344.75 559,000.00 559,000.00

2,000.00 8.73 2,000.00 2,000.00

140,000.00 112,296.64 1,600,850.00 200,000.00

6,000.00 2,842.98 6,000.00 6,000.00

198,000.00 115,486.29 198,000.00 198,000.00

2,400.00 577.80 2,400.00 2,400.00

70,000.00 38,162.07 70,000.00 70,000.00

150,000.00 22,595.21 150,000.00 150,000.002615 GRANT MATCHING FUNDS 150,000.00

2463 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 2,400.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 70,000.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 6,000.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 198,000.00

2410 RADIO MAINTENANCE 2,000.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 140,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 100,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 463,000.00

2307 NEW VEHICLES .00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE 150,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 15,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 234,300.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 65,000.00

2110 CELL PHONE SERVICES .00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 70,000.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 115,000.00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 749,400.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 566,500.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 270,000.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 50,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 176,400.00

2020 OVERTIME 165,000.00

2004 COUNTY/STATE STIPEND .00

2005 NEW PERSONNEL .00

2002 RESERVE OFFICERS 10,000.00

2003 CONTRACT LABOR 15,000.00

Department   057 - SHERIFF
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 3,335,000.00

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 28,200.00

9073 ROSELAND FIRE DEPT. .00

Department   056 - EMERGENCY SERVICES Totals $1,499,000.00

9030 RIDGELAND FIRE DEPT. .00

9050 POINT SOUTH FIRE DEPT. .00

5092 RADIO TOWER REPAIRS 15,000.00

5095 BUILDING REPAIRS 50,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
13 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
2,500.00 3,486.93 4,000.00 4,000.00

40,000.00 23,053.17 110,000.00 40,000.00

1,700.00 1,517.17 1,700.00 1,700.00

24,000.00 21,825.85 26,500.00 26,500.00

15,000.00 3,664.62 15,000.00 15,000.00

70,000.00 45,164.82 70,000.00 70,000.00

17,500.00 10,015.76 17,500.00 17,500.00

20,000.00 14,230.03 25,000.00 25,000.00

228,668.00 235,599.78 228,668.00 228,700.00

678,000.00 510,561.26 678,000.00 678,000.00

10,000.00 3,250.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

17,000.00 2,476.88 17,000.00 17,000.00

$8,441,464.00 $6,878,780.55 $11,215,586.00 $9,928,300.00

1,450,000.00 1,074,397.05 1,450,000.00 1,485,000.00

40,000.00 .00 147,162.00 .00

82,500.00 .00 .00 87,600.00

.00 .00 11,714.00 .00

200,000.00 207,370.23 200,000.00 200,000.00

127,000.00 83,847.28 127,000.00 114,000.00

19,000.00 23,811.09 19,000.00 28,000.00

352,600.00 208,069.96 352,600.00 300,000.00

281,300.00 119,832.69 281,300.00 251,000.00

50,000.00 44,942.20 50,000.00 56,300.00

65,000.00 55,117.02 65,000.00 56,600.00

19,700.00 10,089.38 19,700.00 .00

15,000.00 13,960.75 15,000.00 15,000.00

71,500.00 52,478.36 71,500.00 71,500.00

1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00

20,070.00 23,221.10 25,087.00 25,100.00

25,000.00 20,586.59 25,000.00 25,000.00

12,000.00 11,897.73 12,000.00 14,000.00

5,100.00 6,079.46 14,025.00 14,100.00

150,000.00 151,644.16 150,000.00 150,000.00

20,000.00 5,417.73 20,000.00 20,000.00

257,305.00 261,627.79 60,000.00 60,000.00

2410 RADIO MAINTENANCE 20,000.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 210,600.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 5,100.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 150,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 25,000.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE 12,000.00

2230 PRINTING & SUPPLIES 1,000.00

2280 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 20,070.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 15,000.00

2220 JAIL SUPPLIES 71,500.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 65,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 19,700.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 281,300.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 50,000.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 19,000.00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 352,600.00

2020 OVERTIME 200,000.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 127,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 82,500.00

2010 ADJUSTMENTS TO PAY PLAN .00

Department   058 - DETENTION CENTER
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 1,450,000.00

2005 NEW PERSONNEL 40,000.00

5050 EQUIPMENT--NARCOTICS EQUIP 17,000.00

Department   057 - SHERIFF Totals $8,270,568.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS 678,000.00

4925 EMPLOYEE EVALUATION SCREENING 10,000.00

2905 CANINE SUPPLIES & TRAINING 20,000.00

3752 CAPITAL OUTLAY 228,668.00

2895 CRIME TASK FORCE 70,000.00

2900 ANIMAL CONTROL 17,500.00

2825 UTILITIES 24,000.00

2870 MEDIA SERVICES 15,000.00

2645 UNIFORMS 40,000.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE 1,700.00

2616 PUBLIC RELATIONS 2,500.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
14 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
12,000.00 10,797.67 12,000.00 12,000.00

15,000.00 10,481.38 15,000.00 15,000.00

5,000.00 5,704.58 17,500.00 17,500.00

20,000.00 16,605.73 20,000.00 20,000.00

3,000.00 1,746.13 7,020.00 7,000.00

1,000.00 60.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

20,000.00 2,450.00 20,000.00 20,000.00

10,000.00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00

335,000.00 337,710.11 335,000.00 335,000.00

306,500.00 235,658.38 306,500.00 306,500.00

14,750.00 16,845.77 14,750.00 17,000.00

125,000.00 154,081.00 125,000.00 188,800.00

45,000.00 38,929.58 65,000.00 65,000.00

150,000.00 174,753.03 150,000.00 150,000.00

$4,326,325.00 $3,380,213.93 $4,215,858.00 $4,139,000.00

5,000.00 3,881.19 5,000.00 5,400.00

$5,000.00 $3,881.19 $5,000.00 $5,400.00

187,200.00 114,710.31 190,600.00 190,600.00

9,400.00 .00 .00 9,700.00

.00 101.39 .00 .00

14,400.00 8,254.20 14,600.00 14,600.00

35,200.00 22,181.12 37,700.00 37,700.00

29,100.00 17,482.45 32,800.00 32,800.00

1,000.00 898.84 1,000.00 1,000.00

4,200.00 4,315.46 5,200.00 5,200.00

3,800.00 407.32 1,200.00 .00

2,500.00 1,672.10 2,500.00 2,500.00

19,300.00 29,858.62 19,300.00 19,300.00

13,000.00 7,543.88 13,000.00 13,000.00

1,000.00 1,288.60 1,000.00 1,000.00

3,000.00 1,986.38 3,000.00 3,000.00

7,000.00 4,675.00 7,000.00 7,000.00

256,977.00 29,106.26 110,000.00 110,000.00

$587,077.00 $244,481.93 $438,900.00 $447,400.00

5000 PLANNING EXPENSES 110,000.00

Department   060 - PLANNING Totals $440,100.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,000.00

2870 MEDIA SERVICES 7,000.00

2420 MEETING STIPENDS 13,000.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,500.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 19,300.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 4,200.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 3,800.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 29,100.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,000.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 14,400.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 35,200.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 9,400.00

2020 OVERTIME .00

Department   059 - FARMERS MARKET Totals $5,000.00

Department   060 - PLANNING
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 187,200.00

Department   058 - DETENTION CENTER Totals $4,279,620.00

Department   059 - FARMERS MARKET
2825 UTILITIES 5,000.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS 45,000.00

5095 BUILDING REPAIRS 150,000.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE 14,750.00

2825 UTILITIES 125,000.00

2700 FOOD SERVICE CONTRACT 335,000.00

2710 MEDICAL SERVICES CONTRACT 306,500.00

2680 JUVENILE HOUSING EXPENSES 20,000.00

2690 INMATE HOUSING 10,000.00

2646 INMATE UNIFORMS 3,000.00

2670 MEMBERSHIP & DUES 1,000.00

2630 TRAINING 5,000.00

2645 UNIFORMS 20,000.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 12,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 15,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
15 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget

186,000.00 168,591.81 294,000.00 220,000.00

.00 .00 .00 156,000.00

9,300.00 .00 .00 11,300.00

.00 62.75 .00 .00

15,000.00 11,142.68 22,500.00 16,800.00

36,700.00 27,973.17 58,100.00 43,400.00

21,600.00 13,975.50 49,000.00 27,000.00

1,100.00 988.73 1,400.00 1,300.00

5,000.00 5,559.38 3,600.00 3,400.00

4,500.00 3,425.63 6,500.00 6,500.00

4,000.00 2,492.07 4,000.00 4,000.00

9,000.00 9,900.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

1,000.00 2,060.64 1,000.00 7,000.00

2,500.00 298.02 2,500.00 2,500.00

3,500.00 12,061.88 5,000.00 5,000.00

1,360.00 984.00 1,500.00 1,500.00

$300,560.00 $259,516.26 $459,100.00 $515,700.00

40,000.00 .00 50,000.00 197,000.00

465,000.00 412,540.59 535,000.00 476,000.00

10,000.00 4,446.87 10,000.00 10,000.00

12,000.00 7,964.23 10,000.00 .00

2,200.00 1,546.21 2,200.00 2,200.00

20,000.00 17,905.53 25,000.00 25,000.00

60,000.00 47,887.64 15,000.00 15,000.00

325,000.00 253,929.27 325,000.00 325,000.00

30,000.00 29,420.00 30,000.00 30,000.00

.00 30.58 .00 .00

115,500.00 117,308.75 120,000.00 120,000.00

36,852.00 34,182.44 38,000.00 38,000.00

47,000.00 41,992.78 55,000.00 55,000.00

.00 887.98 .00 .00

70,000.00 127,086.38 75,000.00 75,000.00

.00 13,027.00 .00 .00

12,000.00 8,087.08 12,000.00 12,000.00

2840 SALES & USE TAX .00

2845 TAX PAYMENTS 12,000.00

2830 MISCELLANEOUS .00

2835 EMERGENCY FUND 70,000.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE 36,852.00

2825 UTILITIES 47,000.00

2605 ADVERTISING  .00

2800 AUDIT SERVICES 115,500.00

2405 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 325,000.00

2500 PEST CONTROL 30,000.00

2260 EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION 20,000.00

2290 POSTAGE 60,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 12,000.00

2230 PRINTING & SUPPLIES 2,200.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 465,000.00

2080 UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 10,000.00

Department   061 - FINANCE Totals $300,560.00

Department   062 - INTERDEPARTMENTAL
2012 SALARY ADJUSTMENTS 40,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,500.00

2670 MEMBERSHIP & DUES 1,360.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1,000.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 2,500.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 4,000.00

2405 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 9,000.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 5,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,500.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 21,600.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,100.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 15,000.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 36,700.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 9,300.00

2020 OVERTIME .00

Department   061 - FINANCE
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 186,000.00

2005 NEW PERSONNEL .00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
16 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
6,500.00 3,960.00 7,000.00 7,000.00

.00 .00 3,749,000.00 3,749,000.00

241,000.00 106,431.23 250,000.00 250,000.00

.00 500.00 .00 .00

10,000.00 9,660.93 15,000.00 15,000.00

$1,503,052.00 $1,238,795.49 $5,323,200.00 $5,401,200.00

291,000.00 266,166.83 .00 301,500.00

.00 .00 .00 40,000.00

.00 .00 .00 15,000.00

14,600.00 .00 .00 15,500.00

24,300.00 19,741.14 .00 24,300.00

59,600.00 44,853.74 .00 62,600.00

46,000.00 24,389.47 .00 37,800.00

1,400.00 1,258.38 .00 1,800.00

8,000.00 8,950.67 .00 8,700.00

9,100.00 7,512.28 .00 .00

4,500.00 3,725.44 .00 4,500.00

20,000.00 6,865.17 .00 20,000.00

53,000.00 27,046.44 .00 53,000.00

25,000.00 634.47 .00 25,000.00

4,000.00 1,716.42 .00 4,000.00

3,000.00 1,500.00 .00 3,000.00

12,800.00 15,682.05 .00 16,000.00

47,000.00 47,421.69 .00 65,000.00

55,000.00 34,899.58 .00 55,000.00

2,500.00 .00 .00 2,500.00

$680,800.00 $512,363.77 $0.00 $755,200.00

152,500.00 154,357.69 152,500.00 200,000.00

.00 .00 .00 13,600.00

7,600.00 .00 .00 10,400.00

.00 10,789.61 15,000.00 15,300.00

16,000.00 16,490.38 16,000.00 28,700.00

9,600.00 12,108.44 9,600.00 12,200.00

.00 18,927.36 22,000.00 35,000.00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 9,600.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE .00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. .00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 16,000.00

2004 COUNTY/STATE STIPEND .00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 7,600.00

Department   063 - CLERK OF COURT Totals $680,800.00

Department   064 - MAGISTRATE-LEE (TRAFFIC COURT)
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 152,500.00

2855 COURT EXPENSES 55,000.00

2860 MICROFILM SERVICES 2,500.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE 12,800.00

2825 UTILITIES 47,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 4,000.00

2801 FAMILY COURT AUDIT SERVICES 3,000.00

2405 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 53,000.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 25,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,500.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 20,000.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 8,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 9,100.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 46,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,400.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 24,300.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 59,600.00

2004 COUNTY/STATE STIPEND .00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 14,600.00

Department   063 - CLERK OF COURT
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 291,000.00

2003 CONTRACT LABOR .00

4920 EMPLOYEE DRUG TESTING 10,000.00

Department   062 - INTERDEPARTMENTAL Totals $1,503,052.00

3772 CONSULTING SERVICES 241,000.00

4821 EMPLOYEE EDUCATION .00

2890 BOARD OF DISABILITIES CONTRACT 6,500.00

3754 ARPA EXPENDITURES .00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
17 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
500.00 449.42 500.00 1,400.00

4,700.00 4,906.03 4,700.00 5,500.00

3,000.00 10,162.22 6,000.00 .00

3,500.00 4,484.14 10,000.00 15,000.00

4,000.00 3,480.82 4,000.00 4,000.00

48,483.00 36,000.00 48,483.00 53,400.00

7,500.00 129.22 .00 1,000.00

1,000.00 139.13 2,000.00 2,000.00

1,500.00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00

5,000.00 4,946.42 10,000.00 10,000.00

16,500.00 14,491.71 16,500.00 17,600.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

2,000.00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00

1,500.00 396.79 3,000.00 3,000.00

$285,383.00 $292,259.38 $325,283.00 $433,100.00

130,000.00 139,073.72 130,000.00 130,000.00

25,000.00 .00 40,000.00 40,000.00

7,800.00 .00 .00 6,800.00

11,800.00 10,176.06 13,000.00 13,000.00

6,000.00 11,973.57 15,200.00 15,200.00

18,400.00 15,773.15 11,000.00 11,000.00

25,300.00 20,854.59 26,000.00 26,000.00

1,300.00 1,168.50 1,200.00 1,200.00

4,500.00 4,875.61 4,600.00 4,600.00

2,000.00 1,572.05 2,400.00 .00

1,000.00 837.59 1,000.00 1,000.00

1,500.00 3,066.72 1,500.00 1,500.00

3,000.00 3,919.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

3,000.00 656.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

600.00 489.80 600.00 600.00

$241,200.00 $214,436.36 $252,500.00 $256,900.00

148,000.00 150,845.00 179,000.00 174,000.00

.00 .00 3,600.00 3,600.00

7,400.00 .00 .00 9,000.00

2003 CONTRACT LABOR .00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 7,400.00

Department   065 - PROBATE JUDGE Totals $239,700.00

Department   066 - AUDITOR
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 148,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,000.00

2825 UTILITIES 600.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 1,500.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,500.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 2,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,300.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 4,500.00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 18,400.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 25,300.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 11,800.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 6,000.00

2004 COUNTY/STATE STIPEND 25,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 7,800.00

Department   064 - MAGISTRATE-LEE (TRAFFIC COURT) $285,383.00

Department   065 - PROBATE JUDGE
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 130,000.00

2855 COURT EXPENSES 2,000.00

2857 JURY EXPENSES 1,500.00

2825 UTILITIES 16,500.00

2832 TRANSLATOR SERVICES 500.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,500.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 5,000.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 7,500.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 4,000.00

2405 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 48,483.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 3,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,500.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 500.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 4,700.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
18 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
.00 526.19 .00 .00

11,400.00 11,265.03 13,300.00 13,300.00

27,800.00 25,628.25 34,300.00 34,300.00

18,200.00 9,805.25 12,300.00 12,300.00

1,300.00 1,168.50 1,300.00 1,300.00

4,700.00 5,065.80 4,800.00 4,800.00

3,600.00 1,060.89 3,600.00 .00

3,150.00 5,409.64 3,500.00 3,500.00

2,000.00 252.80 1,300.00 1,300.00

5,000.00 12,897.79 5,000.00 5,000.00

5,692.00 6,254.78 2,500.00 2,500.00

2,000.00 6,862.93 2,000.00 2,000.00

5,500.00 3,791.90 6,500.00 6,500.00

$245,742.00 $240,834.75 $273,000.00 $273,400.00

169,000.00 177,850.33 252,625.00 235,500.00

22,000.00 7,157.03 .00 .00

9,600.00 .00 .00 12,000.00

.00 582.13 .00 .00

14,000.00 13,921.38 .00 18,000.00

33,900.00 31,191.13 .00 46,600.00

23,000.00 7,624.93 .00 16,000.00

1,400.00 1,258.38 .00 1,400.00

8,300.00 7,504.09 .00 6,500.00

2,500.00 419.82 4,000.00 .00

6,569.00 5,669.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

4,500.00 8,508.53 13,575.00 13,600.00

3,000.00 5,202.38 2,000.00 2,000.00

3,160.00 1,263.03 3,000.00 3,000.00

5,500.00 2,086.42 6,500.00 6,500.00

$306,429.00 $270,238.58 $285,700.00 $365,100.00

99,000.00 85,258.43 101,500.00 101,500.00

5,000.00 .00 .00 5,300.00

.00 52.92 .00 .00

7,600.00 6,417.37 7,800.00 7,800.00

2020 OVERTIME .00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 7,600.00

Department   068 - VETERANS AFFAIRS
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 99,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 5,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 5,500.00

Department   067 - TREASURER Totals $301,200.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1,500.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 2,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 4,500.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 8,300.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 2,500.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 23,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,400.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 14,000.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 33,900.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 9,600.00

2020 OVERTIME .00

Department   067 - TREASURER
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 169,000.00

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 22,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 5,500.00

Department   066 - AUDITOR Totals $241,050.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 2,000.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 2,000.00

2240 SUPPLIES & FORMS 1,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 5,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 3,600.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,150.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,300.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 4,700.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 27,800.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 18,200.00

2020 OVERTIME .00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 11,400.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
19 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
18,600.00 15,800.41 20,100.00 20,100.00

350.00 273.68 400.00 400.00

1,200.00 1,078.61 1,100.00 1,100.00

3,100.00 3,150.27 2,800.00 2,800.00

2,000.00 985.22 1,200.00 .00

1,000.00 1,816.07 1,500.00 1,500.00

.00 1,034.51 1,200.00 1,200.00

1,870.00 610.72 1,900.00 1,900.00

1,000.00 360.42 1,000.00 1,000.00

1,000.00 249.70 1,000.00 1,000.00

1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00

1,000.00 736.38 1,000.00 1,000.00

3,000.00 3,252.03 3,300.00 3,300.00

6,200.00 4,455.49 6,200.00 6,200.00

$152,920.00 $125,532.23 $153,000.00 $157,100.00

500,000.00 490,328.02 592,395.00 592,400.00

29,000.00 .00 .00 .00

.00 .00 70,000.00 .00

25,300.00 .00 29,620.00 30,500.00

5,000.00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00

41,500.00 35,559.41 45,319.00 45,400.00

101,800.00 90,279.07 117,058.00 117,100.00

85,000.00 68,591.54 86,619.00 86,700.00

2,100.00 1,887.57 3,081.00 3,100.00

21,400.00 20,165.07 16,291.00 16,300.00

4,000.00 6,542.80 7,000.00 .00

15,000.00 12,285.18 16,200.00 16,200.00

3,000.00 2,355.07 3,000.00 3,000.00

5,000.00 1,455.64 5,000.00 5,000.00

20,000.00 4,237.71 20,000.00 20,000.00

4,000.00 6,035.55 4,000.00 4,000.00

1,500.00 1,587.28 1,500.00 1,500.00

38,412.00 7,382.73 27,912.00 29,000.00

12,600.00 511.95 14,800.00 14,800.00

1,240.00 .00 1,240.00 1,300.002440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1,240.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 38,412.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 12,600.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE 4,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,500.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 5,000.00

2308 REASSESSMENT COSTS 20,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 15,000.00

2230 PRINTING & SUPPLIES 3,000.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 21,400.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 4,000.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 85,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 2,100.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 41,500.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 101,800.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 25,300.00

2020 OVERTIME 5,000.00

2005 NEW PERSONNEL 29,000.00

2007 SALARY YEAR END ACCRUALS .00

Department   068 - VETERANS AFFAIRS Totals $152,920.00

Department   069 - ASSESSOR
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 500,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,000.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS 6,200.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,000.00

2606 SPECIAL PROJECTS 1,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 1,000.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1,000.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE .00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,870.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 2,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,200.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 3,100.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 18,600.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 350.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
20 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
3,000.00 7,095.88 .00 .00

25,561.00 .00 64,295.00 64,500.00

18,000.00 16,918.69 18,000.00 18,000.00

2,500.00 3,000.00 2,500.00 2,500.00

30,000.00 10,636.13 30,000.00 11,000.00

40,000.00 14,520.00 40,000.00 .00

$1,034,913.00 $801,375.29 $1,220,830.00 $1,087,300.00

2,000.00 1,452.24 2,000.00 .00

6,500.00 7,237.56 7,500.00 9,600.00

15,000.00 14,896.57 15,000.00 18,700.00

32,000.00 32,000.00 32,000.00 32,000.00

1,800.00 1,500.00 1,800.00 1,800.00

$57,300.00 $57,086.37 $58,300.00 $62,100.00

4,900.00 5,884.42 6,000.00 6,000.00

25,000.00 15,423.41 18,000.00 18,000.00

$29,900.00 $21,307.83 $24,000.00 $24,000.00

127,250.00 123,943.54 132,250.00 132,250.00

60,000.00 86,288.21 60,000.00 60,000.00

9,400.00 .00 10,400.00 9,900.00

.00 11,457.32 .00 .00

9,700.00 9,019.71 9,700.00 9,700.00

23,400.00 23,035.11 23,400.00 23,400.00

26,500.00 18,210.12 26,500.00 26,500.00

18,000.00 25,149.19 18,000.00 18,000.00

2,600.00 4,196.37 2,600.00 2,600.00

4,000.00 4,397.09 4,000.00 .00

4,400.00 7,465.85 4,400.00 4,400.00

1,400.00 1,320.30 1,400.00 1,400.00

.00 .00 55,000.00 .00

.00 6,708.82 1,500.00 8,000.00

1,400.00 529.54 1,400.00 1,400.00

80,000.00 4,191.94 80,000.00 40,000.00

14,033.00 8,465.92 10,000.00 10,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 80,000.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 10,000.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE .00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,400.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 1,400.00

2307 NEW VEHICLES .00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 4,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,400.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 18,000.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 2,600.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 23,400.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 26,500.00

2020 OVERTIME .00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 9,700.00

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 60,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 9,400.00

Department   071 - HEALTH DEPT. Totals $29,900.00

Department   072 - ELECTION COMMISSION
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 127,250.00

Department   071 - HEALTH DEPT.
2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE 4,900.00

2825 UTILITIES 25,000.00

3035 PRATT LIBRARY-JANITORIAL 1,800.00

Department   070 - LIBRARY Totals $57,300.00

2825 UTILITIES 15,000.00

3030 HARDEEVILLE LIBRARY OPERATIONS 32,000.00

Department   070 - LIBRARY
2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 2,000.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE 6,500.00

6060 MAPPING EXPENSES 40,000.00

Department   069 - ASSESSOR Totals $1,034,913.00

3730 BOARD OF APPEALS 2,500.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS 30,000.00

2463 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 25,561.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 18,000.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 3,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
21 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
30,000.00 16,557.22 30,000.00 30,000.00

5,000.00 5,700.87 5,000.00 5,000.00

70,000.00 49,899.46 35,000.00 35,000.00

5,000.00 3,825.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

20,700.00 .00 20,700.00 20,700.00

.00 .00 .00 14,400.00

.00 19,226.28 .00 20,000.00

$512,783.00 $429,587.86 $536,250.00 $477,650.00

6,000.00 4,175.11 4,700.00 .00

300.00 300.00 300.00 300.00

3,100.00 3,391.20 3,500.00 3,500.00

18,000.00 18,499.55 22,400.00 22,400.00

6,000.00 5,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00

$33,400.00 $31,365.86 $36,900.00 $32,200.00

138,400.00 127,531.37 144,300.00 138,500.00

6,900.00 .00 .00 7,100.00

.00 1,486.56 .00 .00

10,600.00 8,493.57 11,100.00 10,600.00

25,000.00 21,240.45 28,600.00 27,400.00

15,500.00 10,742.52 16,000.00 16,000.00

1,200.00 1,078.61 1,200.00 1,100.00

6,800.00 5,759.17 6,800.00 3,800.00

800.00 864.90 800.00 .00

600.00 3,268.51 2,900.00 2,900.00

600.00 50.92 600.00 600.00

900.00 (849.96) 1,100.00 1,100.00

259,000.00 149,631.00 280,000.00 195,000.00

2,700.00 4,010.28 3,300.00 3,300.00

13,000.00 .00 13,000.00 .00

570,901.00 540,235.94 .00 .00

80,000.00 75,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00

$1,132,901.00 $948,543.84 $589,700.00 $487,400.00

.00 .00 65,000.00 .00
Department   075 - CORONER

2000 SALARIES & WAGES .00

4400 SOUTHERN CAROLINA ALLIANCE 80,000.00

Department   074 - DEVELOPMENT SERVICES Totals $562,000.00

2825 UTILITIES 13,000.00

3752 CAPITAL OUTLAY .00

2606 SPECIAL PROJECTS 259,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,700.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 600.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 900.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 800.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 600.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,200.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 6,800.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 25,000.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 15,500.00

2020 OVERTIME .00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 10,600.00

Department   074 - DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 138,400.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 6,900.00

3300 EMERGENCY FUNDS 6,000.00

Department   073 - DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES $33,400.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE 3,100.00

2825 UTILITIES 18,000.00

Department   073 - DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES
2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 6,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 300.00

5095 BUILDING REPAIRS .00

Department   072 - ELECTION COMMISSION Totals $508,750.00

3200 VOTERS REGISTR.-BOARD MEMBERS 20,700.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS .00

2850 ELECTION EXPENSES 70,000.00

2870 MEDIA SERVICES 5,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 30,000.00

2825 UTILITIES 5,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
22 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
105,000.00 121,965.74 130,000.00 151,800.00

15,300.00 .00 70,000.00 15,000.00

.00 .00 10,000.00 .00

6,000.00 .00 6,000.00 8,200.00

.00 131.81 5,000.00 5,000.00

9,700.00 9,141.41 9,800.00 12,800.00

4,300.00 6,573.75 4,300.00 7,200.00

26,800.00 20,306.90 27,000.00 29,000.00

6,000.00 4,896.81 6,000.00 6,000.00

1,500.00 1,348.27 1,500.00 6,300.00

5,000.00 4,805.93 5,000.00 4,700.00

2,300.00 4,383.43 4,000.00 .00

10,000.00 15,291.63 25,000.00 11,000.00

6,000.00 4,835.05 6,000.00 6,000.00

20,000.00 .00 30,000.00 14,400.00

.00 .00 90,000.00 .00

3,000.00 2,854.99 3,000.00 5,000.00

2,500.00 1,931.67 2,000.00 2,000.00

1,500.00 5,630.93 2,000.00 2,000.00

10,000.00 3,796.14 30,000.00 5,000.00

.00 .00 .00 20,600.00

25,000.00 19,032.68 .00 .00

5,000.00 9,065.27 .00 5,000.00

12,000.00 11,622.07 45,000.00 15,000.00

8,000.00 8,244.31 15,000.00 15,000.00

1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

1,600.00 2,384.74 2,000.00 3,000.00

150,000.00 199,122.28 17,500.00 175,000.00

2,000.00 600.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

$439,500.00 $457,965.81 $614,100.00 $527,000.00

33,000.00 54,998.43 33,000.00 34,500.00

55,000.00 39,269.80 55,000.00 57,300.00

4,100.00 .00 .00 2,500.00

4,600.00 .00 .00 4,900.00

7,000.00 4,704.31 7,000.00 5,200.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 4,600.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 7,000.00

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 55,000.00

2004 COUNTY/STATE STIPEND 4,100.00

Department   075 - CORONER Totals $439,500.00

Department   076 - MAGISTRATE-JOHNSON (HARDEEVILLE)
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 33,000.00

3500 POST MORTEMS 150,000.00

3510 BURIAL EXPENSES 2,000.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE 1,000.00

2825 UTILITIES 1,600.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 12,000.00

2645 UNIFORMS 8,000.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 25,000.00

2607 MARKETING/DEVELOPMENT 5,000.00

2405 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 10,000.00

2425 INCENTIVE EXPENSES .00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 2,500.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 1,500.00

2307 NEW VEHICLES .00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE 3,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 6,000.00

2305 VEHICLE ALLOWANCE 20,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 2,300.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 10,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,500.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 5,000.00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 26,800.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 6,000.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 9,700.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 4,300.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 6,000.00

2020 OVERTIME .00

2004 COUNTY/STATE STIPEND 15,300.00

2005 NEW PERSONNEL .00

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 105,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
23 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
9,000.00 5,385.02 9,000.00 10,100.00

9,400.00 7,753.20 9,400.00 3,700.00

15,600.00 12,889.21 15,600.00 27,000.00

500.00 449.42 500.00 1,000.00

3,500.00 3,479.39 3,500.00 600.00

4,400.00 1,526.31 4,400.00 .00

500.00 535.23 500.00 500.00

4,000.00 4,073.26 4,000.00 5,000.00

1,000.00 97.80 1,000.00 1,000.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

3,500.00 1,820.18 3,500.00 3,500.00

2,000.00 1,995.45 2,000.00 2,000.00

9,000.00 8,494.22 9,000.00 9,000.00

2,500.00 328.67 2,500.00 2,500.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

$169,600.00 $147,799.90 $160,900.00 $171,300.00

79,100.00 77,708.39 .00 140,600.00

4,900.00 .00 .00 7,200.00

18,500.00 11,174.17 .00 .00

7,500.00 6,504.71 .00 5,800.00

18,300.00 16,544.64 .00 28,000.00

12,000.00 9,567.25 .00 28,700.00

.00 .00 .00 1,500.00

2,100.00 2,531.26 .00 5,800.00

7,000.00 6,325.55 8,300.00 .00

10,000.00 8,788.85 10,000.00 10,000.00

10,000.00 20,971.65 22,300.00 22,300.00

.00 4,597.42 .00 6,000.00

4,000.00 9,426.18 6,000.00 6,000.00

.00 161.93 .00 .00

1,700.00 1,962.78 2,700.00 2,700.00

2,000.00 1,697.96 2,000.00 2,000.00

1,000.00 512.12 1,000.00 1,000.00

.00 7,158.12 .00 7,500.00

20,000.00 21,099.96 .00 26,300.002825 UTILITIES 20,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 1,000.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE .00

2605 ADVERTISING  1,700.00

2607 MARKETING/DEVELOPMENT 2,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 4,000.00

2430 EQUIPMENT .00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 10,000.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE .00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 7,000.00

2280 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 10,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE .00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 2,100.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 18,300.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 12,000.00

2020 OVERTIME 18,500.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 7,500.00

Department   077 - SGT. JASPER PARK
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 79,100.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 4,900.00

2857 JURY EXPENSES 500.00

Department   076 - MAGISTRATE-JOHNSON $169,600.00

2825 UTILITIES 9,000.00

2855 COURT EXPENSES 2,500.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,500.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE 2,000.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 1,000.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 500.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 500.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 4,000.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 3,500.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 4,400.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 15,600.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 500.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 9,000.00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 9,400.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
24 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
.00 .00 17,500.00 17,500.00

10,000.00 11,476.53 .00 15,000.00

290,000.00 169,672.48 400,000.00 400,000.00

17,500.00 19,536.66 .00 .00

$515,600.00 $407,418.61 $469,800.00 $733,900.00

173,000.00 158,383.56 .00 173,000.00

9,100.00 .00 .00 8,800.00

9,600.00 7,303.71 .00 .00

14,800.00 6,727.52 .00 13,300.00

36,300.00 15,976.27 .00 34,200.00

17,000.00 5,675.25 .00 22,700.00

3,500.00 3,145.95 .00 2,200.00

6,000.00 5,955.23 .00 7,100.00

7,000.00 6,226.75 7,000.00 .00

1,800.00 2,035.43 2,900.00 2,900.00

7,000.00 7,036.91 8,200.00 8,200.00

10,000.00 6,072.74 10,000.00 10,000.00

.00 6,161.01 .00 6,200.00

5,000.00 9,451.31 11,000.00 11,000.00

60,000.00 95,059.98 80,000.00 80,000.00

35,000.00 36,211.25 70,000.00 55,000.00

5,000.00 7,194.84 5,300.00 5,300.00

1,500.00 2,424.69 4,000.00 4,000.00

4,000.00 1,993.81 4,000.00 4,000.00

.00 20,286.54 .00 21,000.00

49,000.00 51,261.26 49,000.00 62,000.00

.00 36,959.60 .00 41,000.00

8,000.00 8,305.13 11,000.00 11,000.00

45,000.00 35,701.58 50,000.00 50,000.00

10,000.00 10,314.95 15,000.00 15,000.00

200,000.00 129,722.70 400,000.00 400,000.00

$717,600.00 $675,587.97 $727,400.00 $1,047,900.00

218,700.00 200,437.59 220,000.00 220,000.00

$218,700.00 $200,437.59 $220,000.00 $220,000.00Department   079 - MISC. COUNTY ACCTS. Totals $218,700.00

Department   078 - PARKS & RECREATION Totals $717,600.00

Department   079 - MISC. COUNTY ACCTS.
3770 LEGAL FEES 218,700.00

4808 BOAT LANDING REPAIRS 10,000.00

5040 PARK DEVELOPMENT 200,000.00

4725 RECREATION PROGRAMS 8,000.00

4730 ATHLETIC PROGRAMS 45,000.00

2825 UTILITIES 49,000.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS .00

2645 UNIFORMS 4,000.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE .00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 5,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 1,500.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 60,000.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 35,000.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE .00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 5,000.00

2280 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 7,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 10,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 7,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,800.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 3,500.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 6,000.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 36,300.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 17,000.00

2020 OVERTIME 9,600.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 14,800.00

Department   078 - PARKS & RECREATION
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 173,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 9,100.00

5095 BUILDING REPAIRS 17,500.00

Department   077 - SGT. JASPER PARK Totals $515,600.00

4807 POND MAINTENANCE 10,000.00

5040 PARK DEVELOPMENT 290,000.00

3920 GENERAL MAINTENANCE .00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
25 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget

133,000.00 118,302.25 133,000.00 140,000.00

6,800.00 .00 6,800.00 7,300.00

3,500.00 347.34 3,500.00 3,500.00

10,500.00 8,971.31 10,500.00 10,700.00

25,700.00 21,969.81 25,700.00 26,000.00

6,000.00 9,793.62 12,000.00 12,000.00

1,200.00 1,078.61 1,200.00 1,100.00

5,900.00 5,245.01 5,900.00 6,500.00

10,000.00 10,049.54 10,000.00 .00

1,200.00 2,000.75 1,500.00 1,500.00

.00 58,592.20 58,592.00 60,000.00

6,000.00 5,549.30 8,500.00 8,500.00

.00 2,574.54 3,000.00 3,000.00

.00 3,629.04 4,000.00 4,000.00

.00 1,830.55 2,000.00 2,000.00

6,900.00 373.93 6,900.00 6,900.00

7,000.00 8,351.40 10,000.00 10,000.00

3,500.00 940.74 3,500.00 1,500.00

31,000.00 34,084.79 36,000.00 41,700.00

.00 9,716.96 11,000.00 11,000.00

$258,200.00 $303,401.69 $353,592.00 $357,200.00

261,400.00 227,497.91 301,400.00 309,400.00

15,000.00 25,202.51 25,000.00 25,000.00

14,300.00 .00 14,300.00 17,900.00

10,000.00 16,982.95 15,000.00 15,000.00

20,800.00 17,696.65 20,800.00 23,700.00

51,000.00 45,581.34 51,000.00 61,200.00

36,200.00 28,666.99 36,200.00 36,800.00

10,300.00 9,736.84 10,300.00 31,800.00

70,000.00 87,551.37 70,000.00 70,000.00

50,000.00 44,963.20 50,000.00 50,000.00

.00 170.62 144,000.00 144,000.00

.00 80.00 250.00 250.00

8,500.00 .00 211,000.00 211,000.003810 PIPE (CONCRETE, METAL) 8,500.00

2430 EQUIPMENT .00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING .00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 70,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 50,000.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 36,200.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 10,300.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 20,800.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 51,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 14,300.00

2020 OVERTIME 10,000.00

Department   081 - ROADS & BRIDGES
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 261,400.00

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 15,000.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS .00

Department   080 - ENGINEERING SERVICES-ADMIN. $258,200.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE 3,500.00

2825 UTILITIES 31,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 6,900.00

2645 UNIFORMS 7,000.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT .00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT .00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 6,000.00

2438 EQUIPMENT/INLAND MARINE INSURANCE PREMIUM .00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,200.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE .00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 5,900.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 10,000.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 6,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,200.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 10,500.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 25,700.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 6,800.00

2020 OVERTIME 3,500.00

Department   080 - ENGINEERING SERVICES-ADMIN.
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 133,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
26 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
5,000.00 4,739.47 5,000.00 5,000.00

417,325.00 326,531.56 417,325.00 375,000.00

$969,825.00 $835,401.41 $1,371,575.00 $1,376,050.00

84,000.00 67,372.02 84,000.00 103,900.00

4,300.00 .00 4,300.00 5,500.00

2,500.00 45.00 2,500.00 2,500.00

4,800.00 4,896.79 4,800.00 8,100.00

11,600.00 12,489.72 11,600.00 21,100.00

12,300.00 10,094.39 12,300.00 12,500.00

.00 .00 .00 1,500.00

4,100.00 3,391.77 4,100.00 2,900.00

25,000.00 25,341.47 25,000.00 25,000.00

3,000.00 3,778.50 5,300.00 5,300.00

2,000.00 1,221.84 2,000.00 2,000.00

130,000.00 22,452.94 130,000.00 130,000.00

.00 13,008.93 15,000.00 15,000.00

$283,600.00 $164,093.37 $300,900.00 $335,300.00

182,600.00 146,342.83 182,600.00 182,600.00

9,200.00 .00 9,200.00 9,500.00

2,000.00 1,272.82 2,000.00 2,000.00

14,200.00 10,541.12 14,200.00 14,000.00

34,700.00 28,004.42 34,700.00 36,100.00

38,700.00 27,836.87 38,700.00 45,500.00

.00 .00 .00 3,000.00

5,700.00 5,701.92 5,700.00 8,500.00

.00 81.94 250.00 250.00

75,000.00 78,064.17 115,000.00 115,000.00

5,500.00 4,309.94 5,500.00 5,500.00

3,500.00 2,404.54 3,500.00 3,500.00

159,000.00 167,498.30 159,000.00 159,000.00

70,000.00 73,925.84 70,000.00 70,000.00

.00 12,127.28 93,000.00 26,500.00

85,000.00 74,742.70 85,000.00 85,000.00

$685,100.00 $632,854.69 $818,350.00 $765,950.00Department   083 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE Totals $685,100.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS .00

5095 BUILDING REPAIRS 85,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 159,000.00

4000 HEATING & AIR EXPENSES 70,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 5,500.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 3,500.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00

2280 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 75,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE .00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 5,700.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 34,700.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 38,700.00

2020 OVERTIME 2,000.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 14,200.00

Department   083 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 182,600.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 9,200.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS .00

Department   082 - CENTRAL GARAGE Totals $283,600.00

3910 SHOP SUPPLIES 2,000.00

3930 SHOP EQUIPMENT 130,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 25,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 3,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE .00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 4,100.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 11,600.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 12,300.00

2020 OVERTIME 2,500.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 4,800.00

Department   082 - CENTRAL GARAGE
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 84,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 4,300.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS 417,325.00

Department   081 - ROADS & BRIDGES Totals $969,825.00

3830 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES 5,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
27 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget

95,000.00 136,753.49 165,000.00 165,000.00

292,300.00 209,267.53 292,300.00 292,300.00

20,200.00 .00 20,000.00 24,600.00

17,000.00 41,579.65 25,000.00 25,000.00

31,800.00 29,491.39 31,800.00 36,900.00

50,000.00 52,037.84 50,000.00 95,300.00

6,000.00 5,033.65 6,000.00 6,500.00

15,000.00 14,550.92 15,000.00 26,700.00

58,000.00 84,988.83 65,000.00 65,000.00

55,000.00 36,408.65 55,000.00 55,000.00

39,500.00 .00 39,500.00 39,500.00

8,000.00 8,976.48 8,000.00 8,000.00

120,000.00 211,173.31 220,000.00 220,000.00

35,000.00 64,191.87 87,000.00 87,000.00

85,000.00 .00 85,000.00 85,000.00

110,000.00 104,231.20 110,000.00 137,000.00

$1,037,800.00 $998,684.81 $1,274,600.00 $1,368,800.00

135,000.00 125,166.20 139,000.00 143,000.00

15,000.00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00

.00 .00 .00 15,000.00

6,800.00 .00 .00 7,300.00

400.00 462.45 400.00 400.00

10,300.00 9,022.61 .00 12,200.00

25,300.00 23,015.55 .00 31,300.00

21,600.00 19,471.06 .00 22,000.00

1,400.00 1,258.38 .00 1,000.00

4,000.00 4,260.96 .00 500.00

1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 .00

2,500.00 1,453.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

48,000.00 39,460.01 53,000.00 53,000.00

3,000.00 2,006.88 3,500.00 3,500.00

3,500.00 .00 4,800.00 4,800.00

9,500.00 3,215.73 10,500.00 10,500.00

3,000.00 2,250.30 4,000.00 4,000.002610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,000.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 3,500.00

2606 SPECIAL PROJECTS 9,500.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 48,000.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 3,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 1,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,500.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,400.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 4,000.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 25,300.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 21,600.00

2020 OVERTIME 400.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 10,300.00

2004 COUNTY/STATE STIPEND .00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 6,800.00

Department   085 - REGISTER OF DEEDS
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 135,000.00

2003 CONTRACT LABOR 15,000.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS 110,000.00

Department   084 - SOLID WASTE Totals $1,037,800.00

4105 WASTE TIRE DISPOSAL FEES  35,000.00

4665 RECYCLING CENTER EQUIP. 85,000.00

3830 MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES 8,000.00

4100 LANDFILL EXPENSES 120,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 55,000.00

3752 CAPITAL OUTLAY 39,500.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 15,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 58,000.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 50,000.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 6,000.00

2020 OVERTIME 17,000.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 31,800.00

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 292,300.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 20,200.00

Department   084 - SOLID WASTE
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 95,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
28 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
$290,300.00 $231,043.13 $234,200.00 $326,500.00

166,300.00 165,881.38 184,300.00 184,300.00

.00 .00 38,000.00 38,000.00

8,400.00 .00 .00 9,500.00

.00 96.02 500.00 500.00

13,500.00 10,119.90 14,100.00 14,200.00

32,800.00 26,195.21 36,400.00 36,600.00

31,000.00 30,897.60 40,700.00 40,700.00

400.00 359.54 300.00 500.00

3,500.00 4,301.70 5,100.00 5,100.00

3,100.00 3,701.74 4,200.00 .00

2,500.00 2,286.16 3,500.00 3,500.00

2,500.00 4,553.11 6,000.00 6,000.00

.00 .00 23,000.00 .00

1,600.00 3,781.98 9,600.00 6,000.00

1,500.00 2,815.24 4,000.00 4,000.00

.00 430.63 2,000.00 2,000.00

1,000.00 663.92 2,000.00 1,000.00

.00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00

3,000.00 5,254.03 5,000.00 5,000.00

.00 .00 1,800.00 1,800.00

13,700.00 25,337.40 36,000.00 27,700.00

$284,800.00 $286,675.56 $441,500.00 $411,400.00

.00 4,608.67 10,000.00 10,000.00

.00 876.53 1,800.00 1,800.00

.00 409.89 900.00 900.00

.00 45.70 .00 .00

2,500.00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00

1,500.00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00

1,200.00 197.89 1,200.00 1,200.00

21,000.00 18,960.48 21,000.00 21,000.00

$26,200.00 $25,099.16 $39,400.00 $39,400.00

35,000.00 950.27 8,000.00 8,000.00

Department   087 - MOSQUITO CONTROL Totals $26,200.00

Department   088 - LITTER CONTROL
2342 LITTER CONTROL PROGRAM 35,000.00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,200.00

4300 CHEMICALS 21,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 2,500.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE 1,500.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. .00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION .00

Department   087 - MOSQUITO CONTROL
2000 SALARIES & WAGES .00

2020 OVERTIME .00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS 13,700.00

Department   086 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT Totals $284,800.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,000.00

2830 MISCELLANEOUS .00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,000.00

2463 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00

2320 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,500.00

2430 EQUIPMENT .00

2307 NEW VEHICLES .00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE 1,600.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,500.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 2,500.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 3,500.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 3,100.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 31,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 400.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 13,500.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 32,800.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 8,400.00

2020 OVERTIME .00

Department   086 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 166,300.00

2005 NEW PERSONNEL .00

Department   085 - REGISTER OF DEEDS Totals $290,300.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
29 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
$35,000.00 $950.27 $8,000.00 $8,000.00

.00 50.98 .00 .00

.00 2,594.02 .00 .00

$0.00 $2,645.00 $0.00 $0.00

262,500.00 196,875.00 262,500.00 274,500.00

270,250.00 .00 270,250.00 270,250.00

125,000.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 200,000.00

68,170.00 55,707.31 72,112.00 72,112.00

119,000.00 .00 119,000.00 250,000.00

18,500.00 18,500.00 18,500.00 43,223.00

5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 25,000.00

7,000.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 7,000.00

75,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 90,000.00

38,000.00 42,444.47 62,000.00 62,000.00

15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00

7,200.00 7,147.17 7,200.00 7,200.00

4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

36,000.00 26,413.10 39,000.00 39,000.00

55,000.00 55,000.00 55,000.00 60,500.00

61,181.00 61,181.25 62,644.00 62,644.00

500.00 566.97 600.00 600.00

5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 35,000.00

10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 50,000.00

10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 75,000.00

1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,500.00

6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00

1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

14,500.00 14,500.00 14,500.00 14,500.00

175,000.00 175,000.00 175,000.00 190,000.00

5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 10,000.00

$1,408,801.00 $936,335.27 $1,441,306.00 $1,875,029.00

5075 BLUFFTON-JASPER VOLUNTEERS IN MEDICINE 5,000.00

Department   090 - AGENCY APPROPRIATIONS Totals $1,408,801.00

4602 BOYS & GIRLS CLUB 14,500.00

5065 ANIMAL SHELTER 175,000.00

4560 JASPER COUNTY HEALTH DEPT. 6,000.00

4600 HOPEFUL HORIZONS 1,000.00

4530 USCB 10,000.00

4556 HELPING HANDS 1,000.00

4512 BFT.-JASPER EOC 5,000.00

4515 TCLC 10,000.00

4500 S.C. MIAP ASSESSMENT 61,181.00

4505 DEPT. OF JUVENILE JUSTICE 500.00

4485 LCOG 36,000.00

4490 BFT.-JASPER COMP. HEALTH 55,000.00

4483 RIDGELAND LITTLE LEAGUE FOOTBALL 2,000.00

4484 HARDEEVILLE PATRIOT BOOSTER CLUB 2,000.00

4480 S.C. ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 7,200.00

4482 JASPER/RIDGELAND YOUTH BASEBALL 4,000.00

4465 NEW LIFE CENTER 38,000.00

4472 JASPER COUNTY FIRST STEPS 15,000.00

4450 JASPER SOIL & WATER 7,000.00

4460 BOARD OF DISABILITIES 75,000.00

4435 MARINE RESCUE SQUAD 5,000.00

4440 COASTAL EMPIRE MENTAL HEALTH 10,000.00

4425 PUBLIC DEFENDER 119,000.00

4430 PALMETTO BREEZE 18,500.00

4405 J.C. COUNCIL ON AGING 125,000.00

4420 LEGISLATIVE DELEGATION 68,170.00

Department   090 - AGENCY APPROPRIATIONS
3000 AHJ REGIONAL LIBRARY 262,500.00

3705 SOLICITOR-14TH JUDICIAL 270,250.00

2825 UTILITIES .00

Department   089 - HARDEEVILLE ANNEX OFFICE Totals $0.00

Department   088 - LITTER CONTROL Totals $35,000.00

Department   089 - HARDEEVILLE ANNEX OFFICE
2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS .00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
30 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget

55,000.00 55,000.00 55,000.00 55,000.00

$55,000.00 $55,000.00 $55,000.00 $55,000.00

43,000.00 38,097.38 43,000.00 45,100.00

2,200.00 .00 .00 2,300.00

.00 568.32 .00 .00

3,100.00 2,826.09 .00 3,500.00

6,800.00 7,159.86 .00 8,900.00

5,700.00 4,896.81 .00 6,100.00

1,600.00 1,438.15 .00 1,600.00

2,000.00 1,809.78 .00 1,600.00

800.00 402.76 800.00 800.00

1,500.00 1,663.60 1,500.00 1,500.00

500.00 483.55 500.00 500.00

$67,200.00 $59,346.30 $45,800.00 $71,900.00

34,000.00 32,400.17 34,000.00 38,500.00

38,600.00 34,575.61 38,600.00 43,000.00

.00 .00 .00 2,500.00

3,600.00 .00 .00 4,300.00

4,700.00 4,901.40 4,700.00 6,500.00

5,300.00 12,402.93 5,300.00 7,700.00

7,000.00 .00 7,000.00 10,100.00

19,600.00 9,793.62 19,600.00 12,100.00

300.00 269.65 300.00 300.00

3,000.00 2,806.84 3,000.00 2,300.00

1,000.00 1,158.98 1,000.00 1,000.00

1,400.00 .00 1,400.00 1,400.00

500.00 283.52 500.00 500.00

4,000.00 3,736.45 4,000.00 4,000.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

$124,500.00 $102,329.17 $120,900.00 $135,700.00

Department   095 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

2857 JURY EXPENSES 500.00

Department   094 - MAGISTRATE-CARTER (CIVIL COURT) $124,500.00

2832 TRANSLATOR SERVICES 500.00

2855 COURT EXPENSES 500.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 500.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 4,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 1,400.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 300.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 3,000.00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 7,000.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 19,600.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 4,700.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 5,300.00

2004 COUNTY/STATE STIPEND .00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 3,600.00

Department   094 - MAGISTRATE-CARTER (CIVIL COURT)
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 34,000.00

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 38,600.00

2645 UNIFORMS 500.00

Department   093 - VICTIM'S WITNESS Totals $67,200.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 800.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 1,500.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,600.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 2,000.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 6,800.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 5,700.00

2020 OVERTIME .00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 3,100.00

Department   093 - VICTIM'S WITNESS
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 43,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 2,200.00

Department   092 - KEEP JASPER BEAUTIFUL
2342 LITTER CONTROL PROGRAM 55,000.00

Department   092 - KEEP JASPER BEAUTIFUL Totals $55,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
31 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
12,000.00 8,865.73 12,000.00 12,000.00

868,139.00 9,492.00 500,000.00 1,050,000.00

1,064,718.00 496,001.09 .00 .00

30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00

122,000.00 2,632.59 127,000.00 127,000.00

$2,096,857.00 $546,991.41 $669,000.00 $1,219,000.00

73,500.00 63,733.01 73,500.00 36,500.00

.00 3,309.14 .00 44,800.00

.00 .00 .00 2,500.00

3,700.00 .00 .00 4,300.00

5,700.00 5,104.62 5,700.00 6,400.00

6,600.00 12,414.78 6,600.00 7,200.00

82,000.00 .00 .00 10,000.00

14,500.00 6,294.64 14,500.00 7,700.00

300.00 269.65 300.00 1,100.00

4,100.00 3,593.35 4,100.00 2,300.00

2,200.00 10,460.89 10,000.00 .00

1,000.00 665.55 1,000.00 1,000.00

2,000.00 2,689.89 2,000.00 2,000.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

1,000.00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00

3,000.00 2,670.70 3,000.00 3,000.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

3,000.00 971.87 3,000.00 3,000.00

$203,600.00 $112,178.09 $125,700.00 $133,800.00

32,000.00 29,651.27 32,000.00 36,500.00

.00 .00 .00 2,500.00

1,600.00 .00 .00 2,000.00

2,400.00 1,937.44 2,400.00 3,000.00

6,700.00 6,286.02 6,700.00 8,700.00

15,500.00 12,752.37 15,500.00 15,800.00

200.00 179.77 200.00 1,000.00

1,800.00 1,714.81 1,800.00 1,100.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 1,800.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 500.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 15,500.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 200.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 2,400.00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 6,700.00

2004 COUNTY/STATE STIPEND .00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 1,600.00

Department   096 - MAGISTRATE-EDWARDS (BOND $203,600.00

Department   098 - MAGISTRATE-DORE
2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 32,000.00

2832 TRANSLATOR SERVICES 500.00

2855 COURT EXPENSES 3,000.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 2,000.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 500.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 2,200.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 300.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 4,100.00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 82,000.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 14,500.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 5,700.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 6,600.00

2004 COUNTY/STATE STIPEND .00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 3,700.00

Department   096 - MAGISTRATE-EDWARDS (BOND COURT)
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 73,500.00

2001 PART-TIME SALARIES .00

5095 BUILDING REPAIRS 122,000.00

Department   095 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS Totals $1,214,000.00

3752 CAPITAL OUTLAY 550,000.00

4830 AFFORDABLE HOUSING 30,000.00

2475 POSTAGE MACHINE PAYMENT 12,000.00

2615 GRANT MATCHING FUNDS 500,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
32 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
1,200.00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00

2,500.00 2,200.48 2,500.00 2,500.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

$65,400.00 $54,722.16 $63,800.00 $75,800.00

39,000.00 36,560.12 39,000.00 41,000.00

.00 .00 .00 2,500.00

2,000.00 .00 .00 2,100.00

3,100.00 2,671.55 3,100.00 3,300.00

8,300.00 7,750.32 8,300.00 9,700.00

9,700.00 4,896.81 9,700.00 6,100.00

2,500.00 2,247.11 2,500.00 1,000.00

2,000.00 1,777.65 2,000.00 1,200.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

1,200.00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00

2,500.00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

500.00 .00 500.00 500.00

$71,800.00 $55,903.56 $69,800.00 $72,100.00

222,000.00 218,168.55 260,392.00 260,400.00

11,600.00 .00 .00 13,400.00

1,000.00 1,525.19 2,000.00 2,000.00

18,000.00 14,631.89 19,920.00 19,500.00

44,000.00 37,933.85 48,328.00 50,300.00

36,500.00 26,000.63 36,500.00 36,900.00

1,000.00 898.84 1,100.00 1,200.00

8,500.00 8,559.17 8,500.00 7,000.00

3,500.00 2,888.07 2,500.00 .00

4,000.00 2,708.50 3,500.00 3,500.00

8,500.00 4,045.87 7,000.00 7,000.00

2,000.00 614.31 2,000.00 2,000.00

3,700.00 4,023.23 4,000.00 4,000.00

20,000.00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00

$384,300.00 $321,998.10 $415,740.00 $427,200.00

3772 CONSULTING SERVICES 20,000.00

Department   101 - HUMAN RESOURCES Totals $384,300.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 2,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,700.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 8,500.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 8,500.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 3,500.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 36,500.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,000.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 18,000.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 44,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 11,600.00

2020 OVERTIME 1,000.00

Department   099 - MAGISTRATE-BADGETT Totals $71,800.00

Department   101 - HUMAN RESOURCES
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 222,000.00

2832 TRANSLATOR SERVICES 500.00

2855 COURT EXPENSES 500.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,200.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,500.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 2,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 500.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 9,700.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 2,500.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 3,100.00

2038 POLICE OFFICER RET.-EMPLOYER 8,300.00

2004 COUNTY/STATE STIPEND .00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 2,000.00

Department   098 - MAGISTRATE-DORE Totals $65,400.00

Department   099 - MAGISTRATE-BADGETT
2001 PART-TIME SALARIES 39,000.00

2832 TRANSLATOR SERVICES 500.00

2855 COURT EXPENSES 500.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,200.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,500.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
33 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget

159,400.00 147,205.21 190,000.00 190,000.00

8,000.00 .00 .00 9,700.00

12,200.00 11,329.08 14,500.00 14,500.00

30,000.00 27,260.00 37,500.00 37,500.00

18,200.00 14,991.20 18,600.00 18,600.00

1,100.00 988.73 1,000.00 1,000.00

4,000.00 4,686.70 5,300.00 5,300.00

2,100.00 787.44 2,100.00 .00

1,800.00 1,704.27 1,800.00 1,800.00

300.00 .00 300.00 300.00

6,500.00 3,175.51 6,500.00 6,500.00

1,000.00 631.77 2,000.00 2,000.00

1,800.00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00

2,500.00 3,992.99 3,750.00 3,800.00

1,000.00 1,803.99 1,500.00 1,500.00

8,500.00 5,663.40 9,000.00 9,000.00

1,500.00 125.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

$259,900.00 $224,345.29 $296,850.00 $304,500.00

121,000.00 163,249.91 181,100.00 181,100.00

6,100.00 .00 .00 9,500.00

.00 4,061.82 4,200.00 4,200.00

13,000.00 7,633.16 13,900.00 13,900.00

32,000.00 19,034.43 35,800.00 35,800.00

49,300.00 17,772.51 44,100.00 44,100.00

1,700.00 1,528.03 1,700.00 1,700.00

3,600.00 4,256.89 5,600.00 5,600.00

4,000.00 9,029.57 1,000.00 .00

4,000.00 3,285.62 4,000.00 4,000.00

11,000.00 7,107.59 11,000.00 11,000.00

100.00 .00 .00 .00

19,000.00 .00 .00 .00

.00 1,842.99 .00 2,000.00

79,400.00 80,522.57 85,000.00 85,000.00

240,000.00 92,904.71 240,000.00 256,000.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 79,400.00

2405 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 240,000.00

2307 NEW VEHICLES 19,000.00

2310 VEHICLE INSURANCE .00

2280 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 11,000.00

2300 GAS, OIL, & GREASE 100.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 4,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,000.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,700.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 3,600.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 32,000.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 49,300.00

2020 OVERTIME .00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 13,000.00

Department   103 - RIDGELAND-CLAUDE DEAN AIRPORT
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 121,000.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 6,100.00

3760 FILING FEES & COURT COSTS 1,500.00

Department   102 - JASPER COUNTY ATTORNEY Totals $259,900.00

2670 MEMBERSHIP & DUES 1,000.00

3750 JUDICIAL LAW LIBRARY 8,500.00

2460 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 1,800.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,500.00

2400 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS 6,500.00

2440 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 1,000.00

2200 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,800.00

2230 PRINTING & SUPPLIES 300.00

2060 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 4,000.00

2100 TELEPHONE AND INTERNET SERVICES 2,100.00

2040 MEDICAL INSURANCE 18,200.00

2050 TORT INSURANCE 1,100.00

2030 FICA-EMPLOYER CONTRIB. 12,200.00

2036 S.C. RETIREMENT-EMPLOYER 30,000.00

Department   102 - JASPER COUNTY ATTORNEY
2000 SALARIES & WAGES 159,400.00

2008 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 8,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
34 of 35

  



2024 Amended 
Budget 2024 Actual Amount

2025 Department 
Request 2025 Administrative

Ordinance #O-2024-13 Budget Detail Report
Budget Year 2025

Account Account Description
2024 Adopted 

Budget
41,000.00 26,320.56 41,000.00 41,000.00

23,000.00 26,654.09 35,000.00 35,000.00

660.00 .00 700.00 700.00

11,000.00 864.01 15,000.00 15,000.00

2,400.00 4,204.40 5,500.00 5,500.00

.00 448.04 3,000.00 3,000.00

6,200.00 4,534.74 6,200.00 6,200.00

15,000.00 23,927.81 20,000.00 20,000.00

.00 .00 99,000.00 .00

194,400.00 126,395.38 155,800.00 155,800.00

16,000.00 .00 19,000.00 19,000.00

24,000.00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00

350,000.00 175,000.00 350,000.00 350,000.00

$1,267,860.00 $800,578.83 $1,407,600.00 $1,335,100.00

$55,937,044.00 $42,561,982.10 $74,344,502.00 $60,548,002.00

$55,937,044.00 $40,826,014.62 $49,529,949.00 $60,548,002.00

$55,937,044.00 $42,561,982.10 $74,344,502.00 $60,548,002.00

$0.00 ($1,735,967.48) ($24,814,553.00) $0.00

$55,937,044.00 $40,826,014.62 $49,529,949.00 $60,548,002.00

$55,937,044.00 $42,561,982.10 $74,344,502.00 $60,548,002.00

$0.00 ($1,735,967.48) ($24,814,553.00) $0.00Net Grand Totals $0.00

REVENUE GRAND TOTALS $51,666,677.00

EXPENSE GRAND TOTALS $51,666,677.00

Fund   010 - GENERAL FUND Totals $0.00

Net Grand Totals

REVENUE TOTALS $51,666,677.00

EXPENSE TOTALS $51,666,677.00

EXPENSE TOTALS $51,666,677.00

Fund   010 - GENERAL FUND Totals

9500 AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION 350,000.00

Department   103 - RIDGELAND-CLAUDE DEAN AIRPORT $1,267,860.00

3935 FUEL/GASOLINE LIABILITY INSURANCE 16,000.00

4708 VEHICLE/EQUIP. LEASE PAYMENTS 24,000.00

3752 CAPITAL OUTLAY .00

3840 JET FUEL/AVI-GAS PURCHASES 194,400.00

2820 PUBLIC BUILDING INSURANCE 6,200.00

2825 UTILITIES 15,000.00

2610 TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,400.00

2645 UNIFORMS .00

2500 PEST CONTROL 660.00

2607 MARKETING/DEVELOPMENT 11,000.00

2430 EQUIPMENT 41,000.00

2435 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 23,000.00

Ordinance #O-2024-13
June 3, 3034
35 of 35

  



Jasper County
Budget Ordinance

Fee Schedule 
Fiscal Year 2024 - 2025

FY24-25
Department Dept. # Fee Description Proposed Amount

All Departments Returned Check Fee  (in addition to bank returned check fee) 35.00
Copy Fee (per page) 0.50
Certified Letter for returned checks (in addition to postage) 10.00

Coroner 75 Autopsy Report 100.00
75 Toxicology Report 25.00
75 Cremation Permit 20.00
75 Coroner's Report 10.00

Tax Collector 53 Rollover from current to delinquent (occurs on March 17th) 10.00
53 Certified mailings (occurs on or around May 2nd) 20.00
53 Posting of property (occurs 1st Friday in September) 35.00

53 Advertising properties (published in local newspaper for three consecutive weeks prior 
to tax sale) 10.00

53 Deed Preparation Fee 150.00
53 Bidder Registration Fee 10.00

Assessor 69 8.5 x 11 Map 3.00                          
69 11 x 17 Map 5.00                          
69 24 x 36 Map w/o aerials 15.00                        
69 24 x 36 Map with aerials 20.00                        
69 Manufactured home decal 5.00                          

Public Works 80 Container rentals (dismantlers, retailers) 300.00                      
80 Culverts $11.00/ft. plus tax (per joint) 95.92                        
80 Dirt (self load) per yard 1.00                          
80 Dirt (loaded) per yard 2.00                          

Ridgeland-Claude Dean Airport (3J1)
Hours of Operation:  Tues - Sat 9AM - 

5PM 103 Fuel (Aviation Gasoline), Full-Service Commodity Pricing

103 Fuel (Jet-A), Full-Service Commodity Pricing
103 After Hours Fees (Prior Notice Requested) 200.00
103 Crew/Pax Transport Fee (Flat Rate) 80.00
103 Daily Outdoor Basing Fee Grass (Piston) 10.00
103 Monthly Outdoor Basing Fee Grass (Piston) 60.00
103 Monthly Outdoor Ramp Fee (Single-Engine Piston) 120.00
103 Monthly Outdoor Basing Fee (Aircraft in Transport Trailer) 110.00
103 Monthly Outdoor Basing Fee (Pole Barn, per stall) 70.00
103 Monthly Outdoor Ramp Fee (Light Piston Twin) 150.00
103 Monthly Outdoor Ramp Fee (Heavy Piston Twin) 550.00
103 Monthly Outdoor Ramp Fee (Turbine) 550.00
103 Daily Ramp Fee (SE Piston), waived with 15-gallon fuel purchase 40.00
103 Daily Ramp Fee (ME Piston), waived with 20-gallon fuel purchase 70.00
103 Daily Ramp Fee (Turbine), waived with 60-gallon fuel purchase 140.00
103 Long-Term Vehicle Parking Fee, Monthly 60.00
103 Vehicle Parking Fee, Daily 10.00
103 Hangar Ground Lease Rate 0.28/sq. ft.
103 Ice 7.00

Sargeant Jasper Park 77 SJP Banquet Hall (before 6pm) 400.00
77 each additional hour from 6 pm - 10pm 30.00
77 SJP Picnic Shelter (before 6pm) 100.00
77 each additional hour from 6 pm - 10pm 30.00
77 SJP Gazebo (before 6pm) 100.00
77 each additional hour from 6 pm - 10pm 30.00
77 Innova Disc rentals per Disc 2.00                          
77 Discs for Purchase 9.00                          
77 Discs for Purchase 10.00                        
77 Discs for Purchase 13.00                        
77 Fishing per Adult, from age 13 and up, 65 years and older are free 10.00                        

Page 1 of 2



Jasper County
Budget Ordinance

Fee Schedule 
Fiscal Year 2024 - 2025

FY24-25
Department Dept. # Fee Description Proposed Amount

77 Fishing per Child 7-12 years old (all day) under 7 free 2.00                          
77 Fishing Pass for 6 months 100.00                      
77 Fishing Pass yearly 180.00                      
77 Kayak/Canoe 1-2 hours per vessel 10.00                        
77 Kayak/Canoe rental, each additional hour 5.00                          
77 Life Vest Rental 3.00                          
77 Refundable Deposit 100.00

Parks & Recreation 78 Community Centers 1-4 hours (Levy Limehouse, Tillman-Wagon Branch, Tarboro, and 
Roberstville) 200.00

78 Community Center, each additional hour after 4 hours \up to 10pm 10.00
78 Picnic Shelters at Small Community Parks 1-4 hours (Grays Hill and Cherry Hill) 50.00
78 Picnic Shelters, each additional hour after 4 hours 10.00
78 Refundable Deposit 100.00

78

Fields and Courts--Baseball, Softball, Soccer and Basketball (all day)  Includes the 
following:  Airport Field, Cherry Hill Park Field, Tarboro Fields, Mitchellville Court, 
Coosawatchie Fields, JYRB Field, Kleckley Field, Tillman Wagon Branch, Robertville, 
and Levy. 

50.00

Page 2 of 2



 Page 1 of 1 

Jasper County  
Finance Department 
358 Third Avenue, Post Office Box 1149 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 
Phone (843) 717-3692   Fax (843) 717-3626 

Kimberly Burgess, CPA 
Director of Administrative Services 
kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov 

Jasper County Council 
25-yard Containers (4) and 39-yard Compactor

Bid Acceptance Recommendation 

Meeting Date: June 3, 2024 

Subject:  Council acceptance of low bid for containers and compactor 

Recommendation: Council accepts the bid from FleetGenuis of NC, Inc., in the amount of 
$60,615.86 for the purchase of four (4) containers and one compactor for use at 
the solid waste collection centers, and to allow the purchase of additional 
containers not to exceed the budgeted amount of $85,000, including shipping 
and sales taxes, and to authorize the County Administrator or his designee to 
execute all documents necessary to complete the purchase.   

Description:  Jasper County advertised for sealed bids for four (4) 25-yard containers and one (1) 39-
yard compactor.  The bids were due May 22, 2024, at 1:00 PM. Three (3) bids were received. The 
lowest bidder is FleetGenius of NC., Inc., with a bid of $60,615.86 including shipping and applicable 
sales tax.    

Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the County Council accept the bid from FleetGenius of NC, 
Ins, in the amount of $60,615.86. Also, since the bid was approximately $24,384 less than the budgeted 
amount of $85,000, and the demand for containers is a constant issue at the solid waste collection 
centers, staff would like to purchase additional containers at the quoted price not to exceed $85,000, 
including shipping and sales taxes.  Additionally, staff requests that the Council authorize the 
County Administrator or his designee to execute all documents necessary to complete the project. 

Attachments:   
Fleet Genius Bid 
Monmouth Solutions, Inc. Bid 
Technology International, Inc. Bid 
Bid Tab Sheet 
Invitation to Bid Advertisement 
Invitation to Bid  

mailto:kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov








U E I :  E 4 7 4 Y E N A V P B 7  
C A G E :  9 D M G 0
S D V O S B  C E R T  # :
V S B C - 5 2 4 5 7 2 0 8 7 4 9

MONMOUTH SOLUTIONS

PROPOSAL



Equipment Lease

Core Competencies

Heavy Equipment
Material Handling
Rental Vehicles
Mobile Structures

About Us
Monmouth Solutions, Inc is a Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small
Business that was formed in 2022 with a focus on logistical
coordination, metal/steel manufacturing, equipment rentals, trailer
and vehicle sales, and much more. As a veteran owned business, we
know firsthand how important it is for vendors to offer efficient and
effective products and services to the government. The founders of
Monmouth consist of industry leaders with almost a century of
combined experience. Using our diverse team of experts, we have
been able to successfully complete over 100 contracts for state,
local, and federal government agencies since inception. 

Trailer Manufacturing

Travel Trailers
Command/Hazmat Trailers
Pressure Washer/Sprayer Trailers
Dump, Flatbed, Gooseneck, Enclosed, ETC

Disaster Relief

Rapid Deployment
Logistical Support
Product Sourcing

Hotel Sourcing
Transportation Solutions
Charters

Lodging & Travel

336212  Truck Trailer Manufacturing
532412  Construction, Mining, and Forestry
Machinery and Equipment Rental and
Leasing
532490  Other Commercial and Industrial
Machinery and Equipment Rental and
Leasing
335311 Power, Distribution, and Specialty
Transformer Manufacturing
336214  Travel Trailer and Camper
Manufacturing
532111  Passenger Car Rental
441210  Recreational Vehicle Dealers
332439  Other Metal Container Manufacturing
334111  Electronic Computer Manufacturing
333924  Industrial Truck, Tractor, Trailer, and
Stacker Machinery Manufacturing
811310  Commercial and Industrial Machinery
and Equipment (Except Automotive and
Electronic) Repair and Maintenance
336211  Motor Vehicle Body Manufacturing
333120  Construction Machinery
Manufacturing
333310  Commercial and Service Industry
Machinery Manufacturing
721110 Hotels (except Casino Hotels)
337000 Furniture and Related Product
Manufacturing.

Equipment & Vehicle Sales

Computer and IT Parts and Services
Recreational Vehicles
Heavy Equipment

NAICS



PROPOSAL

U E I :  E 4 7 4 Y E N A V P B 7
C A G E :  9 D M G 0
S D V O S B  C E R T  # :  V S B C - 5 2 4 5 7 2 0 8 7 4 9

Monmouth Solutions

FOUR (4) 25 YARD OPEN-
TOP CONTAINERS AND

 ONE 39 YARD SELF-
CONTAINED COMPACTOR

SOLICITATION #IVTB #2024-16

Monmouth Solutions will provide and 
deliver four (4) 25 Yard Open-Top 
Containers and one (1) 39 Yard

Self-Contained Compactor with the 
following specifications to requested 

delivery site. 

Please refer to Specifications and 
Technical Data below. 



Company Overview:
Monmouth Solutions, Inc. stands as a beacon of

reliability and innovation in the government
procurement sector. Our core values of integrity,
efficiency, and customer satisfaction drive every

facet of our operations. As a certified SDVOSB, we
take pride in our ability to provide exceptional

solutions while simultaneously fostering
opportunities for veterans in the workforce.

Key Strengths:
Strategic Partnerships: We have cultivated strong

relationships with suppliers globally, enabling us to
procure the highest quality equipment and services

for our clients.

Nationwide Coverage: With strategic locations and
a robust fleet, we offer unparalleled coverage and
rapid response times, ensuring timely delivery and

service.
Veteran-Led Expertise: Our leadership team,

comprised of veterans, brings a wealth of
experience and dedication to every project we

undertake.
Commitment to Excellence: We adhere to the

highest standards of quality control and service
delivery, ensuring that every client receives nothing

but the best.

Services Offered:
Equipment Procurement: We specialize in sourcing

a wide range of equipment, from technology to
machinery, tailored to meet the specific needs of

government agencies.

Logistics and Delivery: Leveraging our extensive
fleet and logistics expertise, we provide efficient

and reliable delivery services to ensure timely
fulfillment of orders.

Consulting and Support: Our team of experts offers
comprehensive consulting services, guiding clients

through the procurement process and providing
ongoing support to ensure optimal performance of

acquired assets.

Contract Specific Company Data

Monmouth Solutions, Inc. is proud to be a 
licensed supplier of Wastequip and Toter 

products, the largest waste product 
manufacturer in America. With multiple 

manufacturing plants across the country and a 
robust logistics network, we offer a 

comprehensive selection of dumpsters and 
compactors for sale, catering to the needs of 
government agencies nationwide and beyond.

Key Strengths:

Leading Manufacturers: As a licensed supplier 
of Wastequip and Toter products, we offer 
access to industry-leading dumpsters and 

compactors known for their quality, durability, 
and innovation.

Extensive Inventory: Our inventory includes a 
wide range of dumpsters and compactors in 
various sizes, configurations, and materials, 

ensuring we have the perfect solution for every 
application and environment.

National Coverage: With manufacturing plants 
strategically located across the country and a 
robust logistics network, we provide prompt 

delivery of purchased dumpsters to any 
location, ensuring timely fulfillment of orders.

Expertise and Support: Our team of experts is 
dedicated to providing knowledgeable guidance 
and support to government agencies throughout 
the purchasing process, from product selection 

to installation and beyond.



U E I :  E 4 7 4 Y E N A V P B 7
C A G E :  9 D M G 0
S D V O S B  C E R T  # :  V S B C - 5 2 4 5 7 2 0 8 7 4 9

SPECIFICATIONS AND TECHNICAL DATA

Monmouth Solutions will provide and four (4) 25 Yard Open-Top 
Containers and one (1) 40 Yard Self-Contained Compactor with the 

following specifications to Jasper County, South Carolina. 

Product Specifications:
Four (4) 25 Yard Open-Top Containers

- 25YD OPEN TOP ROLL OFF CONTAINER
- 18' DECK 62" SIDES
- 3/16" SIDE SHEETS- 30YD 62" HIGH
- 1/4 PIECED FLOOR PLATE
- 16" FLOOR CHANNEL SPACING

*Includes many color options

Karen Mercuri
Cross-Out

Karen Mercuri
Cross-Out



One (1) 40 Yard Self Contained Compactor

- SELF CONTAINED COMPACTOR 40YD
- PRESSURE GAUGE MOUNTED ON PU
- INCLUDES WEATHER COVERAGE FOR POWER UNIT. VOLTAGE TBD

*Includes many color options



QUOTATION

Quantity Item Description Unit Price Amount

Sales Rep

Quoted To:

Good ThruCustomer ID Payment Terms

Net 30 Days

TOTAL

Sales Tax

Subtotal

Monmouth Solutions, Inc
CAGE: 9DMG0
UEI: E474YENAVPB7
93 Butman Road
Lowell, MA  01852Voice: (978) 735-3855

4.00

06/22/24

25 Yard Open-Top 
Container

25YD OPEN TOP ROLL OFF 
CONTAINER 18' DECK 62" SIDES

$7,750.00 $31,000.00

Delivery Included

$63,000.00

$63,000.00

2-4 weeks ARO

Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building
358 3rd Avenue
Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936

$32,000.001.00 40 Yard Self 
Contained Compactor

SELF CONTAINED COMPACTOR 
40YD $32,000.00



 
 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
JASPER COUNTY 

INVITATION TO BID (IVTB #2024-16) 
FOUR (4) 25 YARD OPEN-TOP CONTAINERS AND 

     ONE 39 YEAR SELF-CONTAINED COMPACTOR 
 

Page | 1 
 

Notice is hereby given that sealed bids will be received for four (4) 25 Yard Open-Top Containers and One (1) 39 Yard 
Self-Contained Compactor, by Jasper County, South Carolina, until 1:00 p.m., Wednesday, May 22, 2024, at which time 
all bids received will be opened.  Bids may be submitted electronically through the County’s Vendor Registry webpage or 
may be received by the Director of Administrative Services Division (Director) at the Clementa C. Pinckney Government 
Building, 358 3rd Avenue, Post Office Box 1149, Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 prior to the time bids are to be opened.  
Hardcopy bids delivered within the 30-minute period immediately preceding bid opening (as described above) must be 
hand-delivered to the Director’s Office in the Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building.  Hardcopy bids should be 
delivered to the following address:   
 

Kimberly Burgess, Director of Administrative Services Division 
Jasper County  

Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building 
358 3rd Avenue, Suite 304 

P.O. Box 1149 
Ridgeland, SC  29936 

 
A link to the County’s Vendor Registry webpage may be found under “What’s New”, “Bids & Solicitations”, on the County’s 
website at www.jaspercountysc.gov. All bids delivered should clearly indicate IVTB #2024-16 on the exterior of the 
envelope.  Any bids submitted or delivered after the above stated date and time will not be accepted under any 
circumstances.   
 
Bid opening will take place in the Jasper County Council Chambers at the address below: 
 

Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building 
358 3rd Avenue 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 
 
Bidders should direct any questions to Dallas Lassiter at (843) 726-7740 or dlassiter@jaspercountysc.gov.   
 
Description of Work: 
Jasper County is seeking bids for four (4) 25-yard open-top containers.  Containers should be made of 3/16 thick metal on 
sides and ¼ thick on floors, with 3/16 x 2 x 6 main rails, 4” ground wheels and 4 x 5 channel on 34-inch centers for side 
braces.  The 39-yard self-contained compactor should contain weather covers, 80% lights and pressure gauges. All bids 
should include delivery fees, South Carolina sales tax (6%), and Jasper County sales tax (2%) 
 
Bid Requirements: 
Bids should be placed on company letterhead or on a document which provides Bidder name, address, phone number 
and other pertinent contact information.  The successful Bidder will be required to furnish a W-9 and if the vendor 
performs any work on County property, a certificate of insurance with evidence of liability and workers compensation 
coverage.   
 
All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for thirty (30) days after the day of the Bid opening. The County of Jasper (Owner) 
reserves the right to reject any or all bids, including without limitation the right to reject any or all nonconforming, non-
responsive, unbalanced, or conditional Bids. The Owner also reserves the right to waive all informalities not involving price, 
time, or changes in the work and to negotiate contract terms with the successful bidder.     

Page 1 of 5

Faarz
Typewritten text
**Please see our equipment proposal TII/SC/0524/36823 attached on Page 2



Technology International, Inc. 
1331 South International Parkway, Suite 2251 

Lake Mary, FL 32746 

Tel:  (407) 359-2373 

Fax:  (407) 359-2372 

E-mail:  tii@tii-usa.com 

Website: www.tii-usa.com 

 

 
Equipment Proposal 

 
Description: 25 Yard Open-Top Containers and 39 Yard Self-Contained Compactor 
 
Solicitation ID:  IVTB #2024-16 
 
Agency:             Jasper County     
  
TII Ref: TII/SC/0524/36823 
 
Date: 05/22/2024 

 
In response to your quote request for 25 Yard Open-Top Containers and 39 Yard Self-Contained 
Compactor, Technology International, Inc. is pleased to submit the following for consideration: 
 

 
ITEM 
NO. 

 
QTY 

 
DESCRIPTION/ MODEL NO. 

 
UNIT 

PRICE 

 
EXTD. 
PRICE 

 
1 
 

 
4 
 

 
25YD Open Top Roll Off Container 18' deck 62" Sides 
Item# A-4216 
 
Includes: 
 3 / 16" Side Sheets - 30YD 62" HIGH-Item# A-4421 

 1/ 4 Pieced Floor Plate- Item# A-4401 

 1 6" Floor Channel Spacing- Item# A-4403 

 
$7,710.20 

 
$30,840.80 

 
2 
 

 
1 
 

 
RP-4000SB Self Cont'd Compactor 
Item# A-3065 
 
Includes:  
Pressure Gauge Mounted On PU –Item# A-3213-01 

 
$31,235.00 

 
$31,235.00 

 
See attached data sheets 

 

 
Total…………................$62,075.80 

 

 
Sales Tax @ 8%………..$4,966.06 

 

Page 2 of 5

mailto:tii@tii-usa.com
http://www.tii-usa.com/


 

 
 

 
Grand Total…………........$67,041.86 

 

 
Warranty: Manufacturer’s Standard 1 year warranty applies. 
 
Delivery:  

 Estimated delivery is 12 Weeks after receipt of order and approved submittal.  

 Please note, due to COVID-19 there may be unanticipated disruptions and delays in the supply 
chains globally, for parts, components, equipment and internal manufacturing services such as 
engineering, production allocation, and logistics. This may result in manufacturing & delivery 
delays out of our control. We will do our best to communicate all such impacts and reduce the 
effects of any such delays.  

 All delivery dates quoted are subject to manufacturer’s confirmation at time of order. 

 Submittal data will be provided for approval after receipt of order (if applicable) 

 Customer to provide equipment and personnel to unload  

 TII will provide MSO at time of payment confirmation. Customer is responsible for all titling and 
registration of trailer (If Applicable) 

 
Freight: Included to Ridgeland, SC  29936 
 
Quote Validity: 30 days. 

 
Payment Terms: NET 30 
Prompt Payment discount: 1/4 % 10 days 

 

*** Notes: 

 Quoted price is not available on a line item basis. This is an offer for a lump sum contract. 

 Made in the USA. 
 
Technology International, Inc. Corporate data: 
We are a small business and our Tax Payer Identification Number (TIN): 650342335. The above price 
quoted does not include any sales, excise or similar taxes. 
 
We trust that this proposal will meet your requirements and we look forward to hearing from you. 
 
If you have any questions or need more information, please contact us by phone at 407-359-2373, 
fax at 407-359-2372 or email us at tii@tii-usa.com 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Rifat Habib 
Business Development Exec. 
Technology International, Inc. 

Page 3 of 5

mailto:tii@tii-usa.com


 Meets ANSI Standards
 Remote Power Units with Cover
 UL Listed Relay Control Box
 Quick Disconnect
 Two 3” Fire Ports
 Operator’s Controls with 15’ Sealite
 Oil Level Sight Gauge with Thermometer
 Double End Pick-Up
 TEFC Motors (Tri-Voltage)
 Easy closing semi-automatic slam lock
 door (standard)

 5” Channel welded inside to the face of the container to 
give it greater strength and longevity (standard)

 All compactors are primed and painted in one of ten 
standard colors

 Two grease fittings located on each side of charge box 
for preventative maintenance (standard)

 Controls: push button start, dead man/hand key 
switch, forward-reverse selection switch, mushroom 
emergency stop and 80% and 100% container full 
light (standard and manual override)

 PLC operated power unit

Available in 20, 30, 35 and 
40 cubic yard capacities.

Ideal for food handling companies, processing plants, 
supermarkets, fast food restaurants, hotels, casinos, and hospitals.

COMPACTORS

Self-Contained Compactor

RP-3000SB
(SHOWN)

Page 4 of 5



RP-2000SB RP-3000SB RP-3500SB RP-4000SB

CHARGE BOX CAP. - MFG. RATING 2.0 CUBIC YARDS 2.0 CUBIC YARDS 2.0 CUBIC YARDS 2.0 CUBIC YARDS

MSWMA RATING 1.57 CUBIC YARDS 1.57 CUBIC YARDS 1.57 CUBIC YARDS 1.57 CUBIC YARDS

CYCLE TIME 33 SEC. 33 SEC. 33 SEC. 33 SEC.

NORMAL RAM FORCE 39,900 39,900 39,900 39,900

MAXIMUM RAM FORCE 44,000 44,000 44,000 44,000

NORMAL OPERATING PRESSURE 1750 1750 1750 1750

MAX OPER. PRESSURE IN MANUAL MODE 2200 2200 2200 2200

MAX OPER. PRESSURE IN AUTO CYCLE 2000 2000 2000 2000

CYL (BORE X STROKE X ROD} (2) 4”X30-88” X -2.5” (2) 4”X30-88” X -2.5” (2) 4”X30-88” X -2.5” (2) 4”X30-88” X -2.5”

MOTOR 10 HP 10 HP 10 HP 10 HP

PUMP SIZE 10.5 GPM 10.5 GPM 10.5 GPM 10.5 GPM

PACKER FLOOR 1/2” PLATE 1/2” PLATE 1/2” PLATE 1/2” PLATE

PACKER SIZES 1/4” PLATE W/ 6” CHANNEL 1/4” PLATE W/ 6” CHANNEL 1/4” PLATE W/ 6” CHANNEL 1/4” PLATE W/ 6” CHANNEL

RAM TOP 1/4” PLATE 1/4” PLATE 1/4” PLATE 1/4” PLATE

RAM FACE 1/2” PLATE W/4”X3” ANGLE 1/2” PLATE W/4”X3” ANGLE 1/2” PLATE W/4”X3” ANGLE 1/2” PLATE W/4”X3” ANGLE

CHARGE BOX OPENING 41” X 60” 41” X 60” 41” X 60” 41” X 60”

DIMENSION - A 96 - 1/2” 96 - 1/2” 104 - 1/2” 104 - 1/2”

DIMENSION - B 222” 282” 282” 306”

DIMENSION - C 144” 204” 204” 228”

DIMENSION - D 67 - 3/4” 67 - 3/4” 67 - 3/4” 67 - 3/4”

DIMENSION - E 41” 41” 41” 41”

DIMENSION - F 85 - 1/2” 85 - 1/2” 93 - 1/2” 93 - 1/2”

DIMENSION - G 49 - 1/2” 49 - 1/2” 49 - 1/2” 49 - 1/2”

DIMENSION - H 38 - 3/8” 38 - 3/8” 38 - 3/8” 38 - 3/8”

DIMENSION - I 204” 264” 264” 288”

WEIGHT 10,565 10,987 11,331 11,566

 Guide Rail 40” x 44”
 Doghouse W/ 30”x40” Door On Each Side
 Hopper 45° (Cellar Type) With Doors
 Thru-Wall Chute Side 40”H x 96”L W/ Door
      (40” x 40” Free Standing Chute)

 Thru-Wall Chute Rear 40H x 96”L With
      Door (40” x 40” Free Standing Chute)
 Hinged Dock Extension
 Single Phase Power Unit
 Multi Cycle Timer
 Low Oil Shutdown

 Hi Temp - Low Oil Shutdown 
 Color Pressure Gauge
 Oil Heater
 Ozone Odor Control System
 Additional Options Available
      

AVAILABLE OPTIONS

RUDCO RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REVISE, AMEND AND IMPROVE IT’S EQUIPMENT WITHOUT NOTICE

Self Contained

Compactors

Page 5 of 5





From: South Carolina Business Opportunities
To: Kimberly Burgess
Subject: SCBO Advertisement Submission
Date: Wednesday, April 24, 2024 2:55:35 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

NOTICE:
Your SCBO password is good only for 90 days.  Upon receiving a reminder to renew
your password, you have six (6) days to do so.  If you wait any longer, you'll be locked
out.  Please avoid a lockout by renewing your password on time every 90 days or
sooner!

Your SCBO advertisement (AD# 48478) has been submitted and will be reviewed by a member of our staff prior to publication.
Please retain a copy of this email to serve as a receipt of your ad submission.

Please note that ads submitted after 12:00 pm may not be reviewed/published until the next business day.

The information you submitted for the advertisement is included below:

Category: Equipment

Advertisement Date: Wed, 04/24/2024 - 00:00

Ad Title: 25 YARD OPEN-TOP CONTAINERS AND 39 YARD SELF-CONTAINED COMPACTOR

Description:

Jasper County is seeking sealed bids for four (4) 25-yard open-top containers and one (1) 39-yard self-contained compactor. 

Solicitation #: IVTB #2024-16

Submit Offer By: Wed, 05/22/2024 - 13:00

Direct Inquiries To: Dallas Lassiter

Buyer Phone Number: (843) 726-7740

Buyer Email: dlassiter@jaspercountysc.gov

Pre-Bid Information:

Full Details / Download Form (URL): https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/financial-administrative-services/bids-so...

Ad Creation Date: Wed, 04/24/2024 - 14:55

mailto:noreply@mmo.sc.gov
mailto:kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov
mailto:dlassiter@jaspercountysc.gov
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.jaspercountysc.gov%2ffinancial-administrative-services%2fbids-solicitations&c=E,1,ZByMZ3iIWzDkq-k1r6xWUIclNwgnhLA3bOEJP5O5bfj1KjogGwwekzFtrWTvAPbTiIYv9jhWatmpdfW0P_-O4QZ4V8ofw9AmFrDuQgE1HWyokP8FaRCqusQ,&typo=1


 
 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
JASPER COUNTY 

INVITATION TO BID (IVTB #2024-16) 
FOUR (4) 25 YARD OPEN-TOP CONTAINERS AND 

     ONE 39 YEAR SELF-CONTAINED COMPACTOR 
 

Page | 1 
 

Notice is hereby given that sealed bids will be received for four (4) 25 Yard Open-Top Containers and One (1) 39 Yard 
Self-Contained Compactor, by Jasper County, South Carolina, until 1:00 p.m., Wednesday, May 22, 2024, at which time 
all bids received will be opened.  Bids may be submitted electronically through the County’s Vendor Registry webpage or 
may be received by the Director of Administrative Services Division (Director) at the Clementa C. Pinckney Government 
Building, 358 3rd Avenue, Post Office Box 1149, Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 prior to the time bids are to be opened.  
Hardcopy bids delivered within the 30-minute period immediately preceding bid opening (as described above) must be 
hand-delivered to the Director’s Office in the Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building.  Hardcopy bids should be 
delivered to the following address:   
 

Kimberly Burgess, Director of Administrative Services Division 
Jasper County  

Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building 
358 3rd Avenue, Suite 304 

P.O. Box 1149 
Ridgeland, SC  29936 

 
A link to the County’s Vendor Registry webpage may be found under “What’s New”, “Bids & Solicitations”, on the County’s 
website at www.jaspercountysc.gov. All bids delivered should clearly indicate IVTB #2024-16 on the exterior of the 
envelope.  Any bids submitted or delivered after the above stated date and time will not be accepted under any 
circumstances.   
 
Bid opening will take place in the Jasper County Council Chambers at the address below: 
 

Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building 
358 3rd Avenue 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 
 
Bidders should direct any questions to Dallas Lassiter at (843) 726-7740 or dlassiter@jaspercountysc.gov.   
 
Description of Work: 
Jasper County is seeking bids for four (4) 25-yard open-top containers.  Containers should be made of 3/16 thick metal on 
sides and ¼ thick on floors, with 3/16 x 2 x 6 main rails, 4” ground wheels and 4 x 5 channel on 34-inch centers for side 
braces.  The 39-yard self-contained compactor should contain weather covers, 80% lights and pressure gauges. All bids 
should include delivery fees, South Carolina sales tax (6%), and Jasper County sales tax (2%) 
 
Bid Requirements: 
Bids should be placed on company letterhead or on a document which provides Bidder name, address, phone number 
and other pertinent contact information.  The successful Bidder will be required to furnish a W-9 and if the vendor 
performs any work on County property, a certificate of insurance with evidence of liability and workers compensation 
coverage.   
 
All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for thirty (30) days after the day of the Bid opening. The County of Jasper (Owner) 
reserves the right to reject any or all bids, including without limitation the right to reject any or all nonconforming, non-
responsive, unbalanced, or conditional Bids. The Owner also reserves the right to waive all informalities not involving price, 
time, or changes in the work and to negotiate contract terms with the successful bidder.     



 Development Services 05/28/2024 

 

Jasper County  

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Needs Assessment Ranking Summary  

1.  Public Facilities/ Community Enrichment Activities to Include: 

• Public Safety Buildings (Renovation/Replacement) 

Consolidated Sheriff Facilities 

Coosawhatchie Fire Station/Community Center 

• Public Services Buildings (Replacement) 

Department of Social Services (DSS) 

Election & Voter Registration 

• Fire Station (Equipment) 

• Community Centers (Renovation) 

•  Boat Landings (Renovation) 

2.  Water, Sewer, Drainage Infrastructure Improvements as determined 

by studies, CIP plans etc., focusing on Low-Moderate Income (LMI) 

areas such as: 

• Levy Limehouse 

• Wagon Branch 

• Tillman 

• Other areas; as identified in future 

3.  Economic Development (projects as they are developed) 

4.  Neighborhood Revitalization 

   Affordable Housing 

  



 Page 1 of 2 

Jasper County  
Finance Department 
358 Third Avenue, Post Office Box 1149 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 
Phone (843) 717-3692   Fax (843) 717-3626 

Kimberly Burgess, CPA 
Director of Administrative Services 
kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov 

Jasper County Council  
Debris Removal at Coosawhatchie Community Center Site 

Bid Acceptance Recommendation 

Meeting Date: June 3, 2024 

Subject:  Council acceptance of low bid for the removal of debris and a concrete slab and 
rough grading of the debris field area.  

Recommendation: Council accepts the bid from MB Demolition in the amount of $24,500.00 for 
the removal and proper disposal of all demolition debris currently located at the 
site of the former Coosawhatchie Community Center, including the equipment 
and labor to load the bidder’s dump trucks and transport the debris the Waste 
Management Construction and Debris landfill in Jasper County and to break up 
and remove the concrete slab under the debris field.  The bid shall also include 
the equipment and labor necessary to rough grade the debris field site.  The 
Council also authorizes the County Administrator or his designee to execute all 
documents necessary to complete the purchase.   

Description:  Jasper County advertised for sealed bids for the removal and disposal of 
demolition debris at the former Coosawhatchie Community Center located at 200 Old Step School 
Road, Ridgeland, SC.  The invitation to bid was for the removal and proper disposal of all demolition 
debris currently located at the site of the former Coosawhatchie Community Center, including a concrete 
slab that the debris currently sits on. The invitation required that the bidder(s) provide the equipment and 
labor to remove the debris and that the bidder provide its own dump trucks to transport the debris to the 
Waste Management Construction and Debris landfill in Jasper County. The invitation to bid also required 
that the debris field area should be rough graded leaving a smooth site.  The bids were due May 16, 
2024, at 2:00 PM. Ten (10) bids were received.  The lowest bidder is MB Demolition, 
Summerville, SC with a bid of $24,500.    

Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the County Council accept the bid from MB Demolition 
in the amount of $24,500 and authorize the County Administrator or his designee to execute all 
documents necessary to complete the project.      

Attachments:   
MB Demolition Bid 
Chaney Contracting Bid 
East Coast Construction Bid 
Opterra Solutions Bid 

mailto:kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov


                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 

ES Integrated Bid 
Cleland Constructors, Inc. Bid 
Willie Keitt & Sons, LLC Bid 
Stevenson’s Bobcat Services Bid 
Masterful Enterprises, LLC Bid 
TG Trucking, LLC Bid 
Bid Tab Sheet 
Invitation to Bid Advertisement 

I Invitation to Bid  



 

QUOTE 

MB Demolition 
QUOTE # 383 

DATE: MAY 16, 2024 

Summerville, SC 29483 

Phone (843) 489-6443  

mbdemolitionsc@gmail.com 

 

 

TO Jasper County 

Bid for “Removal and Disposal of Demolition Debris” 

358 3rd Avenue  

Ridgeland, SC 29936 

 

 

 

SALESPERSON JOB PAYMENT TERMS DUE DATE 

Marcus Brown 383                

 

# DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE LINE TOTAL 

             1 Provide labor and equipment for removal 

and disposal of Demolition Debris at 200 

Step School Road, Ridgeland SC 29936. 

$24,500.00 $24,500.00 

                                               

     

    

                 

 SUBTOTAL $24,500.00 

 SALES TAX  

 TOTAL $24,500.00 

 

 __________________________________________________________________________________________  

             

 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! 

 

mailto:mbdemolitionsc@gmail.com




Page 1 of 1

East Coast Construction
9506 Tarboro Rd

Ridgeland, SC  29936 US

eastcoastconstruction20@gmail.com

 

Estimate
ADDRESS
Jasper County

ESTIMATE 1010
DATE 05/10/2024

DATE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Equipment & Labor -Excavators x2
Buckets/Grapple/Hydraulic Hammers
- Skid Steer & Loaders
- Trucks
- Trucking

1 38,500.00 38,500.00

Mobilization - Lowboys Transport & Trucks
- Gooseneck Transport
- Crew Trucks

1 1,500.00 1,500.00

Coosawhatchie Community Center:
- Remove all debris and concrete from the demo on site
- Process and break up existing slab still present under the concrete rubble pile 
and haul off all concrete & debris  to designated site assigned by customer
- No concrete debris shall be on site following clean-up
- Dirt work: Rough grade (smooth out) demo area following debris/concrete 
removal
- Debris disposal is to be covered by customer

TOTAL $40,000.00

Accepted By

Accepted Date



Opterra Solutions

Proposal #36934

   
Approved by/Date: _______________________________________

 
Opterra Solutions, Inc.,  270 Bruner Rd, Lexington SC 29072, United States,  Tax Reg. Number : 57-0851059 (United States SC, United States) 1/1

Proposal Date: 05/14/2024
Proposal Valid Through: 07/18/2024
Service Valid Through: 06/30/2024
Terms: Net 30
PO#: 

Total
USD 44,800.00

Sales Rep: Steadman, Trevor

Sales Rep 

Email: trevor.steadman@opterrasolutions.com

Sales Rep Phone: (843) 898-0202

Bill To:
Jasper County Government

PO Box 653

Ridgeland SC 29936

United States

Ship To:
Coosawhatchie Community Center 

Jasper County Development

200 Step School Road 

Ridgeland SC 29936

United States

Customer Contact: Lucas, Danny

 

Description   Quantity Total  

Coosawhatchie Community 
Center Debris Removal:
Remove and haul 4 piles of 
concrete, dirt, and tree debris to 
approved disposal facility.
Pile 1: 29' 4" x 36' 9" 
Pile 2: 42' 1" x 53' 1"
Pile 3: 86' 6" x 30' 8" 
Pile 4: 37' 6" x 29' 8" 
Cost includes labor and 
equipment to load and haul 
debris to location provided by 
Jasper County. 

  1 44,800  

Subtotal 44,800.00

Tax 0.00

Total USD 44,800.00

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this proposal. Included, you will find our scope of 
work and pricing. We ask that you review, approve, and return this proposal at your earliest 
convenience.

Terms and Conditions:
-Prices include labor, materials, and transportation. Subject to Change.
-Pricing valid for 30 days from the date of proposal.
-Invoices due Net30 from the date of the invoice unless otherwise specified.
-Opterra Solutions will maintain adequate insurance.
-All products used are EPA-approved.

We are excited about the opportunity to partner with you. Don’t forget to inquire about Opterra 
Solutions' Customer Portal. If any changes are required to your service or billing contacts on 
this proposal, please include that information with your approval for service. If you have any 
questions, please don’t hesitate to call or email.

 

mailto:trevor.steadman@opterrasolutions.com


SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

7/3/2023

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, LLC
115 Central Island Street
Suite 100
Charleston SC 29492

Joy St. Martin
843-972-4721 843-577-5062

joy_st.martin@ajg.com

National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburg 19445
Commerce and Industry Insurance Company 19410

Opterra Solutions, Inc. fka NaturChem, Inc.
270 Bruner Rd.
Lexington, SC 29072

SiriusPoint Specialty Insurance Corporation 16820

663683438

A X 1,000,000
X 300,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000
X X

5268252 6/30/2023 6/30/2024

2,000,000

A 3,000,000

X

X X

4489734 6/30/2023 6/30/2024

B X X 10,000,000BE038296201 6/30/2023 6/30/2024

10,000,000
X 10,000 Prod/CO Aggregate 10,000,000

A X

N

015893849 6/30/2023 6/30/2024

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000
C Pollution Liability CPLS00029530 6/30/2023 6/30/2024 Ea Occurrence

Policy Limit
Dedctbl-Ea Incident

$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$25,000

For Information Only



 

 
 
 
 

Proposal for Jasper County, South Carolina – IVTB 
#2024-15  

 
 
 
 
Due Date: May 16, 2024 
 
 
Internal Job Number: ENV.910161 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

EnviroSmart dba ES Integrated 
1629 Meeting Street Road 
Charleston, SC 29405 
www.es-integrated.com 
 



 

                   Charleston, SC.  Florence, SC.  Savannah, GA.  Charlotte, NC. 
 
 

1 

 
May 16, 2024 
 
Jasper County 
358 3rd Avenue, Suite 304 
P.O. Box 1149 
Ridgeland, SC 29936 
 
Attn:  Ms. Kimberly Burgess 
 
Subject: IVTB #2024-15  
     
Dear Ms. Burgess, 
 
EnviroSmart, doing business as ES Integrated, appreciates the opportunity to 
submit this proposal for performing the Loading transportation and disposal 
of demolition debris at your facility located at 200 Old Step School Rd. 
Ridgeland, South Carolina.  ES Integrated solves operational facility challenges 
with a focus on Environmental, Industrial, and Construction Services to clients 
across the United States.  We deliver turn-key solutions to our customer’s 
operational requirements, projects and objectives.  By successfully finishing 
our projects safely, on budget and on time, we represent a dependable partner 
with proven experience and past performance. 

 
The enclosed quote includes our project understanding, value to the client, 
schedule, and pricing to perform the scope of work.  
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me at 843-722-0062 if you have any questions 
or need additional information. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Bryon Snow 
Environmental Director 
  



 

                   Charleston, SC.  Florence, SC.  Savannah, GA.  Charlotte, NC. 
 
 

2 

 
Integrated Services Overview 

ES Integrated measures success through the Safety, Quality, and Value we 
provide to our customers, on every job and at all times.   Excellence in all three 
of these areas of performance must be met in order for ES Integrated to 
consider the effort a success.  Our integrated Environmental, Construction, and 
Industrial service capabilities provides a partnership proposition that is unique 
in our industry.  A single point of contact (account manager) will be assigned 
to manage all of your service requirements and only personnel properly 
trained/familiar to your operational procedures will be deployed for work. 

 
 

Environmental Services: 
• Remediation & Restoration 
• Waste Management - 

Transportation & Disposal 
• Liner / Cap Construction & 

Maintenance 
• Pond Maintenance and Cleaning 
• Wetland Restoration & Mitigation 
• Groundwater System Installation & 

Monitoring 
• Facility Decontamination and 

Demolition 
• Stabilization/Solidification 
• Emergency Response 
• Licensed Hazardous Waste Hauler 
• Wastewater Operators 

 

Industrial Services: 
• Wet and Dry Vacuuming 
• Specialized 10k, 20k, and 40k with 

tooling 
• Tube Sheet Cleaning 
• Sludge Solidification 
• Low and High-Pressure Water 

Blasting  
• Video Pipe Inspection 
• Emergency Spill Response and 

Cleanup 
• Industrial Tank Cleaning 
• Hydro-excavation 
• High Pressure Water Cutting of 

Metals 
• Chemical Cleaning 

 

Safety Services: 
• Confined Space Rescue 
• Safety and EMS Personnel 
• Safety/Compliance Training: 

OSHA, DOT, RCRA, MSHA 
• HASP Development 
• Facility Audits 
• Fit Testing 

 

Construction Services: 
• General Construction  
• WWT System Maintenance & Repair 
• Storm Water System & Control 

Installation 
• Mechanical Construction 
• Mass Excavation and Grading 
• Process / Conveyance Piping 
• Utility Installation – Sewer, Water 

 



 

                   Charleston, SC.  Florence, SC.  Savannah, GA.  Charlotte, NC. 
 
 

3 

Project Specifics: 

ES Integrated will furnish all labor, equipment and materials necessary to 
remove demolition debris from the Coosawhatchie Community Center 
located at 200 Old Step School Road in Ridgeland, South Carolina.  ES 
integrated will mobilize a 210 series excavator with a hydraulic thumb, tracked 
skid steer, roll off containers, roll off trucks and a concrete hammer.  Demolition 
materials will be live loaded into roll off containers and transported to Waste 
Management’s Construction and Demolition landfill in Jasper County.  ES 
Integrated will utilize a concrete hammer to break apart the concrete 
foundation found underneath the piles of debris and rough grade the area to 
promote positive drainage.   
 
Schedule:  

ES Integrated anticipates 6-7 working days to complete the removal activities.  
We can mobilize with 10-business days following award and notice to proceed. 
 
Assumptions: 

1) ES Integrated estimates the volume of material for removal at 1,000 
cubic yards. 

2) ES Integrated’s cost does not include any disposal or tipping fees at the 
landfill, and it is understood that Jasper County will incur these costs 
directly. 

3) Free and clear access to the site will be made available Monday – Friday 
from 07:00-17:00. 

Pricing: 

 

Description Quantity Unit Price Extended 
Price 

Mobilization/Demobilization 1 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 
Demolition Debris Removal and 

Transportation 
1 $45,117.00 $45.117.00 

 
           Total Price   $52,617.00   

 



CLELAND CONSTRUCTORS, INC. Proposal Date

PO Box 3822 05.16.2024

Bluffton, SC 29910

(843) 987-0500

JOB # 24033

JOB : Debris Removal Form Coosawhatchie Community Center

Item Item Description Qty Um Total

Remove Concrete Debris & Rough Grade Existing Area

Remove Existing Concrete Debris & Rough Grade Existing Area 1 Ls

Subtotal 55,519.00$   

TOTAL AMOUNT THIS PROPOSAL 55,519.00$   

›

›

›

›

›

›

›

Cleland Constructors, Inc. is not responsible for repairs of existing road caused by construction traffic.

It has been assumed that all material is suitable for its intended use. CCI will utilize all soils on site for 

grading.

NOTES & CLARIFICATIONS

Subject to mutually agreeable contract terms and conditions

Proposal includes a sweeping tractor on site only during the haul in/out of our work.

No Asbestos Abatement, No hazardous materials.

Unless an item of work is herein stated, it is not included, but can be quoted upon request.

Permits, fees, allowances, and construction testing are excluded.

Debris Removal Form Coosawhatchie Community Center.xlsm 1  of  1









 JASPER  COUNTY 
 IVTB  #2024-15 

 Masterfull  Enterprises  LLC 
 1600  Staley  Ave  Savannah  Ga  31405 

 Office:  912-777-7571 
 Cell:  912-271-5036  /  803-842-0230 

 Masterfull  Enterprises  is  thrilled  about  the  opportunity  to  help  you  achieve 
 Removal  and  Disposal  of  Demolition  Debris  at  The  former  Coosawatchie 
 Community  Center.  We  Believe  Masterfull  Enterprises  would  have  a 
 tremendous  impact  on  your  company’s  overall  productivity. 

 BID:  $75,500.00 



                                                                                                                T G Trucking, LLC 
                                                                                             360 Old Wire Road. 
                         T G         008                                              West Columbia, SC 29172 
                                                                                         (803) 800-9084, (803)446-4314 
                                                                                               Fax: (803) 661-6259 
                                                                                         Email: tgtrucking2@gmail.com 
                                                                             
 
Date: 05/16/2024 
 
 
Kimberly Burgess Dir. Of Administrative 
Jasper County 
Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building 
358 3rd Avenue, Suit 304 
PO Box 1149 
Ridgeland, SC 29936 
 
 
TG Trucking would like to bid $82,459.00 for The Removal and Disposal of Demolition Debris, at the former 

Coosawhatchie Community Center. 

  

 

Thank You, 
 
___________________________ 
Veronica Johnson, Owner 
803-800-9084 
803-446-4314 
tgtrucking2@gmail.com 
 

 
 
 
                                             







From: South Carolina Business Opportunities
To: Kimberly Burgess
Subject: SCBO Advertisement Submission
Date: Wednesday, April 24, 2024 4:57:25 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

NOTICE:
Your SCBO password is good only for 90 days.  Upon receiving a reminder to renew
your password, you have six (6) days to do so.  If you wait any longer, you'll be locked
out.  Please avoid a lockout by renewing your password on time every 90 days or
sooner!

Your SCBO advertisement (AD# 48487) has been submitted and will be reviewed by a member of our staff prior to publication.
Please retain a copy of this email to serve as a receipt of your ad submission.

Please note that ads submitted after 12:00 pm may not be reviewed/published until the next business day.

The information you submitted for the advertisement is included below:

Category: Minor Construction

Advertisement Date: Wed, 04/24/2024 - 00:00

Project Name: REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF DEMOLITION DEBRIS

Project Number: IVTB #2024-15

Project Location: Ridgeland, SC

Description of Project/Services:
Notice is hereby given that Jasper County is seeking sealed bids for the REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF DEMOLITION
DEBRIS, at the former Coosawhatchie Community Center, 200 Step School Road, Ridgeland, SC 29936.

Quote Due Date/Time: Thu, 05/16/2024 - 14:00

Construction Cost Range: 10,0000 - 100,0000

Agency Project Coordinator: Rose Dobson-Elliott

Email: rdelliott@jaspercountysc.gov

Telephone: (843) 726-7740

Project Details: https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/financial-administrative-services/bids-solicitati…

Ad Creation Date: Wed, 04/24/2024 - 16:57

mailto:noreply@mmo.sc.gov
mailto:kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov
mailto:rdelliott@jaspercountysc.gov
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.jaspercountysc.gov%2ffinancial-administrative-services%2fbids-solicitations&c=E,1,qakruQiS50ese_ry4vCqOwLkR32MMxQND69WHHpML6sna0GqXvQbute0KbzpwSl2p5bl4aCrK2tMkeg1WXQUhT3zd81Ex6ARcjba4vqLl4Q,&typo=1


 
JASPER COUNTY 

IVTB #2024-15  
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

Page | 1 
 

 
 
Notice is hereby given that sealed bids will be received for the REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF DEMOLITION 
DEBRIS, at the former Coosawhatchie Community Center, 200 Step School Road, Ridgeland, SC  29936, by Jasper 
County, South Carolina, until 2:00 p.m., May 16, 2024, at which time all bids received will be opened.  Bids may be 
submitted electronically through the County’s Vendor Registry webpage or may be received by the Director of 
Administrative Services Division (Director) at the Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building, 358 3rd Avenue, Post 
Office Box 1149, Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 prior to the time bids are to be opened.  Hardcopy bids delivered 
within the 30-minute period immediately preceding bid opening (as described above) must be hand-delivered to the 
Director’s Office in the Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building.  Hardcopy bids should be delivered to the following 
address:   
 

Kimberly Burgess, Dir. of Administrative Services Div. 
Jasper County  

Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building 
358 3rd Avenue, Suite 304 

P.O. Box 1149 
Ridgeland, SC  29936 

 
A link to the County’s Vendor Registry webpage may be found under “What’s New”, “Bids & Solicitations”, on the 
County’s website at www.jaspercountysc.gov. All bids delivered should clearly indicate IVTB #2024-15 on the exterior 
of the envelope.  Any bids submitted or delivered after the above stated date and time will not be accepted under any 
circumstances.   
 
Bid opening will take place in the Jasper County Council Chambers at the address below: 
 

Council Chambers (3rd floor)  
Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building 

358 3rd Avenue 
Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 

 
Bidders should send any questions to Rose Dobson-Elliott, Dir. of Engineering Services, at (843) 726-7740 or 
rdelliott@jaspercountysc.gov.   
 
 
Description of Work: 
Jasper County is seeking bids for the removal and disposal of demolition debris at the former Coosawhatchie Community 
Center located at 200 Old Step School Road, Ridgeland, SC.  The bid is for the removal and proper disposal of all 
demolition debris currently located at the site of the former Coosawhatchie Community Center.  The bid should include 
the equipment and labor necessary to load the bidder’s dump trucks and transport the debris to the Waste Management 
Construction and Debris landfill in Jasper County. Jasper County will be responsible for the landfill or tipping fees. The 
existing concrete slab still present under the debris pile should be processed, broken up and removed with the debris.  No 
concrete debris should remain on site after removal.  The debris field area should also be rough graded leaving a smooth 
site.  Bidder shall provide all equipment and labor necessary to break up the concrete slab and grade the debris field.   
   
 



 
JASPER COUNTY 

IVTB #2024-15  
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

Page | 2 
 

Bid Requirements: 
Bids should be placed on company letterhead or on a document which provides Bidder name, address, phone number and 
other pertinent contact information.  The successful Bidder will be required to furnish a W-9, a Jasper County business 
license and a certificate of insurance with evidence of liability and workers compensation coverage.   
 
All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for sixty (60) days after the day of the Bid opening. The County of Jasper (Owner) 
reserves the right to reject any or all bids, including without limitation the right to reject any or all nonconforming, non-
responsive, unbalanced, or conditional Bids. The Owner also reserves the right to waive all informalities not involving price, 
time, or changes in the work and to negotiate contract terms with the successful bidder.     
 
All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for thirty (30) days after the day of the Bid opening. The County of Jasper 
(Owner) reserves the right to reject any or all bids, including without limitation the right to reject any or all nonconforming, 
non-responsive, unbalanced, or conditional Bids. The Owner also reserves the right to waive all informalities not involving 
price, time or changes in the Work and to negotiate contract terms with the Successful Bidder.     
 
 
Insurance Requirements: 
The Bidder shall provide, prior to commencing work, a certificate of liability insurance as evidence of the following 
insurance requirements: 
 

a. Workers' Compensation - The vendor shall provide coverage for its employees with statutory workers' compensation 
limits, and no less than $1,000,000.00 for Employers' Liability. Said coverage shall include a waiver of subrogation in 
favor of the OWNER and its agents, employees, and officials. 

 
b. Commercial General Liability - The vendor shall provide coverage for all operations including, but not limited 
to Contractual, Products and Completed Operations, and Personal Injury. The limits shall be no less than $ 
1,000,000.00, per occurrence, with a $2,000,000.00 aggregate. 

 
c. Business Automobile Liability - The vendor shall provide coverage for all owned, non- owned and hired 
vehicles with limits of not less than $1,000,000.00, per occurrence, Combined Single Limits (CSL) or its 
equivalent. 

 



 Page 1 of 1 

Jasper County  
Finance Department 
358 Third Avenue, Post Office Box 1149 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 
Phone (843) 717-3692   Fax (843) 717-3626 

Kimberly Burgess, CPA 
Director of Administrative Services 
kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov 

Jasper County Council 
Audit Services 

Proposal Acceptance Recommendation 

Meeting Date: June 3, 2024 

Subject:  Council acceptance of the audit services proposal from Thompson, Price, Scott, 
Adams & Co. P.A.   

Recommendation: The Council accepts the proposal from Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., 
P.A., Whiteville, NC, for the Jasper County financial audit and single audit, if
necessary, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, for a total all-inclusive fee
not to exceed $65,000.

Description:  Jasper County advertised for sealed proposals for audit services for fiscal year ended June 
30, 2024 with an additional two year contract extension.  A mandatory proposer meeting was held May 
8, 2024.  Two audit firms attended the proposer’s conference—Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., 
PA and Mauldin & Jenkins Certified Public Accountants.  Proposals were due May 22, 2024, at 3:00 
PM. Two proposals were received.  

Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the County Council accept the proposal from Thompson, 
Price Scott, Adams & Co., P.A., for a total all-inclusive fee of $65,000 for the annual financial audit and 
single audit, if necessary.  Additionally, staff requests that the Council authorize the County 
Administrator or his designee to execute all documents necessary to complete the project. 

Attachments:   
Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P. A. audit services proposal 
Mauldin & Jenkins Certified Public Accountants audit services proposal 
Request for Proposal advertisement 
Request for Proposal  

mailto:kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov




































































































































































































































From: South Carolina Business Opportunities
To: Kimberly Burgess
Subject: SCBO Advertisement Submission
Date: Wednesday, April 17, 2024 12:59:59 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when
opening attachments or clicking links, especially from unknown senders.

NOTICE:
Your SCBO password is good only for 90 days.  Upon receiving a reminder to renew
your password, you have six (6) days to do so.  If you wait any longer, you'll be locked
out.  Please avoid a lockout by renewing your password on time every 90 days or
sooner!

Your SCBO advertisement (AD# 48268) has been submitted and will be reviewed by a member of our staff prior to publication.
Please retain a copy of this email to serve as a receipt of your ad submission.

Please note that ads submitted after 12:00 pm may not be reviewed/published until the next business day.

The information you submitted for the advertisement is included below:

Category: Consultant/Professional

Advertisement Date: Wed, 04/17/2024 - 00:00

Ad Title: Audit Services

Description:

Jasper County is seeking proposals for Audit Services.  Those interested may obtain a proposal package on the County website at
https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/financial-administrative-services/bids-so... A mandatory proposer conference is scheduled for
10:00 AM, Wednesday, May 8th at the Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building, 358 3rd Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936

Solicitation #: RFP #2024-13

Submit Offer By: Wed, 05/22/2024 - 15:00

Direct Inquiries To: Kimberly Burgess

Buyer Phone Number: 18437173692

Buyer Email: kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov

Pre-Bid Information:
Property field_prebid

Full Details / Download Form (URL): https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/financial-administrative-services/bids-so...

Ad Creation Date: Wed, 04/17/2024 - 12:59

mailto:noreply@mmo.sc.gov
mailto:kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.jaspercountysc.gov%2ffinancial-administrative-services%2fbids-solicitations.%c2%a0&c=E,1,CYc61fMsH5o1oz5qAjSV5_cZmUJrIVmC4XdnsSJyj6itINAo6sxpjRooYZDoZ2HcjRvTcvP6K9owhie2lp9YSc_HAlXuCYUV1ox0RcTuUyMTKRB8EYy4&typo=1
mailto:kburgess@jaspercountysc.gov
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.jaspercountysc.gov%2ffinancial-administrative-services%2fbids-solicitations&c=E,1,vbr1M8BTxZsPflWRLYQzvE9Pi4bGVBUnYdogawYBmF7UOlj5Pl52kqvxSqW4EIrLn0THICZlJ3YWfwqku0PKzm_ejePF63QJFqFRrpDPQJc,&typo=1


 
 
 

JASPER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

FOR AUDIT SERVICES 
APRIL 16, 2024 

 
RFP #2024-13



REQUESTER’S ADDRESS AND RECIPIENT PROPOSALS 

 

The requester is: 

 Jasper County, South Carolina 

 Post Office Box 1149 

            358 Third Avenue 

 Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 

 843-717-3692 

 

Questions concerning the proposal should be directed to: 

 Kimberly Burgess 

 Director of Administrative Services Division 

 Post Office Box 1149 

 Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 

 843-717-3692 

 

To qualify for consideration, three copies of your proposal must be received at Jasper 

County’s office by 3:00 PM. on May 22, 2024.  The proposal should be addressed as 

follows: Audit Proposals RFP #2024-13, Director of Administrative Services at the 

address above.  Your proposal should comply strictly to the required format. 

 

NATURE OF SERVICES REQUIRED 

Each proposal must address itself to the conduct of an examination and an expression of 

opinion upon Jasper County’s (County) comprehensive annual financial report for the 

years ended June 30, 2024, 2025, and 2026.  The comprehensive annual financial report 

will be prepared by the County and available for audit in mid-October after the end of the 

fiscal year.  Lead schedules and trial balances will be prepared by the County that support 

the balances in the financial statements. 

 

The examination must be performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing 

standards of (a) United States General Accounting Office, the Comptroller General of the 



United States, Government Auditing Standards, (b) appropriate AICPA Industry 

Standards, Audits of Local Governments, (c) Single Audit Act Amendment of 1996, if 

applicable. 

 

The successful proposer shall provide Jasper County with opinion letters regarding the 

audit of the comprehensive financial report, compliance with laws and regulations, and 

awards of federal expenditures at the address previously given.  The County will be 

responsible for printing the required number of reports.   

 

A formal exit conference is to be held with the appropriate officials of the County.  This 

exit conference should be held once preliminary typed drafts of the opinion letters are 

available.  The County is to be given an opportunity to provide a written response to any 

findings and questioned costs.   

 

The successful proposer is required to make a presentation to the County Council after 

the audit work is completed. 

 

DESCRIPTION OF ENTITY AND RECORDS TO BE AUDITED 

Jasper County, South Carolina is in the lowcountry of South Carolina.  The County 

maintains four major funds:  the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects Fund, 

and Economic Development Fund and five nonmajor funds and ten agency funds.  The 

County budgets for the General Fund.  The County’s operating budget for the year 2024 

General Fund is $51,666,677.  The County has over 300 employees.  The County is using 

New World/Tyler Technologies computer software.  The administrative offices are 

located at 358 Third Avenue in Ridgeland, South Carolina. 

 

Baird & Company CPAs, LLC, 4210 Columbia Road, Augusta, Georgia 30907 audited 

the comprehensive annual financial report for June 30, 2023. 



TIME CONSIDERATION AND REQUIREMENTS 

Previous audit work papers will be made available to the successful proposer.   

Arrangements must be made with Baird & Company CPAs, LLC.  Their telephone 

number is 706-855-9500.  A mandatory proposer’s conference will be held at 10:00 am 

on May 8, 2024, in the Council Chambers of Jasper County at 358 Third Avenue in 

Ridgeland.  It is mandatory that all proposers must attend this conference to be 

considered a successful proposer.  Copies of the June 30, 2023, audit report will be 

available for inspection at the proposer’s conference.  Representatives of Jasper County 

will meet with prospective proposers to answer questions about the RFP, the proposed 

audit, and the records to be audited.  The proposal must be received at Jasper County by 

May 22, 2024, by 3:00 pm.   

 

The date for a preliminary report completion and exit conference must be no later than 

December 1st.  Final report completion must be prior to December 15th for consideration 

of the GFOA certificate qualification. 

 

County council meetings are scheduled for the first and third Monday of each month.  

Presentation of the audit is anticipated during the first quarter of the following calendar 

year.  

 

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS 

Jasper County will issue an award letter to the successful proposer.  The award letter will 

specify the maximum fee to be paid for performance of the proposed audit set forth in the 

successful proposal to audit the County and will be for the fiscal years ended June 30, 

2024, 2025, and 2026. 

 

Any expansion of services resulting in an increase in the maximum fee must have prior 

written approval of the County.  Jasper County will be responsible for payment of the 

audit fee.  Jasper County is an equal opportunity employer/contractor. 

 

 



WORKING PAPERS 

Working papers will be retained by the successful proposer for five years or until advised 

otherwise by Jasper County in writing.  The working papers must be made available for 

examination by the representative of any grantor of the County or its designee.  In 

addition, the successful proposer must make all working papers physically available at 

the audit site to the auditor who audits the subsequent fiscal year. 

 

RIGHT TO REJECT 

Jasper County reserves the right to reject any and all proposals submitted and to request 

additional information from all proposers.  An award will be made based on the factors 

included in the Evaluation of Proposals. 

 

RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT 

The County reserves the right to terminate any contract entered into for auditing services 

during the three-year period for any reason.  Reasonable notice shall be given if the 

County deems it necessary to terminate the contract.  

 

INFORMATION REQUESTED FROM THE PROPOSER 

To simplify the review process and obtain the maximum degree of comparison, we 

require that proposals be organized in the manner specified by the RFP.  The following 

outline suggests how a proposal can be organized to include all the information requested 

in the RFP. 

 

Title Page 

Show the RFP subject, the name of the proposer’s firm, local address, telephone number, 

name of the contact person, and the date. 

 

Table of Contents 

Include a clear identification of the material by section and by page number. 

 



Letter of Transmittal 

Limit to one or two pages. 

 

1. Briefly state the proposer’s understanding of the work to be done and make a 

positive commitment to perform the work within the time period. 

2. State the all-inclusive fee for which the work will be done including out of pocket 

costs. 

3. State the names of the persons who will be authorized to make representations for 

the proposer, their titles, addresses, and telephone numbers. 

4. State that the person signing the letter will be authorized to bind the proposer. 

 

Profile of the Proposer 

1. State whether the firm is local, regional, national, or international. 

2. State the location of the office from which the work is to be done and the 

number of partners, managers, supervisors, seniors, and other professional 

staff employed at that office. 

3. Describe the range of activities performed by the local office such as auditing, 

accounting, tax service, or management services. 

 

Mandatory Criteria 

1. Affirm that the proposer is a properly licensed certified public accountant 

licensed. 

2. Affirm that the proposer meets the independence standards of the GAO’s 

Government Auditing Standards. 

3. Affirm that the proposer does not discriminate in employment of persons upon the 

basis of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or physical handicap. 

 

Summary of the Proposer’s Qualifications 

1. Identify the supervisors who will work on the audit, including staff from other 

than the local office.  Resumes including relevant experience and continuing 



education for each supervisory person to be assigned to the audit should be 

included.  (The resumes may be included as an appendix.) 

2. Describe the recent local and regional offices auditing experience similar to the 

type of audit requested and give names of client officials responsible for three of 

the audits listed. 

 

Proposer’s Approach to the Examination 

Submit a work plan to accomplish the scope defined in the RFP.  The work plan should 

include time estimates for each significant segment of the work and the staff level to be 

assigned.  When possible, individual staff members should be named.  The planned use 

of specialists should be specified. 

 

Financial Audit 

1. State whether the examination will be made in accordance with generally 

accepted auditing standards. 

2. State that the primary purpose of the examination is to express an opinion on the 

financial statements and that such an examination is subject to the inherent risk 

that errors may not be detected.  State that if conditions are discovered which lead 

to the belief that material errors, fraud, or other irregularities may exist, or if any 

other circumstances are encountered that require extended services, the auditor 

will promptly advise the County.  And, finally, state that no extended services will 

be performed unless the County authorizes them in writing. 

 

Compensation 

State the total hours and hourly rate required by staff classification and the resulting all-

inclusive maximum fee, including out of pocket costs, for which the requested work will 

be done. 

 

Additional Data 

Since the preceding sections are to contain only data that is specifically requested, any 

additional information considered essential to the proposal should be included in this 



section.  The proposer’s general information publications, such as directories or client 

lists, should not be included unless specifically requested.  If there is no additional 

information to present, state “There is not additional information we wish to present”. 

 

EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS 

The following factors will be considered during our evaluation.   

 

Technical Factors 

1. To be considered responsive, the proposal must clearly state an understanding of 

the work to be performed.  Factors that will be considered: 

a. Appropriateness and adequacy of proposed procedures 

b. Necessity of procedures 

c. Reasonableness of time estimates 

d. Appropriateness of assigned staff levels. 

e. Timeliness of expected completion 

 

2. Technical experience of the firm 

a. General audit experience 

b. References from other engagements 

 

3. Qualifications of staff 

a. Familiarity with governmental entities 

b. Familiarity with comprehensive annual financial reports 

c. Familiarity with GFOA Certificate of Excellence Program 

d. Familiarity with Single Audit Requirements



Cost Factors 

Although cost is a significant factor, it will not be the dominant factor.  Cost will be 

given more importance when all the other evaluation criteria are relatively equal.  If there 

is reason to believe that an unreasonably low proposal has been made, it will be rejected.  

One method of measuring reasonableness is to divide the proposed cost by a reasonable 

average hourly rate to show hours of effort that might be expected. 

 

 



 Page 1 of 1 

Jasper County  
Finance Department 
358 Third Avenue, Post Office Box 1149 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 
Phone (843) 717-3692   Fax (843) 717-3626 

Kimberly Burgess, CPA 
Director of Administrative Services 
kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov 

Jasper County Council  
South Carolina Department of Public Safety 

 Body Armor Assistance Grant No. 1BA24008 

Meeting Date: June 3, 2024 

Subject:  Council acceptance of Body Armor Assistance Grant No. 1BA24008 award from 
the SC Department of Public Safety in the amount of $54,681. 

Recommendation: The Council accepts Body Armor Assistance Grant No. 1BA24008 award from 
the SC Department of Public Safety in the amount of $54,681 and authorize the 
County Administrator or his designee to execute all necessary documents.  

Description:  The SC Department of Public Safety has awarded Jasper County, as a subgrantee and on 
the basis of the application submitted, a grant in the amount of $54,681 for the project specified in the 
application and within the purposes and categories authorized for the Body Armor Assistance Grant.  
The award period is January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024.    

Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the County Council accept the Body Armor Assistance 
Grant No, 1BA24008, as a subgrantee, from the SC Department of Public Safety in the amount of 
$54,681 and authorize the County Administrator or his designee to execute all necessary documents. 

Attachments:   
Body Armor Assistance Grant #1BA24008 Award Document 
Body Armor Assistance Grant #1BA24008 Special Conditions 
Body Armor Assistance Grant Application 

mailto:kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov


May 28, 2024 
 
Mr. Andrew Fulghum 
County Administrator 
Jasper County 
Post Office Box 1149 
Ridgeland, SC 29936 
  
RE: Body Armor Assistance Grant No. 1BA24008 
 
  
Dear Mr. Fulghum: 
  
I am pleased to provide you with a cash award in the amount of $54,681 for the above-referenced grant project. 
This funding must be applied to the initial purchase or reimbursement of eligible body armor expenditures occurring 
January 1, 2024  December 31, 2024, as indicated in the attached version of the application. To complete the 
contract for this award, it is necessary for you, as the Official Authorized to Sign, to return the signed award within 
30 days from the date of this award.  
 
The Office of Highway Safety and Justice Programs (OHSJP) offers subgrantees the option to use electronic or digital 
signatures to execute OHSJP award documents. Signed award documents may be emailed to Mrs. Amy Kingston at 
AmyKingston@scdps.gov.  
  
Please contact your Program Coordinator, Mrs. Amy Kingston, at 803-896-4742 with any questions regarding this 
award. 
  
Sincerely, 
  

 
 
Phil Riley 
Director 
  
Attachments 
 
c: Chief Deputy Jeff Crosby 
  Body Armor Assistance Grant Official File 
  



SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
OFFICE OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND JUSTICE PROGRAMS

POST OFFICE BOX 1993
BLYTHEWOOD, SOUTH CAROLINA 29016 

 

THIS AWARD IS SUBJECT TO THE ATTACHED CONDITIONS. 
 
 

CASH AWARD 
 

 
Subgrantee: Jasper County Sheriff's Office 

Grant No.: 1BA24008 

Award Period:  1/1/2024 - 12/31/2024 

Date of Award: 5/28/2024 

Amount of Award:                           $54,681   
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Body Armor Assistance Grant, and on the basis of the application submitted, 
the South Carolina Department of Public Safety (SCDPS) hereby awards to the foregoing subgrantee a grant in the 
amount shown above, for the project specified in the application and within the purposes and categories authorized 
for the Body Armor Assistance Grant. 
  
The grant shall become effective, as of the date of the award, upon the return of this form to the Office of Highway 
Safety and Justice Programs signed by the Official Authorized to Sign in the space provided below. This award must 
be accepted within thirty (30) days from the date of the award, and documentation required by the South Carolina 
Department of Public Safety must be submitted in accordance with regulations. 
  

 
ACCEPTANCE FOR THE SUBGRANTEE 

 
ACCEPTANCE FOR THE SCDPS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

                                     
Mr. Andrew Fulghum 

Jasper County 
Phil Riley, Director 

Office of Highway Safety and Justice Programs 
 



BODY ARMOR ASSISTANCE GRANT (BAAG) CONDITIONS

SUBGRANTEE: Jasper County Sheriff's Office 
 
GRANT NO: 1BA24008 
 
AWARD DATE:  5/28/2024 
 
1. This award is contingent upon approval and availability of funds from the state funding source. 
 
2. All information required by Conditions must be submitted to the Office of Highway Safety and Justice 

Programs within 30 days of the award. 
 

The OHSJP offers subgrantees the option to use electronic or digital signatures to execute OHSJP award 
documents. Any of the electronic signature processes available in Adobe Acrobat Reader, or similar 
software, are generally acceptable (e.g., a signature image applied to the PDF, or a digital credential.) 
See the at

 
 
Documents with signatures may be emailed to Amy Kingston at AmyKingston@scdps.gov. 
 
Please contact Amy Kingston, Program Coordinator, at (803) 896-4742 or AmyKingston@scdps.gov 
for further clarification. 

 
3. Please note that the grant period for this award is from 1/1/2024 - 12/31/2024. 
 
4. Documentation of purchases for vests and/or carriers for the period of January 1, 2024  December 31, 

2024, including those partially funded by the Patrick Leahy Bulletproof Vest Partnership (BVP) 
Program, must be submitted after all items have been ordered, received, and paid, to the OHSJP as soon 
as possible, but no later than February 1, 2025. Documentation should demonstrate clearly that any and 
all procurement procedures operative within your agency have been followed. If the agency participates 
in the BVP, documentation should be provided to clearly demonstrate the amount BVP funded and the 
remaining balance being applied to the BAAG program. 

 
5. Funds awarded to the agency may only be used for the intended purpose (i.e., purchase of body armor 

and/or carriers) of the award. Funds awarded will be monitored by the awarding agency.  
 

6. Any funding received from any sale or trade-in agreement including grant funded body armor and/or 
carriers, must use any and all monies collected for the same intended purpose (i.e., purchase of body 
armor and/or carriers) of the award. 
 

7. Any and all items purchased with BAAG Program Funds not authorized for the BAAG program will 
be the responsibility of the awarded agency. 

 
8. Submit the Certification Pages of the grant application with the appropriate signatures of the current 

Project Director, Financial Officer and the Official Authorized to sign within 30 days. The Project 
Director, Finance Officer and Authorized Official cannot be the same person. Please contact Amy 
Kingston, Program Coordinator, at (803) 896-4742 or AmyKingston@scdps.gov for further 
information. 

 
 



BODY ARMOR ASSISTANCE GRANT (BAAG) CONDITIONS

FOR OHSJP USE ONLY 

 
NO. ASSIGNED TO CLEARED BY DATE 

1 AK   
2 N/A   
3 N/A   
4 N/A   
5 N/A   
6 N/A   
7 N/A   
8 AK   



O v e r v i e w  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

O f f i c e  o f  H i g h w a y  S a f e t y  a n d  J u s t i c e  P r o g r a m s

B o d y  A r m o r  A s s i s t a n c e  G r a n t

The  South  Carol ina  Genera l  Assembly  has  des ignated  non-recurr ing  s ta te  funds  for  the  purpose  o f

providing f inancial  ass is tance  to  local  uni ts  o f  government  for  the  purchase  o f  body armor for  i t s  law

enforcement  o f f icers .  The  South  Carol ina  Depar tment  o f  Publ ic  Sa fe ty ’s  Of f ice  o f  Highway Safe ty  and

Just ice  Programs (OHSJP)  is  charged wi th  the  responsibi l i ty  o f  the  adminis trat ion of  the

s ta te-appropriated  Body Armor Ass is tance  Grant  (BAAG) Program.  Vis i t  h t tps: / / scdps .sc .gov/ohsjp  to

view the  BAAG Sol ic i ta t ion document  for  addi t ional  program detai ls ,  including e l ig ibi l i ty  in format ion.

Version:   0

Appl icat ion Deadl ine:   2024-03 -15

Appl ica t ion  # : ABA24008

A w a r d  # : 1 B A 2 4 0 0 8

Award  Da te : 2024-05 -28

S t a t e  S t a r t  D a t e : 2024-01 -01

S t a t e  E n d  D a t e : 2024-12 -31

 



P r o j e c t  D e t a i l s  

P r o j e c t  T i t l e : BAAG

P r o j e c t  S u m m a r y
( m a x .  3 0 0

c h a r a c t e r s ) :

T y p e  o f  A p p l i c a t i o n : Con t inua t i on

Y e a r  o f  F u n d s : 1

O t h e r  ( e x p l a i n ) :



A g e n c y  D e t a i l s  

A g e n c y  N a m e : Jasper  County Sher i f f ' s  Off ice

A d d r e s s : 12008  N Jacob  Smar t  B lvd

City: R i d g e l a n d

S t a t e : S C

9  D i g i t  Z i p : 2 9 9 3 6

( A r e a )  P h o n e  # : (843)  726-7777

( A r e a )  F a x  # : (843)  726-7778

C o u n t y : J a s p e r

O t h e r  c o u n t y / c o u n t i e s  t h i s
p r o j e c t  w i l l  s e r v e :

O r g a n i z a t i o n  T y p e : C o u n t y

O t h e r  ( s p e c i f y ) :

U . S .  C o n g r e s s i o n a l  D i s t r i c t : 6

H a s  y o u r  a g e n c y  r e g i s t e r e d  i n
t h e  S y s t e m  f o r  A w a r d
M a n a g e m e n t  ( S A M ) ?

( h t t p s : / / s a m . g o v / c o n t e n t / h o m e ) :

y e s  n o



F u n d i n g  R e q u e s t  

CATEGORIES TOTAL

R e i m b u r s e m e n t  f o r  P r e v i o u s l y  P u r c h a s e d  V e s t s :

( I n c l u d e  s e p a r a t e  l i n e  i t e m s  f o r  v e s t s ,  t a x e s ,  a n d  s h i p p i n g )

Desc r ip t ion C o s t Q u a n t i t y  

$ 0

TOTAL: $ 0

N e w / R e p l a c e m e n t  V e s t s :

( I n c l u d e  s e p a r a t e  l i n e  i t e m s  f o r  v e s t s ,  t a x e s ,  a n d  s h i p p i n g )

Desc r ip t ion C o s t Q u a n t i t y  

Ves t  t ha t  a r e  exp i r ed  /  need  r ep lacemen t  1 2 0 0 4 3 $ 5 1 , 6 0 0

Taxes  (6%) 7 1 . 6 4 4 3 $ 3 , 0 8 1

Shipp ing  /  F re igh t  Cos t s 0 4 3 $ 0

TOTAL: $ 5 4 , 6 8 1

TOTAL COST: $ 5 4 , 6 8 1



A d d i t i o n a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  

T o t a l  n u m b e r  o f
c e r t i f i e d  o f f i c e r s  i n

t h e  a g e n c y :
5 2

T o t a l  n u m b e r  o f
o f f i c e r s  w h o s e  v e s t s

a r e  d u e  f o r
r e p l a c e m e n t  d u r i n g

t h e  e l i g i b i l i t y  p e r i o d :

1 3

A n t i c i p a t e d  n u m b e r
o f  n e w  v e s t

p u r c h a s e s  d u r i n g
t h e  e l i g i b i l i t y  p e r i o d

( e . g .  n e w  h i r e s ) :

4 3

H a s  y o u r  a g e n c y
b e e n  a w a r d e d
P a t r i c k  L e a h y

B u l l e t p r o o f  V e s t
P a r t n e r s h i p  ( B V P )

f u n d s  o r  o t h e r
g r a n t s  f o r  v e s t

p u r c h a s e s  d u r i n g
t h e  e l i g i b i l i t y

p e r i o d ?  I f  s o ,  p l e a s e
e x p l a i n  a n d  u p l o a d

s u p p o r t i n g
d o c u m e n t a t i o n  t o

t h e  D o c u m e n t s  T a b :

Yes.  We have  par t ic ipa ted  in  the  BVP grant  f rom
2022 to  th i s  da te .  We d id  no t  reapply  las t  year
because  we s t i l l  have  funds  ava i lab le  to  use .
Documen ta t i on  up loaded  to  documen t s  t ab .  The re
have  been  no  ves t  purchases  ye t  in  2024 ,  so  we  have
not  used any BVP funds in  the e l igibi l i ty  per iod.  

We have  a l so  provided  an  exce l  ind ica t ing  which
ves t  a re  exp i r ing  in  2024  ( shee t  2 )  and  the re fo re
wi l l  need  rep lac ing .  We are  ask ing  for  30  new h i res
th is  f i sca l  year  for  our  budget  f rom County  Counci l ,
which  i s  provided in  an  Let te r  of  In tent  a l so
up loaded  in  t he  documen t  t ab .  

 



C e r t i f i c a t i o n  b y  P r o j e c t  D i r e c t o r  

CERTIFICATION BY PROJECT DIRECTOR *

I  cer t i fy  tha t  I  unders tand  and  agree  to  comply  wi th  the  genera l  and  f i sca l  condi t ions  of  th i s

appl ica t ion including specia l  condi t ions ;  to  comply wi th  provis ions  of  the  Act  governing these  funds

and  a l l  o the r  s t a te  o r  f edera l  l aws ;  tha t  a l l  in fo rmat ion  p resen ted  i s  cor rec t ;  tha t  the re  has  been

appropr ia te  coord ina t ion  wi th  a f fec ted  agenc ies ;  tha t  I  am duly  au thor ized  by  the  Appl ican t  to  per form

the  tasks  of  Pro jec t  Di rec tor  as  they  re la te  to  the  condi t ions  of  th i s  award  appl ica t ion ;  and ,  tha t  cos ts

incur red  p r io r  to  award  approva l  may  re su l t  i n  expenses  be ing  abso rbed  by  the  awardee .

 

Pre f ix : M r .

N a m e : Jeff  Crosby

S u f f i x :

T i t l e : Chief  Deputy

A g e n c y : Jasper  County Sher i f f ' s  Off ice

M a i l i n g  A d d r e s s : 12008  N Jacob  Smar t  B lvd

City: R i d g e l a n d

S t a t e : S C

9  D i g i t  Z i p : 2 9 9 3 6

( A r e a )  P h o n e
N u m b e r :

(843)  726-7777

( A r e a )  F a x  N u m b e r : (843)  726-7778

E - M a i l  A d d r e s s : j c rosby@jaspercountysc .gov

S i g n a t u r e : Jeff  Crosby

B o n d e d : y e s  n o

* NOTE: THE PROJECT DIRECTOR, FINANCIAL OFFICER AND OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO SIGN

CANNOT BE THE SAME PERSON.



C e r t i f i c a t i o n  b y  F i n a n c i a l  O f f i c e r  

CERTIFICATION BY FINANCIAL OFFICER *

I  cer t i fy  tha t  I  unders tand  and  agree  to  comply  wi th  the  genera l  and  f i sca l  condi t ions  of  th i s

appl ica t ion including specia l  condi t ions ;  to  comply wi th  provis ions  of  the  Act  governing these  funds

and  a l l  o the r  s t a te  o r  f edera l  l aws ;  tha t  a l l  in fo rmat ion  p resen ted  i s  cor rec t ;  tha t  the re  has  been

appropr ia te  coord ina t ion  wi th  a f fec ted  agenc ies ;  tha t  I  am du ly  au thor ized  by  the  Awardee  to  per form

the  tasks  of  F inancia l  Off icer  as  they  re la te  to  the  condi t ions  of  th is  award  appl ica t ion;  and ,  tha t  cos ts

incur red  p r io r  to  award  approva l  may  re su l t  i n  expenses  be ing  abso rded  by  the  awardee .

 

Pre f ix : M s .

N a m e : Kimber ly  Burgess

S u f f i x :

T i t l e : Finance  D i r ec to r

A g e n c y : Jaspe r  Coun ty  

M a i l i n g  A d d r e s s : PO Box 1149,  358 Third  Avenue

City: R i d g e l a n d

S t a t e : S C

9  D i g i t  Z i p : 2 9 9 3 6

( A r e a )  P h o n e
N u m b e r :

(843)  717-3692

( A r e a )  F a x  N u m b e r : (843)  717-3626

E - M a i l  A d d r e s s : kburges s@jaspe rcoun tysc .gov

S i g n a t u r e : Kimber ly  Burgess

B o n d e d : y e s  n o

* NOTE: THE PROJECT DIRECTOR, FINANCIAL OFFICER AND OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO SIGN

CANNOT BE THE SAME PERSON.



C e r t i f i c a t i o n  b y  O f f i c i a l  A u t h o r i z e d  t o  S i g n  

CERTIFICATION BY OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO SIGN *

I  cer t i fy  tha t  I  unders tand  and  agree  to  comply  wi th  the  genera l  and  f i sca l  condi t ions  of  th i s

appl ica t ion including specia l  condi t ions ;  to  comply wi th  provis ions  of  the  Act  governing these  funds

and  a l l  o the r  s t a te  o r  f edera l  l aws ;  tha t  a l l  in fo rmat ion  p resen ted  i s  cor rec t ;  tha t  the re  has  been

appropr ia te  coord ina t ion  wi th  a f fec ted  agenc ies ;  tha t  I  am duly  au thor ized  to  commit  the  app l ican t  to

these  r equ i remen t s ;  and ,  t ha t  cos t s  i ncu r red  p r io r  to  award  approva l  may  re su l t  i n  expenses  be ing

a b s o r b e d  b y  t h e  a w a r d e e .

Pre f ix : M r .

N a m e : A n d r e w  F u l g h u m

S u f f i x :

T i t l e : Jasper  coun ty  Admin i s t ra to r

A g e n c y : Ja spe r  Coun ty

M a i l i n g  A d d r e s s : PO Box 1149,  358 Third  Avenue 

City: R i d g e l a n d

S t a t e : S C

9  D i g i t  Z i p : 2 9 9 3 6

( A r e a )  P h o n e
N u m b e r :

(843)  717-3690

( A r e a )  F a x  N u m b e r : (843)  726-7800

E - M a i l  A d d r e s s : a fu lghum@jaspe rcoun tysc .gov

S i g n a t u r e : A n d r e w  F u l g h u m

B o n d e d : y e s  n o

* NOTE: THE PROJECT DIRECTOR, FINANCIAL OFFICER AND OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO SIGN

CANNOT BE THE SAME PERSON.



R e v i e w

Rev i se

   Make  modi f ica t ions  to  the  submi t ted  appl ica t ion
 

P e n d i n g  F u n d s

   Pu t  app l ica t ion  in to  Pending  Funds  s ta tus  
 

A w a r d

   Pu t  appl ica t ion  in to  Awarded  s ta tus  
 
R e a s o n  f o r  D e n i a l :

D e n y

   Deny th is  appl ica t ion  and put  in  Denied  (Pending)
s t a t u s



 Page 1 of 1 

Jasper County  
Finance Department 
358 Third Avenue, Post Office Box 1149 

Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936 
Phone (843) 717-3692   Fax (843) 717-3626 

Kimberly Burgess, CPA 
Director of Administrative Services 
kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov 

Jasper County Council 
M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc.
Capital Planning Services Extension

Meeting Date: June 3, 2024 

Subject:  Council acceptance of M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc., (M. B. Kahn) capital 
planning services extension  

Recommendation: The Council accepts M. B. Kahn capital planning services extension in an 
amount not to exceed $20,000 for services that do not fall under a specific work 
authorization and authorize the County Administrator or his designee to execute 
all documents necessary.     

Description:  Jasper County has a construction management at risk contract with M. B. Kahn and 
throughout the year requests services from M. B. Kahn for future planning or project support services.  
These services fall under a capital planning services agreement for which there is a current not to exceed 
(NTE) amount of $40,000.  In 2023 and 2024, the County has made numerous requests of M. B. Kahn 
for services not included in specific work authorizations, and the current NTE amount is at or near the 
limit.  Therefore, M. B. Kahn has requested an extension of the capital planning services agreement for 
an additional amount NTE $20,000.  

Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the County Council accept the M. B. Kahn Construction Co., 
Inc., capital plan extension request not to exceed $20,000 and authorize the County Administrator or his 
designee to execute all necessary documents. 

Attachments:  
M. B. Kahn Construction Co., Inc. Capital Planning Extension Request

mailto:kburgessr@jaspercountysc.gov


 

Post Office Box 1179      Columbia, SC 29202      803.736.2950      www.mbkahn.com 

NC #1425      FL #CGC056891 (licenses listed per state law) 

January 18. 2024 
 
Andrew P. Fulghum, ICMA-CM, County Administrator  
Jasper County  
PO Box 1149  
Ridgeland, South Carolina 29936  
 
Re: Jasper County Capital Planning Extension  
Dear Mr. Fulghum:  
 
M. B. Kahn is excited to be a part of the continued growth of Jasper County, and look forward to continuing to support 
your staff with planning and management as capital projects are developed and brought from ideas to reality. We have 
prepared the following proposal for future planning and project support services. These services include:  
 

 Review new/potential capital projects identified by County officials (approx. I 0-12 projects) 
 Define scopes based on facility walk-throughs and information provided by County officials  
 Develop conceptual budgets for each project based on agreed upon scope  
 Provide project detail sheets and photos for each project (per format established in original plan report)  
 Option for annual update of original report 

 
M. B. Kahn will provide these services based on an hourly cost basis with a not-to-exceed total cost: 
 
Estimator - 80 hours@ $80.00/hr  
Senior Estimator - 40 hours @ $125.00/hr  
Project Executive - 40 hours @ $175.00/hr 
 
Current NTE amount  $40,000 
Added NTE for capital planning services extension (2024) $20,000 
Total revised NTE amount $60,000 
Optional NTE for Annual update of original report   $5,000 
 
Please indicate your acceptance of this proposal by signing below and returning a copy to us for our files. We look 
forward to continuing this successful and exciting program! 
 
Sincerely. 
 
M. B. KAHN CONSTRUCTION CO., INC.   Jasper County 

 
William W. Cram      Andrew W. Fulghum ICMA-CM 
Executive Vice President      County Administrator 
      



 
 

Minutes 04.01.2024 
 

 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg.  
     358 3rd Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

    Monday, April 1, 2024 

Budget Workshop:      
 

• 14th Circuit Public Defender’s Office – Stephanie Smart-Gittings, Public Defender – Did not attend 
the workshop.  

 

• Jasper County Coroner’s Office – Willie Aiken, County Coroner – Did not attend the workshop. 
 
Officials Present: Chairman L. Martin Sauls IV, Councilman Pastor Alvin Adkins, Councilman John 
Kemp Councilman Coy Garbade Absent: Vice Chairwoman Barbara B. Clark 
 
Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles, County 
Attorney David Tedder, Kimberly Burgess, Lisa Wagner, Danny Lucas and the Videographer.   
 
Call to Order:  
Chairman Sauls called the Council Meeting to order. The Report of Compliance with the Freedom of 
Information Act was read for the records as follows:  In compliance with the Freedom of Information 
Act, notice of meetings and agendas were posted and furnished to all news media and  
 persons requesting notification. 

 
 2.  Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 

   (1) Discussion of employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion,  
     discipline, or release of an employee, a student, or a person regulated by a public body or    

                 the appointment of a person to a public body – Administrative Services Division 

 
   (2)  Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed     

                 purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to    
                 pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client  
                 privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary  
                 situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim – Tax Map # 063-26-14-001 

    and Map # 063-26-14-002; Airport Matters – Heddings Lawsuit; Beaufort County Autopsies 
                  

    (5)  Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision  



 
 

Minutes 04.01.2024 
 

 

    of services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in 
    the area served by a public body – Prospect Update; Project Peaches; Project Icarus   
 

ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION MATTER ON WHICH DISCUSSION HAS NOT BEEN COMPLETED MAY HAVE 
DISCUSSION SUSPENDED FOR PURPOSES OF BEGINNING THE OPEN SESSION AT ITS SCHEDULED TIME, AND 
COUNCIL MAY RETURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION DISCUSSION AFTER THE CONCLUSION OF THE OPEN SESSION 
AGENDA ITEMS. 
 
Motion to go into Executive Session:  Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Councilman Kemp 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
3. Return to Open Session: 

 
Motion to return to Regular Session:  Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Councilman Kemp 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
   

o Action coming out of Executive Session:   
 
Motion to authorize the administrator to amend the option contract on the Weathersby Property to 
extend the option date buy a period not to exceed 45 days: Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Councilman Kemp 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
4.  Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation: The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invocation was given by 
Councilman Adkins. 
 
5.  Approval of the Consent Agenda Items: 
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 
6.  Approval of the Regular Agenda:  
 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Councilman Kemp 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 



 
 

Minutes 04.01.2024 
 

 

 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7.  Kristin Dubrowski, Hopeful Horizons, CEO - Proclamation Recognizing April as Sexual Assault 
Awareness Month. Ms. Dubrowski could not be present to attend the meeting at this time. 

______________________________________________________________________________________  
RESOLUTIONS 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
8.  David Tedder – Consideration of Resolution #R-2024-12 Committing to Negotiate A Fee-In-Lieu Of 
AD VALOREM TAXES Agreement Between Jasper County and Project Icarus; Identifying The Project; 
and Other Matters Related Thereto.  
 
Mr. Tedder was present to review and discuss the consideration of  Resolution #R-2024-12 committing 
to negotiate a Fee-In-Lieu of AD VALOREM TAXES Agreement between Jasper County and Project Icarus. 
Originally this item’s resolution number was listed on the agenda incorrectly and was numbered as  
R-2024-11, however the information in the resolution document was correct for this item aside from the 
resolution number. The resolution number was correctly listed on the document as R-2024-12 for 
recording in the Record of Deeds office. 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 
9.  Andrew Fulghum – Consideration of Resolution #R-2024-11 to designate April 2023 as Fair Housing 
Month in Jasper County, South Carolina. 
 
Mr. Fulghum was present to review and discuss the consideration of Resolution #R-2024-11 to 
designate April 2023 as Fair Housing Month in Jasper County, South Carolina. Originally this item’s 
resolution number was listed on the agenda incorrectly and was numbered as R-2024-12, however the 
information in the resolution document was correct for this item aside from the resolution number. The 
resolution number was correctly listed on the document as R-2024-11 for recording in the Record of 
Deeds office. 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
   
______________________________________________________________________________________  

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 



 
 

Minutes 04.01.2024 
 

 

10. David Tedder – Consideration of the 2nd reading and Public Hearing of Ordinance  
#O-2024-06 Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a Fee-In-Lieu Of Ad Valorem Taxes and 
Incentive Agreement By and Among Jasper County, South Carolina, Hardeeville Jasper Lecangs 
LLC, and Lecangs LLC for an Economic Development Project formerly known as “Project 
Peaches”; To Provide for Payment of a Fee-In-Lieu Of Taxes; Authorizing Certain Infrastructure 
Credits; and Other Related Matters. (1st reading 03.04.2024)  
 
Mr. Tedder was present to review and discuss the consideration of 2nd reading and Public Hearing of 
Ordinance #O-2024-06 authorizing the execution and delivery of a Fee-In-Lieu Of Ad Valorem Taxes 
and Incentive Agreement by and among Jasper County, South Carolina, Hardeeville Jasper Lecangs 
LLC, and Lecangs LLC for an Economic Development Project formerly known as “Project Peaches”; to 
provide for payment of a Fee-In-Lieu Of Taxes; and authorizing Certain Infrastructure Credits.  The 
public hearing for this item was called to order but there were no comments, so the public hearing 
was closed.  
Motion to approve:  Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed.  

11. David Tedder – Consideration of the 2nd reading and Public Hearing of Ordinance #O-2024-07 to 

amend the Jasper County Code of Ordinances by repealing Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 6, Economic 

Development Alliance. (1st reading 03.04.2024)  
 
Mr. Tedder was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 2nd reading and public hearing 
of Ordinance #O-2024-07 to amend the Jasper County Code of Ordinances by repealing Chapter 2, 
Article IV, Division 6, Economic Development Alliance.  The public hearing for this item was called to 
order but there were no comments, so the public hearing was closed.  
Motion to approve:  Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed.  

12. David Tedder – Consideration of the 2nd reading and public hearing of Ordinance #O-2024-08 to 

amend the Jasper County Code of Ordinances by deleting existing Chapter 26, Taxation, Article I and 

Article II in their entirety, and adopting a new Article I and Article II in their stead. (BOA) (1st reading 

03.04.2024)  
 
Mr. Tedder was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 2nd reading and public hearing 
of Ordinance #O-2024-08 to amend the Jasper County Code of Ordinances by deleting existing 
Chapter 26, Taxation, Article I and Article II in their entirety, and adopting a new Article I and  
Article II in their stead. Mr. Tedder noted that there had been no changes since the first reading. The 
public hearing for this item was called to order but there were no comments, so the public hearing 
was closed.  



 
 

Minutes 04.01.2024 
 

 

Motion to approve:  Councilman Kemp 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed.  

13. David Tedder – Consideration of the 2nd reading and public hearing of Ordinance #O-2024-09  to 

amend the Jasper County Code of Ordinances by repealing Chapter 28, Utilities, Articles II through IV in 

their entirety and replacing them with a new Article II. (BJWSA) (1st reading 03.04.2024)  
 
Mr. Tedder was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 2nd reading and public hearing 
of Ordinance #O-2024-09 to amend the Jasper County Code of Ordinances by repealing Chapter 28, 
Utilities, Articles II through IV in their entirety and replacing them with a new Article II. Mr. Tedder 
noted that there had been no changes since the first reading The public hearing for this item was 
called to order but there were no comments, so the public hearing was closed.  
Motion to approve:  Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed.  

14.  Kim Burgess – Consideration of the 1st Reading of an Ordinance Authorising the Execution and 

Delivery of Certain Instruments Relating to the Acquisition, Construction, Renovation, Equipping, Use, 

and Leasing of Certain County Facilities; Approving the Issuance of St. Peters Parish/Jasper County Public 

Facilities Corporation Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds and Bond Anticipation Notes; Consenting to 

the Form of Trust Agreements Between St. Peters Parish/Jasper County Public Facilities Corporation and 

the Corporate Trustee; the Lease Of Certain Personal Property, Real Property and the Buildings and 

Other Site Improvements Located Thereon, By Jasper County, South Carolina to St. Peters Parish/Jasper 

County Public Facilities Corporation, including Authorising the Execution and Delivery of a Base Lease 

Agreement, Between Jasper County and St. Peters Parish/Jasper County Public Facilities Corporation; 

Authorising the Execution And Delivery Of A Public Facilities Purchase and Occupancy Agreement 

Between Jasper County and St. Peters Parish/Jasper County Public Facilities Corporation; Authorising the 

Execution and Delivery of a Lease Agreement Between Jasper County and St. Peters Parish/Jasper 

County Public Facilities Corporation; and Other Matters Relating Thereto.  
 
Ms. Burgess was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 1st Reading of an Ordinance 
authorising the execution and delivery of certain instruments relating to the acquisition, construction, 
renovation, equipping, use, and leasing of certain county facilities; approving the issuance of St. 
Peters Parish/Jasper County Public Facilities Corporation Installment Purchase Revenue Bonds and 
Bond Anticipation Notes; Consenting to the Form of Trust Agreements between St. Peters 
Parish/Jasper County Public Facilities Corporation and the Corporate Trustee; the Lease Of Certain 
Personal Property, Real Property and the Buildings and Other Site Improvements located thereon, by 
Jasper County, South Carolina to St. Peters Parish/Jasper County Public Facilities Corporation, 
including authorising the execution and delivery of a Base Lease Agreement, between Jasper County 



 
 

Minutes 04.01.2024 
 

 

and St. Peters Parish/Jasper County Public Facilities Corporation; Authorising the execution and 
delivery of a Public Facilities Purchase and Occupancy Agreement between Jasper County and St. 
Peters Parish/Jasper County Public Facilities Corporation; Authorising the execution and delivery of a 
Lease Agreement between Jasper County and St. Peters Parish/Jasper County Public Facilities 
Corporation. 
Motion to approve:  Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 
15.  David Tedder – Consideration of the 1st Reading of an Ordinance authorizing the sale of a right 
of way easement over approximately 0.34 acres, 14,878 sq. ft., being a portion of TMS 042-00-05-
040 adjacent to the Interstate Highway I-95, to the South Carolina Department of Transportation in 
order to facilitate the widening, in exchange for the amount of $20,000.00 in just compensation, 
and to authorize the Jasper County Administrator to execute such right of way easement and other 
documents as may be necessary and appropriate to effect the transfer to the South Carolina 
Department of Transportation, or its assigns, and matters related thereto. (I95 widening project).   
 
Mr. Tedder was present to review and discuss the consideration of the 1st Reading of an Ordinance 
authorizing the sale of a right of way easement over approximately 0.34 acres, 14,878 sq. ft., being a 
portion of TMS 042-00-05-040 adjacent to the Interstate Highway I-95, to the South Carolina 
Department of Transportation in order to facilitate the widening, in exchange for the amount of 
$20,000.00 in just compensation, and to authorize the Jasper County Administrator to execute such 
right of way easement and other documents as may be necessary and appropriate to effect the 
transfer to the South Carolina Department of Transportation, or its assigns, and matters related  
Motion to approve:  Councilman Garbade 
Second:  Councilman Adkins 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
______________________________________________________________________________________  

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
16.  Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance 08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in person 
at the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:30PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes. 
 
Verna Garvin discussed the concerns she had regarding the special audit of the Treasurer’s Office and 
noted that she wondered  if nothing had been entered since 2023, how a budget could be set. 
Ms. Frazier discussed the Coosawhatchie Community Center. 
Ms. Horton noted that if Ms. Garvin had not finished her statement, she would yield her time to Ms. 
Garvin, so Ms. Garvin came back to finish her concerns. She noted she had been in office for 24 years and 
the Treasurer’s Office was an elected position. She discussed how the office was setup during her tenure. 



 
 

Minutes 04.01.2024 
 

 

Mr. Sullivan noted they (Civil Air Patrol) were set to come up on the 15th. 
Mr. Lee Logan discussed recommendations for the Airport leases, federal funding and the airport.   
 

 
17.  Administrator’s Report - Mr. Fulghum reviewed the information from his report. He noted that he 
wanted to address one item not on his report.  He noted that the CDBG grant had been awarded to the 
Town of Ridgeland and that LCOG requires that the County be a Co-Applicant or have an IGA Agreement.  
Motion to approve by Councilman Adkins with a second by Councilman Garbade and the motion 
unanimously passed. There were no other Action Items requiring a vote from the Council in the 
Administrator’s Report.  
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  
 
18.  Andrew Fulghum – Acceptance of an Economic Development Set-Aside Grant from the SC 
Department of Commerce in the amount of $50,000.00 for Master Steel LLC and authorization for the 
County Administrator to sign the Grant Award Agreement and Related Documents.   
 
19. Approval of the Minutes 02.22.2024  
_______________________________________________________________________________________  

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
20. Council Members Comments:  Councilmember Comments were given but there were no comments 
that required action. 
Possible Return to Executive Session to Continue Discussion on Matters Regarding Agenda  
Item II. *Council may act on any item appearing on the agenda including items discussed in executive 
session. There was no need to return to executive session for this meeting.  For additional  
information on this meeting please visit our website for this meeting’s agenda E-Packet or for the video go 
to https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA 
 
21.  Adjournment: 
Motion to adjourn:  Councilman Adkins 
Second:  Councilman Garbade 
Vote:  Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
Respectfully submitted:      

        
_______________________________________ 
Wanda H. Giles, Clerk to Council 
        ____________________________________ 

           L.  Martin Sauls IV, Chairman 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA



	ccecf745-1c93-47c8-b8a9-98c48fcd5b19.pdf
	ItemA
	ItemB

	5109f198-8a46-444b-b0a0-39a9b6b19d19.pdf
	EEOP Resolution_2024
	EEOP adoption version 06.03.24

	8849b3cb-7eba-4e95-bf17-6f8d8795fdbb.pdf
	820ecfae-5164-48d1-8ebb-ee2d04e68956.pdf
	d34446a1-1881-4ffd-8e98-506571ea51df.pdf
	Tract 2 Exhibit



	d80dd2c7-3f2d-4a5d-8a7d-10b32483e113.pdf
	1e2a0c44-e196-412b-bdc2-0bd0f2cfc35e.pdf
	aab5bdd7-0413-4fc2-9328-739377045bda.pdf
	A. THE PROPERTY
	B. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT PROCESS
	C. CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN
	D. ENVIRONMENTAL  PROTECTION
	E. WATER AND SEWER SERVICE
	6. TREE PRESERVATION AND REPLACEMENT
	J. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
	SECTION II:
	A . INTRODUCTION and NARRATIVE
	B. ALLOWED LAND USES
	For-Rent and/or For Sale Single Family Residential


	ef242a00-28d4-453a-83f2-c5b7f7efdf62.pdf
	STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
	I. INCORPORATION.
	II. DEFINITIONS.
	III. TERM.
	IV. DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY.
	V. CHANGES TO ZONING REGULATIONS.
	VI. DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE.
	VIII. RESTRICTED ACCESS
	IX. EFFECT OF FUTURE LAWS.
	X. INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES
	XI. DEVELOPMENT FEES
	XII. PERMITTING PROCEDURES:
	XIV. COMPLIANCE REVIEWS.
	XV. DEFAULTS.
	XVI. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT.
	XVII. NOTICES.
	XVIII. ENFORCEMENT.
	XIX. GENERAL.
	XXI. STATEMENT OF REQUIRED PROVISIONS
	SIGNATURES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE
	EXHIBIT A
	EXHIBIT C
	EXHIBIT D
	TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
	DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

	165c390a-e086-4524-bcde-6a340fd01051.pdf
	A. THE PROPERTY
	B. PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT PROCESS
	C. CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN
	D. ENVIRONMENTAL  PROTECTION
	E. WATER AND SEWER SERVICE
	6. TREE PRESERVATION AND REPLACEMENT
	J. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
	SECTION II:
	A . INTRODUCTION and NARRATIVE
	B. ALLOWED LAND USES
	For-Rent and/or For Sale Single Family Residential


	0a149ba0-88d2-4510-8f7c-14637c2d7a96.pdf
	STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
	I. INCORPORATION.
	II. DEFINITIONS.
	III. TERM.
	IV. DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY.
	V. CHANGES TO ZONING REGULATIONS.
	VI. DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE.
	VIII. RESTRICTED ACCESS
	IX. EFFECT OF FUTURE LAWS.
	X. INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES
	XI. DEVELOPMENT FEES
	XII. PERMITTING PROCEDURES:
	XIV. COMPLIANCE REVIEWS.
	XV. DEFAULTS.
	XVI. MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT.
	XVII. NOTICES.
	XVIII. ENFORCEMENT.
	XIX. GENERAL.
	XXI. STATEMENT OF REQUIRED PROVISIONS
	SIGNATURES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE
	EXHIBIT A
	EXHIBIT C
	EXHIBIT D
	TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
	DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE



	0268026f-4bd4-4f73-b32e-c0107a5d91b5.pdf
	30581e15-a2ce-407e-9e1b-fbb3183230c5.pdf
	Fee Schedule Ordinance FY24-25.pdf
	Sheet1

	Budget Ordinance Detail FY25 Final.pdf
	Account


	68bdd1aa-276e-48a4-9296-4722cbb9bf33.pdf
	MonmouthSolutionsProposal_OpentopCompactorSC.pdf
	Low-Profile-Dump-HD.pdf
	sell sheets_40
	sell sheets_41

	Toter's Bid Submission Information to Monmouth Solutions.pdf
	Automatic_Bear-Cart_Sales_Sheet_112023.pdf
	Automatic_Bear-Cart_Sales_Sheet_112023.pdf
	Bear_Resistant_52020_DIGITAL_1 (2).pdf

	79296 ANSI.pdf
	79296 ANSI
	2008 ANSI Letter from Steve Knight

	ADP157C.tmp
	Toter EVR II Universal/Nestable 96-Gallon Cart Specifications


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	40ft Kitchen Trailer.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Arch D


	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	19871a1f-c935-4678-8f17-ec0e6ea2f9c7.pdf
	RFP #2024-13 Audit Services.pdf
	REQUESTER’S ADDRESS AND RECIPIENT PROPOSALS
	DESCRIPTION OF ENTITY AND RECORDS TO BE AUDITED
	TIME CONSIDERATION AND REQUIREMENTS
	CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

	RIGHT TO REJECT
	RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT
	Title Page
	Table of Contents
	Letter of Transmittal
	Profile of the Proposer
	Mandatory Criteria
	Summary of the Proposer’s Qualifications

	Proposer’s Approach to the Examination
	Technical Factors
	Cost Factors





